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IENOVA DEVELOPS, BUILDS, AND
OPERATES ENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE
PROJECTS IN MEXICO. WE PARTICIPATE
IN SEVERAL BUSINESS LINES IN THE
ENERGY SECTOR'S VALUE CHAIN THAT
ARE OPEN TO PRIVATE COMPANIES.

AS OF 2017, WE HAVE INVESTED MORE
THAN USDS7.6 BILLION, INCLUDING
PROJECTS IN OPERATION AND UNDER
CONSTRUCTION, ACQUISITIONS, AND
JOINT VENTURES. IENOVA IS AMONG THE
LARGEST PRIVATE ENERGY COMPANIES
IN THE COUNTRY, AND THE FIRST
ENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY
TO BE LISTED ON THE MEXICAN STOCK
EXCHANGE.

[102-16]

our vision is to be a leading energy
infrastructure company in Mexico that
contributes to promoting the
country’s growth, competitiveness,
and sustainable development.

our mission is to develop, build,

and operate energy infrastructure,
contributing to the development of
Mexico and creating value for our
shareholders, within a framework of
ethics, safety, respect, and commitment
to our employees, the environment, and
the communities to which we belong.

Ethical

do the right thing

+ Act with honesty and integrity.
+ Be open and fair.

+ Keep our commitments.

» Earn people’s trust.

Respectful

value people

+ Listen, communicate clearly, be candid.

» Embrace diversity of people and perspective.
» Contribute individually to succeed as a team.
» Treat safety as a way of life.

High-performing

deliver outstanding results

+ Set tough goals and achieve them, act with
urgency.

» Reward superior performance, acknowledge
successes.

+ Learn and improve.

+ Be accountable.

Forward-looking

shape the future

» Think critically and strategically.

» Anticipate market needs.

» Actively pursue and create opportunities.

» Implement with discipline and manage risks.

Responsible partner

create positive relationships

» Engage others, seek feedback, collaborate.
» Support our communities.

» Be aresponsible environmental steward.

» Do what we say we'll do.

IENOVA 9
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MESSAGE FROM
THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE BOARD AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE OFFICER
[102-14, 102-15,
102-1,102-5, 103-1]

usps8.19*

MILLION
INVESTMENT

IN COMMUNITY,
ENVIRONMENT,
SAFETY, HEALTH,

AND COMPLIANCE
IN 2017

In 2017, we exceeded our goals by leveraging the opportunities offered
by the dynamic energy market in Mexico. We strengthened our
participation in segments where we are leaders and simultaneously
diversified the lines of business we engage in and the types of customers
we serve.

With an investment of USD$1.075 billion for the year, we executed
projects of different types and scales within an expanding geographic
footprint.

Our financial balance sheet is strong, we provide a very attractive
return to our investors and an efficient capital structure. Adjusted
EBITDA for the year was USD$759 million, representing an increase of
close to 51% with respect to 2016. To share these achievements with
analysts and investors, we successfully held the first IEnova Analyst
Day in New York City.

At year-end we carried out our first international senior note offering
for USD$840 million, with demand exceeding all expectations. Our
current debt level continues to be healthy, enabling us to maintain our
investment grade.

In the Gas Segment, in 2017 we finished building three pipelines,
concluding the year with a network of 3,391 km** of pipelines to
transport natural gas, LPG, and ethane. Furthermore, we acquired an
additional 25% of the Los Ramones Norte Pipeline, increasing our
stake in the asset to 50%. We also started construction of the marine
natural gas pipeline in a joint venture with TransCanada.

Includes Fundacion IEnova's annual budget and social investments made by the following
Trusts: Ensenada, Sonora, Ojinaga-El Encino, San Isidro-Samalayuca, as well as the Ethane
Pipeline, Energia Sierra Judrez, and the marine terminal for the receipt, storage, and delivery
of hydrocarbons in the new port of Veracruz.

** Includes 100% of kilometers of pipelines in operation, under construction, and in joint ventures.

IENOVA
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[103-1]

We entered into new lines of business with a contract to build and
operate a marine terminal for the receipt, storage, and delivery of
hydrocarbons in the new port of Veracruz, and by signing an
agreement to build two land storage terminals in the vicinity of
Mexico City and the state of Puebla.

In the Electricity Segment, we signed the first contract ever in
Mexico for the direct sale of energy between private companies.
As part of this agreement, we started construction on Pima Solar,
a new 110 MW, solar park in the municipality of Caborca, in the
state of Sonora, in addition to the two solar parks already included
in our portfolio that are currently under construction. Also in this
segment, we are in the process of expanding capacity at the
Energia Sierra Judrez wind farm.

We continue to value sustainability as a vital element within our
business strategy, as evidenced by IEnova’s outstanding position
in the Sustainability Index of the Mexican Stock Exchange.

We constantly reiterate our commitment to the UN Global
Compact and its Sustainable Development Goals. We offer our
employees opportunities for growth and a better quality of life, as
demonstrated by our certification, for the fourth consecutive
year, by the Great Place to Work Institute. And we continue our
efforts to care for natural resources and protect biodiversity.

Given that our commitment to sustainability also extends to the
communities to which we belong, we started implementing a
corporate Social Management System to coordinate the work we
do on their behalf. With a USD$1 million budget, Fundacion IEnova
sponsored 28 projects spanning six Mexican states. And, in
response to the effects of the earthquakes that hit our country in
September, we carried out a fund-raising campaign among our
employees. Fundacién IEnova doubled the donated funds and the
total resources will be allocated to rebuilding two elementary
schools in the state of Puebla.

| wish to thank our shareholders, Board members, and partners for
the trust they have placed in IEnova. | also recognize the work
done by our management team and employees, who are the driving
force behind our achievements. Those achievements, described in
detail throughout this Report, encourage us to continue working to
remain on this successful path to creating value.

Sincerely,

7o

Carlos Ruiz Sacristan
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Infraestructura Energética Nova, S.A.B. de C.V.

IENOVA 13
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MEXICO

USDS$408.3 million debt
placement

USD$598.8 million share
issue

Inclusion of the IEnova shares
in the IPC Index of the
Mexican Stock Exchange

Beginning of operations of the
LPG Storage Terminal in
Guadalajara

Beginning of operations of the
Energia Sierra Juarez wind
farm (joint venture with
InterGen)

Beginning of operations of the
Ethane Pipeline

Beginning of operations of the
Puerto Libertad-Guaymas
phase of the first segment of
the Sonora Pipeline

Award and signing of the San
Isidro-Samalayuca Pipeline
contract

Announcement of the
agreement to acquire the
Pemex stake in Gasoductos de
Chihuahua

Creation and beginning of
operations of Fundacién
IEnova, A.C.

IENOVA 15

Beginning of operations of the Guaymas-
El Oro segment of the Sonora Pipeline

Beginning of operations of the San
Isidro-Samalayuca Pipeline

Beginning of operations of the Ojinaga-El
Encino Pipeline

Beginning of operations of Ramal
Empalme

Acquisition of the 25% Pemex stake in the
Los Ramones Norte project

Signing with DeAcero of the first energy
supply contract between a private
generator and an industrial client

Award of the contract to build a marine
terminal for the receipt, storage, and
delivery of hydrocarbons in the new port
of Veracruz, as well as two land terminals
in Puebla and in the vicinity of Mexico City

International senior note offering for
USDS$840 million

17

13 14

Inclusion of IEnova in the Sustainability
Index of the Mexican Stock Exchange

50/50 joint venture with InterGen in
the Energia Sierra Juarez wind farm

Beginning of operations of Los
Ramones | Pipeline and the Sasabe-
Puerto Libertad phase of the first
segment of the Sonora Pipeline

Award and signing of the Ojinaga-El
Encino Pipeline contract

Great Place to Work Certification

Socially Responsible Company Award

15 16

Beginning of operations of the
Los Ramones Norte Pipeline

Award of the Ramal Empalme Pipeline

Award of the Sur de Texas-Tuxpan Marine
Pipeline (joint venture with TransCanada)

Acquisition of the Pemex TRI stake in
Gasoductos de Chihuahua

Award and signing of the contract for two
renewable energy projects, Rumorosa
Solar and Tepezala Solar

IEnova equity follow-on offering

Acquisition of the Ventika wind farm

Los Ramones Compression Station
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OUR
ACTIVITIES

[102-4,102-6]

GAS
SEGMENT

Capacity for 320,000 m?
of natural gas

Transportadora
de Gas Natural de BC

Veracruz 1.4 MMBbI

Puebla and the vicinity of Mexico City:
500,000 and 800,000 Bbl

(Under development)

CUSTOMERS

ELECTRICITY
SEGMENT

625 MW Capacity

I _E
- - I----I

- Includes 100% of kilometers of pipelines in operation, under construction, and in joint ventures.

**  Asset belonging to the joint venture with InterGen, in which IEnova holds a 50% stake.
***  Asset belonging to the joint venture with TransCanada, in which IEnova holds a 40% stake.
**4% Asset belonging to the joint venture with Trina Solar, in which IEnova holds a 90% stake.

Natural gas distribution system
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Tepezala Solar**** 100 MW,
Rumorosa Solar 41 MW,
Pima Solar 110 MW, .

(Under construction)

(o

Algodones Control Center
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PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION
AND IN DEVELOPMENT
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WE ARE A
SUSTAINABLE

COMPANY

26 30

SUSTAINABILITY STAKEHOLDERS
MANAGEMENT

AT IENOVA WE VALUE
SUSTAINABILITY AS A VITAL
ELEMENT WITHIN OUR
BUSINESS STRATEGY AND AS
A NECESSARY CONDITION TO
BE ABLE TO MAINTAIN OUR
LEADERSHIP POSITION IN
OUR INDUSTRY

34

MATERIALITY

36

WE CREATE VALUE

Los Ramones Compression Station
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[102-19, 102-20, 102-31, 102-32, 102-33, 103-2]
We have a Sustainability Committee that enables us to integrate
sustainability into IEnova’s strategic planning process and in the way
we manage economic, environmental, and social risks. The Committee
is chaired by our Chief Corporate Affairs & Human Resources Officer,
and includes the following IEnova executives:

e Chief Financial Officer

e Chief Development Officer

e Chief Legal Counsel

e Chief Engineering & Construction Officer
e Chief Operating Officer

e Senior Vice President Strategic Planning
¢ Vice President Controller

¢ Director of Human Capital

¢ Director of Regulation and Compliance

e Director of External Affairs and Sustainability
* Manager of Auditing

* Manager of Sustainability

The Sustainability Committee includes six commissions:

1. Human Capital: is in charge of issues such as the comprehensive
professional and personal development of our employees, and all
efforts related to diversity and inclusion.

2. Social Management: addresses community development as well
as how we manage our social investments.

3. Environment, Health and Safety, and Supply Chain: includes
aspects suchas cleanand efficient energy, environmental stewardship,
comprehensive management of waste and emissions, protecting
biodiversity, the efficient use of resources, the health and safety
of our employees at all operations, as well as economic and
community development.

4. Operations: deals with the integrity and reliability of our operations,
the efficient use of resources, and customer satisfaction.

5. Engineering and Construction: oversees the integrity of the
assets and ensures construction is done sustainably.

6. Ethics and Corporate Governance: strives to strengthen a
culture of ethics and corporate governance.

The functions of the Sustainability Committee include approving
IEnova’s sustainability strategy; making sure that the Sustainability
Commissions carry out their duties; monitoring IEnova's inclusion in
the Sustainability Index of the Mexican Stock Exchange; reviewing
and approving the content of the Sustainability Report; and
promoting all IEnova employees’ knowledge of and compliance with
the Sustainability Policy.

The Sustainability Committee stems from and reports to the
Corporate Practices Committee of the Board of Directors.
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We have a Sustainability Policy in place, which is founded on a culture

of ethics and good corporate governance, sustained by three pillars:

[102-19, 102-20, 102-31, economic, social, and environmental.

102-32,102-33, 103-2]
IEnova is a signatory of the UN Global Compact. Additionally, we
received the ESR responsible company award granted by the Mexican

Philanthropy Center, Cemefi, for the fourth consecutive year.

SUSTAINABILITY
MANAGEMENT

STRUCTURE

CORPORATE
PRACTICES
COMMITTEE

SUSTAINABILITY
COMMITTEE

Human Capital
Commission

Social Management
Commission

Environment, Health
and Safety, and
Supply Chain
Commission

Operations
Commission

Engineering and
Construction
Commission

Ethics and Corporate
Governance
Commission

* Environmental culture

+ Comprehensive
management of
waste and emissions
+ Biodiversity

» Clean and
efficient energy

PILLARS FOR
ACTION

+ Health and safety
« Comprehensive

professional and
personal growth

+ Diversity and inclusion
+ Economic and

community development

+ Social management

+ Maximizing

shareholder value

* Ensuring the integrity

of our assets

+ Operational availability

and reliability

+ Using resources

efficiently

+ Customer satisfaction
+ Comprehensive risk

management

Los Ramones Compression Station
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[102-19, 102-20, 102-31, 102-32, 102-46, 103-2]

Aligned with best international practices, the Policy establishes the
need to assess IEnova's sustainability efforts every three years. In
2017 we complied with this requirement. The goal is to identify the
main strengths and areas for improvement, as well as reinforce
IEnova's sustainability strategy with a mid-to-long-term vision.

The sustainability assessment includes a review of the company’s
strategy and of documents on best international sustainability
practices. In addition, we interviewed members of the Sustainability
Committee and other key players within the company and conducted
an online survey that was answered by 58% of employees.

The results of the evaluation show that we have made good progress
over the past three years in terms of sustainability, particularly when
considering the fast pace at which IEnova has grown over that same
period. The survey also indicates that employees at all levels feel
that considerable progress has been made in all three pillars, with
the majority placing a high value on sustainability and the role it
plays in IEnova's long-term success.

The success of the efforts of the past three years are evidenced by
the fact that IEnova has consistently improved its score in the
three aspects measured by the Sustainability Index—social,
environmental, and corporate governance—and has been ranked
among the top companies.

It is important to mention that in 2017 we began implementing a
corporate Social Management System that allows us to coordinate
and monitor our engagement efforts in the communities to which we
belong. We developed a Manual for the Social Management System
that guides the ways in which we can establish positive relationships
with everyone we come in contact with from the moment we start
planning a project, during construction and the beginning of
operations, and until conclusion. The manual describes seven basic
procedures, including the guidelines for carrying out a feasibility and
social impact assessment and the Grievance Mechanism (MAC for its
acronym in Spanish). Through MAC, the communities can communicate
their concerns or suggestions directly at the construction site, by email,
or by calling a toll-free number. All communications are processed and
allocated to the corresponding division within the company, and a
response must be given within a specific time frame.

SUSTAINABILITY
MODEL

" 4

ENVIRONMENTAL ™~_ __—" ECONOMIC

SOCIAL



STAKEHOLDERS




EXPECTATIONS CURRENT RESPONSE
MEASURES
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MATERIALITY

[102-46, 102-47, 102-48,
102-51,103-1, 103-3]

In 2017, in order to update our materiality assessment we interviewed
ten IEnova executives who are involved not only in managing the
company, but also with the sustainability strategy.

In order to include the point of view of our stakeholders in the
evaluation, we conducted satisfaction surveys among our natural
gas Distribution and Pipelines customers. Furthermore, for the
fourth consecutive year we asked employees to answer the Great
Place to Work (GPTW) questionnaire that assesses the work
environment in Mexico. Results for both efforts were very positive.

Satisfaction levels were high in both customer surveys, with a score
of 9.1 points for Distribution and 9.3 in Pipelines. The GPTW
guestionnaire showed employee satisfaction levels are above last
year's measurement. Based on these results, we were able to
maintain the GPTW certification and were once again ranked among
the top 100 companies to work for in Mexico.

Media coverage on IEnova was mostly positive, with the majority of
stories reflecting the company’s financial and operating results in a
good light.

All these efforts confirmed that the issues we have identified as
material over prior years continue to be relevant, with some
variations in degree. These variations are reflected on the updated
materiality matrix.

Material aspects have been classified in their corresponding
Economic, Social, Environmental or Governance pillar, thus ensuring
that our sustainability model is aligned with IEnova's strategy.
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MATERIALITY
MATRIX

[102-47]

100%

POTENTIAL IMPACT FOR IENOVA

Topics that are a priority for stakeholders, with = 70% relevance. In the content of the Report we describe the actions we
have implemented to address them.




36 IENOVA IENOVA 37

930 37,542 3,391 KM* USD$8.2
IENOVA TRAINING OF NATURAL MILLION**

EMPLOYEES HOURS GAS, LPG, AND
+62% VS. 2016 ETHANE PIPELINES IINVESTMENTS
IN COMMUNITY,

ENVIRONMENT,SAFETY,
HEALTH, AND COMPLIANCE

+6% 100% 3,852 KM

MORE EMPLOYEES OF EMPLOYEES OF PIPELINES TO

THAN IN 2016 RECEIVE AN ANNUAL DISTRIBUTE
PERFORMANCE NATURAL GAS
EVALUATION

1,391 MW#***

CAPACITY TO
GENERATE
ELECTRICITY

Includes 100% of kilometers of
pipelines in operation, under
construction, and in joint ventures.
Includes Fundacién IEnova's annual
budget and social investments
made by the following Trusts:
Ensenada, Sonora, Ojinaga-El
Encino, San Isidro-Samalayuca, as
well as by the Ethane Pipeline,
Energia Sierra Juarez, and the
marine terminal for the receipt,
storage, and delivery of
hydrocarbons in the new port

of Veracruz.

Includes the capacity for generating
electricity of the assets in operation
as well as projects under
construction and development.

LPG Terminal in Guadalajara




RISKMANAGEMEN

AND

CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE

40 44 46 5

RISK CORPORATE CORPORATE GOVERNMENT
MANAGEMENT ETHICS GOVERNANCE RELATIONS

WE OPERATE IN ADHERENCE
TO BEST CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

SlS

2017 PROGRESS
AND 2018
CHALLENGES

IEnova Corporate Headquarters
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RISK
MANAGEMENT

[102-11, 102-15, 102-29,
102-31,103-2]

Risk management at IEnova is headed by the Chief Financial Officer,
to whom the Risk Manager reports. The Risk Manager has two main
responsibilities:

* Promote awareness about potential risks the company faces.
¢ Monitor consistently all activities deemed dangerous.

Risk management is focused on:

* |dentifying new risks that could affect the business.

* Implementing mitigation plans to ensure the company's safety and
integrity.

* Reducing negative effects, if any.

The Risk Manager reports quarterly to the Risks Committee on
achievements and the most relevant findings.

The Risks Committee establishes the guidelines for managing
the Risk Management System and determines the functions,
responsibilities, processes, policies, and guidelines needed to
carry out this task. It also makes an annual review of the Risk
Management Policy and reports to the Board of Directors, which
advises top management on the measures that need to be
implemented to mitigate identified risks.

This structure is based on the principles of independence, risk
culture, defining the risk appetite, transparency and continuous
improvement. All our operations are subject to strict regulations
that we comply with rigorously. In addition, in adherence to what
has been established by the corresponding authorities, we have
insurance policies that protect the totality of our assets and
construction projects and offer coverage on goods, civil responsibility,
interruptions in operations, terrorist acts and sabotage, and
environmental responsibility, among others.
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RISK
CATEGORIES AND

DESCRIPTION IEnova divides potential risks into four categories:

[102-11, 102-15, 102-29, 102-31]
STRATEGIC

FINANCIAL AND
REPORTING

OPERATING

COMPLIANCE

Risks derived from decisions and strategy

Risks related with the locations in which we operate
and mergers and acquisitions

Potential capital risks
Integration risks

Risks derived from our ability to offer adequate
products and services to our customers

Risks associated with the financial situation
Risks related with Treasury
Risks associated with financial flows

Risks associated with internal and external
financial reports

Risks of losses due to operating errors

Risks caused by human error

Risks due to inefficient or badly designed processes
Risk of a system failure

Risks of incorrect behavior (including criminal
activities)

Risks derived from violations or non-compliance with
the laws, norms, regulations, and internal practices
that affect the reputation or value of the company

Risk of having to pay fines
Risk of having to pay damages
Risk from the nullification of contracts

Environmental and social risks

Energia Costa Azul
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[102-25, 102-16,
102-17, 205-1, 205-2]

The IEnova ethics and values framework establishes the guidelines
for the behavior we expect from our Board members, employees,
and suppliers. Additionally, we have a Corporate Ethics Division in
charge of:

COMMUNICATING
CORPORATE ETHICS AND
ANTICORRUPTION ISSUES

FOLLOWING-UP
ON THE CORPORATE ETHICS
WORK PLAN

OFFERING

EMPLOYEES A PLACE WHERE THEY CAN
MAKE THEIR COMPLAINTS AND BE CERTAIN
THAT THOSE COMPLAINTS WILL BE
ADDRESSED WITHOUT REPRISAL

TRAINING
ON THESE ISSUES

CONTRIBUTING

TO MAKING [ENOVA A
LEADING COMPANY ON
CORPORATE ETHICS ISSUES

We comply with all applicable national and foreign anti-corruption
and anti-bribery laws, including the Mexican Federal Anti-Corruption
Law in Public Hiring (Ley Federal Anticorrupcién en Contrataciones
Publicas), the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA), and the OECD
Convention on Combating Bribery of Foreign Public Officials in
International Business Transactions.

[102-16, 102-17]
The Code of Ethics includes 23 integrity standards that all employees
must read, sign, and comply with. The Code is available to view and
download at:

http://www.ienova.com.mx/politicas.php

We offer all our employees the following reporting channels 24/7:

IEnova Contigo Helpline 01-800-062-2107
Confidential e-mail IEnova®lineadedenuncia.com
IEnova website https://www.lineadedenuncia.com/ienova/

Sempra Energy Ethics and 01800-241-5689
Compliance Helpline

Sempra Energy website https://iwf.tnwgrc.com/Sempra

Based on our zero tolerance policy for ethics breaches, we ensure
the confidentiality and impartiality of our IEnova Contigo helpline,
which is managed by a third-party. During 2017, there were 21 cases
that were addressed and resolved in a timely manner, based on our
policies. Resulting from the investigation of reports received, we
terminated the working relationship of one employee for violations
to the Code of Ethics.

Furthermore, we require all suppliers to be familiar with and sign the
Guidelines for Supplier Behavior that address issues such as compliance
with applicable laws and requlations, business gifts and presents, use of
IEnova assets, protection of the environment, sustainability, health and
safety, the confidentiality and protection of all information, and conflicts
of interest.

Pursuant to our goal of being a leading company in both national and
international discussions on anti-corruption and corporate ethics
issues, we have coordinated on three occasions the Escuela Libre de
Derecho’s postgraduate courses on Government and Corporate Ethics,
Anti-Corruption, and Prevention of Conflicts of Interest, with the
participation of public officials, businessmen, lawyers, reporters, and
members of the Mexican army. Also in collaboration with the Escuela
Libre de Derecho, we organized the Forum on Corporate Ethics for the
Energy Sector, which involved people in the public and private sectors.

In the international arena, we collaborated in organizing the Second
Seminar to Fight Corruption in the Business Sector and Citizen
Responsibilities with Respect to the New National Anti-corruption
System, with the participation of members of the Selection Committee
of the National Anti-Corruption System.

We also chair the Corporate Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission of
the American Chamber of Commerce, Mexico Chapter (AmCham) and
the National Anti-Corruption Commission of the Mexican employers’
confederation, Coparmex, where the priority is to communicate the
responsibilities the business sector must undertake based on the New
National Anti-Corruption System.
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CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE our Corporate Governance practices comply with laws applicable to

public companies listed on the Mexican Stock Exchange, with the
regulations of the National Banking and Securities Commission
(Comisién Nacional Bancaria y de Valores, CNBV), and with the
recommendations of the Code for Best Corporate Practices established
by the Entrepreneurial Coordinating Council (Consejo Coordinador
Empresarial, CCE) in Mexico.

We are the first energy infrastructure company to be listed on the
Mexican Stock Exchange and the only one included in its Sustainability
Index, with scores above the national average in every category.

The IEnova Board of Directors includes eleven permanent members—
including one woman and four independent directors—in accordance
with the terms of the Mexican Securities Law (Ley del Mercado de
Valores). Carlos Ruiz Sacristan serves as Chairman of the Board of
Directors and CEO of IEnova.

All of the Directors have proven experience and an excellent
reputation in different areas of expertise, including the energy
sector, finances, foreign relations, public policy, and infrastructure.
With their global view of the industry and the business environment,
Board members review the business's plans and performance,
evaluate comprehensive risk management, approve succession
plans, establish corporate governance guidelines, and analyze
progress in sustainability.

The Board of Directors includes the following members:

Carlos Ruiz Sacristdan Chairman

Jeffrey S. Davidow Independent Director
Aarén Dychter Poltolarek Independent Director
Alberto Mulas Alonso Independent Director
José Julidn Sidaoui Dib  Independent Director

Joseph A. Householder Director

Faisel Hussain Kahn Director

Martha B. Wyrsch Director

Dennis V. Arriola Director

Kevin C. Sagara Director

Peter Ronan Wall Director

Rodrigo Cortina Cortina Secretary, not a member of the Board

As established by the General Shareholders Meeting held on April 27, 2018.
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CORPORATE PRACTICES COMMITTEE

[102-18, 102-22, 102-28, 102-32]

The Corporate Practices Committee assists the Board in preparing
the reports on the financial and accounting quidelines and the
reports for the Annual Shareholders Meeting; advises the Board of
Directors on the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer and
other senior management and in defining their responsibilities and
remunerations; requests the opinions and recommendations of
independent experts; provides its opinion regarding transactions
with related parties; and convenes meetings of the shareholders.

80% of this Committee are independent directors.

Jeffrey S. Davidow Chairman*
Aarén Dychter Poltolarek Director*
Joseph A. Householder Director
Alberto Mulds Alonso Director*

José Julidn Sidaoui Dib  Director*

* Independent Director in accordance with the terms of the Mexican Securities Law.

Among other functions, the Corporate Practices Committee is
responsible for conducting an annual review of the performance of
the Board of Directors and for making the necessary decisions to
ensure that IEnova continues to be listed in the Sustainability Index
of the Mexican Stock Exchange. To this end, the Sustainability
Committee reports quarterly to the Corporate Practices Committee,
which subsequently informs the Board of Directors about the
activities and results on sustainability issues.

i
80%

OF THE COMMITTEE
ARE INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

[102-18, 102-22, 102-25, 102-28]

The Audit Committee reports oninternal controls and recommendations;
informs on irreqularities; oversees the work of the external auditors
and analyzes their reports and the financial statements of the
company; assists the Board in preparing the reports on operations
and activities; receives and analyzes the proposals and comments
made by shareholders, Board members, key executives, external
auditors, or third parties; convenes shareholders meetings; and
supervises transactions with related parties to ensure they comply
with the law.

The Committee includes all the independent members of the Board.

Aarén Dychter Poltolarek Chairman*
Jeffrey S. Davidow Director*
Alberto Mulds Alonso Director*

José Julian Sidaoui Dib Director*

* Independent Director in accordance with the terms of the Mexican Securities Law.

ETHICS COMMITTEE

[102-17,102-571]

We also have an Ethics Committee, in which the following senior
executives participate: Chief Development Officer, Chief Corporate
Affairs & HR Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Director of Corporate
Ethics, Manager for Auditing, and the Chief Legal Counsel, who
chairs the Committee. The Ethics Committee reports to the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors and reviews complaints of
alleged violations to the Code of Ethics, conducts the necessary
investigations, and determines a plan of action based on the findings,
all within the following timeframe.

+ Designation for investigation, 2 days.

» Investigation of the report and recommendations, 21 days. For
cases that require more time, authorization of the Chairman of
the Ethics Committee must be obtained.

» Authorization to close the case, and follow-up, maximum 15 days.

GOVERNMENT
RELATIONS

[102-13]

IEnova is subject to the regulation and supervision of several
government institutions including the Mexican Ministry of Energy
(SE), the Ministry of the Environment and Natural Resources
(SEMARNAT), the Ministry of Labor (STPS), as well as the Energy
Regulatory Commission (CRE), the National Agency for Industrial
and Environment Protection in the Hydrocarbons Sector (ASEA),
and the National Center for the Control of Energy (CENACE). We
strictly adhere to all norms, laws, and regulations applicable to our
operation and we maintain a good, open, and transparent relationship
with government bodies.

As members of the energy sector, we participate in the following
Associations and Chambers:

« American Chamber of Commerce, México (AMCHAM)

+ Asociacién Mexicana de Energia Edlica (AMDEE)

+ Asociacién Mexicana de Energia Solar Fotovoltaica (ASOLMEX)

+ Asociacion Mexicana de Gas Natural (AMGN)

« Asociaciéon Nacional de Abogados de Empresa, Colegio de
Abogados (ANADE)

« Asociacién Mexicana en Direccién de Recursos Humanos (AMEDIRH)

+ Barra Mexicana de Abogados (BMA)

« Camara Nacional de la Industria de la Transformaciéon de
Chihuahua, GOmez Palacio, Torredén, Ensenada y Mexicali
(Canacintra)

+ Colegio de Contadores Publicos de México

« Comisién de Promocién Econémica de Ensenada (COPREEN)

+ Comisién de Promocién Econémica de Tecate (COPRETEC)

+ Confederacion Patronal de la Republica Mexicana (Coparmex) of
Ensenada, Hermosillo, Mexicali and Mexico City

+ Consejo de Desarrollo, Mexicali

* Instituto Mexicano de Auditores Internos (IMAI)

« Instituto Mexicano de Ejecutivos de Finanzas (IMEF)

+ World Energy Council, Mexico Chapter
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Throughout the year we either obtained or maintained important

certifications and awards:

Sustainability Index of
the Mexican Stock Exchange

Great Place to Work (GPTW)

Socially Responsible Company (ESR)
Award

MSCI World Index
ISO 9001

ISO 9001, ISO 14001, and OHSAS
18001

ISO 9001, ISO 14001, ISO 22301-2012,
and OHSAS 18001

Responsible Family Company

Safe Company Certificate, Program for
Self-managing Health and Safety at
the Workplace (PASST) of the Ministry
of Labor and Social Welfare (STPS)

Clean Industry or Environmental
Quality certifications issued by
SEMARNAT or ASEA

IEnova

ECOGAS Chihuahua
ECOGAS Mexicali
ECOGAS La Laguna-Durango

Energia Sierra Juarez (ESJ)
Termoeléctrica de Mexicali (TDM)
Rosarito Pipeline (GRO)
Trasportadora de Gas Natural (TGN)
Naco Compression Station
Aguaprieta Pipeline

Aguaprieta Pipeline (construction)

Energia Costa Azul (ECA)

Servicios Energia Costa Azul
Servicios DGN de Chihuahua (Mexicali)
Servicios DGN de Chihuahua (Torreén)
Servicios DGN de Chihuahua
(Chihuahua)

Servicios Termoeléctrica de Mexicali

Rosarito Pipeline (GRO) - Level |
Termoeléctrica de Mexicali (TDM) - Level |
ECOGAS Chihuahua - Level Il

Energia Costa Azul (ECA) - Level Il
Naco Compression Station - Level Il
ECOGAS La Laguna-Durango - Level Il
ECOGAS Mexicali - Level Il
Trasportadora de Gas Natural (TGN)
- Level Il

Rosarito Pipeline (GRO)
Transportadora de Gas de Baja
California (TGN)

Naco Compression Station
ECOGAS Mexicali
Termoeléctrica de Mexicali

TDF LPG Transportation System
Transportadora del Norte (TDN)

Latin Finance magazine granted IEnova two important recognitions: the
first for the most successful follow-on offering in 2016, and the second
for the acquisition of the Ventika wind farm, ranked as the best

transaction in 2016.

IEnova was ranked 9t in the first Corporate Integrity assessment of the
500 most important companies in Mexico done by Expansion magazine
and the Mexicans Against Corruption and Impunity organism.
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Carlos Ruiz Sacristdn
Chairman

Jeffrey S. Davidow
Independent Director

Aardén Dychter Poltolarek
Independent Director

Alberto Mulds Alonso
Independent Director

José Julidn Sidaoui Dib
Independent Director

Joseph A. Householder
Director

Faisel Hussain Kahn
Director

Martha B. Wyrsch
Director

Dennis V. Arriola
Director

Kevin C. Sagara
Director

Peter Ronan Wall
Director
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Manuela Molina Peralta
Chief Financial Officer

Tania Ortiz Mena
Lépez Negrete
Chief Development
Officer

René Buentello Carbonell
Chief Legal Counsel

Arturo Infanzén Favela
Chief Mergers

& Acquisitions and
Planning Officer

Juan Rodriguez Castafieda
Chief Corporate

Affairs & Human
Resources Officer

Jesus Cérdoba Dominguez
Chief Engineering &
Construction Officer

Carlos Barajas Sandoval
Chief

Operating

Officer

Roberto Rubio Macias
Vice President
Controller

Gerardo de Santiago Tona
Senior Vice President
Strategic Planning

Juancho Eekhout
Vice President
Development

Jorge Molina Casellas
Vice President
Commercial

To read the biographies of the IEnova Senior Management, please visit our website
http://ienova.com.mx/equipo.php
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2017 PROGRESS AND

2018 CHALLENGES Throughout 2017 we carried out several efforts in order to meet
our challenges on the three pillars of the IEnova sustainability
strategy and to address those issues that are most relevant to our
stakeholders. Here is a summary of the progress we have made and

[102-44,102-46, 102-48]

the new challenges we have set for 2018.

RISK
MANAGEMENT M

2017 PROGRESS

Strengthen the IEnova risk culture by complying with the guidelines
established in our Risk Management policy.

»x

o
+

REACHED
IN PROGRESS 2018

NEW 2018 CHALLENGE

2018 CHALLENGES

CORPORATE
ETHICS

Train suppliers in corporate ethics issues by participating in the IEnova and
its Suppliers Working Together in Favor of Sustainability in the Supply Chain
event.

Prepare the Manual on the new National Anti-Corruption System in
Mexico.

Review the Code of Ethics and policies to update them based on the National
Anti-Corruption System and the responsibilities of the business sector.

Train those groups of employees who interact with public officials.

Train IEnova employees on issues related to: Code of Ethics, internal policies,
anti-corruption, corporate ethics, FCPA, sexual and work-related harassment,
conflicts of interest, 1-800 anonymous reporting helpline, and human rights.

Implement the | am Compliance campaign.

GOVERNMENT »
RELATIONS

Submit the Communication on Progress (COP) to the UN Global Compact.

Submit the Communication on Progress (COP) to the UN Global Compact
on time.
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CORPORATE
STRUCTURE

We know
how

to create
value forour

shareholders

and make investments that
contribute to developing
the energy sector

We see new
opportunities in the
sector where we can
apply our successful
business model

64

ECONOMIC
BENEFIT

68 (6 (9 80

WE VALUE AND OPERATIONAL GENERATED AND 2017 PROGRESS
SERVE OUR INTEGRITY AND DISTRIBUTED AND 2018
CUSTOMERS RELIABILITY ECONOMIC VALUE CHALLENGES

CUMULATIVE INVESTMENT AS OF 2017

\_/

SDS/6

BILLION
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CORPORATE
STRUCTURE

[102-45]

At IEnova we have adapted to the needs of an energy sector that is in
constant evolution. Based on our solid business model and sustainability
principles, throughout the year we expanded the company's operating
capacity to participate in new businesses with new clients. By executing
a different kind and scale of projects, we expanded our geographic
footprint and are now present in 16 Mexican states.

We continue to operate in the two key energy segments in which we
have maintained a leadership position throughout our history: Gas and
Electricity.

In the Gas Segment we offer pipeline and storage services for natural
gas, LPG, and ethane as well as storage for liquefied natural gas and
LPG, and distribution of natural gas. This year we will begin providing
storage for refined products. In this business segment, we will build a
marine terminal for the receipt, storage, and delivery of hydrocarbons
in the new port of Veracruz, in addition to two land terminals, one in the
state of Puebla and the other in the vicinity of Mexico City.

In the Electricity segment we operate a natural-gas-fired combined-
cycle plant and two wind farms. We have also begun the planning and

construction processes for three new solar parks, in addition to the
expansion of the Energia Sierra Judrez wind farm.

IENOVA

: GAS SEGMENT ® ELECTRICITY SEGMENT

' Pipelines ® Generation

Storage

: Distribution
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ECONOMIC
BENEFIT

[102-6, 102-7,102-9, 203-2]

This year we proved the success of our business model not only for
generating growth in segments we have led for several years, but
also for taking advantage of a wide range of new opportunities
offered by the opening of the energy sector, with the resulting
increase in private sector operators, suppliers, and customers.

In 2017, IEnova's cumulative investments reached USDS$7.6 billion,
with positive financial results. These investments benefit multiple
economic sectors, including those where we have commercial
relationships, such as construction and steel industries, engineering
and technological services, as well as suppliers of the goods and
services we consume at all our operating sites.

We are also an excellent source of employment. During the year our
workforce grew 6%, from 877 employees in 2016 to 930 at the end
of 2017. We also generated 3,800 indirect jobs through the projects
we were building.

009 A
A

() aia
930 3,800

EMPLOYEES INDIRECT JOBS AT
OUR PROJECTS UNDER

1~ 60/0 CONSTRUCTION

VS 2016

USDS$1.075

BILLION
INVESTMENT IN 2017

THE TOTAL VALUE OF
THE IENOVA ASSETS
GREW MORE THAN
USDS1 BILLION, UP
FROM USDST7.127
BILLION IN 2016 TO
USDS$8.164 BILLION AT
YEAR-END 2017*

SUSTAINABILITY

DEMAND FOR GOODS
AND SERVICES

VALUE

CHAIN
\EHSES
Technology
SERYEES

DEVELOPMENT

OF THE INDUSTRY
Construction industry
Steel industry
Engineering services

JOB
CREATION

TAXES

PUBLIC
INVESTMENT

SOCIAL
WELLBEING

PROFITABILITY

* Based on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ending on December 31t 2017, 2016, and 2015,

and on the independent auditors’ report dated March 1t 2018, included in the back of this report.
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DISTRIBUTION OF THE
IENOVA SUPPLIERS

[102-9,204-11 At |IEnova we prefer to source and buy goods from local suppliers
and do so whenever circumstances allow. In 2017, 53% of our
products were sourced from companies in the regions where our
operations are located.

OTHERS

LOCAL*
*Local refers to sourced in Mexico.
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WE VALUE
AND SERVE
OUR

CUSTOM ERS Given that offering customers excellent service is a top priority for us,
[102-6]1  we conduct annual satisfaction surveys among our natural gas
Distribution and Pipelines customers. We also have a team specialized

in customer service.

BUSINESS
SEGMENTS
ELECTRICITY
GAS SEGMENT SEGMENT
- =
el =l |l
ASSETS  PIPELINES STORAGE DISTRIBUTION GENERATION
ROSARITO PIPELINE (GRO) NATURAL GAS ECOGAS TERMOELECTRICA
TRANSPORTADORA DE GAS :Egié%cﬂfw DE MEXICALI
NATURAL DE BAJA CALIFORNIA (TGN) ] .
) TERMINAL, ENERGIA ENERGIA SIERRA
SONORA PIPELINE (SASABE- COSTA AZUL (ECA) JUAREZ**
GUAYMAS SEGMENT)
SONORA PIPELINE (GUAYMAS-ELORO  LPG TERMINAL IN VENTIKA
SEGMENT) GUADALAJARA
RAMAL EMPALME GOLFO-CENTRO
AGUAPRIETA PIPELINE (GAP) STORAGE
TERMINALS
NACO COMPRESSION STATION
LOS RAMONES | PIPELINE
LOS RAMONES NORTE PIPELINE*
TDF LPG TRANSPORTATION
SYSTEM
SAMALAYUCA PIPELINE
OJINAGA- EL ENCINO PIPELINE
SAN ISIDRO-SAMALAYUCA
PIPELINE
SAN FERNANDO PIPELINE
ETHANE PIPELINE
CUSTOMERS
PEMEX INDUSTRIES AND 117,363 EXPORTS TO
ELECTRIC POWER RESIDENTIAL THE CALIFORNIA
CFE GENERATION PLANTS ~ CUSTOMERS MARKET IN THE US
IN BAJA CALIFORNIA
GAS DISTRIBUTORS 2,821 CEMEX
PEMEX SMALL
PRIVATE SECTOR BUSINESSES FEMSA
THERMAL POWER VALERO
PLANTS ENERGY 285 DEACERO
LARGE AND
INDUSTRY SHELL INDUSTRIAL FIAT-CHRYSLER
BUSINESSES
GAZPROM ITESM

IENOVA MARKETING
MEXICO

* Asset belonging to the joint venture with Pemex TRI and BlackRock, in which IEnova holds an indirect 50% stake.

** Asset belonging to the joint venture with InterGen, in which IEnova holds a 50% stake.



119,341

2016

ECOCAS
CUSTOMERS

RESIDENTIAL
CUSTOMERS

117,363
116,421
110,686

120,469

SMALL
BUSINESSES

2,821
2,691
2,544

2017
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TOTAL
CUSTOMERS

LARGE AND
INDUSTRIAL
BUSINESSES

285
229
215




72

ENOVA

QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

[103-2, 416-2]

We employ the IEnova Quality-Control System in the seven cities
where we offer natural gas distribution services through ECOGAS.
Based on our steadfast commitment to offer our customers the
highest quality products and services, we comply with the ISO
9001:2008 standards.

In the city of Chihuahua, we operate a call center that serves our
ECOGAS customers. In 2017, we handled an average of 10,149 calls a
month. The main reasons for the calls were to verify an appointment,
request reinstatement of service or an extension on a payment past
due, and to inform the company when a payment was made.

Aside from replying to routine calls in a maximum of ten days, the
Customer Service division responds immediately to emergency calls,
thus ensuring the safety of the community. After resolving an
emergency, we always test our facilities to determine the integrity of
the pipeline.

CUSTOMER SERVICE CONTROL SYSTEM

[103-2]

At the Mexicali, La Laguna-Durango, and Chihuahua locations we
provide personalized-service counters where we helped 58,719
customers in 2017.

This year we established three strategic partnerships with external
companies to increase the number of payment options we offer our
customers, in addition to the choice they already have of using a
debit or credit card to pay at check-out counters in some
supermarkets and at ATMs. At year-end, ECOGAS customers had
more than 3 thousand places available for them to make their
payments. We also began to offer automatic payments.

In addition, we analyze statistical data in aspects such as waiting
times, quality of service, and the number of customers served per
day, so that we can continue to improve.



ECOGAS Torredn

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

[102-43, 102-44,103-2, 103-3]

In order to assess how our Distribution and Pipelines customers feel
about us, we use the services of external specialty consulting firms to
conduct satisfaction surveys.

The ECOGAS survey was done with a sample of our residential
customers in the cities of Mexicali, Torreén, Gémez Palacio, and
Chihuahua. In natural gas Pipelines, we surveyed all our customers.

In 2017, the score for Distribution was 9.1 out of 10 possible points, and
in Pipelines it was 9.3. While these are certainly satisfactory results,
we will continue to work on improving our service.

PROMOTION AND FIDELITY PROGRAMS

At ECOGAS we offer promotion and fidelity programs with the dual
objective of keeping our current customers and of inviting others to
hire us.

Given that we started offering the automatic payment service during
the first half of the year, we gave a one-month discount to those
customers who opted for this form of payment.

At the same time, we kept the iPaga a tiempo y gana! (Pay on Time
and Win) program that rewards prompt payments, as well as the
seasonal campaigns Verano Gratis (Free Summer), that offers a
month of free-of-charge service to customers who recommend us to
new housing developments, and the Programa Invernal (Winter Program)
that offersincentives and rewards late in the year, when consumption
levels are high. We also offer our support to customers who require
a line of credit in order to split payments in two instaliments.
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OPERATIONAL
INTEGRITY AND
RELIABILITY

[0G13]

The safety and integrity of our assets and daily operations play a key
role in IEnova's work culture.

Integrity management of our assets is based on the strictest codes
and standards in the industry. It is applied throughout the entire cycle,
starting at the conceptual stage of a given project, and following on
through construction, maintenance, operation, the work methodology,
and offering service to the end consumer.

INTEGRITY MANAGEMENT
PROGRAM

Our Integrity Management Program (IMP) complies with all norms
and reqgulations in force in Mexico and the US and uses a specially-
designed software that enables us to optimize our working methods,
identify areas for improvement, and maintain strict control over
every aspect required to ensure normal operations.

In Pipelines and Distribution, in the Gas Segment, we use the IMP in
100% of our natural gas pipelines. We carry out the following steps
to ensure adequate operations:

Draft annual risk-based integrity programs

Select areas that require direct inspections

Classify defects based on severity

Select repair methods based on international standards
Quantify risks continually with dynamic segmentation
Monitor operating parameters in real time and permanently
Monitor alarms constantly

Address detected problems in a timely manner

Offer continuous training to operators

SCADA SYSTEM

The Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system-—
which employs state-of-the-art technology—allows us to supervise,
control, and collect the necessary data to monitor devices remotely
and in real time, making it easier to provide feedback and to
manage them.

We use SCADA or similar systems in different aspects of our
operations, in both the Gas and Electricity segments:

* Natural gas pipelines

* Receiving and discharging liquefied natural gas
e Storing liquefied natural gas

* Regasifying natural gas

¢ Distributing natural gas

¢ Generating electric power
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GENERATED AND
DISTRIBUTED
ECONOMIC

‘IAI.UE:l At IEnova we generate value sustainably, contributing to the
[20111]  development of our own industry and to that of other sectors with
which we interact.

FIGURES IN THOUSANDS OF USD$ 2015 2016 2017
ECONOMIC VALUE GENERATED

A) Revenues 671,703 717,894 1166,526
B) Interest Income 6,743 6,269 22,808
C) Income from Asset Sales 0 0 0
D) Direct Economic Value 678,446 724,163 1,189,334

Generated (A+B+C)

ECONOMIC VALUE DISTRIBUTED
(THOUSANDS OF USD$)

E) Operating Costs? 390,810 342,543 480,255
F) Shareholders? 170,000 140,000 200,000
G) Taxes and Duties Paid 62,557 95,025 15,013
H) Investments In Community, 5434 5,086 8,195
Environment, Safety, Health, and
Compliance*
1) Economic Value Distributed 628,801 582,654 803,463
(E+F+G+H)
Economic Value Retained (D-I) 49,645 141,509 385,871
1. This table was drafted based on the Global Reporting Initiative guidelines.
2. Operating Costs excluding depreciation, includes employee salaries and benefits.
3. Only includes dividends paid.
4. Investments in the community includes the annual budget for Fundacién IEnova and for

the following Trusts: Ensenada, Sonora, Ojinaga-El Encino, San Isidro-Samalayuca,
Ethane Pipeline, Energia Sierra Judrez, and the marine terminal for the receipt, storage,
and delivery of hydrocarbons in the new port of Veracruz.
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We know
how

to promote the
development of
our employees
and communities

Our culture
centers on the
professional
growth of our
employees and on
respect for our
communities

s34 104 16 134

HUMAN HEALTH SOCIAL 2017 PROGRESS
CAPITAL AND SAFETY COMMITMENT AND 2018
CHALLENGES

930

EMPLOYEES
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HUMAN
CAPITAL

[102-8, 103-1,103-2,
401-1, 405-1]

Our employees are our most valuable asset. It is because of them
that our Human Capital strategy—known as the IEnova Culture-
includes a comprehensive description of the foundations that have
allowed us to be a Great Place to Work over four consecutive years.

Aside from focusing on achieving the company’s business results,

WORK ENVIRONMENT:
WELLBEING, RESPECT,
AND TRUST

We endorse our organizational culture by making our values—
ethical, respectful, high-performing, forward-looking, and responsible
partner—part of our way of life and of the way in which we interact
with each other.

With this vision in mind, we designed a strategy founded on three

we provide our employees with an optimal workplace where they fundamental pillars:

can do their jobs in an environment based on wellbeing, respect,
and trust. We manage our Human Capital based on a set of policies
that establish how we are expected to behave within a framework
of justice, equality, and inclusion.

ATTRACT AND DEVELOP

TALENT

+ Useinnovative tools to
attract the best talent.

+ Offer specialized
training options to
develop professional
competencies.
Create development
programs to promote
growth opportunities
within the company.

» Designactivities

IENOVA that promote
CULTU RE integration,
communication,

trust, and

ETHICAL camaraderie
among

employees.

¢ RESPECTFUL

ENGAGE,
DEVELOP,
AND RETAIN
THE BEST TALENT

HIGH-PERFORMING

¢ FORWARD
: LOOKING

¢ RESPONSIBLE
PARTNER

ENGAGE, DEVELOP,

AND RETAIN THE BEST TALENT COMPENSATION AND

@ renenrenteteeet ettt nes @ oottt eae e ° BENEFITS
« Offer competitive
compensation that
surpasses the market
average.

CONSECUTIVE Offer benefits that ensure
WORK ATTRACT AND COMPENSATION AND the health and wellbeing of

ANNUAL ENVIRONMENT DEVELOP BENEFITS i
CERTIFICATIONS TALENT ](c)aunrqﬁirgsloyees and their
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ENUVA

[102-8]
All of this enables us to attract, develop, and retain the best talent
within the company and ensure the continued success of IEnova.

We offer our employees—who are the key to our success-the
opportunity to grow both personally and professionally in an
extraordinary work environment. We provide the tools and training
our employees require to perform their jobs and to work on both
their competencies and on the areas that need improvement. In
2017, the number of employees grew 6%, up from 877 to 930
employees, with a 13% voluntary turnover rate. For the fourth
consecutive year we improved our position in the Great Place to
Work Institute's ranking, based on the results of the employee
satisfaction survey. We continue to be ranked among the top-100
companies to work for in Mexico and have also obtained recognition
for our efforts in diversity and inclusion.

Based on the results of the employee satisfaction survey, we
designed two different training programs. The Influencer program is
geared toward employees with proven leadership capabilities; the
Personal Journey program strives to help employees improve in
areas showing room for growth.

Additionally, in 2017 we took part in the Engagement survey Sempra
Energy conducts every two years with employees of all its companies
located in the US and in other countries. IEnova’s scores have continually
improved over the course of the past four surveys, ranking in the
top-tier in 8 of the 14 categories the survey addresses, which makes
us very proud.

In the employee selection process, we favor capabilities such as
leadership, camaraderie, the ability to adapt to change, enthusiasm,
and a thirst for knowledge. We value diversity as a quality that
fosters innovative ideas. We make no distinctions for age, gender,
sexual orientation, political affiliation, or religious beliefs. To date,
27% of our employees are women, and 62% of our workforce are
younger than 42 years old. These young people benefit every day
from the vast experience and know-how of a management team with
extensive experience in the energy industry. The vast majority of
our employees are Mexican; whenever circumstances allow, we hire
people who live in the same region of our operating unit.
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TOTAL
EMPLOYEES

930
817
639

IENOVA 89

DISTRIBUTION
OF EMPLOYEES

BY GENDER
[102-8]
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[102-8]
DISTRIBUTION OF EMPLOYEES
BY CATEGORY
2015 2016 2017

President and Vice Presidents 8 12 12
Directors 16 19 23
Managers 66 95 16
Staff and administrative 549 751 779
Total 639 877 930
DISTRIBUTION OF
EXECUTIVES

2015 2016 2017

M W M W M W
President and 6 2 10 2 10 2
Vice Presidents
Directors 12 4 13 6 17 6
Managers 51 15 68 27 83 33
Total 69 21 91 35 110 41
LOCAL
JOBS CREATED

2015 2016 2017

CATEGORY LOCAL TOTAL LOCAL TOTAL LOCAL TOTAL
President and Vice 8 8 1 1 12
Presidents
Directors 14 16 14 20 23
Managers 62 66 90 96 108 16
Staff and administrative 546 549 740 750 770 779
Total 630 639 855 877 909 930

2 OUT OF 7

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
POSITIONS ARE HELD BY WOMEN

IENOVA
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DISTRIBUTION OF
NEW JOBS

Q O

2on 21 32
200 34 204
20 20 38

TOTAL
DISTRIBUTION
OF NEW JOBS
2015-2017
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COMPREHENSIVE
TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

[103-2, 404-1,
404-2, 404-3]

In the Human Capital division we reinforced those initiatives for
professional development that have proven to be effective over the
past few years, including job-specific training, technical courses, and
programs focused on leadership.

Among the training efforts, the Programa de Formacién de Operadores
IEnova (IEnova Operating Training Program), or PROFOI, is particularly
noteworthy. PROFOI is a three-month industry-specific training for
technicians who have recently graduated from technical schools
and universities across the country. Students graduating from the
program are eligible to occupy a position in our operations. For the
first time since it was first created, in 2017 we offered the program
twice over the year, instead of just once. To date, 150 students have
graduated from PROFOI, of whom 97 are currently IEnova employees.

In 2017, the first generation of managers, department heads, and
supervisors graduated from the Certification in the IEnova
Leadership Standard program, a modular specialized training that is
part of our development model. An online version of the program is
now available for new hires and for employees who get promoted to
a supervisory position.

Additionally, in order to prepare the future leaders of the company,
we provide an innovative high-performance program to employees
who are selected through a rigorous evaluation process. It includes
executive training, the development of a project, the mentoring of a
company VicePresident, as well as a specific incentives plan. All
participants are evaluated at the end of the first year and a
determination is made as to whether they should remain in the
program. The first generation graduated in 2017.

100% of our employees receive an annual performance evaluation,
consisting of a feedback session with their superiors during which
they discuss their accomplishments for the year.

Additionally, every two years we carry out a 360 evaluation of all
employees who supervise staff-including everyone from department
heads to directors—-that consists of analyzing competencies from
the point of view of their superiors, peers, and reporting staff, in
order to detect strengths and areas where there is room for
improvement.

With these and other specific programs depending on the area and
function, this year we offered 37,542 hours of training—of which
approximately 30% were provided online—for an average of a little
over 53 hours of training per employee.
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EXECUTIVES
AND MANAGERS

SPECIALISTS

OTHER
EMPLOYEES

TOTAL EMPLOYEES

TRAINING HOURS
[404-1]

?

581
607
484

1,469
443
3,869

4,758
2,625
696

G

TOTAL EMPLOYEES
TOTAL TRAINING HOURS
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Algodones Control Center

WE REINFORCED
THE E-LEARNING
PLATFORM BY
DEVELOPING THE

MI DESARROLLO APP

PROFESSIONAL GROWTH

Our company's growth and diversification motivate us to offer our
employees an ever-wider range of options for professional development.

In 2017, we reinforced the e-learning platform by developing the Mi
Desarrollo (My Development) app. This platform assigns courses
individually—based on the specific training and development needs
of each employee—distributed in four main pillars: leadership,
software use, health and safety, and human development.

We also have succession plans in place for Vice President and
Director positions, based on a methodology that analyzes the ideal
competencies and leadership styles needed to ensure that both the
IEnova Culture and values endure, and even strengthen.

To promote communication among all company divisions, we
designed a corporate communications plan known as /[Enova Somos
Todos (We Are All IEnova) that, among other things, distributes a

newsletter on the most relevant company information, IEnova al Dia
(IEnova Up To Date) to all employees.

+62%

TRAINING HOURS VS 2016

usps/ 2,33

INVESTED IN TRAINING
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BENEFITS

[201-3, 401-2]

We are convinced that our work culture helps our employees carry
out their duties in an environment where they can grow to their full
potential. Aside from the company's support to find a good work-life
balance, the compensation and benefits plans we offer are above
the industry average.

In collaboration with a human resources consulting firm, we undertook
an emotional salary measurement project by which we identify,
recognize, and value all benefits and allowances unique to each employee
in addition to their salary, which vary depending on their personal
circumstances and position within the company. The project contributes
to our ability to help achieve the greater wellbeing of our people.

In 2017, we finished this process by implementing the Compensacién
y Bienestar (Compensation and Wellbeing) platform. The system
provides a detailed description of all the benefits afforded to each of
employee, beyond their salaries and performance bonuses. For
several months, the Human Capital team was tasked with identifying
and evaluating benefits such as assigned and optional insurance
plans, retirement options, special permissions, and company
celebrations, among many others. We view the Compensation and
Wellbeing project as a recognition and retention tool.

WE IMPLEMENTED
THE COMPENSATION
AND WELLBEING
PLATFORM THAT
OFFERS DETAILED
INFORMATION ON
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS,
BEYOND SALARIES
AND PERFORMANCE
BONUSES

THIS YEAR WE
STRENGTHENED
THE EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS
PACKAGE

This year we strengthened the employee benefits package with additions
to insurance plans, including aid for funeral expenses, an increase in the
birth and cesarean coverage, and new plans that include detection tests
for serious diseases and an education protection plan, among others. We
offer our employees a benefits package beyond what is established by
law, which can include the following:

¢ Major health insurance for employees and their family members

e Minor health insurance

¢ Life insurance

e SEFORE retirement plan for pension, death, and total and permanent
disability

¢ Savings fund

¢ Short-term bonus

¢ Long-term bonus

¢ Vacation pay

¢ Food coupons

e Company car for Vice Presidents and Directors

¢ Medical check-ups for Vice Presidents and Directors

¢ School and professional growth scholarships

* Retention and attraction bonuses

* High-potential recognition program

* Vacation days in addition to those established by law

¢ 30-day Christmas bonus

e Education protection plan

IENOVA 101
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DIVERSITY AND
INCLUSION

[412-2]

e Complementary disability compensation, additional to Social Security
e Optional medical benefits

- Dental insurance

- Additional life insurance

- Life insurance for spouses

- Medical insurance for pets

- Plan covering doctor’s appointments

- Insurance for funeral expenses

- Car and home insurance at preferential rates

- Detection of serious diseases tests

- Cancer detection tests

At the beginning of each year, we perform a salary-planning process to
determine raises and bonuses for each employee, taking into
consideration their annual performance evaluation, as well as the
company's financial and operating results.

Staff hired for specific projects have the same benefits as permanent
employees, with the exception of a retirement plan, which is a long-
term benefit.

Respect is a key value of the |Enova Culture that seeks to achieve an
environment of equality in which diversity is promoted with equal
opportunities for all, without distinction based on gender, race, age,
religious beliefs, political doctrine, social or physical conditions, or sexual
orientation. We strictly adhere to all applicable reqgulations in terms of
legality and the respect for human rights, and we operate based on our
Code of Ethics, to which all employees are committed.

Additionally, we have policies in place that promote inclusion and diversity,
including the following:

* Health care coverage for same-sex partners
e Coverage for illnesses such as HIV, with no waiting period
* Coverage for pregnancy, with no waiting period

We also have a Development, Equality, and Diversity Committee in
which several top executives in the company participate, and whose
main responsibilities are to:

* Promote measures to encourage a culture of equality and diversity
among all members of the organization.

 Verify that we carry out programs to promote strengthening
competencies for personal growth, favoring the comprehensive
development of employees.

* Ensure that there are policies and procedures in the company that take
into consideration the issues of diversity, equality, and inclusion.

* Validate that internal promotions are carried out with equality and
transparency.

* Promote causes related to diversity, equality, and inclusion.

* Validate that we have the annual budget required to carry out the
projects specified by the Committee.

* Generate the guidelines and approve the general strategy for equality,
diversity, and development at IEnova, aligned with the sustainability
pillars for action.
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[103-2]
These documents are all aligned with our Internal Labor Guidelines
and our Code of Ethics, as well as several policies and procedures
developed specifically to achieve a zero-accidents operation. We
operate in strict compliance with the Official Mexican Standards,
the Federal Labor Law, the Social Security Law, and other
applicable regulations.

The Safety and Health policies both establish that we are
responsible for ourselves and for people working with and for us,
and they include IEnova’s goal of having a workplace that is free
of uncontrolled known hazards, ensure safe work practices, and
implement adequate preventive measures for people, facilities,
and processes.

The Health and Safety Principles to Save Your Life Manual includes
12 elements to help prevent incidents, such as personal protection
gear, the obligation to report any incidents or unsafe conditions,
blocking hazardous sources of energy, installing rails around
machinery, employing safety measures when driving, and fall-
prevention measures for working at high altitudes, among others.

The Elements of the Health and Safety Management System
Manual describes corporate expectations concerning the assets,
by employing self-assessment lists.

With the continued implementation of the management system
by our Champions team, we ensure compliance with national and
international best practices and we are able to apply the lessons
learned across the company.
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PERFORMANCE
IN SAFETY

[403-3]

In order to measure our performance, we designed a proactive
indicator that includes the elements of the management system and
assesses achievements using a number scale. To oversee our self-
assessment process, we carry out quarterly reviews and apply an
annual cross-verification process during which a group of employees
is in charge of verifying compliance at an asset other than their own.

In addition to verifying the management system, authorities or
certification institutions perform periodic reviews of our operations;
inspections are also carried out to ensure the correct status of our
operations and construction projects.

As part of the work we do to strengthen our culture of prevention, in
2017 we offered 19,321 hours of training in Health and Safety through
291 courses on different issues, including safety when dealing with
fire and when working with electricity, storing and handling
hazardous materials, and emergency response, among others.

Each of our operating units has the following:

e A Safety and Hygiene Commission

* A Champions team to monitor the activities of the Health and
Safety Management System

* Preventive and emergency brigades

e Specialists in health and safety

In 2017, the Health and Safety committees and work teams included
632 people, between employees and contractors.

In terms of our occupational health culture, at all our business units
we monitor industrial hygiene and perform periodic medical tests in
compliance with official norms. In wellbeing-related efforts, we give
lectures on prevention and health care, and hold vaccine campaigns
against illnesses such as tetanus and influenza. We also hire medical
services to support our health programs. At some of our operating
units we offer organized sports activities and follow a morning
exercise program called Pausa por la Salud (Take a Break for Health).

632

EMPLOYEES, INCLUDING
CONTRACTORS, PARTICIPATED
IN THE HEALTH AND SAFETY
WORK TEAMS
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TOTAL

181*
VERIFICATIONS

VERIFICATIONS

INTERNAL EXTERNAL

148 33
161 59
93 16
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For every new project, we apply rigorous criteria to select our
partnering contractors, all of whom must sign a contract committing
to meet our Health and Safety requirements, which include the
following, to name a few:

Adhere to our primary documents

Complete our health and safety induction course

Ensure operators have valid certifications

Have procedures and permits in place to perform high risk tasks
Conduct periodic field inspections and random breathalyzer and

drug testing

Additionally, since we operate in compliance with the General Civil
Protection Law and we promote a culture of prevention in case of any
incidents resulting from natural or human-induced disasters, in 2017
we carried out 42 drills at our work centers.

We also implement initiatives such as the Health and Safety Employee
of the Month Award, commemorating the World Day for Occupational
Health and Safety (April 28™), as well as the Safety and My Family
drawing contest, which is open to our employees’ direct and indirect
family members of all ages. The 12 winning drawings are employed to
produce a calendar that is distributed across the company.

ECA WAS ALSO GRANTED THE
IENOVA HEALTH AND SAFETY
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
PERFORMANCE AWARD

We have voluntarily opted to continue to be part of the Self-
Management Safe Company Program in Health and Safety at the
Workplace (PASST) sponsored by the Mexican Department of Labor
and Social Welfare (STPS) in order to obtain the Safe Company
certificate and for all of assets to be certified before they have been
operating for 12 months. Once certified, the goal is for our assets to
maintain or surpass their current level.

In 2017, ECA obtained the ISO 22301-2012 certification in managing
the continuity of the business in case of unforeseen events. ECA was
also granted the IEnova Health and Safety Management System
performance award. Transportadora de Gas Natural received its level
IIl PASST certificate, the highest achievable level.

All those companies that require it given the characteristics of their
operation are either already certified or in the process of being
certified under health and safety at the workplace standards
established by the British Standards Institution: Occupational Health
and Safety Assessment Series (OHSAS). This year, both Termoeléctrica
de Mexicali and Energia Sierra Judrez were certified under OHSAS
18001-2007.
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[403-2]

Resulting from the commitment of our employees to safety, the work
they do every day, and the proactive strategy that strives to achieve a
zero-accidents operation, this year we once again considerably reduced
our accident rate.

We are proud to report that we had zero work-related employee or
contractor fatalities. The Total Recordable Incident Rate (TRIR) was
0.58, down 25% with respect to the prior year; at 0.17, the Lost Time
Accident Rate (LTAR) was 39% lower year over year.

ACCIDENT

RATE!?

TYPE 2015 2016 2017
Work-related fatalities 0 0 0
Total Recordable Incident Rate (TRIR)? 1.27 077 0.58
Lost Time Accident Rate (LTAR)? 0.59 0.28 017

1 The accident rate does not consider first aid or events with no injuries; at-risk staff includes
IEnova employees as well as personnel from contractor companies at our facilities or rights
of way: Accident Rate = (Number of accidents x 200,000)/hours worked

2 TRIR = Total Recordable Incident Rate. We include injuries and work-related illnesses that
required treatment beyond first aid whether they resulted in lost days or not, based on
the definition of the US government's Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

3 LTAR = Lost Time Accident Rate includes recordable accidents that resulted in lost work days.

OUR ®
2018 GOAL

TOTAL RECORDABLE
INCIDENT RATE (TRIR): 2.10

LOST TIME ACCIDENT
RATE (LTAR): 1.59
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SOCIAL
COMMITMENT

[203-1, 413-1]

Fundacion
IEnova

varz {a que transforma

IEnova’s strong social commitment constitutes the basis
of how we manage our social investments. We fulfill
this purpose through Fundacién IEnova, a series of
Trusts linked to the main projects that are either under
construction or already in operation, as well as the social
work we do at the projects we are building on our own
and through joint ventures.

TRUSTS PROJECTS UNDER - SOCIAL
CONSTRUCTION AND COMMITMENT
IN DEVELOPMENT
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FUNDACION
IENOVA

EDUCATION

Created in 2015, the goal of Fundacién IEnova is to maximize the
impact of the economic and human resources we invest in the
communities in which we operate and to which we belong. It is a
second-tier foundation duly authorized by the Mexican Internal Revenue
Service (SAT) to make donations and economic contributions.

AREAS OF GIVING

At the Foundation we focus on supporting those projects that most
require our collaboration, that bring greatest benefits to the community
in the mid- and long-term, and that are also congruent with the four
pillars on which the activities of the Foundation are based:

ENVIRONMENT VULNERABLE COMMUNITY

GROUPS SERVICES

[203-1]

Fundacién IEnova supports non-profit organizations that are SAT-
approved, and whose activities align with the corporate purpose
described in the Foundation's bylaws.

We have an assessment methodology in place which structures the
evaluation of projects and organizations. This provides the donation
process with transparency and maximizes the impact of the
allocated resources.

Fundacién IEnova is supervised by an Advisory Committee and a
Managing Board. The Advisory Committee includes the Company
Vice Presidents and is chaired by IEnova’s Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of the Board. Several employees are members of
the Managing Board and it is chaired the Chief Corporate Affairs
& Human Resources Officer.

Additionally, each year the Foundation's performance is subject to
an internal audit. The auditor’'s report is submitted to the Associates
Meeting and to the Advisory Committee.
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MANAGEMENT
STRUCTURE FOR
FUNDACION
IENOVA

[103-2]

ADVISORY COMMITTEE
CHAIR: IENOVA'S CHAIRMAN
OF THE BOARD AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MANAGING
BOARD
CHAIR: CHIEF
CORPORATE
AFFAIRS & HR
OFFICER

MANAGEMENT
FUNDACION IENOVA
MANAGER

PRIOR TO
HANDING OVER
THE RESOURCES,
WE CARRY

OUT AN ANTI-
CORRUPTION
PRACTICES
AUTHORIZATION
PROCESS

The Fundacién IEnova management team submits a list of pre-
selected projects to the Managing Board for endorsement. Projects
approved by the Managing Board are then submitted to the Advisory
Committee which, in turn, meets to assess and approve them. The
Advisory Committee also evaluates the results, supervises the
performance of the Managing Board, and evaluates how Fundacién
IEnova is being managed.

Prior to handing over the resources, we carry out an anti-corruption
practices authorization process in accordance to the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act (FCPA), the Corporate Ethics Policy, and the Anti-
Corruption Procedure for the Approval of Donations, Sponsorships,
Improvements, and Memberships, implemented by IEnova's Corporate
Ethics division.

The organization must submit guarterly reports as well as the
supporting documentation needed to verify compliance with the
established timetable and conditions.

With the Foundation's authorized USD$1,000,000-budget for 2017,
we were able to sponsor 28 projects in 18 organizations and make
two in-kind donations in 11 cities across six states in Mexico.

As part of our partnership with the Fundacién para la Proteccién de
la Nifiez, I.A.P, an organization dedicated to helping vulnerable
groups all over Mexico, we adopted six foster homes for children
living in vulnerable conditions in localities where IEnova has
operations, such as Hermosillo, Mexicali, Tecate, Torredn, Chihuahua,
and Mexico City. By developing infrastructure-improvement projects,
we wish to contribute to changing the conditions in which these
children live and increase their opportunities for a better life.
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DONATIONS BY STATE
IN 2017

32%
25%
22%

17%
2%
2%

OAXACA

COAHUILA

SONORA

MEXICO CITY

CHIHUAHUA

BAJA
CALIFORNIA
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2017 DONATIONS
BY ACTION PILLAR

20%

Asociacion Mexicana
Pro Colegios del Mundo
Unido, A.C.

Club de Nifos y Nifias
de Navojoa, A.C.
Fundacién UABC, A.C.
Instituto Educativo del

Noroeste, A.C. (CETYS).

Promesa Educativa
para México, A.C.

1%

* A Favor del Nifo, I.A.P.

e Fundacion del
Empresariado
Chihuahuense, A.C.
(FECHAC).

26%

Casa Hogar del
Anciano de

Ensenada, A.C.
Fundacién para la
Proteccién de la Nifez,
.A.P.

Fundacién del
Empresariado
Sonorense, A.C.
(FESAC).

47%

Aqui Nadie Se Rinde, I.A.P.
Asociacion Mexicana de
Ayuda a Nifos con
Cancer, A.C.

Cruz Roja Mexicana, I.A.P.
Cruz Roja Mexicana,
I.A.P. Chihuahua.
Fundacién del
Empresariado
Chihuahuense, A.C.
(FECHAC).

Fundacién para los Nifios
de Las Californias/
Hospital Infantil Las
Californias, I.B.P.

Museo Memoria y
Tolerancia, A.C.
Patronato Pro Hospital
Civil de Tijuana, A.C.
Centro Nacional de
Apoyo para
Contingencias
Epidemioldgicas y
Desastres, A.C.
(CENACED).

We have a Collaboration Agreement with the Mexican Red Cross for
rapid response in case of natural disasters. In the aftermath of the
September earthquakes in Mexico, we delivered to the Red Cross
1,000 packages with basic food supplies for affected communities in
the Mexican state of Oaxaca. Additionally, we donated 1.7 tons of
cleaningsuppliestothe Mexican Center for Supportin Epidemiological
Contingencies and Natural Disasters (CENACED).

We also launched the internal Apoyemos Juntos a Ciudad de México,
Puebla, Morelos, Oaxaca y Chiapas (Let's Support Mexico City,
Puebla, Morelos, Oaxaca, and Chiapas) fund-raising program. In this
effort, the Foundation doubled the amount donated by IEnova
employees. We raised USD$28,842* with this program. The funds
will be allocated to rebuilding two elementary schools affected by
the earthquakes in the community of Santa Isabel Cholula, in the
state of Puebla, benefiting 530 children.

*$569,200 pesos at the official exchange rate of $19.7354 pesos per dollar.
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CORPORATE VOLUNTEERS

Our employees participate voluntarily in our social efforts. Corporate
volunteers are an integral part of Fundacion IEnova.

In 2017, we held 13 volunteer events through which we benefited the
following projects:

it
395

PEOPLE BENEFITED BY OUR
CORPORATE VOLUNTEERS
PROGRAM IN 2017

\ 4
200

VOLUNTEERS

ESCUELA

+ SONRISAS
(SCHOOL AND
SMILES) DRIVE:

182 CHILDREN
BENEFITED

in six cities:
Chihuahua, Mexico
City, Hermosillo,
Mexicali, Tecate,
and Torreén

ARBOL DE

LA SONRISA
(SMILING TREE)
DRIVE:

213 CHILDREN
BENEFITED

in seven cities:
Chihuahua, Mexico
City, Hermosillo,
Mexicali, Monterrey,
Tecate, and Torredn

IENOVA 127
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FUNDACION IENOVA
IN SUMMARY
2017

.28

 PROJECTS

INKIND
 DONATIONS

18

. ASSOCIATIONS
. SPONSORED

Usps754 290%

GRANTED IN |
DONATIONS

190,000

POTENTIAL
BENEFICIARIES

TRUSTS

[203-1, 413-1]

ENSENADA

In 2004, we constituted the Ensenada Trust during the Energia
Costa Azul (ECA) construction process. This trust is made up of a
Technical Committee and an Advisory Board and of distinguished
citizens of the health, private, academic, economic development,
and conservation sectors in the city of Ensenada. The city's Mayor
and IEnova representatives also participate.

For the constitution of the Trust, IEnova contributed USD$7 million
to be allocated to academic, equipment, infrastructure, public safety,
and environmental projects in Ensenada.

In 2017, we invested USD$12,343 to finish building a food warehouse
for the municipal Family Protection Agency (DIF), which was started
in 2016 with funds donated by the Trust.

From the date it was constituted and as of December 31t 2017, we
have supported 22 projects and invested USD$3.31 million in medical
equipment, infrastructure works, and in education and municipal
services, sports, and public safety, benefiting the approximately
500,000 people who live in Ensenada.

SONORA

We constituted the Sonora Trust in 2012. Representatives from the
Federal Electricity Commission (CFE), the state government of Sonora,
and IEnova participate in a Technical Committee that reviews all
applications for public works.

In 2017, we invested USD$1.35 million in expansion and improvement
works for the electric power network in seven Yaqui indigenous
communities and rehabilitation works at community facilities. In
addition, in-kind donations were made to the fire departments of the
cities of Hermosillo and Guaymas. Late in the year, works were begun to
install sustainable water purification systemsin eight Yaqui communities.

From the date it was constituted and as of December 31t 2017, the Trust
has granted its support to 43 projects and invested USDS$3 million in
nine municipalities in the state of Sonora, benefiting directly and
indirectly 817,485 people who live in these communities.

OJINAGA-EL ENCINO

We constituted the Ojinaja-El Encino Trust in 2015. Representatives
from the Federal Electricity Commission (CFE), the state government
of Chihuahua, and IEnova participate in it.
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In 2017, we invested USD$250 thousand in 13 projects related to
public safety programs, building materials, donating cement for
building roads, materials to rehabilitate the sewage system, water
pumping equipment, as well as projects related to health services in
the municipality of Chihuahua.

From the date it was constituted to year-end 2017, we have supported
18 projects and invested USDS$1.27 million

SAN ISIDRO-SAMALAYUCA

We constituted the San Isidro-Samalayuca Trust in 2015. Representatives
from the Federal Electricity Commission (CFE), the state government
of Chihuahua, and IEnova participate in it.

In 2017, we invested USD$542 thousand in projects related to installing
LED lighting in schools and donations to build, remodel, and provide
equipment for six schools in Samalayuca, San Isidro, and Ciudad Judrez,
as well as seven Childhood Wellbeing Centers. We also made donations
to sponsor sports activities in the town of San Isidro, for pavement
works in Samalayuca, and to certify people working in state-owned
child daycare facilities.

From the date it was constituted and as of December 31t 2017, we have
supported 13 projects and invested USDS$S771 thousand, benefiting
directly and indirectly an estimated 300 people.
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ETHANE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM

At the Ethane Transportation System project we made two types of
investments in social works. On the one hand, we collaborated with
the governments of the municipalities through which the project
crosses and, on the other, we helped the communities directly.

In 2017, we invested USD$276 thousand in works to restore asphalt
and hydraulic pavements in direct collaboration with two communities
in the states of Veracruz and Tabasco.

Since 2013, when construction began, and as of December 31t 2017,
we invested USDS$6.3 million benefiting several municipalities in the
states of Veracruz, Chiapas, and Tabasco.

We also make social investments during the construction process of
new projects, and in the assets we own as part of a joint venture with
other companies.

As such, in 2017, as part of the benefits of the marine terminal for
the receipt, storage, and delivery of hydrocarbons that we will start
building in the new port of Veracruz, we donated USD$10,134 to the
Veracruz Aquarium to be allocated to coral reef restoration activities.

Through the Energia Sierra Judrez wind farm we operate as part of
the joint venture we have with InterGen, we made a donation to
restore the tiles and buy new furnishings for the library of the
Bandera Mexicana elementary school.

USDS3.44*wiLLION

ALLOCATED TO SOCIAL WORKS
DURING 2017

* Includes Fundacién IEnova's annual budget and investments in social works made by the
following Trusts: Ensenada, Sonora, Ojinaga-El Encino, San Isidro-Samalayuca, Ethane Pipeline,
Energia Sierra Judrez, and the marine terminal for the receipt, storage, and delivery of

hydrocarbons in the new port of Veracruz.
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MANAGING
SUSTAINABLE
RESOURCES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT

[103-2b, 103-2c]

I[Enova's sustainability strategy focuses on developing
an environmental culture among our employees and
stakeholders alike, managing waste and emissions in
a comprehensive way, protecting biodiversity, as well
as contributing to the production of clean, low-carbon
and efficient energies. We operate all our businesses
in strict compliance with all applicable environmental
regulations.

DEVELOP
AN ENVIRONMENTAL
CULTURE

MANAGE

OUR WASTE AND
EMISSIONS IN A
COMPREHENSIVE WAY

PROTECT
BIODIVERSITY

PRODUCE
CLEAN AND
EFFICIENT ENERGY




ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICY

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANUAL

ELEMENTS OF THE CORPORATE
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM
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As part of this process, we also have an Environmental Information
System that will allow us, in a first phase, to standardize the
methodologies for calculating and capturing data at all our subsidiaries,
and to generate, verify, and update information related to waste
generation, emissions, uses and discharges of water, and energy
consumption.

During the development, construction, and operation of all our assets,
in parallel to our own management system, we comply with best
practices in the industry and adhere to all applicable environmental
laws, regulations, and norms. We respect the terms and conditions
established by the Mexican Ministry of the Environment and Natural
Resources (SEMARNAT) and by the National Agency for Industrial and
Environment Protection in the Hydrocarbons Sector (ASEA) for
environmental permits and authorizations. This year we began the
process of implementing a Process and Occupational Safety, and
Environmental Management System (SASISOPA). The system is critical
for ensuring adequate performance in terms of industrial safety,
occupational safety, and the environment across all stages of projects
related to the Hydrocarbons Sector.

Additionally, we have a Climate Change Strategy, currently in the early
stages of implementation, with which we seek to have concrete
mitigation and adaptation measures to climate change, as well as tools
that will contribute to the efficient use of resources. To develop the
strategy, we conducted a benchmark assessment of energy
consumption and greenhouse gas emissions at our operations. The
assessment will be updated annually.

Moreover, at IEnova we are committed to obtaining either the Clean
Industry or Environmental Quality certifications issued by SEMARNAT
or ASEA. Our internal goal is to obtain the certificate, or be in the
process of obtaining the certification, within 12 months after an asset
begins to operate or when we take over operating control of an asset;
we have reached this goal in every case.

Additionally, all our business units that require it are ISO 14001-2004
certified. In 2017, ECA was recertified in 1ISO 9001-2015, while the
Rosarito Pipeline (GRO), Transportadora de Gas de Baja California
(TGN), the Naco Compression Station, ECOGAS Mexicali, Termoeléctrica
de Mexicali, TDF LPG Transportation System, and Transportadora del
Norte (TDN) obtained the Environmental Quality-Clean Industry
certification. Furthermore, we developed pre-certification programs for
the following: Ojinaga-El Encino Pipeline, Sonora Pipeline (Sdsabe-
Guaymas segment), Ethane Pipeline, and Los Ramones Pipeline.

Specifically in the Electricity Segment, we generate electric power at
Termoeléctrica de Mexicali, a combined-cycle natural-gas-fired plant
that surpasses emissions standards applicable in both Mexico and the
US. We also generate clean energy at the Ventika and Energia Sierra
Juarez wind farms.

Our renewable energies portfolio also includes three solar energy
projects, currently in the planning and construction stages: Pima Solar,
in Caborca, Sonora; Rumorosa Solar, in the state of Baja California, and
Tepezald Solar, in Aguascalientes.
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[305-1, 305-2,
305-5, 305-71]

At IEnova we employ state-of-the-art technology to continually
monitor and record emissions produced at the operating units. We
use arecently updated methodology to calculate direct and indirect
emissions and comply with the guidelines of the General Climate
Change Law and its Regulations, in the terms of the National
Emissions Registry and its corresponding Agreements.

Energia Costa Azul (ECA) and Termoeléctrica de Mexicali (TDM)
require more stringent monitoring because they both use natural
gas turbines to generate electric power. In order to ensure that air
emissions are continually at levels below what the norm establishes,
we employ a system to control and monitor emissions, a catalytic
reduction module to decrease the discharge of carbon monoxide
(CO), and a Selective Catalytic System (SCR) to control nitrogen
oxides (NOx).

Given the nature of their processes, we do not generate significant
air emissions in our Distribution and Pipelines businesses. At
ECOGAS only the automobiles used by our salesforce and
operations and maintenance staff generate emissions. All our
vehicles comply with the strictest vehicular verification standards
for pollutants.

[305-3]

Other* Natural gas sold to 1,518,265 1,748,349 1,530,968
customers
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REPORT OF IENOVA'S

AIR EMISSIONS*

[305-1, 305-2]

DIRECT INDIRECT
EMISSIONS EMISSIONS

1,154,225 1,597
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2017
1,800,489 1,761,822
1,253,410
TOTAL
EMISSIONS
2015 2016 2017
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WASTE
GENERATION AND
MANAGEMENT

[301-2, 306-2, 306-3]

Since our goal is to employ resources and manage waste in a
responsible manner, we work with authorized companies to adequately
dispose of waste. When the physical and chemical nature of the
waste allows, instead of disposing of it in land fields we collaborate
with suppliers that recycle and/or reuse waste.

Both ECA and TDM-which generate the most non-hazardous waste-
are registered in Baja California as generators of waste that requires
special handling. At both companies we have preventive and
correction programs in place to minimize risks and operation failures
and to ensure the integrity and reliability of our operations. In 2017,
we started implementing a strategy that included lectures to create
awareness among our employees about the importance of reducing
waste and the technigues we can employ to accomplish this goal. In
addition, we reinforced supervision during preventive maintenance
procedures and the use of reduction techniques.

Resulting from our waste management practices, in 2017 we had no
reports of accidental leaks. This year we recycled 21 tons of
hazardous waste and 56 tons of non-hazardous waste. Owing to
major maintenance works at the TDM plant, there was an increase in
the generation of waste given that equipment parts had to be
replaced and the structures of several machines had to be renewed.

At Energia Sierra Judrez we carried out maintenance works for
the 47 turbines—which have been operating for 24 months—with
the resulting increase in the amount of hazardous waste compared
to 2016.

REPORT ON I[ENOVA'S TOTAL
WASTE GENERATION AND MANAGEMENT*

[306-2]

DISPOSAL AMOUNT (METRIC TONS)
2015 2016 2017

Hazardous waste

Waste confined in controlled deposits 9 9 45
Incinerated waste 3 0 0
Waste recycled by another company 7 18 21
(recovery of waste oil and transformed energy)

Total hazardous waste 19%* 27FFx QT RERF

Non-hazardous waste

Waste confined in controlled deposits 7,921 7412 8,948
Waste recycled by another company 35 36 56
Total non-hazardous waste and byproducts 7956 7447 9,004

* The majority of waste is generated by TDM, Ventika, and Pipelines.

o 19.36, rounded down to 19

R 26.88 rounded up to 27

R 66.85 rounded up to 67
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[303-1, 303-2,
303-3, 306-1]

IEnova's efforts to reuse, save, and recycle water are primordially
focused on ECA-the asset that uses the most water-and on TDM,
which is next highest in water consumption.

At ECA we use water exclusively for the heating process required
to produce a phase change in natural gas, which means the liquid
never comes in contact with any materials and, consequently, is
never contaminated. Additionally, 99% of the water used at ECA is
extracted from the ocean and returned to the original source,
always strictly complying with the specifications described in this
operation’s environmental permits. The other 1% is wastewater
that we treat in a plant that cleans it before it is discharged into
the ocean.

Every guarter an accredited laboratory analyzes the physical and
chemical characteristics of ECA's discharge water to ensure we fully
comply with the conditions established in our discharge permit and
with the authorized contaminant limits established in the regulations.

At TDM we use demineralized water to produce the steam needed to
move the turbine and for the cooling system. The water used for
TDM's processes is municipal wastewater from the Zaragoza oxidation
lagoon, in Mexicali. In 2017, we used 1.80m3 of water/exported MW,
which constitutes an excellent optimization compared to the prior
year, when 2.06 m3/exported MW were used.

TDM's wastewater is treated to eliminate organic contaminants and
mineral salts by employing different processes. The wastewater
treatment plant can process a volume of 920m?3/h. The water treated

at TDM is used several times before being discharged. It is purged in
the heat recovery units and the cooling towers and thenis discharged
into a branch of the Rio Nuevo, in compliance with our discharge
permit and the NOM-001-SEMARNAT-1996 norm.

TDM uses state-of-the-art environmental technologies that comply
with or even surpass all applicable norms in Mexico and in the
state of California, making it one of the cleanest natural-gas-
fired power plants among those supervised by the Western
Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC).

[306-1]

Water discharged into municipal 4,803 5,807 1,695
treatment plants

Water discharged to 1,622,572 1,892,004 1,415,723
other sources

Water discharged to the ocean 2,088 2104 2,024
Total water discharged 1,629,463 1,899915 101,822,290
Water returned to its original 93,746,404 74,543,748 100,392,848

extraction source in the same
or better conditions
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TOTAL WATER
20 WITHDRAWAL IN m?

105,450,620

99,657,539

EE 79,655,210

REPORT ON IENOVA'S TOTAL WATER
BY TYPE OF EXTRACTION SOURCE

[303-1]

WATER OBTAINED
MUNICIPAL FROM OTHER SOURCES
GROUND WATER WASTE WATER MUNICIPAL WATER (OCEAN WATER)

4,544 4,866,458 14,081 100,565,537 :or
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CONSERVATION OF
BIODIVERSITY

[304-1, 304-2, 304-3, 413-1, 0G4]

At IEnova we have developed several programs aimed at conserving
biodiversity that vary depending on the applicable environmental
reqgulations, the characteristics of the project, and the affected
ecosystem. They are divided into two basic types of actions:

T %

FLORA RESTORATION, PROTECTION
CONSERVATION AND AND RESCUE
COMPENSATION OF WILDLIFE

We use those programs centered on conserving biodiversity to fully
comply with the guidelines of the authorizations issued in favor of
IEnova. As a good practice within our company, we have voluntarily
continued to implement some of the programs with which we
contribute to preserving natural resources.

To optimize the efforts and resources we allocate to these programs,
we designed a Strategy for the Conservation of Natural Resources.
It describes the general principles needed to foster a culture of
environmental stewardship and the correct way to handle natural
resources so that, when carrying out our activities, focused
investments are made to maximize the expected results.
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FLORA RESTORATION AND
COMPENSATION

IEnova has worked to efficiently manage the natural resources at all
operating units and projects under construction, particularly those
that, by their very nature could potentially have an impact on the
environment. Part of this effort includes executing reforestation
programs in areas impacted by construction, starting with the
cultivation in nurseries of plants native to the region.

Nurseries installed near the construction site to protect and compensate
flora have become a flagship IEnova program. The goal of these nurseries
is to, first, protect and produce plants in a controlled environment, and,
then, replant in the affected site specimens of the different species of
native plants we found when first arriving at that site.

The ECA Rescue, Protection, and Conservation Program is an excellent
example of our best practices. Although our environmental permits
and authorizations stipulated that we only had to maintain it for five
years, we have continued to operate this program for more than ten
years now. We carry out habitat maintenance, propagation, and
landscaping efforts. We focus on maintaining the plants produced in
the nursery, with a total as of this year of 52,154 seedlings of 19
species of costal bushes, with excellent survival rates that surpass
the level established by the regulation. Diversity values for the
species are similar, and in some cases even slightly higher, than the
measurement we took at the beginning of the program, with a better
balance in the species that are present and thus greater stability in
the ecosystem.

We are currently still producing native plants at the nursery,
particularly those requiring more maintenance, care, propagation,
and production efforts. These include the Ferocatus viridescens,
deemed to be an at-risk species by the NOM-059 SEMARNAT-2010
norm, and other endemic plants such as the coastal agave (Agave
shawii) and the Malosma laurina and Euphorbia misera bushes,
among others.

THE ECA RESCUE,
PROTECTION, AND
CONSERVATION PROGRAM
IS AN EXCELLENT EXAMPLE
OF OUR BEST PRACTICES

In close collaboration with our suppliers, we have gained considerable
experienceinhandlingendemic species of floraat all our construction
sites. The rescue, restoration, compensation, and conservation
programs include, to a greater or lesser degree depending on the
program, the following activities:

INSTALLING NURSERIES

TO PRODUCE, INA CONTROLLED
ENVIRONMENT, SPECIMENS OF DIFFERENT
SPECIES OF PLANTS NATIVE TO THE REGION
IN WHICH A GIVEN PROJECT IS BUILT

RESCUING
ENDEMIC AND AT-RISK SPECIES

ACQUIRING

AND GERMINATING SEEDS THROUGH
COLLECTORS CERTIFIED BY THE NATIONAL
FOREST COMMISSION (CONAFOR)

REFORESTING
AFFECTED AREAS WITH
ENDEMIC SPECIES

INSTALLING
DRIP IRRIGATION SYSTEMS

MONITORING
THE RESULTS OF HABITAT RESTORATION
RESULTS PERIODICALLY

IENOVA 157
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INVENTORY OF
NURSERY-PRODUCED PLANTS

52,154

49,049
49,767
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[304-1, 413-1]

San Isidro Samalayuca Pipeline: Flora Rescue and Relocation Program

Ojinaga-El Encino Pipeline: Flora Protection and Conservation Program

Los Ramones | Pipeline: Flora Protection and Conservation Program

Los Ramones Il Pipeline: Flora Protection and Conservation Program

Ethane Pipeline: Flora Rescue and Relocation Program

Sonora Pipeline: Flora Rescue and Relocation, Environmental Awareness, Soil
Conservation, and Revegetation

Ventika Flora and Fauna Rescue Program

ESJ Flora Protection and Conservation Program

Restoration of the Ecosystems Affected by the Construction of the Expansion
of the Rosarito Pipeline Project

Rescue, Replanting, and Protection of Endemic and At-Risk Plants at the
Expansion of the Rosarito Pipeline

Plan to Rescue and Preserve the Flora at Energia Costa Azul (ECA)

Energia Costa Azul (ECA) Reforestation Program

Sonora Pipeline Reforestation Program

ESJ Environmental Compensation Program

Program to Reforest the Pinus Jeffreyi at Sierra Juarez, Baja California during
Construction of the Rosarito Pipeline

Program to reforest the Prosopis juliflora shrub in the Areas Impacted by the
Construction of the Compression Station of the Rosarito Pipeline

Program to Reforest the Prosopis Juliflora and Prosopis Chilensis in Areas
Impacted by the Construction of the Rosarito Pipeline

Plan to Rescue and Preserve the Flora at Energia Costa Azul (ECA)

In 2017 we were able to standardize the environmental programs in
force in assets previously belonging to Gasoductos de Chihuahua
that we acquired in 2016, so that they complied with the rescue and
preservation standards of our programs.

It is worth mentioning that this year at ECA we reforested more than
29 hectares that were affected by forest fires during prior years.
With a reforestation program designed specifically for each area, we
planted more than 6,500 specimens of nine species of coastal bushes.
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PROTECTION
AND RESCUE
OF WILDLIFE

[304-1]

Before we start developing any project, we perform the necessary
assessments to measure its potential impact on the ecosystem. Prior
to beginning to build a project, we suggest to the authorities the
measures we need to implement in order to protect the habitat and
species of wildlife found in the area; our practices are often stricter
than what the environmental legislation stipulates.

Our Marine Mammals Monitoring Program (MMMP) is particularly
relevant. We established the program in 2003, before we started
building our liquefied natural gas terminal, Energia Costa Azul. We
operate this program in collaboration with the Ensenada Center for
Scientific Investigation and University Studies (CICESE), and the
Autonomous University of Baja California (UABC), among other
experts. The program renders the data required to protect species in
the region, particularly the gray whale—whose migratory route is
located near ECA-to study migration patterns and ensure the free
passage of the marine species.

Based on periodic measurements of several environmental indicators,
we have been able to confirm that we have not affected the behavior
of marine mammals in the area. In 2017, we registered the presence of 13
species, notably gray whales, dolphins, and orcas. We have historic
records for 15 species of mammals, and sightings vary from year to year.

In addition, we implement fauna rescue and relocation programs to
identify the species living along the right of way of the pipelines and
other assets. We establish programs to protect and relocate the

WE ESTABLISH
PROGRAMS TO
PROTECT AND
RELOCATE FAUNA
TO A SAFE PLACE

identified fauna to a safe place. We train the staff who will be in
charge of caring for the rescued wildlife. Because we use species-
specific techniques to capture them, we were able to set the
specimens free on the same day that they are captured in forest
areas that are similar to the area from which they were rescued.

PROGRAM TO RESCUE, PROTECT,
AND PRESERVE BENTHONIC FAUNA

Before construction of our ECA facility began, we started implementing
a program to rescue, transplant, sow, and monitor organisms of high
commercial and ecological value. With this program, which we carry
out in collaboration with local fishermen and scientists of the
Autonomous University of Baja California (UABC), the organisms
have continued to register the same sequence of changes to their
population structure that they would have if ECA had not been built
on that location. Through the introduction of new young specimens
we contribute to conserving the species and to offsetting natural
mortality rates.

When construction of this plant began, we rescued more than
900,000 relevant marine organisms, including different species of
sea urchins, sea cucumbers, and snails. Since 2007, we have
performed twice yearly monitoring of the protected organisms. We
have found that survival rates for the transplanted populations are
higher than 99%. The training on sustainable harvesting techniques
that we offered local fishermen is a significant contributor to the
program’s success.

Il o

13 15

SPECIES SPECIES
REGISTERED
(GRAY WHALES,

DOLPHINS,
AND ORCAS)
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PROJECTS UNDER
CONSTRUCTION

At IEnova, prior to developing any project, we measure the potential
impacts of the construction, operation, and maintenance of a project
on the components of the ecosystems. Thus, before the onset of
construction, we consider measures needed to protect species of
wild fauna and flora and their habitat guided not only by the
regulations in force but also by our commitment to preserving
natural resources using the previously described programs. The
following are among the activities we perform before we begin to
build a project:

e Capture the wildlife in the area to relocate all specimens to nearby
places where they can live as in their original habitat, but under
safe conditions.

* |dentify and rescue species of flora to keep them in a temporary
safe place. Reintroduce rescued flora to areas where we will
continue to care for them once construction work is done.

e Carry out a reinforced re-vegetation process that consists of
sowing seeds of the species of endemic flora along the whole
temporarily affected strip of land.

e Perform maintenance tasks, which include irrigation, applying
fertilizers, and monitoring the area to determine survival rates.

At the Pima Solar, Rumorosa Solar, and Tepezald Solar parks, which
we will start to build in 2018, we have already carried out the
corresponding environmental feasibility studies. At each asset, we
will design a specific flora and fauna conservation program based on
the results of these studies.

Applying the Strategy to Preserve Natural Resources based on
environmental feasibility studies enabled us to reduce the environmental
impact of the projects to be built in 2018. We took into consideration
the land use and vegetation zoning allowances currently in force in
order to protect sensitive or relevant ecosystems and take advantage
of the existing infrastructure. For Pima Solar, we will avoid affecting
forest areas. At Tepezald Solar, we reduced by 4% the total surface
of the project to protect natural vegetation land.

. APPLYING THE STRATEGY TO

. PRESERVE NATURAL RESOURCES AND

. THE ENVIRONMENTAL FEASIBILITY

. PROJECTS ENABLED US TO REDUCE THE

. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT OF THE PROJECTS
. 70 BE BUILT IN 2018



166

ENOVA
ENUVA

ASSETS BELONGING
TOJOINT VENTURES

[304-1, 304-2, 304-3]

We extend our commitment to preserve biodiversity to those assets
we have developed in collaboration with other companies: Energia
Sierra Judrez, the Los Ramones Norte Pipeline, and the Sur de Texas-
Tuxpan marine pipeline. We implement measures to ensure flora and
fauna relocation, protection, and conservation programs at these
assets comply with IEnova's best practices.

Before the beginning of construction work, we determined that the
paths of these assets have no impact on the natural protected areas
or areas considered to have high biodiversity. Additionally, we
performed an assessment of the local flora and fauna to list the
species under certain degrees of protection, in accordance to the
official norm. Rescue, protection, and conservation works are adapted
to the needs of each project.

At the Energia Sierra Judrez wind farm, programs to protect the
environment and the flora and fauna of the Sierra de Judrez mountain
range, where the asset is located, are particularly important given the
magnitude of the project. Different activities were begun before
construction started, and they will be maintained for five years.
Among them, the following are the most relevant:

In addition, we implement an important program in collaboration
with the San Diego Zoo to identify and monitor birds and bats.
Among other things, we study the flight patterns and territories of
the California Condors and the Golden Eagles that inhabit the border
between Mexico and the US. Among other data, we estimate the risk
of collision with the wind turbines and power lines, and the measures
we can implement to minimize such occurrences.

Since 2013, the Jalapa Institute of Ecology (INECOL), in the state of
Veracruz, has studied local birds and bats. In 2017, we recorded the
presence of 80 bird species and 20 bat species inthe area. According
to the guidelines of the Mexican norm, we determined that only two
of the species were identified as at-risk: the sharp-shinned hawk
(Accipiter striatus), that is subject to special protection, and the
Mexican falcon (Falco mexicanus), an at-risk species. Among the
bats found, two species are under some degree of protection: the
Mexican long-tongued bat (Choeronycteris mexicana) and the long-
earned myotis (Myotis evotis).

We also carry out a Plan for Environmental Management and
Monitoring to follow-up on the mitigation measures implemented in
the project. Prior to and during construction, we complied with the
conditionsestablished by our official EnvironmentaliImpact Authorization.
Now that we are operating, this program has migrated to an
Environmental Management System, aligned with ISO 14001.

At the Los Ramones Norte Pipeline, we implemented the Maintenance
Program for the Storage Centers for Plants Rescued from the pipeline
in collaboration with the School of Forest Sciences of the Autonomous
University of Nuevo Ledn (UANL). The flora specimens rescued during
the construction phase are currently being kept at five storage
centers that were set up for the project in the states of Nuevo Ledn,
Tamaulipas, and San Luis Potosi through which the pipeline runs.
There is also a sample of the specimens at the Botanical Gardens of
the UANL's School of Forest Sciences. We are holding 180,312
specimens of 58 species of flora, out of which 21 are under some
degree of protection, and we have maintained survival rates at the
80% mark established by the General Law for Sustainable Forest
Development. It is important to point out that a goal of the program
is for students to do their graduate and post graduate theses and
dissertations on the phenology and development of endemic flora in
the region, and to produce scientific articles and reference books that
address these efforts.
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Inclusion of stakeholders, p. 30, 58 204-1 Proportion of 66
Precision, p. 348 spending on local
Equilibrium- About this Report Clarity- p. 348 suppliers
Comparability- p. 348 X
Reliability- p. 348 205-1 ?per_a&lonslassessed 44
Punctuality- p. 348 or risks related to
corruption
102-47 List of material topics 34, 35 Yes, pages 170, 171 .
205-2 Communicationand 44 Yes, pages 170, 171
102-48 Restatements of 34, 58, 80, 134,168 training about
information anti-corruption IEnova's Corporate Ethics Policy establishes that only those
A footnote has been used in cases where a restatement exists. policies and employees who have direct or indirect contact with authorities
102-49 Changes in reporting 348 procedures need to be certified in anti-corruption.
102-50 Reporting period 348 In 2017, 100% of employees who were identified as having this
102-51 Date of most recent  The last report was published on May 31st 2017, and it covered A1 T (RN (S Col i P g L o
report the period between January 1st and December 31t 2016.
102-52 Reporting cycle This report has been published annually for the past five years. CATEGORY NUMBER OF
102-53 Contact point for Corporate Headquarters EMPLOYEES
questions regarding Vice Presidents 11
the report Paseo de la Reforma 342, Piso 24, Colonia Judrez,
Delegacién Cuauhtémoc Directors 18
Mexico City, 06600
Phone (5255) 91380100 Managers 87
102-54 Claims of reporting in Pag. 348 Siaifnd el e e
accordance with the Total 406
GRI Standards This report has been prepared in accordance with the GRI
Standards, essential option. 205-3 Confirmed incidents  There were no corruption incidents during the year.
102-56 External assurance 170,171, 348 of Forrthlon and
actions taken
_ 206-1 Legal actions for There were no claims regarding anticompetitive behavior.

103-1 Explanation of the Pdginas: 12, 34, 84, 134, 140, 168 Yes, pages 170, 171 anti-competitive
material topic and its behavior, anti-trust,
Boundary The relevant topics included in this report are founded on and monopoly
the three pillars, economic, social, and environmental, practices
Sestainabilty Committee, The priorfzation and coverage R 300 environwentaL2ons |
Sustainability Committee. The prioritization and coverage
of the topics is based on the company’s materiality 3021 Energy consumption 28,818,309.82 MMBTU (30,404.9 Terajoules) Yes, pages 170, 171
assessment. within the
103-2 The management 24, 26, 28, 40, 41,72, 73, 75, 84, 94, 104, 105, 107, 120, 121, Yes, pages 170, 171 RSty (20 (U] Ry (G O ER MUDE I TS
. 0.15% from electric power, 0.0004% from LPG)
approach and its 134,138, 140, 141, 168
components 303-1 Water withdrawal 150-153 Yes, pages 170, 171
103-3 Evaluation of the 34,75 o SO
management 303-2 Water sources 150
approach significantly affected
by withdrawal
of water
303-3 Water recycled 150

and reused
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STANDARD DISCLOSURE PAGE OR DIRECT RESPONSE INDEPENDENT
NUMBER ASSURANCE
304-1 Operational sites 154-156, 160, 162, 163, 166, 167 Yes, pages 170, 171
owned, leased,
managed in, or None of our operations are located on protected areas.
adjacent to, protected However, as a good practice, we develop programs to protect,
areas and areas of high rescue, conserve, and compensate flora, and to protect and
biodiversity value rescue wildlife.
outside protected
areas
304-2 Significant impacts of 154, 166 Yes, pages 170, 171
activities, products,
and services on None of our operations are located in protected areas. However,
biodiversity we develop programs to protect, compensate, and reforest flora,
and to protect and rescue wildlife.
304-3 Habitats protected 154, 166
or restored
305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG 144,147 Yes, pages 170, 171
emissions.
We have a computer platform in place to manage
information related to emissions, which is collected
throughout the year.
305-2 Energy indirect 144,147 Yes, pages 170, 171
(Scope 2) GHG
emissions. We have a computer platform in place to manage
information related to emissions, which is collected
throughout the year.
305-3 Other indirect (Scope 144 Yes, pages 170, 171
3) GHG emissions.
We have a computer platform in place to manage
information related to emissions, which is collected
throughout the year.
305-5 Reduction of GHG 144
emissions.
305-7 Nitrogen oxides 144
(NOx), sulfur oxides
(SOx), and other
significant air
emissions
306-1 Water discharge by 150, 151
quality and
destination
306-2 Waste by type and 149 Yes, pages 170, 171
disposal method
306-3 Significant spills 149 Yes, pages 170, 171
There were no significant spills. Based on the criteria established
by Profepa (Criteria for classifying environmental emergencies in
member organizations of the National Environmental Audit
Program), an event can be classified as minor if the volume
spilled is less than 1 m?.
307-1 Non-compliance with We paid one fine worth mentioning, although the amount Yes, pages 170, 171

environmental laws
and regulations

is insignificant: One of the IEnova subsidiaries (Gasoducto
de Aguaprieta, S. de R.L. de C.V. -GAP) had to pay a fine
for removing a 13,076 m? strip of forest vegetation in the
state of Sonora without having the corresponding
authorization, due to an involuntary omission. GAP
informed ASEA of the situation in order for them to carry
out an inspection and oversight procedure, resulting in a
small economic sanction and the requirement to carry
out remediation efforts in the affected area. These were
begun in 2017 and will continue over the next few years
until the area has been fully restituted.

STANDARD DISCLOSURE

NUMBER

PAGE OR DIRECT RESPONSE

INDEPENDENT
ASSURANCE

4011

New employee hires
and employee
turnover

84

401-2

Benefits provided for
full-time employees

that are not provided to

temporary or part-time
employees

100

Yes, pages 170, 171

403-1

Workers representation 104

in formal joint
management-worker
health and safety
committees

403-2

Types of injury and
rates of injury,
occupational diseases,
lost days, absenteeism,
and number of
work-related fatalities

15

Yes, pages 170, 171

403-3

Workers with high

incidence or high risk of

diseases related to
their occupation

108

404

Average hours of
training per year per
employee

94, 96

AVERAGE HOURS OF TRAINING PER EMPLOYEE
M F

Executives and managers 35 42

Specialized workers 36 33

Other employees 63 45

Total 45 40

Yes, pages 170, 171

404-2

Programs for
upgrading employee
skills and transition
assistance programs

94

404-3

Percentage of
employees receiving
regular performance
and career
development reviews

94

405-1

Diversity of
governance bodies
and employees

46, 84

406-1

Incidents of
discrimination and
corrective actions
taken

During 2017 there were no discrimination cases reported
on the IEnova helpline.

Yes, pages 170, 171

408-1

Operations and
suppliers at significant
risk for incidents of
child labor

There were no potential risks of incidents of child labor
identified by the operation.

4091

Operations and
suppliers at
significant risk for
incidents of forced or
compulsory labor

There were no potential risks of incidents of forced labor
identified by the operation.
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STANDARD DISCLOSURE PAGE OR DIRECT RESPONSE OMISSIONS INDEPENDENT
NUMBER ASSURANCE
410-1 Security personnel All corporate safety agents that offer their services to the
trained in human IEnova companies are trained in human rights as part of
rights policies or their general training.
procedures
a4 Incidents of There were no incidents of violations involving rights of
violations involving  indigenous people.
rights of indigenous
peoples
4122 Employee training on 102
human rights policies
and procedures
4131 Operations with local 116, 128-132, 154-157, 160 Yes, pages 170, 171
community
engagement, impact We currently monitor the results of our social projects.
assessments, and Entities benefited by Fundacién IEnova submit quarterly
development reports as well as the supporting documentation needed to
programs verify how the resources granted are being managed. We
are working on defining the mechanisms that will allow us
to measure the impact of our social programs in the
mid-term.
415-1 Political There were no financial or in-kind contributions made to any
contributions political parties.
416-2 Incidents of 72
non-compliance
concerning the health
and safety impacts of
products and services
MN7-2 Incidents of There were no incidents of non-compliance in 2017.
non-compliance
concerning product
and service
information and
labeling
4191 Non-compliance with There were no significant fines or sanctions for

laws and regulations non-compliance.
in the social and
economic arena

0G2 Total amount http://www.bmv.com.mx/docs-pub/infoanua/infoanua_828273_2017_1.pdf
invested in renewable
energy Energia Sierra Juarez (ESJ) is a wind farm located in Baja
California, whose initial phase implied a total investment of
approximately USD$318 million. Ventika, a wind farm
located in the state of Nuevo Ledn. Acquisition price was
USD$920 million, including USD$435 million in cash and
existing bank debt for USD$485 million. IEnova will
develop, build, and operate the solar parks Tepezald Solar
and Rumorosa Solar, with a 100 MW, . and 41 MW, . capacity,
respectively Total investment in these parks is estimated at
USDS$150 million.
pages 14,15
0G3 Total amount of 18
renewable energy
generated by source  http://www.bmv.com.mx/docs-pub/infoanua/infoanua_828273_2017_1.pdf
0G4 Number and 154
percentage of
significant operating
sites in which
biodiversity risk has
been assessed and
monitored
0G13 Number of process 76

safety events, by
business activity

GLOBAL COMPACT
SDGs

TOPIC PRINCIPLES OF THE GLOBAL COMPACT  GRI STANDARD NUMBER RELATED
SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT
GOALS
Human Rights 1. Businesses should support and 412-2, 410-1, 411-1,103-2, 413-1 4
respect the protection of
internationally proclaimed human
rights; and
2. Businesses should make sure that 412-2, 406-1, 407-1, 4081,
they are not complicit in human 409-1, 4101, 4111, 412-1, 41441,
rights abuses. 414-2,103-2
Labor Standards 3. Businesses should uphold the 102-41
freedom of association and the
effective recognition of the right to
collective bargaining.
4. Businesses should uphold the 409-1
elimination of all forms of forced
and compulsory labor.
5. Businesses should uphold the 408-1
effective abolition of child labor.
6. Businesses should uphold the 102-8, 401-1, 401-2, 404, 58
elimination of discrimination in 404-3, 406-1
respect of employment and
occupation.
Environment 7. Businesses should support a 302-1, 303-1, 305-1, 305-2, 14,15
precautionary approach to 305-3, 3057
environmental challenges.
8. Businesses should undertake 301-2, 302-1, 3031 to 303-3, 6
initiatives to promote greater 304-1to 304-3,
environmental responsibility. 305-1to 305-5, 305-7
306-1to 306-3, 3071
9. Businesses should encourage the 3021, 305-5 7,9
development and diffusion of
environmentally friendly
technologies.
Anti-Corruption 10. Businesses should work against 102-16, 102-17, 205-1to 205-3, 16

corruption in all its forms, including
extortion and bribery.

4151
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

NET PROPERTY, PLANT
INCOME AND EQUIPMENT

82%

18%

1,928
759

504
1,075
392

676

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 2015 2016* 2017*

MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, EXCEPT PERCENTAGES * Exclude one-time non-cash effects.
EBITDA AND ADJUSTED EBITDA

We present "EBITDA” and "Adjusted EBITDA" in this earnings report
for the convenience of investors. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA,
however, are not measures of financial performance under IFRS and
should not be considered as alternatives to profit or operating
income as a measure of operating performance or to cash flows from
operating activities as a measure of liquidity.

Our definition of EBITDA is profit for the period after adding back or
subtracting, as the case may be, (1) depreciation and amortization, (2)
financing cost, net, (3) other gains or losses, net, (4) income tax
expense, (5) share of profits from joint ventures, net of income tax, and
for the periods presented, (6) remeasurement of equity method
investment, and (7) loss for the period from discontinued operations, net
of income tax.

We define the JV EBITDA adjustment as our share of the profit from
joint ventures, after adding back or subtracting, as the case may be,
our share of: (1) depreciation and amortization, (2) financing cost,
net, (3) other gains or losses, net, (4) income tax expense, and (5)
share of profits of equity method investments, net of income tax.

We define the Discontinued operation EBITDA adjustment as the loss
for the period from discontinued operations, net of income tax after
adding back or subtracting, as the case may be, (1) depreciation and
amortization, (2) financing cost, net, (3) other gains or losses, net,
(4) income tax expense, and for the periods presented, (5)
impairment.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR 2017 RESULTS

We are the first private sector, publicly traded energy infrastructure company on
the Mexican Stock Exchange and one of the largest private sector energy companies
in Mexico in terms of market share. We develop, build, and operate essential energy
infrastructure. Our footprint in Mexico includes several business lines that
encompass a significant portion of the Mexican energy infrastructure value chain
that is open to private investment

EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY
YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USDS, EXCEPT PERCENTAGES) 2017 2016 % VAR.
Adjusted EBITDA* 758,639 504,021 51 %
Profit for the period 354,174 754,990 (53)%
Revenues 1166,526 717,894 62 %

e In 2017, Adjusted EBITDA increased 51 percent to USD$758.6 million, compared
with USD$504.0 million in 2016. The increase of USD$254.6 million was mainly
due to the acquisitions of Gasoductos de Chihuahua and Ventika, the start of
operations of four pipelines, and the acquisition of an additional 25 percent of Los
Ramones Norte pipeline.

* |n 2017, profit was USD$418.0 million, up 135 percent from USD$177.7 million in 2016.
These figures exclude the non-cash after-tax impairment charges of USD$63.8 million
in 2017 and USD$95.8 million in 2016 related to the Termoeléctrica de Mexicali power
plant and the non-cash gain of USD$673.1 million related to the remeasurement to fair
value of the previously held 50 percent interest in Gasoductos de Chihuahua in 2016.
The increase of USD$240.3 million was mainly due to the acquisition of Gasoductos de
Chihuahua, lower income tax expense, the start of operations of four pipelines, the
acquisition of Ventika, and higher operational results at the Termoeléctrica de Mexicali
power plant. This increase was partially offset by exchange rate effects.

* In 2017, revenues were USD$1,166.5 million, compared with USD$717.9 million in
2016. The increase of USD$448.6 million was mainly due to revenues related to the
acquisitions of Gasoductos de Chihuahua and Ventika, the start of operations of new
pipelines, and higher weighted average natural gas prices and higher volume sold.

* In 2017 and early 2018, the Company executed the following transactions for a

total value of approximately USD$3 billion:

= In March 2017, the Company executed a 20-year contract for the supply of clean
energy that will be generated by a new 110 megawatt (MW) photovoltaic solar
power plant that will be located in Caborca, Sonora, with an estimated total
investment of USD$115 million. The Company will be responsible for the construction,
financing, operation, and maintenance of the Pima Solar plant, which will allocate
100 percent of its capacity to DeAcero.

* In July 2017, the Company was awarded the public tender issued by the Integral
Port Administration (API) of Veracruz, for the construction and operation of a
marine terminal for the receipt, storage and delivery of hydrocarbons, primarily
gasoline, diesel, and jet fuel. The terminal will be built in the new Port of Veracruz
with a capacity of approximately 1,400,000 barrels. It is expected to begin
operations during the second half of 2018.

» In August 2017, the Company executed a contract with a subsidiary of Valero
Energy Corporation for the storage capacity at the new Veracruz marine terminal
and Puebla and Mexico City terminals. These refined products storage contracts
are long-term, firm capacity, and U.S. dollar denominated. The estimated investment
is USD$155 million for Veracruz and a total of USD$120 million for the two additional
storage terminals. It is expected that the two in-land terminals will start operations
in the first half of 2019.

» In November 2017, the Company closed the acquisition of the remaining 50 percent
of the capital stock of Ductos y Energéticos del Norte from Pemex Transformacién
Industrial. The transaction value is USD$547 million. It is comprised of (i) the price
paid for the assignment of Ductos y Energéticos del Norte's capital stock and the
liguidation of certain shareholder loans of USD$258 million, and (ii) the proportional
amount of Los Ramones Norte pipeline project financing of USD$289 million. This
debt is not consolidated on the Company'’s financial statements. As a result of the
acquisition, the Company increased its ownership in Los Ramones Norte pipeline
from 25 percent to 50 percent.

» In November 2017, the Company executed a 20-year fixed payment per megawatt-
hour power purchase agreement with San Diego Gas & Electric Company. The
contract will be supplied through a new wind power generation facility that will be
located in Tecate, Baja California. The project will have a capacity of 108 MW and will
require an investment of approximately USD$150 million. The development of this
project is subject to receipt of requlatory approvals and other authorizations.

+ In December 2017, the Company successfully completed its USD$S840 million
international senior note offerings, comprised of USD$300 million aggregate
principal amount of the Company's 3.750% Senior Notes due 2028 and USD$540
million aggregate principal amount of the Company’'s 4.875% Senior Notes due
2048. The Senior Notes received an investment grade rating from Fitch (BBB+),
Moody's (Baal) and Standard & Poor's (BBB). The Company used the net proceeds
from the offering to repay outstanding short-term indebtedness and for general
corporate purposes.
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+ In January 2018, the Company announced the execution of a standby letter of
credit facility and reimbursement agreement, up to an amount equivalent to USD$1
billion, in order to make more efficient and standardize the process for the issuance
of standby letters of credit requested by governmental entities or third parties. The
bank syndicate is Banco Nacional de México, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation,
BBVA Bancomer, Scotiabank Inverlat, Mizuho, BNP Paribas and Santander. The
facility will be in effect for five years. The letter of credit facility and the related
standby letters of credit do not constitute the Company’s debt.

e As aresult of these transactions, the Company’s total assets increased more than
USDS$1 billion, from USD$7 billion as of December 2016 to USD$8 billion as of
December 2017.

) RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Amounts are presented in U.S. dollars, the functional currency of the Company,
unless otherwise noted, and in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB). All amounts are unaudited, unless otherwise noted. Numbers may not add
up due to rounding.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT
YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USDS) 2017 2016
Revenues 1,166,526 717,894
Cost of revenues (303,462) (237,789)
Operating, administrative and other expenses (176,793) (104,754)
Depreciation and amortization (119,020) (64,384)
Financing cost, net (50,097) (14,567)
Other (losses) gains, net (41,590) 2,168
Remeasurement of equity method investment @ = 673,071
Profit before income tax and share of profits from joint 475,564 971,639
ventures
Income tax expense (109,663) (147158)
Share of profits from joint ventures, net of income tax 44,677 42,841
Profit for the period from continuing operations 410,578 867,322
(Loss) for the period from discontinued operations, net of (56,404) (M2,332)
income tax @
Profit for the period 354,174 754,990

(1) In 2016, the non-cash gain of USD$673.1 million is related to the remeasurement to fair value of our previously
held 50 percent interest in Gasoductos de Chihuahua

(2) The Board of Directors approved a plan to market and sell the Termoeléctrica de Mexicali power plant; accordingly,
its financial results are presented as discontinued operations. These results include non-cash, after-tax impairment
charges of USD$63.8 million in 2017 and USD$95.8 million in 2016.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information is presented after eliminating inter-company transactions.

PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX AND
SHARE OF PROFITS FROM JOINT VENTURES

YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USS) 2017 2016
Gas Segment 526,383 1,009,953
Power Segment 21,323 (1,120)
Corporate (72142) (37,194)
475,564 971,639

GAS SEGMENT

In 2017, Gas segment profit before income tax and share of profits of joint ventures
was USDS$526.4 million, compared with USD$336.9 million in 2016, excluding the
non-cash gain of USD$673.1 million related to the remeasurement to fair value of the
previously held 50 percent interest in Gasoductos de Chihuahua. The increase of
USD$189.5 million is mainly due to USD$160.0 million from the acquisition of the
remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de Chihuahua on September 26, 2016,
USDS$40.3 million from the start of operations of the Sonora pipeline Guaymas - El
Oro segment, and Ojinaga - El Encino and Empalme lateral pipelines, and USD$4.9
million from the natural gas distribution rate increase at Ecogas. It was partially
offset by USD$9.9 million of lower capitalization of interest related to projects under
construction and operating, administrative and other expenses of USD$5.0 million.

POWER SEGMENT

In 2017, the Power segment had a profit before income tax and share of profits of
joint ventures of USD$21.3 million, mainly from the Ventika wind power generation
facility, acquired on December 14, 2016.

CORPORATE

In 2017, corporate loss before income tax was USD$72.1 million compared with
USDS$37.2 million in 2016. The increase in losses of USD$34.2 million and USD$34.9
million, respectively, is mainly due to exchange rate effects primarily related to a
peso-denominated shareholder’s loan to fund the South Texas - Tuxpan pipeline
(which is partially offset in the share of profits of joint ventures), and higher
interest expense, partially offset by interest income related to the shareholder’s
loan to fund the South Texas - Tuxpan pipeline (our joint venture with TransCanada).

REVENUES
YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USDS$, EXCEPT PRICE PER MMBtu?) 2017 2016
Gas Segment 1,064,946 712,327
Power Segment 99,721 2,930
Corporate 1,859 2,637
1,166,526 717,894
Natural gas weighted average
Price USD per MMBtu 318 273

2MMBtu: Million British thermal units (of natural gas).



188 IENOVA

GAS SEGMENT
In 2017, Gas segment revenues were USD$1,064.9 million, compared with USD$712.3
million in 2016. The increase of USD$352.6 million is mainly due to:

e $220.8 million in revenues related to the acquisition of the remaining 50 percent
of Gasoductos de Chihuahua,

» $66.2 million from the start of operations of four pipelines: the Sonora Guaymas - El
Oro segment, Ojinaga - El Encino, the San Isidro - Samalayuca, and Empalme lateral,

* $61.3 million from higher natural gas weighted average price and higher volume
sold, and

¢ $4.9 million from the natural gas distribution rate increase at Ecogas.

POWER SEGMENT
In 2017, Power segment revenues were USD$99.7 million, mainly from the Ventika
wind power generation facility, acquired on December 14, 2016.

COST OF REVENUES
YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
(thousands of USDS, except cost per MMBtu) 2017 2016
Gas Segment 296,933 237,621
Power Segment 6,529 168
303,462 237,789
Natural gas weighted average
Cost USD per MMBtu 3.18 2.60

GAS SEGMENT

In 2017, Gas segment cost of revenues was USD$296.9 million, compared with
USDS$237.6 million for 2016. The increase of USD$59.3 million is mainly due to
higher weighted average price of natural gas and higher volume sold.

POWER SEGMENT
In 2017, Power segment cost of revenues were USD$6.5 million, mainly from the
Ventika wind power generation facility, acquired on December 14, 2016.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
OPERATING, ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES

In 2017, operating, administrative, and other expenses were USD$176.8 million,
compared with USD$104.8 million for 2016. The increase of USD$72.0 million was
mainly due to the acquisition of the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de
Chihuahua, the acquisition of Ventika, the start of operations of four pipelines:
Ojinaga - El Encino, Sonora Guaymas - El Oro segment, San Isidro - Samalayuca,
and Empalme lateral, and other corporate general expenses.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

In 2017, depreciation and amortization was USDS$119.0 million, compared with
USD$64.4 million for 2016. The increase of USD$54.6 million was mainly due to
the acquisitions of Ventika and the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de
Chihuahua, and the start of operations of four pipelines: Sonora Guaymas - El Oro
segment, Ojinaga - El Encino, San Isidro - Samalayuca and Empalme lateral.

FINANCING COST, NET

In 2017, financing cost, net was USD$50.1 million, compared with USD$14.6 million for
2016. The increase of USD$35.5 million was mainly due to higher interest expense from
debt related to Ventika, a higher corporate debt balance, lower interest capitalization
related to projects under construction and interest expense related to Gasoductos de
Chihuahua, partially offset by interest incomer related to the shareholder’s loan granted
to South Texas - Tuxpan pipeline (our joint venture with TransCanada).

OTHER GAINS (LOSSES), NET

In 2017, other losses were USD$41.6 million, compared with other gains of USDS$2.2
million in 2016. The decrease of USD$43.8 million was related to exchange rate
effects, mainly due to a peso-denominated shareholder’s loan to fund the South
Texas - Tuxpan pipeline (our joint venture with TransCanada), which is partially
offset in Share of Profits of Joint Ventures.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

In 2017, income tax expense was USDS$109.7 million compared with USD$147.2
million in 2016. The decrease of USD$37.5 million is primarily due to the effect of
the deferred income tax balance from the fluctuation in the tax basis of property,
plant, and equipment at our U.S. dollar company functional currency, which we are
required to remeasure in each reporting period based on changes in the Mexican
peso exchange rate and inflation. This decrease is partially offset by the currency
exchange rate and inflation movements at period end on monetary assets and
liabilities.

SHARE OF PROFITS FROM JOINT VENTURES,
NET OF INCOME TAX

YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USDS) JOINT VENTURE 2017 2016
WITH
Gasoductos de Chihuahua Pemex TRI® = 32,713
Los Ramones Norte pipeline Pemex TRI® 22,077 9,666
South Texas - Tuxpan pipeline TransCanada 19,017 (2,095)
Energia Sierra Juarez wind generation InterGen 3,583 2,557
facility
44,677 42,841

In 2017, our share of profits of joint ventures, net of income tax, was USD$44.7
million, compared with USD$42.8 million in 2016. The increase of USD$1.9 million is
mainly due to profit in the South Texas - Tuxpan pipeline (our joint venture with
TransCanada), due to foreign exchange rate effects related to a peso-denominated
shareholder’'s loan, the start of operations of Los Ramones Norte pipeline in February
2016, and lower income tax expense. This increase is partially offset by the impact of
the acquisition of the remaining 50 percent of Gasoductos de Chihuahua and higher
income tax in the South Texas - Tuxpan pipeline. These foreign exchange rate effects
are offset in Other (Losses) Gains, net.
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PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS, NET OF INCOME TAX

In February 2016, the Board of Directors approved a plan to market and sell the
Termoeléctrica de Mexicali power plant. Accordingly, its financial results for the
three-month period and the year ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016
are presented in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Profit as discontinued
operations, net of income tax.

In 2017, loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax, was USD$56.4
million, compared with USDS$112.3 million in 2016. The decrease in losses of
USDS$55.9 million is mainly due to a lower impairment charge in 2017, an income
tax benefit and higher operational results.

EBITDA AND ADJUSTED EBITDA

We present “EBITDA" and "Adjusted EBITDA" in this earnings report for the
convenience of investors. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, however, are not measures
of financial performance under IFRS and should not be considered as alternatives
to profit or operating income as a measure of operating performance or to cash
flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity.

Our definition of EBITDA is profit for the period after adding back or subtracting,
as the case may be, (1) depreciation and amortization, (2) financing cost, net, (3)
other (gains) losses, net, (4) remeasurement of equity method investment, (5)
income tax expense, (6) share of profits of joint ventures, net of income tax, and (7)
(Profit) loss for the period from discontinued operations, net of income tax.

We define Adjusted EBITDA as EBITDA plus Joint Ventures (JV) EBITDA adjustment
plus Discontinued Operations EBITDA adjustment.

We define the JV EBITDA adjustment as our share of the profit of joint ventures,
after adding back or subtracting, as the case may be, our share of: (1) depreciation
and amortization, (2) financing cost, net, (3) other (gains) losses, net, and (4)
income tax expense.

We define the Discontinued operations EBITDA adjustment as the profit (loss) for
the period from discontinued operations, net of income tax after adding back or
subtracting, as the case may be, (1) impairment, (2) depreciation and amortization,
(3) financing cost, net, (4) other (gains) losses, net, and (5) income tax expense
(benefit).

YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USDS) 2017 2016
(UNAUDITED)
Gas Segment 617,481 373,881
Power Segment 76,846 2,169
Corporate (8,056) (699)
EBITDA 686,271 375,351
JV EBITDA adjustment 70,563 130,084
Discontinued operation EBITDA adjustment 1,805 (1,414)
Adjusted EBITDA 758,639 504,021
RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD TO
EBITDA AND ADJUSTED EBITDA
YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USDS) 2017 2016
EBITDA RECONCILIATION
Profit for the period 354,174 754,990
Depreciation and amortization 119,020 64,384
Financing cost, net 50,097 14,567
Other losses (gains), net 41,590 (2,168)
Remeasurement of equity method investment = (673,071)
Income tax expense 109,663 147158
Share of profits from joint ventures, net of income tax (44,677) (42,841)
Loss for the period from discontinued operations, net of 56,404 112,332
income tax
(1) EBITDA 686,271 375,351
JV EBITDA ADJUSTMENT RECONCILIATION
Profit for the period 44,677 42,841
Depreciation and amortization 6,276 13,907
Financing cost, net 30,087 32194
Other (gains) losses, net (16,888) 4,433
Income tax expense 6,411 36,709
(2) JV EBITDA Adjustment 70,563 130,084
DISCONTINUED OPERATION EBITDA ADJUSTMENT
RECONCILIATION
Loss for the period (56,404) 112,332)
Impairment charge 63,804 136,880
Depreciation and amortization = 2,222
Financing cost, net 595 229
Other (gains) losses, net (623) 1,396
Income tax benefit (5,567) (29,809)
(3) Discontinued Operation EBITDA Adjustment 1,805 (1,414)
(1+2+3) Adjusted EBITDA 758,639 504,021
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II) FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We are a holding company. As a result, our ability to meet our obligations and to
fund our capital needs depends on our ongoing ability to generate cash from
operations, the terms of our financing arrangements, and our access to capital
markets.

DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USS) 2017 2016
(AUDITADOS)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 37208 S 24,918
Short-term investments 1,081 80
Trade and other receivables, net 94,793 100,886
Assets held for sale 121,542 33,990
Other current assets ® 112,199 93,779
Activos disponibles para la venta 148,190 191,287
Total current assets 515,013 444,940
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Due from unconsolidated affiliates 493,887 104,352
Finance lease receivables 942,184 950,31
Deferred income tax assets 97,334 75,999
Investments in joint ventures 523,102 125,355
Property, plant and equipment, net 3,729,456 3,614,085
Goodwill 1,638,091 1,651,780
Other non-current assets @ 224,792 160,126
Total non-current assets 7,648,846 6,682,008
Total assets $ 8163859 $ 7126948
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Short-term debt $ 262760 S 493,571
Due to unconsolidated affiliates 544,217 260,914
Other current liabilities © 184,418 181,738
Liabilities held for sale 62,522 35,451
Total current liabilities 1,053,917 971,674
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term debt 1,732,040 1,039,804
Due to unconsolidated affiliates 73,510 3,080
Deferred income tax liabilities 551,614 489,607
Other non-current liabilities @ 236,191 272,472
Total non-current liabilities 2,593,355 1,804,963
Total liabilities 3,647,272 2,776,637
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock 963,272 963,272
Additional paid-in capital 2,351,801 2,351,801
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (14,556) (126,658)
Retained earnings 1,316,070 1,161,896
Total equity attributable to owners of the company 4,516,587 4,350,311
Total liabilities and equity $ 8]163,859 $ 7126,948

® Other current assets include restricted cash, amounts due from unconsolidated affiliates, other current
assets, finance lease receivable (current), natural gas inventories, and derivative financial instruments.

@ Other non-current assets include intangible assets, other non-current assets, and derivative financial
instruments.

@ Other current liabilities include trade and other payables, derivative financial instruments, other taxes payable,
other current liabilities, other financial liabilities, income tax liabilities, and provisions.

@ Other non-current liabilities include derivative financial instruments, provisions, and employee benefits.

SOURCES AND USES OF CASH

YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31,
(THOUSANDS OF USDS) 2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents at period beginning 24918 40,377
Net cash provided by operating activities 586,234 240,732
Net cash used in investing activities (974,914) (1,848,876)
Net cash provided by financing activities 406,584 1,605,461
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (5,614) (12,342)
Cash and cash equivalents 37,208 25,352
Cash and cash equivalents from assets held for sale = (434)
Cash and cash equivalents at period end 37,208 24,918

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

In 2017, net cash provided by operating activities was USD$586.2 million, compared
with USD$240.7 million in 2016, mainly due to a higher operations base as a result
of the acquisitions of Gasoductos de Chihuahua and Ventika, and the start of
operations of four pipelines, partially offset by changes in working capital.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The USD$258.5 million price paid for the assignment of Ductos y Energéticos del
Norte's capital stock and the liquidation of certain shareholder loans is comprised
of USDS$164.8 million cash and the liquidation of certain shareholder loans of
USDS$95.8 million as shown in the cash flow from financing activities, minus value
added tax of USDS$2.1 million. The cash available at the closing date was USD$17.2
million.

In 2017, net cash used in investing activities was USD$974.9 million, mainly due to
USDS578.1 million to fund the South Texas - Tuxpan pipeline and capital
expenditures of USD$253.0 million mainly related to our Ojinaga - El Encino
pipeline, Sonora pipeline Guaymas - EI Oro segment, San Isidro - Samalayuca
pipeline, Empalme lateral pipeline and Veracruz marine terminal project, USDS$147.6
million for the acquisition of an additional 25 percent of Los Ramones Norte
pipeline, net of cash available at the closing date.

In 2016, net cash used in investing activities was USD$1,848.9 million, due to
USDS$1,077.6 million from the acquisition of Gasoductos de Chihuahua, net of cash
available at the date of acquisition and the Ventika acquisition using USD$434.7
million, net of cash available at closing date, including the assumption of
shareholders’ debt of USD$125.0 million, capital expenditures of USD$315.8 million
for our Ojinaga - El Encino pipeline, Sonora pipeline Guaymas - EI Oro segment
and San Isidro - Samalayuca pipeline, and the investment of USD$100.5 million in
South Texas - Tuxpan pipeline. These amounts are partially offset by a decrease in
restricted cash of USD$46.8 million related to bank debt of Ventika and Gasoductos
de Chihuahua, a decrease in short-term investments of USD$20.0 million, and
repayment of loans from unconsolidated affiliates of USD$8.3 million.
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES

In 2017, net cash provided by financing activities was USD$406.6 million, due to
USDS$807.4 million of international senior note offerings, net of expenses, USD$331.2
million in net borrowings from unconsolidated affiliates, USD$360.5 million net bank
loan payments, a dividend payment of USD$200.0 million, payment to Pemex
Transformacion Industrial loan of USD$95.8 million as part of the acquisition of an
additional 25 percent of Los Ramones Norte pipeline, and interest paid of USDS$75.6
million.

In 2016, net cash provided by financing activities was USD$1,605.5 million, mainly
due to USD$1,567.7 million proceeds from the common stock follow-on offering, net
of expenses, USD$1,240.0 million in loans from unconsolidated affiliates, USD$805.0
million from borrowings against credit facilities, USD$1,369.6 million repayment of
unconsolidated affiliate loans, USD$459.5 million bank loan payments, a dividend
payment of USD$140.0 million, and interest paid of USD$35.8 million.

Il INTERNAL CONTROLS

Our management is responsible for maintaining a system of internal control over
financial reporting. This system gives our shareholders reasonable assurance that
our transactions are executed and maintained in accordance with the guidelines
set forth by our management and that our financial records are reliable as a basis
for preparing our financial statements.

The system of internal control over financial reporting is supported by ongoing
audits, the results of which are reported to management throughout the year. In
addition, we maintain reliable databases and have modern and efficient systems
designed to generate key financial information.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to
the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Infraestructura
Energética Nova, S. A. B. de C. V.
and its Subsidiaries

Cypivvlan

Wi have audited the consolidated financiad statements of Infracstreciura Energdtica Nova, 5. A. B. do
C. V. and s subsidiarbes (the "Company® or *1Encva®), which comprise the consclidated statements of
financial position as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, and the congalidated statements of prodit,
prafit and other comprehenshoe income, consolidated statemonts of changes In stockholders” equity
and consolidated staternents of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial stabements, nclisding a surmmary of significant accounting policles,

In our opinion, the accompanying conscldated finsncial statements present falrly, In all material
respects, the consolidated financlal positbon of Infraestructura Energética Nova, 5. A. B, de C. V. and
its Subsidlarics as of Decernber 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, and it consolidated financial performanca
and s consolidated cash Nows for the years then ended, in accardance with Interrationall Financial
Reperting Standards (IFRSs), as ssund by the International Accounting Standards Board,

We condwdted our audils in accondance with Intermational Standards on Awdting {I5A). Our
responsltieties under those standards are ferther described In the Auditors responaihilities for the audit
of the consolidabed financial siatements section of our repart. We are Independent of the Company in
accordance with the Intemabional Ethics Standaros Beard for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the Code of Ethics issued by the Mexdican [nstitube of Pubdle
Accountants (IMCP Code), and we have fulliled sur other ethical responsibliities n accordance with the
IESBA Code and with the IMCP Code, We beleve that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient
and appropelate to provide a basks for aur opinlen.

Key Avdit Maiters

Key audit matters are thoese matters that, in cwr professional judgment, wene of most significance in
our aidit of the consolidated Mnancial staterments of the current pesiod. These matters werg addressed
in the context of owr audit of the consedidated financlal statements as & whobs, and In farming our
apinion therean, and we do not provide o separate opinion on these matters, We have debermined
that the matters described below are tho key awdit Issues which should be communicated In our

Parirom v rsare: & Cooors: Trasre Tobamsrn | ivdesct, oo (2 L Mg nopand bl bl Lo v ol Bees |l 5 ou el o dovom, vemesnd #1s omla g she g, e Lry, svn e lega
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Goodwill !mpnl'lm‘ ent testing

As described in Note 13, of the censalidabed Mnancal statements, in 2005 the Company acquired the
remaining 0% equity in [Enova Pipulines, and L005% of the eqguity of Venlika resulting in the
recognition of goodwill of $1,612 milllen. Management performed Its first anneal goodwill fmpairment
test during the fourth quarter which uses business and valuation assumptions that require judgement;,
incfuding discount rates and bong berm projections of revenues and coste, The most relevant matters
addressed in our audit are as follows:

0 The corredt identification and aggregation of reporting units for purpases of the goodwil
impalrment test as supported by documentation or evidence of synengles.
. Testing of discount rates and projections of cash Mows

O audit procedwres focused mainly on testing relevant cantrols and subistantive procedures aves
redevant assurmplicns, We invelved internal valuation specialists to assist us in auditing these matters,

Relevant contracts and transsctions snalysis

As desorlbed In Note 1,2 of the conscldated financial statements, the Company entered into several
relevant ransaclions during the year, some of thern reguiring the determination of the apprapriata
accounting that can have significant implcations to current and future financial statorments with
respect Lo the recognition, valuation, presentation and disclasures of the particular transactian.
International Financial Reperting Standards require Management to apply its judgernent to defing the
acccaunting treatmeant with limited specific industry guidance provided. A typical analysis requires the
Company to debermine whether it necds to consolidate a project; whether the arrangemant conkaing a
leasa, and if se, #= classification as & finance or operating lease; whother the contract meets the own
use exemption or the definition of a derivative (o which hedge accosnting could ba applied) or IE
containg embedded derivatives; or, whether, it should be accounted for under another model, such as
o concesshon arrangement, Examples of such significant transactions inchede: the renewable energy
projedts, new electric supply contracks, concession agreernent snd lang besm capacity contracts and
acquisition or sale of subsidiaries,

Ouer audil focuses an the inbemal controfs and perfonméng detalled risk assessment procedures to each
transaction to deberming the relevant aspects of judgement to design tadlored audit procedures. We
also invohwed our technical accounting spacialists ta agsist us in auditing these matters.

Othar Infarmation

Management i respandible for the other information. The other information comprises information
incleded In the annual report, but does not inclede the Mnancial statements and our auditor's regort
therzen, The annual report is expected to be made avadable to us afer the date of this auditor’s

repodt.

Our opinion on the financlal stabements does not cover the ather infarmation and we will not express
vy foom of assurance conclusion theroon,

In connection with owr audit of the consolidated financlal statements, our responsibility & to road the
other infermotion kentified abawve when i becomes avallable and, n doing so, consider whether the
gther Information s materially nccnststent with the consolidated fnanclal statements or our
knawledge ohtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the
annual regort, if we conclude that there is a material misstaterment therein, we are required to
commemicabe the matter to those charged with governance. We do not report anything relabed o the
ather Information,
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Responsibifitles of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated

Management i responsible fos the preparation and falr presentation of the consolidated nancial
statements in sccordance with IFRSs, and for such Internal controd as management determines i
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatermant, whether due to froud or coror,

In pregaring the consalidated financial statements, management IS respansible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as appiicable, matters related to golng
concern and using the going concern basis of sccounting unless Mmanagemant sther intends b
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altermative but to do so.

Those charged with governancs are respansible for owerseeing the Company's financial reporting
proCEss.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Awdit of the Consolidated Financial Staterments

Our objectives are to cbialn reasonable assurance abeut whether the consolldated financal
staterments as a whola are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or enror, and to
e an asdtor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonabde assurance |s a high level of assurance,
but is net @ guarantes that an audt conducted in accordance with [SAs will abways detect a material
misstatement whan it exdsts, Misstaternents can arise from fraud or crmor and ane considersd material
if, Individually or in the aggregabs, they could reasonably be cxpected to influcnce the econarmic
decisions of users taken an the basis of these consclidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise prafessional Judgrnent and maintain
professional <kepticiam throweghaut the audit. We alsa:

. Identily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finandal statements,
whether dug to fraud or ermor, design and perform awdit procedures responsive to those risks,
ard obtaln audit evidence that 15 suffident and appropeiate bo provide a basls for our oplnion,
The risk of not detecting 3 material misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for one
resulting fram errar, as fraud may involve callusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrppresentations, or the avesride of iIntemal contred,

- ObLain an understanding of Internad control refevant to the audit in order bo design awdik
procedures that are appropriate in the ciroumstancoes, but not for the purpose of expressing an
apEnéon on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonabdeness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by mansgement.

- Conclude an the appropriateness of management’s use of the geing concern basts of accounting
and, based on the sudit evidence obtained, whether & material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Compgany's ability to continue as a
geing concern, If we canclude that a material wncertainty exists, we ane requined to draw
attention In our auditar's report to the redated disclosures in the consalidated finandal
statements or, If such distloswnes ane inadequate, to modfy our opinion, Our conclusions ane
based on the audit evidence oblained up bo the date of our auditor's report. However, futune
events or canditions rmay cause the Company to cease o continue as a golng concem.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, streciure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disdesures, and whether the cansolidabed financial statements

reprasant the underlying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair precentation.

. Obtabn sufficent appropeiate audll evidence regarding the Mnanclal informatian of the ent®ties or
business activithes within the Company to cxpress an opinion on the consalidated financial
staterments. We ame respensible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

Wi communicabe with those charged with governance reganding, among other matters, the planned
stope and timing of the audit and signiicant awdit Nndings, Including any significant deficlencies In
intemal controf that we identily during our awdit.

We also prowide those charged with governamce with a stalement thal we hawe compdied with relevant
athical requirements regarding independence, and to cormmamnicate with them all relationships and
ather matters that may reasonably ba thought to baar on our independence, and where applicable,
refated satequarnds,

From the matters communicated with thosa charged with govermance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance In Uhe audit of the consolidabed financlal staternents of the ocement
perod and ara therefare the key audit matbers. 'We describe these matters in our auditor's roport
unless kv or regulation precludes public dischosure aboul the matler or wihen, In extremealy rang
clreumstances, we determine that a matter shauld ot be communicated i our report because the
adverse consequences of dalng so would reasonably be expocbed to oubwelgh the public intenect
bencfits of swdh communication,

Other matter

The accompanying consclidated financiad stabernents have been transtabed Into English for the
convenience of readers.

Galaz, Yamazaki,

Esquivel Romero
City, Mexico
March 1, Z01B
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Infraestructura Encrgetica Nova, 5. A. B, de C. ¥, and Subsidiaries
Consohdated Statements of Financial Position
{In thousands of U. S. Dollars)

Assels

Current assels:

Cash and cash cquivalents
Shor=term investmienis
Finance lease receivables
Trade and other receivables, net
Due from unconsolidated affiliates
Income taxes recavable
Matural gas invenlorics
Derivative financial insirumenis
Vahe added ax receivable
Carbon allowances
Oither assets
Redncicd cash
Assets icld For =ale

Toaal cirenl &Sseds

Mon-cumenl assels
Due from unconselidated affiliates
Derivative financial instraments
Finance lease receivables
Deferred income Lax assels
Investment i joint venfures
Carbon allowances
Oither asseis
Propenty, plant and equipanent, ne
Intangible amsels
Gondwill

Total non-aurent assHs

Tolal as=xis

i
b
4,24

Decembser 31, December 31, December 31,
2017 2004 20135
5 37208 3% 24918 § 40377
1051 &0 200068
1126 7,155
84,793 100,885 53718
24,600 12,976 27608
51,50 6,390 16226
7194 6,83 4678
6130 6,913 1.526
39631 27,600 A5 BOT
— — 5385
10327 0280 3576
553,420 51,3463
148 190 1591 287 —
515,003 A4 Bl 12531
403 847 104,352 111,766
1,935 1,127 —
P42 134 B50,311 14.510
97334 B9 6RE TR 565
513,102 125,355 A4 105
12875
31658 4 855 1,538
1729454 31,614 (085 2595840
190,199 154,144 —
1,538, (k] 1 638 0] 25654
7548345 G683 D08 3.281.753

See accompanying notes (o the Consohdated Financial Statements.

§  E]161ES9 8§ 7026948 § 3 SO7.082

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equily

Current Labilities:
Short-term dela
Trade and oiher payables
Dz ta unconzalidated affilises
Ineome tax liabalites
Dervative financial mstruments
Other financial labilities
Provisioms
Other taxes payable
Carbon allowances
Other liabilities
Lisbilities held for sale
Total current habialitics

Mod-ciarent Labilities
Longderm debt
Due to unconsolidated affiliates
Delerred moome ax habihinies
Carbon allowances
Provisians
Dierivative financial instnaments
Employee benefits
Tolal non-current liabilities

Total habahities
Stockholders” equity:

Comanon stock
Acklivional paid-in capilzl

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Fetained earnings

Total equity atiributatde o cwners

of the Company

Commilments and contingencies
Events after the reporting date

Total lizbalities and equity

MNodes

21,24
16, 24
6, 24
25
o
18, 24

=i

23, M
6, 24
25
20
12
|
17

28

IENOVA

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2007 2016 2015
5 262700 5 423,571 BR.E0T
72638 M. 5656 43,349
544217 260914 351650
3384 13,322 14,095
41,726 10 3140 —
10,372 5,877 6444
394 Sl 1,293
36,274 271871 138581
— — 5,385
19,631 18,851 17,237
62511 35,451
L.053.917 971,674 543,341
1,732,040 1,030 804 250925
13,510 3,080 3z Aa0
551.614 485,607 261,294
— — 12,611
67,210 51,035 34,236
162,444 215,851 133,056
6,537 5,586 4,295
2593355 1,800,553 181,877
3647271 2,776,637 1327218
963,271 03,272 762949
2,351,801 23501800 973,953
(114.556) (126.65%8) (103.944)
1,316,070 1161894 546,906
4,516,587 4,350,311 2.1 79,864
5 £ 161859 7 176 5017 (127
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Infracstructara Energetica Mova, 5.4 I8 de . V. and Subsidiaries
Comsolidated Statements of Prodit
{In theneands of 1. % Dollars, exoepl per share amoum])

Bevemises

ol of e enies

Crperating, sdministrative md other expenses
Depreciation and amort zation

[nfenest mahme

Finimmcs aists

Cheer (losses) gains, nel

Remeasurement of aquity method investment

Profit belore iwome tax and share of profits of
JOIAL VenTines

Income tx expense
Shere of profits of peint vontures, mol of some tax

Profin fisr 1he Year from conlimung sperilons

[ mecsrvwt el CpETARion:

Lo fior the yeur rom discontinued OpenRIEeTE,
net of income tax -

Profit for the yeoar

Eamings per share:
Froam continaing operations:
Hagiz and dhluted sarmngs per shane

Froan continung dmd discontimussd operations:

Binsic and dihwted earmings per shane

Year ended Degemiber 31,

Mooy T 10l His
(Modes 1,12) (Mates 1, 12) (Moldes 1,12)

24, 18 - LIst526 8§ AEM 3 GldAral

(303, 462) {237,789} (257,226)
A (V76,793 (104,754) {81,857
14, 28, 33 { 119,000) (64,384) (32,470)
8,29 22 R08 6,269 6,701
8, 32 (T2.005) (20,836 (9,859
11 (41, S50 2,168 {11,426)
1 — 673,071 —
475,564 971,639 206,904
28,28 (1019, 663) {147,158) 04,237
10, 28 14,677 42,841 12319
¥ % 410,578 & B67,322 8 154,085
12 (86, 404 {112,332) {14,797
Wi % 354174 § TR0 5 140, 159
L& _____________§¥ |
6,34 8 027 % 070 % 13
12,26,34 % 023 § 061 % 012

Sed actompany g nodes 10 the Consolwlated Finarcial Stalements

IENOVA

Infraestructura Energetbea Mova, 5 A B de O,V and Subsidiaries
Consabdated Sttements of Prafit and Other Comprehensive Incame
{Tn thousands of 1T 5. Thallars)

Year ended December 31,
il 2017 006 =

Profit for the viear M 154,174 % TE4900 § 140,189
Cher compeehensive income (loss):
Ttems that wall not be reclassified 1o profn or (loss):

Actmnal gain (kess) on defined benefits plans 17 T4 1,765 {1,793}

Dieferred income tax related to actuarial gain
{leas) on defined benelits plana (211 (530 5318

Toital ems that will ricd be reclnssifled 1o
|'.'l.l'-|3|.-ll I:'|IJ$S:I 4973 1,235 {1,255}

Ltems that may be subsequently reclassibied to

prafit or (loss)
{3am {I:‘r:s]--.‘m vialiaton of derrneative Dinancul

instrum ents held for hedging pumposes 4,586 (17112 {5043
Deferred imcome x on the gan {less) on valeation

of derivative financial instruments held for

hedaing purposes i(1,376) %1313 1,981
Gain (koas) on valuation of derivative financial

instruments held for hedging purposes of joint

veniures LI 15308 (5362}

Deferred income e on the :E,uin {I.ll,:ﬁﬁ:l on vilmtion
of demvative finamcial instruments held for

hedging purposies of Jomil vemiures (%81 {15920 Lt
Gan (loss) exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations 6,110 (364586 (298]}
Total #ems that may be subsequently reclassified
o prafin (loss) 11,609 (23.94%9) {38 358
Cither comprehenaive meeme (loas) for the year 12,102 (22,714} (3 A13)
Totnl comprehensive income for the vear 5 6276 % 732276 % 100376
— —————§ — — — ——§ — — ||

See acoompanying notes to the Corsalidated Finamncial Statements.
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Infraestructura Encrgetica Nova, 8. A B de €.V and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders” Equity
(In thousands of U. 5. Daollars)

Oiher
Alalitiomal paid-in o elien sive
Moles Common Shares capital loas Eetained carnings Tl
Balance as af December 31, 2004 5 762,949 % 073953 % {64331) % 76,717 % 2,240 388
Profit for the year 140,185 140,159
Adtuanal loss on defined benefit plans, net income tax 17 — — {1,255} — {1,253}
Loss on valuation of derivative financial instruments held for ledzing purpases, net . -
aF lneoie Lk — — {4.6235) - {4,623}
Loss on valuation of derivative financial instiruments held for hedging purposes of e, e
Joint ventures, net of income tax - — (3,754) — (3,754)
Exchange differences on iranslation of foreign operations (22981} (19,981}
Total comprehensive (boss) income for the year {32613} 140,185 100,576
Dividends paid 27 — — — (170000 {170,000
Balance as of December 31, 2015 5 762,949 3 973953 3 (103 944 5 Me005 § 2,179,864
8 &% — " § " § —
Profit for the year — — — TH4.590 754,990
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans, nét income Lax 17 — — 1,235 — 1,235
Laoss on valuation of derivative financial insgroments held for bedzing purposes, nel — -
of income tax (1373 (11,373
G on valuation of denwvative Ninancial instrumeents held for hedging pumposes of i I
Joint ventures, nél of income [ax 24,716 4,716
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations — — {35 6R6) — {36 GRA)
Total comprehensive (boss) income for the vesr — — {22714} TEL900 732,276
Istuanee of shares, et 26 200,323 1,377,848 — — 1578171
Dividends paid 2 {140,000} {140,000)
Balance as of December 31, 2004 5 953172 3% 235180 3 (126658 % 1,161 896 £ 4.3%0.311
Profit for the year 354,174 354,174
Actuarial gain an defined benefit planz, net income tax 17 493 193
Ceain on valuation of dervative financial instruments held for hedeing purposes,
net of income tax 3210 3.210
G on valuation of derivaive Nnancial instuments held for hedeing purposes of 2 B P
joint ventures, net of income tax 2159 1.189
Exchange difTerences on iransation of foreign operalions — — 1 10k — 6,110
Tatal comprehensive income for the year 12,102 354,174 366,276
Dividends paid 17 {200,000 {200,000}
Balance as of December 31, 2017 5 963,172 3 2.351.801 3 (114.556) % 1316070 % 4,516,587
£ - ___ £ |

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Finencial Statements,
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Infraestruciura Energetica Nova, 5.0 B de O % and Subsidiaries —————
Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows Motes 2T 2004 2015
({In thousands of 1. 5. Dollars)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of subsicdianes, net of cash

_ Year ended December 31, _ Aoguired i {147 638) {1,512, 3248)
Notes 07 2004 20 Investment in jeanl ventures 10 (72,067 (00,4770
I . Verncruz marine terminal ariteal bddi
Cash nmﬂ from operating wetivities: | | i e : P N B
l&gfu.l for the year BM 5 KREN b A 154990 8 140,189 Interest received 1,089 3,875 Lo4T
Adjustments for. Acquisitions of property, plant and
Income 1axX exXpense 25 IR 104,162 117,349 1 0 A0 COUNnEnt 14 (224,816) (315,810% {300,080
Share of profit of jomt ventures, nel of Loans granted to unconsolidated affiliates [505,597) ] (1,301)
IS LiLs 10, 28 (44,577 (42,841) (42319 Keceipts of bons granted to uncomsolidated
Fmance costs 28 3 7501 21082 10103 affilmtes &152 8,262 41,596
Irterest income 28, 29 (22,808) {6,294) (6.743) Restricted cash (4,457 46,849 -
Loss (gain) on dispesal of property, plant Short-term investments (1,001} 19,988 9,952
and equipent TEIT {4,233) 3,601
Impairment (gain) loss recognized on rmde Met cnsh used 1n mvesting activities [974,914) {1,848 876} (248,796
receivahlea =0 46 L
Impairment of property plant and equipment 63,804 145, B8 — Cash Mows from [inancing acivitics:
Remeasurement of equity method ‘ n Issuance of shares from follow on public
nvestment (6730710 offering — 1,602, 586 —
Diepreciation and amorization 14, 28 33 119020 0 600 67682 Shares 1SSUAnCe Cosls — [34,87T) -
Net foreign exchange loss (gan) 37,028 {4,652 {8.548) Interast pasd (75.661) [15,785) (20,173
Met boss (gain) on valuation of denivative Loans received from unconsolidated
finamncial insiruments 6715 (21,0010 i niTlales [ 377,926 1 2400, 00000 EEC T
98T e R Loums payments 1o unconsehidated allihates L] {46, T02) {1, 360,500 ) —
— — Paymenis of loans acquired through .
acquasition of subsichary 11 (95, Bx) —_ —
Movements in working capital. Froceeds from bark finencing BT, 000 R05, 000 55 e
{Increase) decrease in trade and other 7 Payments related to bank financing (1,257,531) (459, 463) (600,004 )
recerabies, Nt (z368) Ll L Proceeds from international debt offering 2 £40,000 - -
(Increase) decrease m natuml gas e . ¥ T N 7 4 ;
inventories, net (113 (1,455) ere T“ RS = i 400 NAl
(Increase) deaseass I ofher sasets, met (4.204) 18,958 3618 vidends paid » {2040, 00 {1408, 000 {1760,
Inerease {decrease) in trade and ofher n , Met cnsh provided by financing
payahles, net 2546 (45,3020 (1081 activities 45,584 1,605,461 41 80z
(Decrease) increase in provisions, net 250 16,249 (3.791)
{(Dwercase) increase in other lmbilibes, net 1 2098) 20,348 (3368 wet mm {decrease) in cash and cash
Cash generated from operations 01,247 359,284 230,719 equivalents 17,804 (2,663} (38,728)
Net cash ded by Uhe year 24,918 40,377 83637
Mgl cash provi - Operaling : i . TR
activities 586,234 240,732 168,179 r“mu?n"l' s e S - 34y B
Effects of exchange rate changes en ensh and
cash equivalents [5.614) (12,342) (4,535)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year -3 ITHE & 4918 % 40,377
—_—

(Continued)
See accompanying notes to the Conaolidated Financial Statements.
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Infraestructura Energetica Nova, S. A, B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the years eoded Decembser 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (In thouswnds of 1. 8. Dollars, excepl where otheraise statedy

Ceeneral information and relevant evenis

1L

Cogmeral Tnformation

Infraestructurn Energetica Mova, 5 A B de C V) (“lEnova”™) and Subsidianes (collectively, the
“Company”)h are located and incorporated m Bexico. Their parent and ultimate holding company =
Sempra Energy (the “Parent™) kecated and incorporated in the Linited States of Amenea U, 5.7). The
ackiresses of therr registered offices and prineipal places of busimess are disclesed m Note 40,

Helevant ovenss
12T Indermational Semior Notes Cffering Semor Moles™)

On December 7, 2017, [Enova obtained 35300 million related o an intermationsl Senior Motes
offering, the notes were offered and sold in & private placement o qualified instinatonal bayers in
the U, 5. pursuant to Rule 1444 and outside the U S, pursuant 1o Kegulation 3 under the U 8.
Secunties Act of 1933, as amended (the ~Securities Act™).

The Semor Moles recenved an myvestmend grde raling [rom Filch Batings (BBE+), Moody's
Corporation ("hMoody's®) (Baal) and Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings ("58&F*) (BBE). The
Company used the net proceeds from the offering 1o repay outstanding short-term ndebtedness,
with the remainder for general corporate purposcs.

The Senior Nedes may net be effered or sold in Mexico shsent authorization by the Comision
Nacionn] Bancarm v de Valores (the “CNBY™ 1 in nccordance with the Ley del Mereads de Valores
(" Mexican Securities Market Law™) and all applicable regulstions and the due registration of the
Senior Motes in the Registro Nacional de Valores {"Natiomal Secunitees Registrny®) maintaimed by
the CHNBY, or in the U. 3. absent registration under the Secunitics Act or an exemplion from
registration therefrom.

Cn December 14, 2007, the Com pany entered into an imtemational Sentor Notesoffering comprised
of 33000 mallwon aggregate prineipal amount of the Company’s 3.73 percent Senir Notes due
2028 and 35400 million agpregate principal amount of the Compary’s 488 percent Senior Motes
due H4E, (Please reler 10 Note 23.00)

1.2.2 Creali? agreemenls

On August 21, 2003, [Enova asa debior, entered mio a revoly mg credit line of up 103400.0 million
with a synchcate group of four banks including, Banco Santander, (hMexicol, 5. AL Institucion de
Banca Multiple, Grupo Financiero Santander Mexico, ("Santandes™) Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi
("Bank of Tokyo), The Bank of Neva Scolm and Sumiiomo Mitsu Banking Corporation
(“SMBCT). The revelving credit has the following characteristics:

+ 115 Dollar-denomirated

*  Twelve-month erm, with an oplion to extend up to live years,

+  Financing to repay and cancel the previous loars contracted in 2004 with Samander and
SMBC, as well as 1o fimnce working capital and for gencral corporate purposes.

Reéstructiriing of crehl agreeniint and néw cvpdit agridnin

On December 22, 20135, the Company entened into an amended agreement, in conmection with the
exiating unsccured revolving credit agreement with Banco Mactonal de Mexico, SMBC, as
Aelministrative Agent, and the [inancial mstiutions panty thereto, as Lenders, (the “Credit
Agreement) whereby 1t agreed to msrease the ameount ofthe cresh hne unser the Credit Agresment
i a masmium aggregate in the amount of $600.0 mallion frem the previously authonzed nacamm
in the amount of $400.0 million. Please refer 1o Note 21.a

Cn Mowember 3, 2006, the Company endered inbo a second amendment agreement, moconneclion
o the revolving credit mentioned above, in which Bank of Amenca, M. A ("BofA™), BREVA
Bancomer 5. A, Institucion de Banca Muliple, Grupo Financiero BEVA Bancomer (*Bancomer™)
and Mizuho Bank, LTD (“Muzuhe™), joined os new lenders and with the cxisting lenders whereby
agreed 1o mereass the amount of the credit hne under the Credit Agreemen Los maximum sggregale
in the amount of 31,1800 millien from the previously authorized maximuon of $600.0 million
Please refer to Nete 21.a,

1.2.3 Plan to marker and sell TOAS

Tn T'ehn,uu':. H& the l:"mpcm}"-.: mianagement sqqmn'r,-d W p_lun b minrkel smeld o1l Termoeleciricn
e Mexicall, 5. de R 1. deC. W and subsidiaries TDW ), a 625-mepawatts (W0 natural gas-
lired power plant locsted in Mesacali, Baga Cahloma, Mexoo

A result of the foregoing events, the assets and labilites of TDM were presented as assets held
for =ale amd linhilities held for sale, in the Comolidated Statement of Financial Position as of
Drecember 31, 200 Tand 200 6 the results af these companies are albio presented within discontinued
operations i the Consolidated Statements of Profit, which were retrospectively adjusted Please
refer to Wole 12

124 Purchase agreemuril of remvaining inlerest i fEnova Fipelines, S, de iU L de C, K (“Yormerly

Crasodicios de Chitmalung, 5 de B L de O 17 ('TEnova Pipelines®] from Pelroleas Mecicanos

O Juby 31, 201 3, the Company announced an agreement with Petrolecs Mexicanos ("Pemex”) to
purchase Pemex's 50 percent equity mterest in [Enova Papelines in the ameunt of 51,525 million
The sssets mvolved in the sequisition include three natural gaz prpelines; one ethane pipeline; one
liguid petroleum gas “LPGT) pipeline; and one LPG storage werminal Under the terms of the
spreement, Pemex and 1Enova maintain their exasting parmership in the Los Ramones 1T Morte
pipeling progect throwgh the project holding company, Ductes v Encrgeticos del Norte, 3, de K. L.
e C. W, (CDENT)

Cn Seplember 14, 2015, the Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting approved the
purchase of Pemex’s 50 percent equity mterest hold in TEnova Pipelines.

Mesadrnon fromt ihe Comrnon Federal de Compelencia Economtica ("COFECE] In commeciton
wilh G puochase agreement of e remairing saterest in [Enova Pigelmes from Pemee

In December 201 5, the QOFECTE obyected 10 the tinsacion 1o purchase Pemex’s mnlerest m  Enova
Pipelines aa propeasd. The partiea restructured the transaction so that Pemex could proceed in
aecordance with the COFECE ruling.

In July 2016, IEncva announced it had reached an agreement with Pemex Transformacion Inchastraal
(" Pemcx TRI™) to restructure the transaction 1o purchase Pemex's interest in [Enova Pipelines that
was objected by the OOFECE i December 2005, Thisagreement allowexd 1) Pemex TRI 1o satsly
the conditions impased by the former COFECE in connection with its indinect participation in the
assels known as (Giasoduclo San Fernamdo and LPG Ducto TDEF and n} [Enova Lo acquire Pemex
TRI'z participation in TEnova Pipelmes once such conditions were satifisd.

O September 21, 2006, the COFECE authon zed TEnowa's acquisition of 30 percent of the equity
of [Enova Pipelines (CTEnova Pipelines acquisition™ ), ownied by Pemex TRI

IENOVA
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On September 26, 2006, IEnova Pipelines’ acquisition was completed through [Enova Gasoductos
Holdmg, 5. de B. L. de C %, (*IGH™) a subswhiary of IEnova; therelore, the Company now holds
100 percent af TEnova Pipelines' shares, The final prce of the tansaction was 510776 million,
et of cash scquired. [Enova Pipelines poont venture with Pemex TR remairs after the a-::quilitiun,
as originally contracted, cach holding 30 percent of the shares in DEN. Theough DM, [TEnova and
Pemex TRI preserved their encrgy infrastructure joint veniure of the construction of the Tas
Ramones Norte pipelme and the potentially development of new projects Please refer 1o Mote
1.2.5. related to financing trarsaction. Please refer toNote 128 for purchase agreement of TIEM.

[Envova Pipelines has been included in the Company’s Corsolidsied Financial Stabements since the
acousition date (Seplember 26, 2016} Plegse refer to MNote 11.1.

L5 Bridpe loan for IEnova Fipelines acquisifion

o On Seplember 26, 2006, [Enova entered into an unconsolidsted affiliae loan credit in the
arnount of 38000 milllhion with Smpra Glkebal ("S3EG™). The kan has the [(olloewing
characteristics:

« L& Dallar-denommated
= Two-month lerm.
«  Useto firmnce the acquisition of TEnova Pipelines

In Cetober 2016, the Comparyy repaid this Bridge Loan

b On Seplember 26, 2016, [Enova entered mnle an unconsohdated affibate lcan credit i the
amouni S3300 million with Semeo Holdeo, 8. de B L. de C. W ("Semce™) The loan has the
follew g charactersstics:

= U5 Dollar-denommaled
¢ Two-month term
+  Use to firance the acquisition of [Enova Pipelines

In Oetohber 2016, Semen bo [Encva's shares from the common stock follow-on equity
offermg (“Global Cffermg ™). Semco acquared B3, 125,000 shares, ata value per share of $8060
Mexican Pesoa, the total amournt of this transaction amounbed to approsimately S33000 million,
sqquivalent to the amount of ths koan, therefore Semico relieved IEnova from the payment
obligation of the bean as seitlement for shares,

1.2.6 Glabal Offering

OnOctober 13, 20016, the Company carried outaGlobal Cffering. The Company issued 380,000,000
shares of common ock at 380.0 Mexican Pescs per share. After the Global offering, the additional
and over-allotment oplion was exercisad, the (ree [loal representad approsamately 33.57 percent
af IEnova's cutstanding owmerahip inbenest,

Total capital raised, net of exponses and the corresponding ttes, was 529.5941,0 miallion Mexican
Pesos (apprecamately 1.6 balhon of U5, Dollars), the proceeds were used to repay the bridge loan
1o its affiliate Sempra Global, used 1o purchase the remaining S0 percent of 1Enova Pipelimes from
Pemex TRI, to fund a portion of the aoquisition of the Ventika wind-farm and to fund capatal
expenditunes and general corporate purpesss. Please refer fo Note 262

Az aresult of the Global Offening, the Company rnsed $30,400.0 nillion Mexican Pesos, and the
iguance costs amounted 1o 505 million Mexican Pesos. Please refer to Mote 262

The Compny in ofder 1o complele the tmnsactzon menticned in Note 1,24, entered into four
forward exchange rate contracts with a matunity date mOctober 2016, The effect of these forwards
was 53,4 million, and was recognized in the Consoladated Statement of Profit within other games
aned losses.
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L7

Puirchise agreement aof Ventika wind farm

On September 2, 2006, the Company agreed 1o acquire TEnova Ventika Holding, B V. (" formerly
Fisterra Energy Netherlands 111 B, W), | Enova Ventika Holding 11, B V(" farmerly Fisterra Energy
Metherlands [V, B. V"), I[Encva Ventika Meaxico, 5. de B L. de C. . ("formerly Fisterra Energy
Mexico LI, 5. de B L. de C. 07, IEnova Ventika Mexico L1 3. de . L. de C. ¥ (" fomerly Fisterra
Energy Mexico TV, 5. de E. L, de C. V"), Ventika, 5. A BT de C. ¥, amed Vertika IT, 5. A. P. 1. de
W feallectively “Ventika™), a 252-MW wind genemtion fcility, locatad in the state of Nuevo
Leon, Mexico. Ventika was jointly developed by Fisterra Energy and Cementos Mexicanos, 5. A
de C. ¥ The constiouction was completed m December 2015 and commercial operations started in
Apail 2016,

This transaction was approved in an Extraoedinary Sharchalders’ Meeting on October 7, 2016

In December 2006, the COFECE suthorzsd the scquisition of 100 percent of the equity imenest
in Ventika. The wansaction was completed on December 14, 2016 through Controladora Sierra
Juarez, 5 de R L. de €. W (CCET) o subsidury of [Enova. The final price of the iansaction was
$454.7 million, plus the assum ption of oatstanding debt of 54853 million.

The loans (ully mature i March 2032, ard bear mtercst equal 1o a [ixed base rate or Lombon
Interbank Chilered Bate (CLIBOKR ™) plus g spread of 3.03 percent to 3.93 percent, which vanes over
the term of the loars. To moderate the exposure 1o interest rate and sssoctated cash Aow vartability,
Ventika entered into floating-to-fixed intercat rate swaps to have almost 92 percent of the full
amount of the loans fixed.

Ventikn has been melled in the Consobdated Fmancial Stalements since the acquisabion date
(December |4, 2018). Flease refer to Mote 11.2.

1.2.8 Purchase agreement of DEN

Cm Octaber 6, 2017, the Company announced the agreement toacquire Pemex TRI's participation
in DEN.

Om Movemnber 10, 2007, the COFECE authorized the transaction. The purchase price paid was
$164.8 milhon {exchusive of 517.2 millien of cash and cash equivalenls sogquired), plus the
eaumption of 395 8 million of edaing debt, and the proportianal amount of T.oa Ramones 1T Note
pipeline project Dnancing of $239.0 million. This debt will ot be consolidated on IEnova's
Consolidated Fimncial Statements.

This acquisition increased TEnova's indirect partcipation i the Los Eamones TT Morte pipeline
from 25 percent to 30 percent through TAG Morte Holding, 3. de B L. de C. ¥ ("TAG™).

Mease refer to Motes 1004, 105 and 11 3.

1. 2.0 Financrtg with wtcornsolidared affibares

a.  On hMarch 2, 20015, [Enova cntered into two related party revolving credit Gacilities by 390,0
million with Inversiones Sempra Latn Amerca Limitada *3S5LAT) and 53000 millon with
Irversiones Sempra Limitada {1517}

On December 27, 2018, [Enova entered into s 3300 million revalving credit facility wah
[SLA

O Warch 21, 200 7, IBnova entered into a 585 0 million alfiliate credat Eacility with 151, The
cradit is & twelve-month term, with an option to extend it for up to four years

Effective June 1, 2017, 13LA was merged with and mto I3L which & the surviving entny in
the merger, the agreements conditions between I51. and [Encva rempin the same

IENOVA
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O December 13, 2017 the Company signed addendums modifving the contracts tems over
the S90.0 million, $30.0 million and $70.0 million credit faeihties with 151 and the new
characteriatics are:

*The term was extended and are due and payable in full on December 15, 2018

The revolving credit Eacilities are intended to fnance working capatal needs and general
corpomate purpases. Plexse refer 1o Note 6,111

On December 22, 2015, TEnova emtered into a related party revolving credit facility in the
amount of $219.6 milbion with Sempra Encrgy Holdings X1 B. V. ("SEH ™.

On August 1, 2016 the Company repaid 312005 million of this crednt facility, including
corresponding inferesi.

I October 201 6, with the proceeds from the Global Offering, the culstanding balance of 3095
million was pasd i full by the Company:

On August 23, 2017 IEnova entered imto a 3132 8 milhon 115, Dallar denommated affiliate
credit facily with SEH.

The revolving credit facilities are intended to finance working capatal needs and general
corporate purpases. Pleme refer o Note 6.1.1v.

On December 27, 2016, IEnova emered nto a related party rovelving credit Bacilitse for 82000
million with Peruvian Opportunily Company 5. A, C. (POC™)

Cm April 27, 2017, 1Enova enterad mnbo o 31 2.0 millkn revelyimg credn Gchty with POC,
O June 26, 2017, 1Enova entered into a 3210 million revelving eredit facality with POC,

On September 289, 2017, [Enova entered imo o 521.0 million revolvang credst fcility with
PO,

Cm December 28, 2007, 1Enova entered it @ $21.0 milben revolving credit faeility with
PO,

The revolving credit Facilities are interded to fnance working capatal needs and general
carporate pirpases. Please refer 1o Note 6,1 v,

210 FProyects amder developmaent

i

Ligueeraciom profect

Diuring March 2013, the Company, together with its subsidsary [Enova Marketing, 5. de R. L.
de OV (“TEnova Marketing™) (formerly, IEnova ILNG, 5. de B 1. de C. V), anncunced the
excoution of a “Memorandum of Understandirg”™ (“Memomndum™) with a subsidiary of
Pemex, for collabarmtion in the development of a naturn] gas liquefnction progect a1 Energia
Costa Azul, 3. de B L. de C. W ("ECA™) ECA is & subsidiary of [Enova and is a liquefiad
ratumal gas (“LNG™) receipl, storage amed regasification fcility, located n Ensenada, Baja
California, Mexsco. The Memorandum defines partner participation inthe liquetaction project,
ncluding the devclopment, structuring and the wrms under which Pemex may become a client
and/or investor.

12

Mdarrine pipneliong

In June 2016, Infraestrociura harina del Golfoe, S de B L. de O (7IWGT), the joiant ventune
foomed between [Enova amd TransCanads Corporstion (“TransCanada™), wherehy
TransCamada has 60 percent interest in the partnership and [Encva owns the remainmg S0
percent interest, resulted the wmner of o biddmg process and entered into a 25-vear natural
gas irareportation service agreament with the Coeision Federal de Electricsdad (“CFE™), in
conniection with the bid issued by CFE for the South Texas-Tiepan marine pipeling, 1MG
shall be responsible for the development, construction, and operation of the 42-inch pipeline,
with a capacity of 2600 Million Cubie Feet per Dy MMCOFPDF) and a bergth of
approximately 00 kilometers (km™). The project will regquine an v estm ent of approcimately
2.1 billion and 15 eopected 1o begin operabions in the kst quarter of 200 8, Flease rafer to Nobe
103

Fa Rumeiosa Solar Pegject and Tepezala IT Solar Profect

On September 28, 2006, the Company wis declared winner of two solar projects, budad by
the Centro Mackonal de Control de Energia (“"CEMACE™), La Rumorosa Solar Complex ("La
Rumorosa™) and Tepeaala I Solar Complex (“Tepemla [17) with an approximate capacity of
41 MW, located in Baja California, Mexico and 100 MW capacity, located in Aguascalientes,
Mexieo, respectively. The Tepemla I project will be developed and constructed in
collaboration with Trima Solar Holdinga, B. V. (" Trina Solar®™)who will have a 10percent staloe
in this progect.

The Compary, through its subsidesries will be responsible for the development, construection,
operation and mamntenance of these projects, mabuding the permits, mghts, financing anxd land
acquisition. The estimated investment for these projects is 313000 million and the beginning
of commercinl operations 15 expected 1o oceur m the second quanter of 2019,

Trarsa Solag has the option Lo sell, Trina Solar's ownership mterest #1 the end of the comstruction
period, hefore cperations commencs.

Fima Salar Froject

Im March 201 7, the Comipany, through one of s subsichanes executed a 20-year ehectnc supply
contract with Deacero, 5. A F L de C. W to provide energy, clean energy cemtiflicates, and
eapacily from a new solar power plant logated in Caborea, Sonom, Mexieo,

The Company will be responssble for all aspects of the propect implementation, including
pemmitting, acquisition of and and rights of way, engimesrmg, procurement, construction,
financirg, operations and mantenance,

The salar power plant will have a 110 MW eapacity. The estimated investment for this project
15 51150 million The beginning of commercial operations 1s expected 1o oeour inthe fourth
quarter of 2018,

Feraceur marnse termatmal and tn-fand rermminal projects

O July 12, 2007, the Company won the Administracion Portuania Integral de Verseruz, 5. A
e © W (AP bid for & Deyear wansfer of its concession rights of an aren to build and
operate & marine terminal for the reception, storage and delivery of refined products.

Agcording to the bidding basis, the Company made & cnetime counter-payment offered for
the right o build, use, bevernge and bene it from the operation of the Veracrue marine terminal,
in two installents, cach equivalent to the S0 percent of the total amount, the first payment
of 350000 mallion Mexican Pesos (328.2 million U, 5. Dallars) was seitled on August 1, 2017,
prior 1o the exscution of the concession agreement, as per biddng basas
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The Company paid the remaining 30 percent of o coumnberpayment lee for 350000 million
Mexican Pesos, on January 8, 2015,

O Anzgust 3, 200 7, the Com pany exeeuted the 20-year conesssion sgreement with the Veracnaz
AP 1o develop, consiruct and operate the aforementioned marine lerminal. The concession
inehades the imnsfer, dunng 2018, of the waterfront |of where the terminal will ke buih.

With an mvestment of appresamately 3166.0 mallion US. Dollars, the terminal will have a
capacity of 2,1 X0000 bame ks and s expected o begin operations a1 the end of 2018,

Additeonally, the Company will build and operate two storage taminalks that will be
atrategically located in Puebla and Mesoco City, and will have nitial storage capacities of
approximately 00,000 and 3000000 barrels, respectively. With animvestmerd of approsumiately
S12000 mallion ULS. Dollars, the two in-land termimals will stan operations durirg 2015,

The Compary will be responsible for the implementation of the projects, including the
obtaining of permits, engineéring, procuremant, Sonstruclion, opEmtion, mainterance,
financing and providing services.

O Juby 20, 2017, the Company executed three bong-term frm capscity contracta with Valero
Markcting and Supply de Mexico, 5. A de C, V. ("Valero™) for the receipt, storage cagrcity
and delvery of hydrocarbons in the Veracrnuz marine termirsal and for the two in-land terminals
tobe constructed in Pueblaand Mexico City, fora 20-years1orm, the contracts are denominated
n 1S Dollars

Valers plans 1o mport refined products includimg gusoline, diesel and jet fuel, and slore them
at the Veracruz marine terminal Locally, the products will be distnibuted by truck and
trunspored 1o Pushls ard Mesico Oy by ranl,

Adter commercial operations, and subject 1o all relevant regulatony and corporsteauthonzations
as will aa the approval of the APT of Veracruz, Yalero will have the option toacquine S0percent
off the equity in cach of the theee lerminals

£ W power generation jecilily

Oy Movember 16, 2007, the Compary theowsh Energia Sierma Juarez 2 17 8| LLC, a whaolly
owered affiliate, executed a 20-vear power purchase sgreement with San Diego Gas & Electne
Coenpany, 8 TEnova's unconsolidated affiliate. The contract will be supplied through a pew
wird power genemtion facility that wall be located i the mumcipality of Tecate mn Baja
Californa, Mexico. The progect will have a capecity of 108 BAW and will require an mvestm ent
of apprecamiately 31500 million, The development of this project is subject to the recept of
regulatory approvals, including from the California Publc Utilities Commissien and the U5
Federal Energy Fegulatory Commision. [isalsosubject o obiaming conseris from financing
pariies and partners.

L2 Cthers aaitérs

a  Payment af financtal dertvatives held for hedging purpases

In Seplemhber 2003, the Company entered ino derivative transactions Io hadge fulure interest
pavments associated with forecasted borrowings. In 2007, the original hedged items became
probable of nol eocurring due 10 a change in the Company s exlermal bormowing needs. As of
Drecember 31, 2004, there was ane remainimg interest rate swapagreement urder which IEnova
received a vanable inferest rate (three-month LIBOR yard paida xed interest rale of & pereent.
The onginal terms of the swap expire on December 15, 2027, On September 16, 2015, the
Coen pany, Ureugh an carly lerminstion clause, made a pavment inthe amount of 322 8 million
and &= 0 resull, such denvative was camoelad.
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L3

b, Energy Heforms

Om Diecember 20, 2013, Mexico's president enacted conatitutional reform with respect 1o lw=
goverming the enengy sector, which was approved by the natiorsal congress and the majonty
of state congresses. The Reform maodifies Amiches 25, 27 and 28 of the Mexican Constitution,
allowing for private investment in the following arcas: exploration and produstion of
hydrocarbons, petrochemicals, refinmg, trarsporiation, storage and distribution of petroleum
products and power tmnsmision and distnbution. On August 11, 2014, the secondary
legislation derived from the reform was enscted and on Oclober 31, 2004, s most relevant
regulations were published m the Federal Official Gazente 2015 and 2016 witnessad the
implementation of the Reform smee particular regulation (General Administrative Procedures)
regardirg ratural gas, cloctricity, renewibles and liguids were 1ssued by the Energy Regulatory
Commission The Centro MNacional de Control del Gas Natural CCENAGAS™) and CENACE
started functioning as the Indepenclent System Operitors of the matural gos and ratonal
clectriciy svslems (Sestrangns and National Elecincal Sysiem), and Pemex and CFE hed
imporiant corporiie restrsciuges.

o Cwedr Ratings

COm Movember 30, 2007, 58P gave the Company a global corporate credit rating of BBR with
o stable outlook, and Fitch Batirgs gave [Enova long-term foreign and bosal cumency issuer
default ratings of BEE+ with a stable outlook

Activities

The Company operaies in the energy sector. The Company is organized m two separately mansged
reporiable segments, Gasand Power. Amounts labeled as Comorate corgist of panend company activities
at I[Encva. (Please refer to Note 23.).

The Gas segment develops, cwns and operates, or halds mterests n, natural gas, LPG ethane pipelines,
storage Eacilities for LMG, and LPG, tmnspostation, destiibution ard sale of natural gas in the states of
Bagn California, Sonom, Sinalea, Conhutla, Chihshua, Dumngo, Tamaulipas, Chinpas, San Luk Potos,
Tabasco, Veracruz, Nuevo Leon and Jaliseo, Mexico. 1t also owns and operates a LNG wmminal in Baja
Cahformie, Mexico for importing. stoning and regasifying LNG,

The Power scgment develops three solar projects located in Baja California, Aguascalicnes and Sonora,
Mexico, owns and operates a nanaral gas fired power plant that includes two gas turbines and one steam
turbine, owns o wind farm located in Muevo Leon, Mexzeo and holds interests in o renewable energy
project in @ joint venlure 1 Bapa Califorma, Mexico, both renewable energy projects use the wind
resources o serve costumens in Mexieo and i the U, 5, respectively,

The Company develops a propect for the corstruction of a marine terminal and two in-lard termirals for
the reception. storage and delivery of refined products, bocated in Veracnuz, Meaco City and Puebla,
Mexico, respectively,

The Compary obtained the comesponding authonzation from the Comigion Reguladora de Energia
(“CRE™) 1n arder to perform the regulatad activities

Seasonality of operations, Customer demand i bath Gas and Power segments experience sensonal
fluctuations. For the Gas segment, the demand for natural gas service 15 higher in colder months. In the
case of the Power segment, the demane for power distribution service s higher durmg months with hot
weather.
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L34, Gar segment
The Company s subsidmrics inchuled in this reportable segment are:

o Ecogas Mexico, 5. de B L. de C, V. ("BEOO") is engaged in the distnbution and sale of natural

g2as for industrial, resedential and commercial use in three local distnbution zones: Mexicali
(serving the city of Mexicali, Baja California), Chihuahua (serving the cities of Chihunhua,
Delicias, Cuanhtemos and Anshuac) and La Laguna-Durango (serving the cities of Torreon,
Gomez Palacio, Larde and Durango), with pipelines of approximately 3, 725 km in lenght.

During 1996, 1997 and 1959, the CRE, granted EOO the first natural gas distribution permits
for the local distribution zenes of Mexicali, Baja California. Chibuahua, Chalneahus and La
Laguna-Durango, under which ECOracenes, transports, delivers and sells natural gas through
a pipeline system.

In May 2009, the CRE approved the third five-year plan to ECO for the local distribution
zones of Chihuahua, Chihuahua and Mexicali, Baja Califorraa, and i June 2010 for the local
distribution zone of La Laguna-Durango. Additionally, i 2016, the CRE suthonzed an
adjustment ta the suthonzed taniffs 1o be apphied inthe five-year plan for the lacal distnbution
zones of Chilzahus, Chihuahoa and La Lagura-Durango and in 2017 an actualization to tariffs
rebated 1o inflatienary cffects, The lve-year plans do pet include commatments regarding the
mmimun rumber of customers. A= of December 31, 2017, 2006 and 2005, ECO had over
120,000, 119,000 and 113,000 customers, respectively.

P International Canada, 5. de R. I de C. 'V ("PEI7) 15 a subbolding compary of the group

Seevicios DGN de Chilumhua, 3 A de C ¥ ("SDGNT) provides adminisirative, and
operatioral services to other affiltates of the proup.

Gaspducto Rosanilo, 3. de B L. de C. V. ("GRO7) renders serviees of transportation of naural
gas, serving the enerngy requirements of Raja Califorma, Mexico GRO operates the Gasoducto
svatem comprised of three natural gas pipelines (Roswire dininiine, LNG Spur avd Y
Lateral) and ene 30,000 hoese power (“HP) com pression station Jocated in Baja California,
Mexieo. The total length of GRO aystem i approximatehy 302 km. The system beging at the
interconnection with the El Paso Natural Gas Co. pipeline near Ehrenberg, Arizona, U, S,
("MNorth Baja Pipelme ™), and ends in southem Tijuana, Baja Californsa a1 the interconnection
with the Transportadorn de Gas Natural de Baja Californan, 5. de R L. de C WV ("TGN ", a
subsidiary company) pipeline. The Mexican portion of the pipeline begins at the
interconnection in Algodones, Baja Califomia withthe Noeth Bajas Pipeline and travels through
hexscali ard Tecate, Baja California ending at the intercormection with TGM. These three
pipelines operate under one Irmspartation permit issusd by the CRE,

Rasarito Maimfing: This system was onginally placed in service m August 2002 to supply
natural gas from the .5, to several power plants and industrial customers inthe Baja Califomea,
Mexico market. This svstem s a 20-inch dimmeter pipeline with a kngth of approximansly
235 km and a designed transportation capacity of 334 MMCFFD

LNG Spaer- Thas system was completed m bday 2008 and transports nstural gas 1o the Rosamo
Mninline for delivery to power plants 10 the Raja Californan market, This system i a 42-inch
diameter pipeline witha kergth of approximately 72 km and a designed transpontation capacity
of 2,600 MMCFPD,

Youraz Lateral: This system was the latest addition to the GRO wansportation system and was
placed in service in bdarch 2010 to transport natural gas o the Arzona border Thas system is
a 1 2-inch dinmeter pipelme with a length of apprestimately 5 km and a designed transportation
capacity of 190 MMCFFLY.

Effective August 1, 2017, GRO waz menged with and into Gasoductoa de Apmaprieta, 5. de
K. L. de C. ¥ ("GAP”) which is the surviving entity in the merger.
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TGN 15 engnged in the trarspartation of natuml gas in secordanee with a permait imsoed by the
CRE, through a 45 Km, 30-inch pipeline with a designed transportation capacity of 940
BT s permitied by the CRE. TGN interconnects with the GRO pipeline system in the
Tiyuana, Baja Califormia, Mexico, anea and extends north to interconmect with the San Diego
Gras & Electrie Company (“SDO&E", an unconsolidated affiliate in the U, 5.) system at the
Chay Mesa International border and southwest 1o the CFE's 600 MW Presidente uarez Power
Planit in Rosamite, Baja Californan, Mexico, The TGN pipeline system was placed 1 sarvice
i June 20000 A 19 kmy expansion to the TGN syatem began operations in May 2008

Effective Awguast 1, 2017, TGN was merged with and imto GAF which is the sunyiving entity
in the merger.

Encva Gasoductos Mexico, 5 de R L. de C V. (“IEnava Grsaductos Mexica™) & engaged
in the acquisition and subscription of any kind of participation in the capial stock of a varety
of companies, #s subsidmnies are erngaged in the compression, somge anxd wasportation of
natural gas and LPG as well az in rendening all kind of services related to such activities,
including the coardination, consulting and supervision of construction and development of
energy infrastructure projects.

Sempra Compreswn Mexies, 5. de B L. de C. W ("SCM™) was incorporated on August 8§,
2003, =z resull of o spin-ofl of El Paso Encrgy Marketng de Mexico, Sdo R L de C ¥
(“EFENMMT) It is primarily engaged im the compreasion of namral gas using compression
equipment located in Naco, Sonoea (also referred to as the Naco Compression Station).

In 2001, SCM entered into an agreement with Pemex TRI 1o provide natural gas compression
serviees fora 20-year pened. The term of the agreement may be extended up to five addrtioral
wears by mutual agreement betweoen SCM ard Pemex THRI

Inn 2004, SCM was merged into [Enova Gasoductos Mexico subsisting this lest company.

GAP a subsidiary of TEnova Gasoductes Mexico, was incerporated on July 4, 2001 and
commenced operations on Mowvem ber 200 2002, GAP 15 primanly engaged inthe transportation
of natural gos.

Oiry July 19, 2002, GAP obtained ns natural gas ransportation pernnit from the CRE. The term
of the permit is for 30 years and is renewable every 15 vears.

Ci June 28, 2002, GAP entered urte a 23-vear gas transportation agraement with EPEMBL a
related party until Apeil 2010, The pipeline stans at the boeder of Arizona, U, 5, and extends
tothe power plant called “Maco-Mogales®  which iz owned by Powerand Enengy Maco MNogalea,
5 A de OV, located in Agua Pricta, Sonor, Mexeo,

Somara pipeling: In October 2012, GAP was awarded two contracts by the CFE with two
contracts to builld and operate an approximately 835 km natural gas pipeline network
connecting the Momhwestern Mexican states ol Soncm and Sinaloa{“Momhwest gas pipcling™,
aleo kenovwm as the = Sonora Pipeline”) to the 175, interstate pipeline.

The Sonora pipeline is comprised of two segments, the first one (Sasabe — Guaymas), has an
approximate lengthof S05 km, 36-inch diameter pipelme with TAOMMCFPD of transportation
capacity, and the second one (Guaymas — EI Oro), has an approximate length of 330 km, and
30-inch pipeline with 310 MMCFPD of ransportation capacity and started commercial
operation on May 19 2017

On Awgust 18, 2014, CFE granted a compliance certification for the Sasabe — Puerio Libertad
segment construction. The first 220 km, of the first ssgment were pul inlo operalon in the
fourth quarter of 2014. The secend 285 km of the first segment (Pusrto Libertad —Guaymas),
this segment started commercaal operation in the third quarter of 2015,
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The copacity of the Sonora pipeline s comtracted by CFE under two 25-vear firm contrcts
denommnated in LLS, Dollars,

Linaga - El Encing pipeline: In December 2014, GAF, enerad o the Ogimaga pipeline
ratural s trarsportation serv ices agreement with the CFE, which has a terms of 235 vears. The
CFE contracted 100 percent of the tmnspartation capacity of the Ojmaga pipeline, aqual to
L. 4 balleom Cubie Feet Per Day (" CFPD®). The 42-inch pipeline, witha length of approxmately
222 km, This segmient started commercinl operation on June 30, 2017

Sy [icdvo - Semalayuca pipeline; Dunng 2015, the Company, through its subsidiry GAR
was declared winner of the CFE tender for a natural pas transpomation contract through a
pipelme from San Isidro to Samalayuca in te Swle of Chibuahua, Such project consists of a
header faciliy withacapacity of 3 hillion CFFD and a 23 km pipeline with a capacity of 1,135
MMCFPD of natural gas. The system supplies ratural gas 10 the Norte 11 Combaned Cyole
Power Plant and irerconnect with the follewing systems Gasoducios e Chihushua,
Tarahumarn Pipeline and the Samalaveca-Sasabe prpeline. Thos segment stanted commercial
operation on karch 31, 2017, The contract matunty 15 25 years,

Ei Empalme gipeline branch: In May 20016, IEnova enfered mio a natural gas transportation
service agreement with CFE fora 21 year term , derominated in U5, Dollars, for 100 percent
of the tmnsporation capacity of the Bamal Enpalme pipeline, equal to 226 MMUFPD of
rastural gas, The 20 km pipeling branch. This segment staned commercinl eperation on June
24,2017

IGH s engaged in the poquisition and subscription of any participation i the share capital of
VAMTOUS SOMAnics.

IEncva, 5 de R L. de TV iz engaged in providing adminisirative and operating services to
other subsidiasies in the group.

Druring 2000 5, this entaty was liguidated.

ECA, owns and operates an LMG regasafication and storage facality (“L.MG Termimal™) in
Ensenada, Paja Califomia, Mexico.

Dming 2007, BC A obtnimed all necassany opemting permits fron hesican régulateny agencees
and operations commenced in May 2008,

In Decemiber 20015, ECA completed the construction of a nitrogen injection facility to allow
customers Lo delver LWNG with a greater mange: of gross heating value. The mirogen myjection
facility produces nitrogen that can be mined with natural gas when it is necessany o lower the
heating content 1o meel pipeline gas quality standards in Mexico and the U, 5,

ECA entered into a J0uyvear firm storage service agreement with Sempea LNG International,
LLC (“SLNGI, anuncorsoldated affilate mithe U.S.) through [Enova Marketing for which
SLNGT iscommined 1o pay for the 50 peroent of the total storage capacaty of the LNG Terminal
The agreement commenced in May 2008 afier the LMG Term inal was placed in service. In
Aupril 2003, thee shipper assigned the remaining contracted stotage capacinty 1o other independent
third parties.

[Eneva Marketing provides [NG services related to the purchase and sale of LNG and natural
gas. In May 2008, [Enova Marketing began eperating jointly with ECA Up to that date, the
activities of TEnova Marketing were prmanly focused on oblamning necessary permits to
Oparate.

InMNovember 2009, TEnowva hdarketing entered intoan agreen ent with SLMGT, whereby SLWGT
agreed to deliver and sell LNG cangees to 1Enova Magketing [rom startup date of the LING
Terminal. Accordingly, TEnova MMarketing entersd into transpomation and storage capacity
service agreements to commercialize the LNG.

Thereatter, on January 1, 2013, SLMGI and 1Enova Marketing entered mie an LNG sale and
purchase, tramaporiation and supply agreement expining on August 20, 2029, The minimun
annual quandity commitied for delivery 1s 188 million British Thermal Units b Bius").
Under the termz of the agreement, SLNGT will be responsible for the transporiation o the
receiving terminal of all quantities of LNG sald and deliverad from the delivery point to the
receiving terminal and, [Enova Marketing wall take LNG in onder o meet its purchase
commitments

IEnava Pipelines is engaged in providing natural gas and LPG transpontation services through
Gasoductos de Tamaulipas, S de R L. de C. V {"GdT™), Gasoducios del Moroeste, 5. de B
L deC W ("GdN") and TDF, 5. de B L. de C. V. (“TL¥F), respectively, it also stores gas for
the supply of LPG, thoogh Tramsportadora del Morte SH, 5. de B L. de C. V. {"TdN", TDF s
holdirmg company). These activites areregulnted by the CRE. [Enova Pipelines is alkoengaged
s well inthe ethane gas ransportaton service through Caseductos del Sureste, 5. de B L.
de C. W [(GdE™)

IEnava Fipelines has to follow the mulings authonzed by the CRE. Those contain among other
things, general service provision conditions for the service supply, tanfl limits, the approved
e revenues and the route followed by the gas pipeline proposed by the comparnies.
The corstruction program and established investments in each permi must bave been
developed by [Enova Pipelines. In addition, the rulings require that a review off the mandim um
revenue be performed every five vears to make any adjustments required regarding revenue
and the related taniffs.

GdT - San Femando pipeline: a fully bi-directional system that is comprised of a 36-inch
diameter pipeline with an approximate leagth of 114 km and 2 copacity of 1460 MMCFPD
and two compression statiors with a total of 95670 HE The pipeline extends from the El
Caracol compression station in Reynosa, Tamaulipas 1o Los Indios compression station in San
Fermande, Tamauhpas. CEMAGAS, as transleree of Pemex TR, s the scle customer of the
San Fernando pipeline and also purchases the system's unused compression capacity on an
as-Needed basis pursuant 10 an intermeplible iransportation services agreement. The services
agreem end with CEMAGAS bas an initial term of 20 years beginning in 2003, but 13 extendable
for a five-year period ot the customers option.

IEnava Fipelines - Semalmuca pipeline: 5 24-inch dimeter pipeline with an approximate
length of 37 km and a capacity of 400 MMCFPD. The Samalayuca pipeline, which began
operations in 1997, was the firt privately-ownad natural gas pipeline i Mexico. The
Samalayuca pipeline extends from Ejido San L=idro, Chibmabes, to CFE's Samalayuca power
plant ard ingerconnects with a separite, 18-inch dismeter pipeline owned by Pemex TRI that
extends from Ciudad Fearez to Chihushua TEnova Pipelines has entered into bong-term
transporistion service agreements with the Samalavuca pipeline's customers, which lave 50
percent of the system s design capacity contracted on a firm basis.

IEneva Fipe fines - Gilore a L4os compression station: a 14,300 HP compressor with acapacily
of 60 MMCEFFD. It is installed at the interconnection pednt of the Samalavuca pipeline and
Pemex TRI's Crudad harezChabvabuea naturalgas pape ine inGlona a Dhes, Chihuahoa, CFE,
which is the station's anle customer, has contracted 100 percent of the sation's capacily of &
firm basis throwgh 2021, at the rates established by the CRE, pursuant 1o & trarsportation and
com pression services agreement. Under this agreement, the Gilona a [ios compression station
prowides compression services for the Chilnashus 1T power plant, transpots natuml gas from
am interconnection between Kinder Morgan's pipeline svstem and the Samalayuca pipeline at
the Mexico-11.5, border, and delnvers the compressed gas to the mterconnection point of the
Samalayuca pipelme and Femex TRL's pipeline system.

TDF - LG pipelivne - a system comprised of approximately 190km of | 2-inch diameter pipeline
with an average daily ransponation capacity of 34,000 Barrels per day ("BbId™) of LG, a
pumping statsen located near the pipeline’s point of delvery, and a reception facility that
includes two storage spheres with a combined storage capacity of 40,000 Bbld
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The TDF s LIAG pipeline, which was the frst povate LG pipeline in Mexico, edends from
Pemex TRI's Burgoes LPG production area in the State of Tamaulipas 1o a delvery [acility
near hMontemey, Muevo Leon. The TDF's LPG pipeline has in place a firm transportation
services agreement with Pemes TR, which expires in 2027,

TN « Gundalafara LPG drimirad, in 2013 TdN completed the construction of an LG storage
facility with a capacity of 80000 Bbld near Guadalaara, Jalisco. This facility cormista of four
stocape spheres, each with a capacny of approcaumately 20,000 Bhld, wen beading bays, and an
wnlerconnechion with a separate LG pupeline system thal 15 owned by Pemex TEL The
Company has entered into several 15-vear somge service agreements with Pemex TRI,
pursuan 1o which it has contracted 100 percent of the terminal's capacily through 2028

Getl - Los Ramones I pipeline: the system is comprised of a 48-inch diameter pipeline with
an approcimate length of 116 ke and two compression stations with a tegal of 123,000 HE
The Los Ramones T pipeline transports natural gas From nosthern Tam al pas, near the Mexico-
L5, border, 1o the interconmection paimt with the Los Ramones 1T Norte pipeline and baicos's
national pipeling system in Lok Ramones, Nuevo Lean, CENAGAS, s transferse of Pemex
TR isthe sole customer of this facility undera 25-year (irm transportallon services agreemenl.

(GelS - Etfiane pipeline: an approximately 224 km system com prised of three segments. The
first segment 1= a 2kinch dinmater pipeline with a trarsportation capacily of approximately
33 MMCFPD (006 M0Thd). The second segment 15 a 1624-mch dismeter pipeline with a
transportation pacity of approximately 100 MMCFFD (1.8 MBI The). The third segmant 15
 2nch dmmeter pipeling with a transportation capacity of apprecamately 106 MWCFPD
(1.9 MMThd), The Ethane pipeline transpons ctians from Pamex's processing leciliics inthe
states of Tabasco, Chiapas, aml Verncruz to the Ethylene XX ethylene and polyethybense
polymerization plant in the State of Veracruz Pemex TRI, the sole customer of this facility,
has contracted 100 percent of s capacity lor a period of twenly one vears umcder o purchase
agrecment on a take-or-pay basis. This system, which began operations in 2005, is hMMexicoo's
first privately-owned cthane pipeline.

n. DEN provides operationand maintenance services tothe Los Ramones 1 Norte papeline system

wndder 8 25-vear lerm agresment, slarting n February 2006, the commerceal opemions dale
DEN cwned 50 percent of TAG, which owned 59559 percent of TAG Pipelines Norle, 5. de
E. L. deC W {"TPN" ), under which the Los Ramones [ Norte pipelims was built. On Novem ber
15, 2017, IEnova completed the acquisition of Pemex TR S0 percent interest in DEN, through
thus acquisition |Enova increased its ownership inberest in TAL from 25 percent 1o 340 pereent.
DEM became a wholly owned, conaolidated subsidiary of TEnova. Flease nefer to ™Note 113

L32 Power segmee!
The Company’s substdianies incheded in thas reportable segment are:

a  TDM, a 625-MMW natural-gas-fired, combined-cyck power gencration facility located in the

city of Mexicall, Baja Califomnin, i engaged im the generation and sale of electncty. In August
2001, TDM received a favorable resclution by the CRE to generate and export elactricity.

O Jumeary 1, 2013 (with an effective date of January 1, 2002), Sempra Genemtion, LLC
(" SOEN) amd TDM entered mio o new commencial agreement, for which TR delivers all
of s power cupat directly 1o the Californen’s Independan System Cperator power grid
(CALROT) nthe UL 5. at the Mexieo border, and 3GEM provides marketing, scheduling and
cdigpatch services for TDM

InCctober 201 3, ES) began the construction of the 155 MW first phase of the wind generation
pru,:cL which ix fully contracted by SDG&EE and stared operations in June 2015, The ES)
project s designed 1o provide up to 1,200 MW of capacity if fully developed. In June 2014,
the ESJ wind project entered intoa $240.0 million loan sgrecmant to [inance the construction
praject. The credit focihines mature om June 340, 2033,

IENOVA

The loan agreement also provides for a 5317 million letter of credit fcility, B3 also entered
into # separate Mexican Peso denominated credit fmcility for up to 3350 milhon U5, Dollar
aquavalent to fund the VAT of the project. On December 23, 2015, ESJY repaid and canceled
the 1otal credit facilty related 1o VAT, Please refer to Mote 10.2.

& In December 2016, the Company acquired 100 percent of the aquaty interests of Ventidia's
wind farm, located in the State of Mueve Leon, approctimately 56 ko from the 175 bonder Tt
i5 powered by B4 murbines, provides an aggregate of up 1o 252 MW of generating capacy,
amxd 15 connected to CFE's transmussion lne. Ventika's location has one of the strongest wind
rescurces in the country, It stanted epertions in April 2016, and substantially all of Ventika's
generation capacily 15 contracied o privale companies throwgh 20-vear, ULS. Diollar-
denominated, energy supply agreemenis.

LA Covporale segrvert!

The Corporate Segment holds interesis in the transporiation, storage, distribution, and regasification
of gas, and hold interest in power generation operations in Meaco.

@ Sempra Servicios Encrgetices, 5. de K L. de C. V. ("55E7) is a hokling company that invests
in allilimted companies in the clecincty and natural gas industries.

b Fundacion [Enova, A, C., was establizhed 2 g non-profit organi sation.
Signilicant sccounting policics
~F Setement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in sccordance with Internaticnal Financial
Reporting Standards (“TFRS™) as msued by the Infemational Accounting Standards Board {“TASE™).

LE ]
LR

Tiasis wf preparation

The Comsolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis excepl for centamn
frmameial instruments, ard asaets and liabilites recognized upon business combinations that are measured at
revahsed amounts of fair values at the end of reperting pened, ss explaned i the accounting policies below.
(Flease refer to Mote 11

@&  Hisloncal cost

Historical cost 15 generally based on the {ar value of the consideration given i exchange for goods
and services

b Fatrvalie

Fair value (“FWV") iz the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in
an orderly tmnsaction between markel participants at the menstrenant date, repandless of whether that
price iz directly observable or estimated using another valuation teehnique. [n estimatmg the far value
of an asse or a lability, the Company tnkes into account the charncteristics of the aset or linbality if
market participants woubkd ke those charactenistics into aceount when pricing the assel or habality at
the measurenent date. Fair value for mensurement andior disclosure purposes in these Consolidated
Financial Statements i determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that ane within the
soope of IAS 17, Leases and measurement that have some similartics for far value but are not Gur
vabhae, such as net reabizable vahue in [AS 2, Javerrtories or value muse inLAS 36, Impaiment of asseds.
In addition, For firancial reporting purposes, foir value measurements are categonized into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree 10 which the inputs to the far value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs 1o the fair value measurement in 115 entirety, which are described as follows:

»  Laevel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjustad)) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company ¢am access @l Lhe measurement dile;
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*  Level 2 inputs are inpuns, other than quoted prices included wihin Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or habahty, enther directly or indirectly; and
#  Level 3 inpats are urchservable inputs for the asaet or liabality.

Conselickaton of Fianancial Statemrents

2.3 1. Bans of conzalulzion

The Consolidated Financial Sistements of 1Enova incorporate the Financial Statements of all entiies
where it mamtains contrel (its subsidinries). Contral is achieved when the Company:

= Has power over the investee,
* s exposed, or has nghts, to vanablke returns from its involvement with the investee; and
= Has the abality towse its power 10 affect iis retums.

The Company reassesses whether or not controls an investee if [cts and circumstances indicate that
there are chamges o one of mare of the three control elements that were listed above.

When the Compary has less than a majonty of the vobing mghts of an investee, it has power over the
invéstes whien the voting rights are sufficient o grve it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilsterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether ar not the Company”s voung nights inoan myestee are sufficient to give it power, inchiding:

*  Thesize of the Com pany 's holdirg of votirg rights relative o the sizeand dispersien of boldings
of the other vote holders;

+  Potertial voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

+  Rights arismg from cther contractual amingements; and

+ Any additienal acts and eircumstances that indicate that the Company has, of doss not have,
the current ahility o direct the relevant activities al the time that decimons need 1o be mmde,
including voting patberrs at previous sharcholders™ meetings.

Consclidation of a subsidiary begirs when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company leses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and exponses of o subsidsary
acquired or dispessd of duning the year are included in the Corsolidated Statement of Profit and Cther
Compechensive Income (MOCI™) from the dote the Company gains control until the date when the
Company censes W control the subsichary,

Profit or kess and each component of OCT ane atiributed o the owners of the Company and 1o the non-
controlling interests. Total compeehenanve income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and 1o the non-contrelling interests even if this results n the non-control ling imerests having
a deficit balance:

When necessary, adjusimenis are made to the Financial Statements of subsidianes to barg their
acecunting policies in line with the Company scoounting policies.

All intercompany transactions, assets and labilites, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
o transactions between members of the Company are elminsted in full on consolkdation.

22

Compamy

Cias Segment:

Ecogas Mexaco, 8. de R. L. de OV
PE Intermational Canada, 5. de K. L. de C. V.
Senvicios DGN de Chiluahua, 5. 4. de C V0

Grscwtucto Rosarito, 8 de R L. de © W ("Merged in 2007
with GAFT)

Transportadar de Gas Natural de Bags Califorma,
S.de B L. de C. W ("Memped in 2017 with GAP™)

[Emcva Gasoducios Moxaeo, 5 de B Lode TV

Casoductode Apuapriets, § de R L de TV,

[Emcova Gasodustos Holding, 5. de R. L. de C. W

[Emova, S.d: R L. deC. W

Ernergia Costa Azul, 5, de R L, de C, V. and Subsidiary

[Encva Marketing, 8 de B L de C. Y,

Dhsctos ¢ Infracstociuea Manina, 5 de B L de TV

[Enova Gas, 5. deR. L.de C. V.

[Emova Pipelines, 8. de B, L. de C. V.

Gasoddwetos de Tamaulipas, 5. de B L. de T W

Gasoductos del Nopoesle, 5. de R L. &, W,

Transporiadom del Nowte SH, 5, de B L, de C. V.

TDFE 5. de R L.deC. ¥

[hactos v Energeticos del Suregte, 8 de B, L. de . V.

Casoductos del Sureste, 3. de R L de C. W

Gasoductos Servicios Subholding, 5. de B L. de O W

Crasowhectos Ingemena, 5. de K. L. de O0W,

Casoductos Servicuos Conporatives, 8 de B L. de C. V.

Giasodhetos Servicios Coaporativos v de Administrecion, S de B
L.d=C W,

Dhactos y Enczgetices del Morle, 5. de R L. de T, V.

[Emova Infresstruciura Marina Holding, B3

[Enova Petroleumn Liguds Holding, BV,

ESJ Renevable 1L S de B L, d2C. W,

[Emova Gasodwctos Holding, LLC

Semngra Fooges Holdings, 11O

[Enova Petrolilfenos Holdings, 5. d=R. L. de C. W,

| Emcva Petroliferos 101, 5. de R. L. de C. V.

I Encva Petrolifenos 1V, 5 e B L. de W

Fower segmenl;

Temmoelecinca de Mexocali, 5 de B L. de C. V, and Subsidanes
Controladora Sierra hearez, 5. de K. L. de C. V.

[Encea Ventika Holding, BV

[Enowa Ventika Holding 11, B.Y

Orwnership percentuge
m7y
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IEnova’s equity ownership in subsiciaries for the vear ended December 31, 2017 is as fellows:
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Company Orwnership pereentage

w7
Enowa Ventika Medso, 5 de B, L. de O, 4 ek}
|Eneva Ventika Meaca 11, 8. de B L. de OV 100000
Ventika, SAP L d=C Y 108,60
Ventika I, S AP L deC. W 10000
ES) Renovable |, 8, d= R L, de C. V. )00
ES) Renovalde L 3. de B L. de O W 10000
IEneva Renewable Holdng I, B, Y. 10000
IEnesa Renewable Holdng 11, B. W 100000
Energia Siera uwrez 1, UL 5. LLC 10000
Emergia Sverrn Juarez 2, 8. de B L. de C. W 10000
Energia Svermra Juirer Haldmg, 5 de B Loda % 100000

Corporale segment:
Sempra Sanioss Enapetioe, 5. de K Lode C W wET
Fandacion [Enova, A, C, loo.an
Classification of costs amd expesses

The costs and expenses are presented according to their function because this i the practice of the industry
in which the Company operales,
Crvh e cash eguivelents

Cash and cash equivalents consist mainly of bank deposits in checking accounts and short-temm investmends
that are highly ligued and easaly convertible into cash. mature within three months as.of ther acquisibon date,
and ame subgect to low nsk of material changes in value. Chsh 13 staied st nominal value snd cash equivalends
are valued a1 faer value, any fluctuations in value are recognized in the Consolidated Statenents of Profit

Restricted cash comprises the amounts of cash ol escrows used by the Company 1omake payments of certan
operating coats, which are guaranteed until the completion of the projects. It also comprises the restricted
crsh uneler the project [inancing struclure,

Khort-ferm invesimenty

Short-term investments corsist mainly mmoney market funds, haghly Liquad and easily corvertible into cash,
miaburng within three months as of their acquisition date, which are subject to immaterial value change nsks
andl are maintained for purpodes ather than operation.

MNatural gag nvenfories

Liguetied matural gas myventory is recorded at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Costs of mventones
are determined on a first-in-first-oul basis. Net realimhble value represents the estimated selling pnce for
imventories less all estimated costs neeeszary to sell.

Leasing

Leases fre clasaified as finance beases whenever the terms of the lease tranafer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ewnership of the benefits, All other leases are clissified as operating leases,

281, The Compang as lessar

Amouriis peyable by bessees under finance leases afe recognized as receivabiles at the amount of the
Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is distributed in the acoounting periods
toreflect a constant periadic rate of returm on the Compeany*s net investment with respect of the lexses.

Rertil meome From operating lases is recognized on a straght-line nsis over the term of the relevant
lense, Iniinl direct costs mewrred in negotinting amd armanging an opersling lease are akbad 1o the
carrying amount of the keased asact and recognized on a strajght-line basis over the kase term.

202 Company as lessea

Assets held under finamce leases are initially recopnized as assets of te Compary at their fair value
it the inception of the lease, o if lower, the present value of the mininum lease pavments. The
corresponding Liability (o the lessor = meluded in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Pesition
s & firance lease obligation

Leasze payments are apportionsd between finance charges and reduction of the leaze obligation 20 as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are
recogmiesd wnmadiately in profit, unless they ane directly atinibutable o quabfving assots, in which
case they are capitahized in socardance with the Company's accounting policy on bomowing costs
(Plesse reler o MNote 218} Cortargent rentals e recognized s cxpenses in the pervasds inwhich they
are meurmed

Crperaling lease payments ane recogrsed as an expense on a stranghl-line base over the lease Lerm,
except where another systematic basis is mone representative of the time pattem in which aconoem ic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under opemting leases ane
recognized as an expense in the period m which they are incummed.

Inthe event that income incentivesreceved for holding operating keases, such ncentives are recognized
ez & leability. The apgregats benefit of incentives s recognized a a reduction of rental expense on g
straight line basis except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattem in
which ceonome benelils from the leased assel are consumed

Investmenis in joint ventures

A joim venture is 2 joit arrangement whereby the partics that kave joint control of the asrangenent lave
rights 1o the nel mssets of the poinl amangement. Jont control 15 the contractually agreed shanng of controd
of an arrargement, which exista only when decizions about the relevant activities requing umanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results, assets and habilities of the joim venture are incorporated in these Consolidated Financaal
Statements wwing the equity method of accounting, excepd when the investment. of @ portion thereof, is
elnzsified ns hald for anle, mowhich cose it s accountad for m accondance with IFRS 5, MNon-curment aioes
held for sale and discomtimied operations. Under the equity method, an investment in a jomd veniure is
inally recognazed m the Consolidated Statement of Frrancial Position at cest and adiusted therenfier 1o
recognize the Company’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of the joant venmure.

When the Company s share of losses of a joint venhare exceeds the Compary s interest in that joint veribure
(which includes any bong-term interests that, in substasee, foms pan of the Companny’s net investment in the
Jomk venlurel, the Company deconlinees recognizing ms share ol further bsses, Addiwnal losses ane
recognized only 1o the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
pavments on behalf of the point venure,

An mwestmient ina et verture 1s aceounted for using the equuity method from the date on which the investes
becoemes a joiml venture. On aoquizition of the investrmant in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment aver the Company s share of the net Fair valuee of the wentifiable assas and lishilites of the
irvestee 15 recognized as goodwill, which i included within the carrving amount of the investment.

IENOVA
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Arty esoess of the Company”’s share of the net Gir value of the identifiabbe assets and linlalities over the cost
ol the: imvestment, aller reassessment, i recogniaed mmmeshately inprodin in the year m which the inyv estment
k= acaquined

The requirements of TAS 39, Fanancial instrmments recagimiton s mreastiremen, are applied o determ i
whether it 15 necessary 1o recognize any impawment loss with respect to the Company 's investment in a joint
verture. When mecedsary, the entire carmyimg amiount of the rvestment (includmeg goodwill) ia tested For
empazrment in ascondance with LAY 36, Impairmant of dssets | asn single asset, by comparing it recoverble
amount (hugher of valse n wse and fair vaboe less costs bo sell) with s camying amount. Any imparment
bees recognized forms part of the carmying amount of the mvestment. Any reviersal of that impairment loss is
resognized inacoondance with LAS 36 tothe cxftent that the recoverable amount of the investment subse quently
iTPCTe A,

The Compary discontinues the we of the equity method from the date when the invesiment ceases to be a
it vertre, or when the imvestrent is classified as held for sale. When the Campany retairs an mienest in
the former joint venbure and the retained inderest 12 a financial asset, the Company mexsures the retaired
interast ot fuir value ot that date and the fur value is regarded as ats fur value on inftiad recognition in
acoordance with LAS 39, The differemce between the carrving amount of the joint venture at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and sy proceeds from despasing
of & part interest in the jont venture i ineluded in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
Juint venture, In addition, the Com pany acoounis for all ameunts previowsly recegnieed in OCT in relation
tor that joint venture on the sane basss as would be requared if that point venture bad directly dsposed of the
relited assets of labilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previeusly recognized in OCT by that jeim verture
winalel be reclnssified to profit on the disposal of the reluted nssets or hahalities, the Company reclissifies the
gain of less [rom equity to profit (as a reclasafication adjwtment) when the equity method 15 discomtinuwel.

The Company continues touse the equity method when an investment in an associale becomes an iy estm cnt
I & Joanil venlume Or 4n myesiment imoa Joml venure becomes an imvestmenl o an associate |here 15 no
remeasurement o fair vahee upon such changes in cwnership interests.

When the Comparny reduces its ownership inberest in a jeint venture bt the Com pany contirmses to use the
equity method, the Company reclassalies 1 profit the properion of the gain or loss that had previously been
reognized m OO regurding that reduction m ownership mierest i that gam or loss would be reclassified 1o
profit onthe disposal of the related assels o liabalities,

When the Company conducts transactions with joint ventures, non-realized profic and losses are ¢liminated
at the Company's ownership percentage m the jomnt veniure,

Business eombinaiion and aisefs aoqiisition

A company shall determine whether a transacton or other event s a buniness combenation by apphang the
definition of IFRS 3 Business Combimnations, which requires that the assets acquired and hisbalities assumed
carstiute a business, 1T the asets acquired ane not a business, the Com pany shall accoumt for the irarmsaction
or other event as an asset poquisitLen.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the sequisition method. The consideration transferred in
A husiness combination & measused at fwr value, which is caleulated as the sum of the poguisition-date i
vihses of the assets wansferred by the Company, linbilnies incurred by the Company 1o the farmer owners
of the acquiree and the equity nterests issued by the Compary in excharge for control of the acguires.
Acquistion-rebated costs are genemlly recognized in profit or loss as incurred

Atthe acquesition date, the identifinble assets acquired and the Labilities assumed are recogmazed at their fur
vahse, except for:

#  Deferred tax assets o liabalities, and assets or liabilities related to employes berefit arrangements
are recognized and measured in aceordance with TAS 12 fncome Taves aned TAS 19 Emploves
fiengfity, respectively,
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*  Asmels (or disposal groups) tat are clussified s held for sale in sccordance with IFRS 5 Non-
cnrmeni Assels Held for Sale and Disoomtmmed Cperations are measuned n secordance with that
Starsdand.

Gropdwil] iz messured a2 the excess of the =um of the consideration iranaferred, the amount of any non-
canitrelling enterests m the acquiree, and the fair value of the soquirer's previously held equity imterest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amourts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilitses assumed. If, after reassessment, the net af the acquisibon-date amounts of the idenifable pssets
acquired and Liabilites sssumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transfemed, the amount of amy non-
controlling interests in the acquinee and the fair value of the acquirer’s previcosly held interest in the acquiree
(af any), the excess is recognized immedeately in profit as a bargam purchase gain.

Mon-controlling ierests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders 10 a proportionate share
of the Companys netassets in the event of liquidition may be matially mexsured either ot fidr value or at the
non-contralling interess’ proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquires’s identifinble net
assets. The choiee of messurement basis is made on & ransaction-by-transsction basis. Other types of non-
contrelling mterests are measured at far value or, when apphcable, on the basis specified m another [FRS

When the considerstion ansferred by the Company ma business combarmtion includes asscls or liablites
resultmg (rom o contingent conskleration armangement, the contingent conswderaion 15 mensured at s
acquisition-date G value and included as pan of the consideration trarsferred in a business combination
Changes in the fur value of the contingent consderation that gqualily as measurement period sdjustments ane
adjpwsted retrospective ly, with comesponding adustmaenta against poodwill. Measurement period adstments
are asdyustments that anse from additional miform aton obtaned durmg the measurement period (which cannet
excead one vear from the acquisition date ) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date

The subsequent ascounting for changes in the fair valuee of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
a5 measurement period adpestaients depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
considerstion that 15 classified as equity 15 not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement 15 accounted for within equity, Other contimgent conssderation that s classified as an asset or a
habality = remeasured gt subseguent reporting dates n accordance with 1AS 3%, or [AS 37 Provisions,
Cantegent Liakilities and Conitigent Assels, as appropriate, with the comesponding gain or bess being
recognized m profn.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Company's previously held equity interest in the
acquires i3 rernensured 10 1i3 Acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, iF ary, i3 recognized
in profit Amounts arsang frem ingerests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date, that have previowsly
been recognized in OC1 are reclassified to profit where such trestment would be appropriate if thal inberest
were disposed of

If the initial accounting fior a business combanation 12 incomplete by the end of the reporting period n which
the combination cocurs, the Company reports provisienal amounts for the tems for which the accounting 1=
incomplets. Those provisionnl amounts are adjusted during the m sasurement period (zee abowve), or additiorsl

exised a the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date.
Cromawill

For the purposes of mypasrment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to-each of the Company ‘s cash-pencrating units
that are expected Lo berefit from the synergies of the combination

A cash-generatng unil w which gocdwill has been allocsted is tested for imparmen anmully, of moege
freguently when there is mchcation that the uml may be impaired. [1 the recovenable amount of the cash-
gencrating wnil is less than ils carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated [rst o reduce the carying
amoant of any goodwill allocatesd o the wnit and then to the other assets of the unit pro s based on the
camying amount of cach asset in the unit. Any impairment loas for goodwill i recognized directly in profit
or loss 1n the Consoldated Statement of Profit Anoimparment boss recognized for goodwill i mot reversed
in subsequent periods.
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Umn dispesal of the relevant cash-generating umit, the atnbulable amount of goodwill & included m the
deterenination of the profit on disposal.

Carbon allrwances

The Company has elected 10 account for carbon allowances, or emission allowances, (“CAs™) under the
inventory mode], whereby CAs are measured at a weighted-average cost. CAs allocated by & regulatory body
will have @ zero cost basis, CAs purchased at auction or [rom olher market participants are recorded 8 their
purchase pnce, and CAs acquired when the Company elects Lo physically setlle carbon [ulures are recorded
based on the setement price, The weighted-average cost of CAs consumed (1.¢., casbon emitted while power
iz penerated)) 5 charped to cost of revenoe of cach repoting penod. The CAs” camrying valoe = evaluated
under the “lower of cost or net realizble value™ approach. The CAs myventory 1s classilied as cther current
assels of other pon-current assets if it 1s expected Lo surrender the inventory within the term greater than one
year beginning at the Conselidated Statements of Financial Position date. The CAs” cash inflows and out{lows
ure classified 05 an operting activity in the Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows. (Please refer Note 204

Property, plant and ¢ quiparen !

Property, plant and equipment are presented in the Consalidatad Statements of Financial Peattion and recordad
a1 aequisition cost, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Acquisition eosts melude labor, material costs and construction service agreements.

The Company recognizes decommissioning habilities for the presemt value of liahalines of future costs
expected 10 be incurred when assets are retiresd from serviee, if the retirement process is legally required and
if a reasonable estimate of Fair value can be made

Property, plant and equipment include major expenditures for improvements and replacements parts, which
cxtend useful lives or increase capacity. Koulme mamtenance costs are cxpensed o neurmed.

Properties in the course of conatruction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carmed at cost,
sy recognized impairment loss, Cost includes professional fees and, for qualilying assets, bomowing
costs capitalized i accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are chassilied bo the
appropriate catepories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use
Deprecaation of these assets, onthe same basis as other properly assels, commences when theassals ane ready
for their inmended use,

Land iz not depreciated The buildings, squipment and other assets are stated at cost leas accumuolated
deprecmbion and aceumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation s recognized 1o write-off the cost of assets {other than land and propertics under construction)
less thear residual values over their useful lives, usimg the strasght-hine methoad. The estimated useful hives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate acesunted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant snd equipment s derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to anise from the contmued wee of the asset Any gain of losz arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and 15 recogmized in prafin

Infangible nssets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and'or aasels acquisition and recognized separately from
goodwill and are initially recognized at their fair value a1 the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
ot )

Subsequent o initial recognition, intangible zssets acquired ina business combinationand or sssetsacquisition
are reporied at cost less aceurnulated amortization ard accumulated impairment los2es, on the same basis as
inangible assect= that are scquired separaely.
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Twpairmend of tangible and insrngible agiets fotker than goodwill)

At the end of cach reportang period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of s tangible and intangible
assets Lo determ ine whether there s any indication that those assets have sulfered an impairment loss. I any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset & estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impaimmient loss (1 any ). When 1t isnot possible 1o estimate the recoverable amount of an imcividual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-genorating unil to which the assct belongs. When
arcasonable and consistert basis of allocationcan be identified, corporate asacts are alsoallocated toindividual
cash-genemaling units, or otherwise they are allocated 1o the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonible and consestent allecation basis can be identified.

Intangible aasets with ndefinne vseful In'es and intangible nssets not yet available for use are tested for
imparrmeent at Jeast annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired

Recoverable amourt is the higher of fxir value less costs 1o 22l] and value m use. In assessing value 1n use,
the cstimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate thet reflects
current markel assesmments of the time value of money and the msks specific 1o the asel for which the
estmmates of future cash Nows have not been adjusted

I the recoverable amount of an assel{or cash-genemting unit)1s estimated to be bess tham its camying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. Animpairment
loss s recognized immediately in profil, unless the relevant assel is camed ot 8 revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss B ineated as a revaleation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or & cash-penerating unit)
i5 increasad o the revised estimate of ils reccverable amount, bul such that the increased carrying amount
should net exceed the camying amound thal would have been delermmned had no impamrment koss been
recognazed fof thenssat (or cash-generating unit) in prior vears, Areversal ol an impairment boss is recognized
immeciately m profil.

When non-current assets and deposal groups are classified as held for sabe, they are required 1o be messured
al the lowver of thear carrying amount and fair value bess costs to sell. The comparison of carry img amount and
Fair value less costs 1o sell is carried out at each reporting date while it continues 1o meet the held for sale
eritena. Asdesanbed m MNote 12, an mpairment less related to T has been recognized in the Consolwdated
Sternents of Profit

Fair walue is an estimate of the peice that would be received to sell an az2et of paid to transfer o hability m
an arderly transaction betwaen market participants af the mensurement date, Accordingly, again or loss could
arige omee an actual sale i completed

Now-current aszers class fled as held for sale and discontinned operations

Mon-current assets and disposal proups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recoversd
principally throwsh a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, This condition & regarded as mel
onby when the assel (or chaposal group) 15 svanlable for immedhate sale m ns present condition subpect only
fo terms thal arg waml and customany for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and #is sale is highly prebable,
Management mizst becommittad wihe sale, whichshould beexpectedioqualily For recogmibion asa compleled
aale within one year from the date of classification

When the Company is committed 10 a sale plan invelving boss of contred of a subsideary, all of the asscts and
lxarbniliines of that subssdiary are classified as held for sale when the critena described abov e are met, regardless
of whether the Company will retain a non-contrelling mierest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

When the Company 15 committed to a sale plan inwolving dispesal of an imvestment, or a portion of an
irvesiment, in an agsociate or joint venture, the investmernt or the portion of the rvestment that will be
dusposed of is clasified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, and the Company
discontinues the use of the equity method i relation 10 the portion that 1s classified a held for sale. Amy
retained portion of am investment in an associnte ora joint venture that has not been classified as held for sale
contnues 1o be accounted for using the equity method.
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The Compary discontimees the use of the equity method at the time of dispeaal when the disposal resulis in
the Company losing significant influence over the asaciate or joint ventuns,

Aduer the disposal takea place, the Coonpany accourils for amy retained interest in the associate or joing veniure
insecordance with LAS 3% unless the retained interest continues 1o be an associale ora poant ventuge, in which
case the Company uses Lhe equily method.

hoan-current sssets classified as held for sale are measured ag the lower of thear previous carmying amount and
fair vabue less costs bo sell.

Harrowing costs

Borrowing cests directly attnbutable to the acquisiion, construction or production of quah {yimg asssts, whach
are asscts that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those aseets, until 2uch time a2 the aseets are substantially ready for their irtended use
or sale.

Tothe extent thatthe Company generally berrows fundsand uses them for the purpose of obtaining s qualifyng
aset, the Company shall determiine the amount of bomrowing costs eligible for capatalization by applying a
copitalization rate Lo the expenditures on that asset. The capilaliztion rate shall be the weighted average of
the harrowing costs applicable to the borowings of the Company that are cutstanding during the period,
oibher than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining o qualifying siset. The amount of
borrewing costs that the Company capitalizes during a persod shall not esceed the amount of borrowing costs
it incurred durmg that peniod. For a relationship designated s cash flow hedging. none of the effects of the
dorivative ang included in capitalized interest

Investment income camed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deductad from the borrowing costs elagihle for capitalization

All ather borrowing cosis ane recognized in prafit in the period inwhich they are incurmed.
Emyplayee bemefits

Pavments to defined contribution retirenient benefit plars are recogrnized as an expense when employees
have rendered 2ervice entitling them io the contributions.

Tnaceordance with Mexican Labar Law, the Company provides senonity premmium bene fits o its employiess
uncler cortam circumstancss. These benelits consist of a onc-tme pavenent equivalent to 12 dayvs wages for
ench vear of service (a1 Lhe emploves’s most recent salary, but not o excesd twice the legal mimimum wage),
pavable to all employees with 15 of more vears of service, as well as o cemain emplovees terminated
involuntanly prios to the vesting of their senianty premium benefin

For defined benefit retirement plans, which include pension plans as well s its sensoniy premium benefits,
the: cost of providing benelins 1= deferminesd usimg the progected unit eredal method, wath actuanal valeations
hzing earried out st the end of each anmaal reparting, period. Remsasurement comprizing actusrial gains amd
loses and the effect of the changes on the (loor of the asset (i applicable), are mmeditely recogmzed n
the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position charged to the credit recognized in the Consolidated
Statements of Profit and OCT im the period in which they oceur,

Femensurenient recognized in OCT is reflected immediately in retained eamirgs and will net be reclassified
e profit or kess, The Company presents service costs within administrative and other expenses in the
Conaolidated Statements of Profit. The Company presents rwt imterest eoat within finance costs in the
Comolidoted Statements of Profit. The retirement benelit ebligation recegnized in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Pesition represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as of the end
of each reporting year,
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2001, Shavi-term and ather losg-ferm employee henefits and siainfory enyplopee profii shaving (P

A habality & recognized for benelils aceruing to emplovess in respect of wages and salanes, anmusl
leave and sick kave in the period the pelated service is rendered at the usdiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for thit service

Lanhilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits ane measured af the undiscounted
amount of the benelils expected to be paid in exchange for the related service and are presented n
other liabilities

Liabilities recognized in respect of ofher long-term employves benefits are measared at the presant
vitlue ofthe estimated fulure cazh outllows expocted to be made by the Company inrespect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date.

2,192 Sramdory emploves profit sharing

FTU & recerded inthe results of the vear inwhich it is incurred and is presented in operaling cxponscs
andd cost of sales line item in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Cther Comprehensive Income

Asresult of the 2004 Income Tax Law, as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 200 5, PTL 15 determined
based on taxable mcome, according 1o Section | of Article 9 of the that Law.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
8 past event, it = probabde that the Company will be required 1o settle the obligation, and a reliable cstimate
can be made of the aniount of the obligation.

The amount recognized a2 & provigion 15 the best estimate of the consideration requirad to setle the prezert
elbligation at the el of the reporiing period, taking inlo account the risks and uncentaintics surrounding the
chligation. When a provision is measured uaing the cash flows estimated to setile the present obligation, its
carryving amownl is the present value of those cash Dows (when the clect of the time value of money s
materaal)

When some or all of the economic benefits required 1o settle a provesion are expacted 10 be recovered from
a thurd party, a recervable s recogrized as an assel il 1615 virtual by certam thatl remmbursemend will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measused relmbly,

Flvgmetal instraments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party (o the contractual
provisons of the instrum ent

Financial assets and firancial Liabilities are instially measured at fair value. Transaction costa that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or msue of linancml assets and linancial lishalitics {other than Nnancial asscts
and financial lsabilities st Eairvalue through profnt) ane added 1o or deducted from the fair value of the financial
esaets of financial lakalities, as appropreate, on initial recogrition. Transaction coats directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liskalities af fair value through profit or loss are recogmized
imm ediately in profst

2201, Amortized cost
The amortized oot of a financial asset or Liability is the amount st which the financial asset ar liabiliny
15 measured st imibal recogmibion, minus pnncipal repayments. plus of mims the cumulstive

amortization wang the effective interest method of any difference between the nitial amoun
recognized and the matunty amount, minus any reduction for impaimment.

The effective mierest method 15 9 method of calculating the amortized cost of a debl mstrument or
financial Lability and of allocating mierest income of expense over the relevant period.
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The effective interest rne is the rate that exctly discounts estimated future cash receipts of payments
{inclhuding all fees and points pard or received that form an integral pan of the effective inmerest mite,
transaction costs and other premams or discounts) through the expected life of the debt Instrument,
or, where appropriate, a sharter périod, 1o the net carrying amount on matial recognition.

222 Fair value

Fair value is defined in MNote 2.2 5.

Financial ases

Firancial assets are classified into the following categaries: financial assets "at fair value through profn or
bess® (“FVTPL"), irvestments prezenved at matunity Ninancial assets 'available for sale® CAFS™) and 'loans
andrecervables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the fimancial assets and 15 determined
at mitial recognition. All purchases or sales of linancial asseis made routinely dentified and rem ovesd based
on the wade date. Purchases o sales regularly are those purchases or sales of limancial asscts thal requare
dehivery of assels within the time frame established by regulation or custom m that markel

222 Effective interest rate mefaod

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debit irstrument and
of allocating the interest income of erest cost dunng the relevant pened The clfective terest rate
12 the rate that dizcounts estimated future cash recerpis {including all fees and basia pointa paid or
received that oo an integrml pan of the elfective interest rate, tansaction costs and other premiums
or diseounts) dunng the expected lifie of the debt instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period
o the net carrying amount on infsal recogntion

2222 Fingncial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FYTPL when the [inancial asset ks either held for trading or it 15
designated asm FYTPL

A financial asset is classafied as held for mading if:

+ Tt has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

= Onomitial recognition it is pan of a portolie of kenbified Brancil mstruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profis-taking, or

+«  [tiza derivative that = nol desspnated and effective as a hedaing mstrument.,

A (mancial &sset other than a financial aset held for rading may be desigraied as st FVYTFL upon
inatinl recognition if, certaim conditions are met. The Company has not destgnated any financial assets
asa FYTPL.

Financial sssets st FVTPL are stated ot fmr value, with any gams or ksses aresing on remeasurement
recognized in profit or loas. The set gain o kbas recopnized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or mierest enmed on the financial asset and 15 mclheded m the cost of revenses and 1 other gnns and
loases line ttems in the Corsolidated Statements of Profit. Fair value s determined in the manner
described in Mote 2.2 b

Held-to-matanty investments are nof-denvative finarcial assets with fixed or determinable peymenits
and [ooed maturity dates that the Company kas the positive intert and ability 1o hold 1o maturity.
Subsequent 1o mitial recognition, held-to-matunty myestments are measured at smortized cost usmg
the effective interest method less any imparment. The Company does et hold any held-to-matursty
[mancial nesels
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2 224, Loans and recetvables

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial sssets with (ixed or determinable payments that
are pot quoted in an active markel. Loans and receivables (including trade and other recevables and
amounts due from unconsolidated alfibates) are measured alamorized cost wing the ellectve mienes
method, bes= any impairment.

Irterest meoms is recognized by apphyving the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables
when the recognition of interest would be immaterial,

2225 [oypartvenert! o vt aesels

Finamecial as2ets ane subject 10 impairement tesis ol the emd of each reporting period. Tt is conasdered
that financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that as a result of ane or mone
events that cccurred afler the mital recogmition of the fmancil assel, the estimated Muture cash (kws
of the [nancial asset lmve been allected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could inclode:

Significan financial difficulty of the Eswver of counterparty,

Mor-payment of interest or prmcipal,

It is probable that the bomrower will enter bankrupiey or financial reonganizmtion, o

The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset becauze of inancial difficuliies.

-

The camying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impaimment loss directly for all financial
asels, excepl for accounts receivable where the carrving amount is reduced through wn account of
allowance for doubtful accoumts. When arecenable 15 uncollectible, it is remoncesd from the estimate
Subsequent recoveries ol mmounts previcusly wntlenofTbecome claimsaganst the estimate. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recogmized m the Consolidated Sttement of
Profit.

When non-curmen asses and disposal groups are classified as held for sale, they are required to be
measured at the lower of their carmying amount and Fair wvaloe leas costs to sell. The comparizon of
arrying amoant aned fair valse less costs to sell 15 carmed ot 81 each reporting date while 1t continues
to meet the held for sale cniteria. A= described in Wote 12, an impairment loss has been recognized
relabed to TDM i the Comsadidhied Ststements of Profil.

Fair valee iz an estimate of the price that would ke received to 2ell an assst or paid to transler a
liahility in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Accordingly,
a gain of losa could arise once an actual sake is completed.

2226 Demcognition of financial assrts

The Company derecognizes a [imancial azs21 only when the contractual nghts tothe cash Nows rom
the s=set expine, of when it tranefers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewands of
ownership of the msset 1o another entity, 1T the Company neither transfers nor retaims substantzally
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues 1o control the transtemed asset, the Company
recognizes it retained interest in the azset and an associated habality for smounts it may have bo pay.
I the Comipany retams substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asmel, the Company contines to recopnize te linancial aseet and also recognizes a collateralized
borrewing for the proceeds receaved,

If & fnancial assel is derecognioed, the difference betwoen the book value of the asset and the
compersation received 15 recogmized n the Consolidaled Stalements of Profit
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223, Financinl iabilifies and equily instrumenis 224, Derivative financial insramenis

2231, Clasxificasion as debl or equily

Diebt and equity imstruments 1ssued by the Company are classified as either fmancial labilites or as
equity in sccordance with the substance of the contractual amangements and the definions of a
fmamcial labiliy and an equity matrument.

2232 Equily msrrumanrs

A equity instrument is any coniract that evidences a residual mierest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilites. Equity instruments issuad by the Company are recogmzed at the
proceeds received, net of direct 1sue costs

Repurchase of the Company s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equaty.
Mo gain or loss 15 recognized noprofit on the purchase, sale, 155ue or caneellation of the Comipany's
own equily instruments.

223 3 Financial lfabilites
Firancial liskilitics are classified as cither financial habilities at FYTPL or other financial liabalities.
avddid b Fanaercial Gabalinies af FYTPL

Fimancial lmbilities are classified as ai FVYTPL when the irmncial lability = cither held for
trading or it t= designated as st FYTPL.

A finamcial liabiity 15 classified a5 held for tading if

= It has been scquired mamly [or the purpese of repurchasing it in the near tam, or

* s pan ofa portfolioof identified financanl instruments that are managed 1ogether
and for which there is evidenee of a recent pattern of making profits in the short
term; or

+  Iiis adervative that 1s not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A limamcial hability other than a financial hability held for trading may be designated a5 at
FVWTPL upon initial recopnation if, certain conditions are met The Company has mot
desigrmted any firancial linbilities as ot FVTPL

Financial liabilitses at FYTPL are stated at Gaw value, with any gains of losses ansing on
rem easurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or boss recognized in profig or boss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial linhility and is incheded in the “other gains
and losses” line dem in the Consobidated Statements of Profit. Fair value s deteommned as
describoed i Mote 24,

3,23.3.2, Other financial fiahilities

Other fnancaal habilises (ncluding borrowings, due to unconsolidated affibates, trade
payahles and cusiomers deposits) are subsequently measured at amortzed cost wsing Lhe
clilective interest method

2,23 3.3 Derecagnilion of fimancial Kebilittes

The Company derecognizes (inancial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are dischanped, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial habality derecogmized andl the consideration pad and payable 15
recognized in profit

ta
s

The Company enters mio dervvative financeal instruments to redusce ils expasure 1o risks. These instruments
are negotiated with institutiona of recognized firancial strengthand when trading limits bave been established
for each institution. The Company s policy is to camy out tiinsactions with dervative financial instruments
for the purpese of off sctiing its exposure to such nsks throwgh rsk management. Further datails of dervative
finamecial instrumenis are disclosed in Noete 24,

The Company recognizes all asseta or liabilities that arise from traresctions with derivative financial
instruments af fuir value on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Positton, regardless of its intent for
holding them.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered ima and are
subsequenily remneasured wo their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain o loss s
recognized in profit or koss in the same line as the hedged tem affects profit or koss for denvatves that are
econome hedges.

224, 1. Embedded derivatives

Dervatives embedded in non-denvatnve host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their
risks and characteristics are not closely related 1o those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FYVTPL.

2242 Crwin nse exempion

Contracts that are entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a
nmon-linancial item 1n accordance with the Compary's expected purchase, sale oF wisge requaremenils
Fall withan the “own wse™ (or “namial purchase or sale™) exemption. Under this scope axemption,
ordinary phyzical supply arrangements are excluded from derivative accounting treatment.

Hedge accounting

The Company designates centain bedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded denvatrves and
non-derivative with respect to foreign cummency risk. ether as fair value hedges, cash flow hedges. or hedges
of & nét investment in a ransachion forergn, The hedge of the fereign cumency risk of a firm commitment 15
accounted for @ a cash (ow hedge.

For its hedging mstruments, the Company documents the relationship between the hedging imstrument and
the hediged item at the inception of the hedpe relationship, along with its risk management objectives and its
sirategy for unleriaking vamous hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the imception of the hedge and on an
ongong basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsating
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged mem attributable to the hedged sk

225 1 Cash flow hedges

The effectve portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are desagnated and qualify as
cash Mow hedges is recognized m OCT ard accumulated under the beading of cash Mlow hedging
reserve. The gain or loss relating 1o the ineffective portion 15 recognized immediately in profit.

Amounts previously recognized in O] and sccumubated in equity are reclassilied o profit in the
veurs when the hedged tlem ks recogmized m profit, mthe same hine of the Consolulated Sttements
of Profit as the recogrized hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast trarsaction results in
the recognition of & non-financal asset ar a non-firancial liablity, the gains and losses previously
recogrized i OCL and sccumulated in equity are trans{emred from equity and included in the inatial
measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Hedpe accounting = discontinued when the Company revolkea the hedgimg relationship, when the
hedging instrument expines of is sold, termiratad, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies For
hedge accounting.



Ay gain or boss recogmized in OCT and accumulated in equity st thal ime remains in equiy and is
recegnized when the forecast tminsaction 15 ultimately recognized in profit. When g forecast
tramsaction 15 no lomger espected 1o ocour, the gam of loss sccumulated in equity 1B recognized
immediately in profi

2252 Fair value hedges

Changes in the [ir value of derivatives that are desigrated and qualify = fair value hedges are
recognized in profi immedaately, wogether with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liabality that are atnbutable tothe hedged nsk. The change m the fair value of the bedging irstrument
and the change i the hedged nem attrabutable 10 the hedged risk are recognized in the line of the
prof or ks consolwdaled slatements of related o the hedgesd 1tem.

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when the Company revokes the hedging relationship, when the
hedging mstrumsent expires or B sold, ferminated, or exercied, or when it no longer qualifics for
hedge accounting. The fir value adjustment to the carryimg amount of the hedged item ansing rom
the hedged risk is amortized to profit or loss from that date.

22, Thaxalion

Incame Tax expense represents the sum of the current and deferred 1t
2261 Current

Cusrent income tax is recognized i the results of the vear in which it 15 incurred,
222 Deferred tces

Dieferred tax i recopnized on temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and
liabalities in the Consolidated Firancial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used n the
computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilites are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Delerred tax assets are generally recogmized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that i1 15 probable that taxable profns will be available agamst which those
deductible temporary differences can be wiilized Such deferred 1o asets and linhalities are o
recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognation {other than in a business
combanation) of assets and liabilitkes in & transsction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred 1ax lmbilfties are not recogrized if the temporary difference
anses {rom the mital recogrition of goodwill,

Deferred tax labilnies are recognized for taxable temporany differences associated with investiments
in subaidiaries and associstes, and interests in joint ventores, except where the Company i able to
contral the reversal of the temporary dilference and it is probable thar the temporary difference will
niot reverae in the foresceable future. Deferned tax assetsarsing from deductible tem porary differences
assocmied with such investments and inberests are only recognized (o the cxdent that it is probable
that there will be suffictent wxable profis against which to utilize the benefits of the temparary
differences and they are expected o reverse in the fercsocable future.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets isreviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
tor the extent that it is no langer probable that sufficient mxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax Labilkies and asscts are measured at the 1ax rates that are expecied to apply in the period
in which the liakility & setiled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and s laows) that kave been
enncted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting vear.

The mensurement ol deferred t liabalities and assets reflects the b consegquences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting peniod, Lo recover or
settle the carmying amount of fs asscts and labulitics.
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2,263 Current and deferred tae for the pear

Curment and deferred tax are recognized m profit or kes, except when they relate 10 ilems that are
recognized inOCL or directly inequity, mwhichease, the current and deferred taxare alsorecognized
im O] or directly i equity respectively. Whene current tax of deferred tax arses from the initsal
aceounting for 8 busimess combination, the tax ¢ffect 15 included in the sccounting for the business
commbimation

2264 Tax omr assaix

The assets 1o (" TMPACT) axpected 1o be recoverable 15 recorded as @ 13 credin and = presenied in
the balance sheet in the deferred taxes line slem,

Revestue recognifion

Fevenue 15 meamared at the fair valoe of the consideration recemved or recenvable. Bevenue s reduced for
cutimabed customer returns, rabates ard ather similar allowances

Revenue iz recognized 1o the exent that it 15 probable that the coonomic benefits will Mow to the Company
and the revenue ¢an be measured reliably, Revenue includes amounts recervable for goods and services
provided in the normal courae of business, net of discounts, reberies; VAT,

2271 Sale of goods

Reverme from the sale of goods 15 recogmzed when the goods are delivered snd titles have passed,
at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

+  The Company ke trarefemed to the bayer the significant rigks and rights of oamership of the
gownls,

+  The Company retaing neither contimuing managerial invoelvement to the degres uszally
associaicd with ownership nor clfecuve control over the goosks sold,

+  The amount of revenue can be mensured reliably;

= It is probable that the cconomic benelits associated with the ranssction will fow 1o the
Campany. and,

+  The costs incurred of te be incwrred inrespect of the transaction can be reliably measured.

The following revenue streams related 1o the sale of goods are recognized in accordance with the
previous accounting policy as disclosed in more detail bebow:

+  Bales of natural pas and the relaled coste are recognized upon the trarsfer of title, which
comeides with the physical delivery of natural gas to customers; and,
+  Power gemeration fevenues ane recopnized when generated power ie delivensd.

2.27.2 Remdering of services

Reverme from service contracks 1o provide services 15 recognizesd by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract. The stage of completion of the contract & determined as followsa:

+  Service fees included in the price of the prodwsts sold are recopnized by reference o the
propoction of the total cost of the service provided For the product sold; and,

+  Revenue from confracts is recognized based on the rates provided to the extent mcarred in
working hours amd direst costs.

The tollowing revenue sireams relaied to the rerderimg of services are recognized in accardance with
the previous ascounting policy as disclosed in mare detial below:

= Stomge and regasification capacity are recognized based on reservation and usage fees under
termiral capacity agresments and nitrogen mjeclion service agresments,
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*  Revenues and related costs and expenses from gas digtribution and transporiation are
recognised when the distribution or transpantation servioes are rendered,

+  Revenues also include net realized gains and losses and the net change i the fair value of
unrealized gains and losses on derivative contracts for natural gas, and,

»  Revenues and costs related 1o admimstrative and other services are recogmized when such
services are rendered acoording to the related service contracts.

2275 Imterest income
Interest income from a financial asset is recogrized when it ks probable that the economice benefits
will flow to the Compamy and the amount of income can be measured relinbly. Interest income is
nocroed on a imely basis, by reference 1o the prncipal outstanding and a1 the effective imerest rate
applicable, which = the rate that exactly discount= estimated future cash receipiathroughthe expected
life of the fmancial asset to that asset's net carrymng amount on initeal recegnition

2204, Rewidal ncome

The Company’s policy for recopnition of revenue from finance leases is described in Note 20,1,

228 Foreipn currencies

The Company's functional currency is the U3, Dollar, except for ECO, PEI and SDGN in its Gas segment,
and Fundacion IEscva in the corposate segment, which iz the Mexican Peso.

In preparing the Consalidated Financial Statementsof each individual subsidiany of the Com pany, transactions
in currencics other than the subswharics functional currency (LS. Dollar or Mexican Peso) are recognised
al the mtes of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monctary items denominated in forcign currencies are tanslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetany items carnad at fair value that are dencminatad in fareagn cusrencies are translated at the mtes
prevailing #t the date when the far value was determined. Non-monetary ilems that are messured in terms
of historical cost 1n a fereign currency are not iranslated

Exchange differences on monetary itema ane recognized im profit or loas in the peniod in which they anse
excepl o

. Exchange dilferences on foreign currency borrowings relaling to assots under corstruction for
future productive use, which are inchided in the cost of those assets when they are regardad as
am adjustment 1o interest eosts on those foreign currency borrowings,

* Exchange differences on monetany itema receivable from or payable 10 a foreign operation for
which settlensent is neither planned nor likely 10 occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment m the forergn operation), which are recogrzed imtially m 4] and reclassified from
equily 1o profit on repavment of the monetary dems.

For the purposes of presenting Cenaolidated Financial Statements, the asseta and labalitics of the Com pany s
subsdiaries with Mexican peso functional currency are translated mdo 1.5, Dollars (the Company s reparting
currency ) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of cach reporting penied. Profit amounts are translated
al the rate of the trarsaction date, unless thereare significant currency Muctuations durmg the period, inwhich
case fhe exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are wed. Exchange dilferences arsing, if any, ane
recogmized in ather items of comprebersive income and accumulated in equity.

On the disposal of an operation with a Mexican Feao furctional currency all of the exchange differences
accumulated m equity related 10 the disposed operation that are attributable 1o the owners of the Company
are reglasalied to proli
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Critical aceoumting judgments and key sowrces of estimation uncertainiy

Inithe applicationof the Company ' s accountng policies, the managementof the Company required to make judgments,
estimntes and assumplions about the canying amounts ol assets and liabilities mthe Comsolidated Financeal Statements
The estimates and assumplions are based on histonieal expenence and other fctors conswdered relevant. Actual resulls
could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewesd on an ongomg basis. Bevisions to accouniing estimates arc
rvr.l:uErli:rn] i the pl:ril:ul in which the estimate 15 revised if the revision afleets only that per wxl, or in the Pl:riu:l o the
reviston and futre periods if the revision affects both the current and future periods

12

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the cntical judgments, apart from these involving estimations (see Mote 3.2 below), that
Company s management has mads 1n the process of apphnng the Company s aceoaniing palicies and thal
have the most zignificant effect on the ameunts recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statemenis.

S 11 Finanoe leases

Management has determined thet certain armangements should be accounted for as a finance lease as the
presenl value of the minimum lease payments al inceplion date of the amangement amouried o
substantially all of the fudr value of the compression station as of such dase. Detanls of the fmance kase
asset are included in Note 8

G0l Regnlarony accanling

Rate regulation is the setting, by regulatary bodies or governments of prices that can be charged 10
customers for services or products through regulations, often where a company has a monopoly or
dominant market position that gives i significant market power

As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, there 1= no explicit guidance under TFRS regarding whether
entities operating in rate-regulated environments should recogmze sssets and liabilibies ansing from the
effects of rate repulition. Generally Accepted Acoounting Principles inthe ULS, (“ULE, GAAT ) provide
spezific gudance on this matter.

The IFRS Interpretabions Commaltes CIFRICT) has previously commented that the LS. GAAP
recognition criteria pertaining to rate-regulated accounting are not consistent with IFRS. The TASE,
imsued [FRS 14, R-:gr&:]’uryd:ﬁrmf AeCOnEly O ]:u‘lmr':' 30 X4, axa rart of it= |'u'l:’|’=|:t on thas matler,
Isowever, such standard is not applicable to the Company a3 it is not a first-time adopter of [FRS. Az a
result, the Company does ol recoghize mate-regulited assets o liabilities inils Consolidaied Finameinl
Statements. Management will continue to monitor the status of future deliberations by the TASE and
[FRIC &= it relates (o this matter ard its podential impact on the Compary’s Consolidaied Financinl
atitements

34,3 Conlfngencies

The Company acerues logses for the estimated impacts of variows matbers, situations of circumstances
mvalying uncertain outcomes. For loss contingencies, the Com pany accrues for the loss if an event has
cecurred om of before the date of the Consohidated Statements of Fimancial Pesation. The Company does
Tl meeTue contimgencies thal mght resull in gmns, The Compamy contimeusly assesses conlingenees
for ligation claims, environmental remediation and other events.

344 O nse exenmgrion

[AS 39 contains a scope exemiplion from denvative sceounting treatment for physscal delivery contrcts
of a non-linancial item for an antity's own use. The scope exemplion 5 meant 1o apply o ardinary
physical supply armngements, However, the standard also sseks to dentily comtmets which are not used
for operational pumposes as denvative instrum ents. 1§ a non-firancial ilem com be settled met eather in
cash or another linancaal mstrument, or by excharge of financial nstruments, 1 must be accounted for
as & [mancial instruenent
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There are ¥ariows way's in whicha contrast can be settled net. Managementapplies nxlgment in assessmes
whether, among ofhers, past practices of net settling similar coniracts of of taking delivery and =&llmg
the item within a shont perwsd, of, the commodity is reacily convertible to cash, would lead 1o net
aecttlemaent.

Bansgement analvacs cach of s physical delivery contracts of nonfinancial items for determining if
they are within the own use exeniption from denvalive accounting treatm e,

F1LA Delermining whether an arrangement conlams o fease

The Company evalusxies if an arrangemeni that does not take the begal form of a leage bul conveys a
rigght b se an feset inretum for e series of peom ents shoubd be aceounted for asn lense. The Company’s
management uses its judgment 1o determine, whether, based on facts and circumstances existing at the
inception of the contract, i & remote that panics other than the purchaser will take more than an
irsignificant amount of the output of the related asset.

i 1.6, Classification of His jeint arrmrgemeanis

Interests i associales and the jomi venlures are scecumbed for using the equty method. They ane mitmlly
recognized at cost, which includes trunsaction costs, Subsequent to initial recognition, the Consolidted
Frrumcwml Stslements moluds the f'm,rp 5 shire of The Trnf[s amd OCT ol qr.n[:,r-n;:rw-:tl v eslees,
urilal the date on which sigrificant mieencs or joint coptrel ceases.

Ky srurces of estimrtion dacertaindy

The following are the key sssumptions concerning the funare and other key scurces of estimation uncertainty
al the end of the reporting period that have s significint risk of Gusing o matenal adjustment to the cirymg
amounts of assets and liabilities presented i the Company s Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

£ 20, Estimated weefil fves of property, plat and eguiprent

As described m Note 2,14, the Company reviews the estimated welul lives of property, plant and
equipment at the end of each reporting pened. Please refer o Mote 141, for useful lives of property,

plani and equipment.

Determinang whether goodwill is impaired requises an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generstmg uniks to which goodwill has been allocaled. The value muse calculation reguares the dinscton
Lo estimime the future cish Clows cxpected to anze lrom the ceh-generting unit and a suitable discourt
rale in order to ealculate pressnt value, Where the actual future cash flows ane less than expectad, o
matenal impainment boss may anse. Impairment testing is perfomed onan annual basis.

3.2.3 dszel decommissioning oblgation

The estimated cost of decommissiening af the end of the useful lives of the Company s keng-hved asszls
is reviewed periodically and = based on estimates at the date of the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Position of the presen value of future costs axpectad 1o/be incurred when asscls are retired from service
a3 required by law or per its contractual cbligations. The payment dates of total expected futare
decommissioning costs are uncertmn insd dependent on the lves of the long-livedassets, butare currently
anticipated to be hetween 2510 50 years. The Company uses its long-term “homrewing cost”™ mie as the
discount rate for caleulatimg it provision related to its decommzsioning liabilites, which is the 30-year
barowing cost for companies in 1ts industry with simalar cradit mtings, as measured by Bloomberg

A 24 Valvaticn of feancial instrumnents (e vl measureanead)
The Company uses valaation techniques that include inputs that are based on observable market data to

estimate the fur value of certom types of inancil mstruments. Plense refer o MNote 24, for detaled
arformation about the key assum ptions used inthe determination of the fairvalue of financial struments.
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The Company believes that the chosen valuation techniques and assumplions used ane appeopriate in
determining the fair value of financial irstruments

A28 Allowaice for deabiful asoomis

The methodology for determining the allowance for doubtful sccounts on trade and other receivables B
sel oul i Mot 5 The estimates and sssumplions wed o determine the allowance are reviewed
penicdically. Althvough the provisions recognized are considered appropriate, chamges in economic
condisons could lead to changes in the allowance and, thereliore, mpact prafit.

326 Recoverabiliny of deferred foe astely

As mentioned m Noete 25 the Company has accumulated tax loss carnylforwand berelits, for whaich an
evabuation of recoverabality s performed on an annual basas

The use of estimates and assum plions are partcularly important inothe recognition of deferred income
hact, assets,

A 2T Measiciemant of difined bt abligarions: ke achunial artimminans

Mg described in Mote 17, the Company wes actuanal valuations that include inputs that anre based on
published statistic and mortality 1ables. The Company belbeves that the chosen valuaton techmniques amd
assumplions wied are appropriate it deterrnining the benelit obligabors.

A28 Key soavees af estimation mncerfatidy for TEnova Pipelines
Selected Vahmtion Methodology:

TEnowa Fipelines i1 a regulated business that will eam a return of its costs and & reasonable returmn on ils
invested capital, without other consideration; the value of the asets of a regulated busaness 15 the value
of ns invested capatal. Under this premise, the FV of the: fixed asscts of regulated businesses is equivalent
tocarrying value for financial reporting purposes, as carryving value reflects the basss for which invested
capital 15 dermved, and lor which a regulated business ks allowed 10 eam a reasomable relurm

The Company conchaded that the canrying value of the fixed assets is deemed to be representative of FY
for [FRS purposes

220 Key sonrces af estimanion ihoeratinle for Feanka
Sebected Vahmtion Methodobogy.

Based on the nature of the power facility and generally accepicd mﬁml}f practics, the Company relied
on the Income Approach, specifically the Discounted Cash Flow (“DCF™) myethod.

Associated iMangibles such as nghts of way / casements are embedded in the value of the propenty plant
and eguipment

Whle the Cost Approach was not rehied upon 1o denve the for value estimate, provided the Income
Approach being the prefemed approach to valwing an operational wind power facility, it was considered
for corroboratory purposes in relation o the fuir value estimate derived utilizmg the Income Approach
It is noted that the dermved fair value catimate embeds a developer mangm (1.¢., margin above the cost
o dev elop’ construet the power project) that 12 withim the reazonable range of developer margins expected
for this type of power [acility and at the stage of development associated with Ventika (Le., recently
enlering commercial aperation)

In addition to what is described abowe, the Company used different estimates nelating to operating
statislics, revenues, operating cxponses andd cash fow items.
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4. Casly and cash egquivalenis

For purpeses of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, banks and
invesiments m instraments mn the money market funds, net of bank overdrafis,

Creh and cash aquivalents atend af year as shown in the Corsolidued Cash Flow Suatement can be reconciled
1o the related nens in the Consolidated Stmement of Finencial Pesition as follows.

Asaol
123117 123116 1231415
Cash and bank balwnces % s % 4918 3 £l )
Shar-erm mvestim ents classafied as cash
equivialemis B 20
i 3TR & 24918 5 40377

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company maintained 535, 8 million and 3514 mallion of restricted cash,
respectively, a5 a cumrent assel 1o make payments of cerlamn operating costs for the execulion of projects

- H Trawde and other receivahles, nel

As ool
1231717 12/3116 1231/15
Trudde recevables 3 D324 5 MW5IE 5 3L EDS
Aldlowansce for doubdful accounts (a) (41} (101} (14T}
93,258 422 3T 748
Oiber receivables 1,535 100 44 201980
i B4T93 5 100886 5 53,728

{m}

For the Gaz segment, BCC, has recognized an allowanee for doubtfl accourts of 80 percent againat all
receivables outstanding between 180 and 269 davs and 100 percent sgainst all recervables cutstanding
over 270 days, based on historical experience. Allowances for doubtful sccounts are recognized against
trade receivnhles for customers whose outstanding balances are outstanding between 30 and 179 days
whensuch recervables ane estimated not to be recoverabl e basad on an analyss of the customers” financeal
posilion

For all the other companies withan the (ias segment and for the Power segmment, the average credit periad on
trade recenvables 1s 30 days.

Trade roceivabbes disclosed sbove mclude amounts (see below for aging analy=is) that are past due at the end
of the reporting year for which the Company hes not recognized an allowince for doubtiul debis bocause the
amounts are =il conaidered recoverable.

LN

33

42

IENOVA

Age of receivables that are post dive bt nof inpaired

As ol
123147 1316 1231415
31-120 days 5 61§ s 3 12
121-180 days 21 .
181-270 days 5 .
Total 3 87 3 45 % 19
Averape spe (days) 9 30 28

Movement in the alfovwance for doubifal accounis

Asal
12131517 12/31716 123115

Balance as of beginning of the yvear 5 (101} 5 (14T % {1847
[mpamment losses recognized on

receivables {91) (46 (30
Amounts wrikten off durnng the vear

as umeollectible 152 5 48
Foreipn exchange wranslation (loss)

2ins {2) 27 29
Balanece a2 of end of the vear 5 4l 5 {101y % (147}

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Company conakders ary change im the credit
quality af the trade receivable from the date eredit was imtially granted up to the end of the reporuang
penied. Sec Note 24.%. for more dtails of the Company s eredit risk management and concentration of
credit nsk assessment

Agre of imprrired Irade receivabla

Aol
127314117 12/31116 12731715
181-270 days 5 (20 5 {1y 5 (k)]
Crwer 270 days {213 {21} (135
Teal 5 (417 % (100 % (147
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Transuction and halunces with unconsolicated siTiliaies

Transactions and balances between [Encva and ils subsidiaries hive been elimmated upon consolwdation amd
are not disclosed in this note, except for those transactions between continoed and discontirmed opermtions

Transactions between continued and discontineed operations are nod eliminated in consolidation. Any profi
made Mrem sabes w extemnal parties by the diseontirmsed operations are presented outade continumg operations.

Accordingly, the Consabdated Stmiements of Profit present revenues from coniranng operations as follows:

Revenues § Cost of revemies

Year ended
1273117 123116 1231115
Effeets of continuing operation with GAP and
[Erova Marketing 5 T2 § &1382 8§ B4 838

. Transaciiens and balamees with wrconsolickted affiliates

Thring the vears ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company entered into the following
transnctions with unconsolidated affiliates as part of ongoang operations:

S

S0P

Chacantinued operation — SGXPM
Sempra Intemational

Sernpra Infrasiructure, LLC. (formerly

Sempra US. Gas & Power, LLC
TSGPY

SoCalGas

Sernpra Midsiream, Inc. (" Sempra
Mhdstream ™)

Ciscontinued operations — SGEM

Sempra Services Company, 5. de K L.

de C. V. (“Sempra Services
Company™)®

Cost of revenne, administrative and other cxpenses

Yeur cmded
12/31717 1231516 120301115
3 20755 8 178,145 5 1515
63,719 302
24 425 1,022
To2ald E.301 5822
6936 930 6,700
1.258 1,450 1,031
452 HER T46
— 22,152 27,634
—_ 3183 4,380

128

* {m December 15, 2015, this company was higquidated.

Included in the operstional transactions are sdminsstrative seevices from affilates by $7.3 million, $8.3
million and $3.9 millvon for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which

were collected and pand, and have been properly distributed to the segm ents incurring those costs

Inleresl income

Hevenues
Year emded
12431417 12/3116 1231415

Discontinued operation - Sempra Gas

& Power Marketing, L1.C

(RGEPMT) 5 130,192 3 62 8 —
Sempra LMNG Intermationsal Holdinga,

LLC (SLMGIHT) 103043 160 S 31,683

SRR 10,722
DEN G761
Sempra Imerrational, LLC {*Sempra

Ertermatiomal™) 1.5 1,746 1,711
TAG | L — —
Servicios BSJ, 8. de R L. de C. W B

(“3E3I7) LOT2 a0 o8
Southern California Gas Compary

(“SolCalCas™) 23] 12 —_
Sempra LNG ECA Ligquefaction, LLC

SLNGEL™) 217 2 036 | 676
Discontimaed operation — SGEN — 101,130 143073
Dizcontinued operation — SE&T 353 4R
sl o
SLMNGI 40138

Year ended
123117 1231416 123118
IRAG b ] 17211 & b
DEN 3,665 4,082 4,638
E=] 775 1,122 1,450
Thscarmimeed operations - SGEN 180 24 11
Sempra Servicios Mexioo ® 2
* Om December 2015, this company was houidated.
Finanee easis
Yeur cmded
1273147 123116 1230115

I5L 5 3491 534 485
Sernpra Chl Trading Suisse (“S0T

Sz} 1,265 1,363 1448
ISLA 1.174 1618 1,455
POC a4 4
SEH 037 1,236 47
Dhscantinued operations - 3EG (1) 332 831 —
DEN 143 a6 —
TALG SN —_ —
Semeo (1) 364

IENOVA
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On Seplember 26, 2016, [Epova entered imo a 35000 million of US. Dellar-denominsted loan with
SEG, tofinance TErov a Pipelineaacquizition. Theagreement was for twa-maonth term. Interest i payable
an a monthly basis t LIBOR plus 110 Basis Poants ("BPS") of outstanding balances. In October 2016,
with the proceeds from the Global Offering, the Company repaid this loan including the corresponding
imil rests,

O Seplember 26, 2018, IEnova entered into a $35000 million of loan with Semco, to finance [Enova
Fipelines acquisition. The agreement was for two-month term, Interest was payable om a morthly basis
ot LIBOR plas 110 BPS of oustanding balances

The fellowing balances were cutstanding at the end of the reperting pervod
Amounts due Trom unconsolidated afliliates

As ol
1230717 1230106 1231715

SGEPM 5 10723 & — § —
SLNGIH o162 6,456 0685
TAG 4,289 . o
b Eh m 174 135
SLMGEL 34 53 G6E
SoCalGas 2 - —_
DEN — 5 T54 —_—
ESY — 530 51
SOEN -_— —_— 17,068

5 24000 & 129% % 2608

* As of March 31, 2016, the amount was reclasaified 1o assets held for sale.
Amiounts due to uneonsolidated affiliates

As al
123017 125316 1231415

5L {ian) 5 275188 § 05 % 20,000
SEH () 132 800 219,500
FOC (v) IO 020 20 0 —
SO&PM 17525 44 -_—
SLNGI 145, 34300 11,135 12,220
Sempr Irterrational 26 a5 470
SoCalGas L 120 _
I3LA (iin) — T, v 0, 0
S0OT Suisse (vi) — 38,460 —_
Sempra Midstream — L] —
b U] T — — EIE)]

5 54217 8 260914 S 35’.-‘|65ﬂ

On March 2, 2015, IEnova entered into a 590.0 million and a $30.0 million U.8. Dollar-denominated
credit facilities with ISLA and ISL, respectively, 1o lnance working capital and for general corporate
purposes. The agreements are nine-month term, with an option to be extended for up 1o four years.
[rmerest i payable an o quarterly basis a mie of 198 percent per annum of outstanching balkances

v
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In December 2006, the Company signed addendums modifving the inital comracts and the new
characteristica are: the term was extended and was due and payabbe i full on Decembser 15, 2007, The
applicahle interest shall be computed and paid on s quanterly basis az the rte of 1,75 percent per annum

O December 27, 2006, [Encva entered into a5 70 0million 17,8, Dellar-denominmed affiliate revolving
credit fcility with [SLA, to finance working capital and for general comporate purposes. The credit
facility has a wwelve-month term, with an oplion to extend 1t for up W four vears. Interest of the
outstanding balance is payable on a quarterly basis at a rate of 1.75 percent per annum. Interest shall
be paid on the last day of each calendar quarter.

On March 21, 2017, IEncva entered into an $85.0 million U5, Dollar-denominated affilate credn
facilaty with T51., to finance working capatal and for general corporute purposes. The credat is a welve-
month term, with anoption to extend it forupto four years. Interest of the cutstanding balance i pavable
on o quarterly bass w1 three-month LIBOR plus 60 BP'S per anmam, Interest shall be pad on the last
day of each calendar quarter

Effective June |, 201 7, TSL A was merped with and into ISL which 2 the surviving entity in the menger,
the agreements conditions between 151 and [Enova remam the same.

On December 15, 2017, the Company signed addendums modifying the contracts terms over the 3800
illicm, $30.0 million and 3 70.0million L5, Dollar-denoem inated credit faeilities with 131 and the new
conditions are: the term was extendad and are due and payable i full on December 15, 2018, the interest
rate applicable shall be computed on a calendar quarter besis 3 three-month LIBOK plus 63 BPS per
annum. Interest shall be paid on the last day of each calendar quarer.

Cm December 22, 3015, TErowa entered inbo a 32196 millien U5 Dollar-denominated credit faciliny
with SEH, to finance working capnal and for general corparme purposes The term of the agreement
is for twelve months. [nterest is payable on a quanerly begis at three-month LIBOR plus 01T percent
of outstonding balances. On Auwgust 1, 2016, the Company pasd 531205 milhien, which meludes the
comresponding interest. In October 2006, with the procesds from the Global Offering, the outstanding
balance of 399.5 mullion was pawd in full by the Company.

On August 23, W17, [Enova entéred into & $1328 million 115 Dellar-denominated affileate credit
facilaty with SEH, 1o linance working capital and gencral corporate purposes. The credit Racality i for
4 sus-month term. Inderesl of the oulstanding balance = payable on g quarterly basis o1 three-month
LIBOR plus 61 BFS per anrum.

On February &, 2018, [Enova signed an addendum modifving the contract erm to August 22, 2008,

O December 27, 2016, LEncva entered into a $20.0mallion U3, Dollar-denoninated affiliate revelving
credut facility with POC, to finance working capital and general corporate purposes. The eredit has a
twelve-month tems, withan option to extend it for up to four vears. Inerest of the cutstanding balance
is payvable on a quarterly basis at rate of 1.75 percent per annum.

On Apnl 27, 2007, [Enova entered mio a 5190 mallion U5, Dollar-denommated allihate revolving
eredit Facility with POC, to firance warking capital and geneml comomte purposss. The eredit has a
twelve-month term, with an option to extensd 1t for up to four yvears. Interest of the cutsianding balance
15 payable on o quarterly basis at three-month LIBOR plus 60 BPS per annum,

Cm June 26, 2017, IEnova entered into & 521.0 milkion U5, Dollar-denominatesd alfilate revolving
credit facility with POC, to firmnce working capital and general conporate purposes. The credit has a
twebve-month term, with an option to extend 1t for up to four years. Imerest of the cutstanding balance
is payabbe on a quarterly basiz at three-month LIBOR plus 70 BFS per anrum.

O Septem ber 29, 201 7, [Encvaentered intoa $21.0million LS. Dollar-denominated afliliate revalving
credit facility with POC, to finance working capital and general corporate purposes. The credit has a
twelve-month temm, withan eplion to extend it for up to four years. Imerest of the cutstanding balance
15 payviblbe on a quarterly basis al three-month LIBOR plus 70 BFS per annum.
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[

million 175, Doltar-denominated revolving credit facilities with POC and the new charactenistics ane:
the term was extended ard are due and pavalde in full on December 13, 2003, the interest rete applicable
shall be computed on a calendar quarter basis at theee-month LIBOE. plus 63 BEPS per annum, [nterest
shall be paid on the last day of each calendar quarner

Cm December 28, 2007, [Enowa entered intoa$21. 0million 11 5 Dallar-denominated affiliate revalving
crodit Eaeility wath POC, 1o finance working, eapital and peneral corporate purposes. The credit has a
twelve-month term, with sin option 1o extend 1l for up to four years, Interest of the outstinding balince
is payable ona quarterly basia at three-month LIBOR plus 63 BFS per armam

Drareg 2017, 20016 and 2015 related to the loan with SOT Suisse, the Company paid interest in the
amount o 31.3 milhon, §1.4 milhon and 51.4 millon, respectively. The loam matures in March 2017
and bear variable mierest biced on 17 5. Treasury mid-term apphicable federal rate plus 200 BFS (an
average annual rate of 3. 29 percent. 3.58 percent and 3,64 percent in 200 7, 200 6 and 201 5, respectively).

Transactzons with unconsolidated affilintes during 2007, 2016 and 2015 hive been carned out in
accondance with applicable tranafer pricing requirements, &2 of December 31, 2017, and &3 of the date of
thiz repor, the nature and amownt of rarssctions are consistent with previous years The amounts
outstanding are unsecured and will be seitled n cash Mo guarantees have been given or recsived. Mo
expenscs have been recognized in the current or prier pervods for bad or doubsful debts regarding, the
amourts owed by unconsolidated affiliates.

Loans fo wromaselidated affilintes
Asal
1273117 123106 1231715

IMAG (1) -] JETIBT 5 - 3 -
B5J o, TO0 14,307 25142
DM 00,05 25963
SGEN* — — )

3 493887 5 104,352 3 111,766

* s ol harch 30, 2006, the amount was reclassafied 1o masets bekd for sale.

1. OmaApnl 21, 2017, [Enava entered o a loan agreemem with ThG, provichng a credit line in an
am cnant of upto 59 042 million MMexican Pesos, the matunty date ishdarch 15 2022, The applicable
inberest male i the Mexican Interbank Inferest HEate (“TIE™) a1 91 days plus 220 BPS capatalized
quarterly.

O December 6, 2017, the Company signed an addendum modifyring the amount of the loan up to
314,168 mallhon Mexacan Pesos,

As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding balance amounts 59,615 mallion Mexacan Pasos,
inchading 5283 miullion Mexacan Pesos of capitalized interest.
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63, Loans from unconselidated affilintes

As ol
1231717 12730116 1231715
50T Suisse (1)* % IR4n0 3 —_ % 8460
TAG (1) 35050 — —
DN —_— 3,00 —
3 13510 5 3080 5 38460
S S S

* This amoun was reclassifiad m 2006 1o current linhahities

i O harch 17, 2017, IEnova entered into an amencded sgreement with 30T Suisse in onder o extersd
the lan ko seven vears. The mierest is payable on an annually basis a1 theee-month LIBOE plus 1850
BFS

il On December 19, 2017, DEN erered irto a 5350 million U5, Dollar-denominated affiliate credi
fmeality with TAG, to firance working capital and genem] busmess purposes. The credit facihity has n
four vears teem, Interest of the cutstanding balinee is payable on a quanerly basis ot six-month LIBOR
plis 250 BPS per anmum.

&4 Compensafion of hey moragement persoan el

Total compensation pad to key manspement personal was 31003 million, $5.0 million and 388 millon,
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 200 3, respectively.

There are ne Leans granted 10 the Company s key managenient personnel

Natural gas invendorics

Asof
1273117 L B T 13173115

7,19 3§ o83 § 4,628

L ngueticed natural gas 5
|

The cost of mvenones recogmized withim cost. of revenues were 5194.0 mallion, 5164.4 nmilbon and 3190.2
million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 20016 and 2015, respectively

For the vears ended December 31, 2017, 20016 and 2015, no coat of revenwe were recognized, due 1o write-
dowrs of mventory to net realizable value

Finmmce lease receivahles

&1 Finanee lease recetvables = Natwral Cas Compression Flang

Aol
123117 1231716 12/3115
Current [inance lease recevables 5 3E 5 21% 8§ 156
MNon-current linance lease recavables 13,327 14,135 14,354
5 14,135 3 14,354 % 14,510




IENOVA

leasing arrangéminis

The Company eriered imfo a finance lease anrangement for one of its compression stations, The lease is
denominated inL1.5. Dollars. The term of the finance lease ia 25 vears

& 1 1L Amorents receivables wader finanoe leases

Present value of minimum lease
pavmenis

As ool As ol
1XMAT 1231406 1243115 123117 120146 143105

Alimimum lease paymenis

Motlater thanoneyear 3 5136 § 5136 § 5137 § 308 i 219§ 156

Later than ane vear
and not later than

five years 21,828 22 458 22458 3454 1403 2432
More than five years 17975 4305 20 531 10,353 1,732 11,932
44,930 51 Of ST126 14,135 14,354 14,510

Less: uneamesd

[inaneoe teome [E IR L] (3 F0635) (42616) na na i

Present valoe of
mumamum bease

pyments recervable § 14135 5 14354 5 14500 5 14,1535 § 14334 5 14510
g T ey e S e

Mo resadual values of assots leased under limnce lease a1 the end of the vear are estimated.

The interest rae inherent in the DNnance bese 15 Dxed ol the contract date Toe the entive bease term,

The average effective interest rate contracted 13 appraximately 345 percent par armurm foe 2017, 2016
and 201 3. The receivable under inance lease balance as of December 31, 2017, 2006 and 201 5, 1s nesither
st due rior ampaired.

Finance lease recenvalles — Low Romones | Pipeline

A ol
12030117 12035116
Currend [Inanee bense recevables 3 665 3§ £ 1 1]
Momn- currend finance lease receivahles A7 405 571,070
3 AT.0% 5 74,455

Léaieng arrangeminlc

The Company entered imio a finance bease arrangement for one of ite nntural gas pipelmesand compreasion
stations. The lease 13 denominated in U5, Dollars. The term of the finance lease 2 25 years.

&3
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B2, Amoitts neerivables mider finmiee leates

Present of minimun lease
Minimum lease payments vmenis
Ax ol As ol

123117 123116 124317 12431716

Mot later than one year 5 E7I4 3 874639 3 IG5 & 3384

Later than one year and not Iater
thin [ive years 424616 418,582 28, 108 23,997
More than five years 201,312 QR4,650 530,207 STz
1,413,232 1,300,871 STL.0T0 314453

Less: unearned finance income

Present value of munimum lese _

pavments recavabla 5 STOT0 § STA445% 5 STLOTH S5 ST4453
|

(842162 (926,418) n'a n'a

Mo residual values of assets leased under [inance kease at the end of the reporting vear are estimated.
The mierest rate inherent in the finance leass i fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term

The average effective migrest mbe contracted 15 approxmstely 15.2 percent per annum for 2017
and 2016. The receivable under finance lease balance as of December 31, 201 7and 2016 is neither
st due nor mmpsared

Fimance lease receivables - Ethane Fipeline

As ol
12731717 12531016
Current limnoe lease reccivables 5 4153 % 3553
Non=current finance bease receivables 60952 365,106
5 365,105 % S8R 650
I
Leaxing arrangemenis,

The Company entered mto o finance lease arrangement (ot its ethane pipelime. The leass i3 denomimated
in 175 Dollars.

The ransportation system refers (o

Segment 1. Trarsports cthane from Ethylene Complae XX Braskem-[DESA 1o Cangrejera (Veracr),
through a 20-inch and 4 km length papeline. The term of the finance bense is 20,5 years

Segment [1. Transpons ethane (rom Nuevo Pemex ( Tabasco) to Cactus (Chiapas) through a 16-imch and
15 km length pipeline and from Cactus to the Ethylene X751 Complex Braskem-IDESA through a 24-
inch and 133.5 km length pipeline. The term of the finance lease 15 2005 vears,

Segment TT1 Transporta liquid ethane froem Ciudad Pemex to Nuevo Pem ex (Tabaseo) through a 20-imch
and 73,5 km length pipeling. The term of the finance lenss is 2] vears
The breakdown as of December 31, 2007 of this finance lease s s follows

Amount
Segment 1 5 31,631
Sepment 11 126,030
Segment 111 147 444
Toal 5 365,105
1 —
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A3, Amsimis recervables under finmiee leaves

Fresent af minimum lease

Minimum lesse paymends paymenis
Asoof Asooff
1331417 123116 123177 123116

Mot later than one year 5 55593 % 55976 % 4153 3§ 3553
Later than ane vear and net later

than five vears 264,235 2658 951 33512 28,7719

Muare than five vears 388,982 439451 327,440 336,327

T8, 610 Ted ATH 363,103 368,650

Les: unearned fnance income (343,505) (395,91%) na na
Present value of mimamum leass

pavments receivable 5 35105 5§ 3GBG30 3 3650105 3 368650

Mo ressdoal values of pasets leased under finance lease st the end of the reporting vear are estim ated

The average ellective mierest mile contmeled 15 approsimately 16 percent lor segment | and 14

percent for segments 1L and I a5 of December 31, 2017 and 2006

The receivable under finance kease balance as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, is neither past due

neor impared
Oiiher assels
As ool
127307 1273106 1253015
Verncruz maring terminal matial tadding
quata (Refer to Mote 1.2, 140.e.) % 28180 5 b
Prepayments 8620 0,495 5,182
Pipeline interconnection rights 1.637 1, T2 1,938
IMPAC recovarmble 1435 1,658 2,450
MNatural gas imbalance 974 320 243
Pipeling integnily svslem 493 .
Prepaid land leases 28 £ 101 7
] 42085 5§ 14144 & 10,514
]
Curment ¥ 10,327 5 Q28R 5 2576
Mon-current 36SE 4855 1,038
5 42985 5 1414 5 10,514
|

i,

lrwvestment in joint ventures

ad.

TEnova Fipelines

IENOVA

LUptal Seplember 26, 2006, the Company owned a 50 percent interest in [Enova Pipelines, a joint veniure
with Perex TRTa Pemex subsidiary (Please refer io Mete 11.1.). TEnova Pipelimes operates thnee natural
gas pipelines, five natural pas compression stations, one LG aystem and one ethane pipeline, in the
states of Chiapas, Chihuahues, Nuevo Leon, Tabasoo, Tamaulipas and Veraeruz and one LPG stomge

Eacility in the wiaie of lalizes, Maxicn.

Begirmirg Septem ber 27, 2016, the Company fully consalidites [Enova Pipelires.

[Encwa Pipelines Condensed Consolidated Fmancial Statements and the Compamy’s equity methesd

investment are summarized as follows:

Cash wned cash equivalenis
Shon-lerm investmenis
Crher assels

Currend sssets

Finance lease receivabbes

Property, plant and squipment, net

[nvestments i poant ventures

Crher assels

Deferrad imoome tax asel
Mon-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilmies
Mon-cumment Babilities
Total habalities

Total members’ couity

Share of members” eguity
Crooadwill

Carrying amount of investment in [Enova Pipelines

As ol
1231415
5 22,080
Nk THY
55383
&E,243

el ]|
320,079
131,338
1,727
12,314
1317 Gag

5 1,505,902

1}

- 133,730
662,307
T 037

5 T BAS

] 354.933
B, 943

5 15876

[Encwa Fipelines Condersed Corsolidated Statements of Profit iz as follows:

Revenues

Operating, admmistrative and other expenses

Finance costs

Lneonme 13 expanse

Share of profit (bess) of joint venture, net of income tax
Prefit for the peniod ¢ year

Share of profit of 1Enova Pipelines

Period ensded Year ended
Zollo 1231115

t 100G 8 249 424
(60, 1745 {66, 530
(20,985 (28673
(53,409 {64,307)
15417 (6,934)

] BE4 8 B2 06
£ 0421 5 41,485
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[ il

ESJ, the joint verture formed between TEnova and InterGen, M. V. ("InberiGen™), started operations in
Jure 2015,

Asg of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company's remaining 50 pereent intarest in BESJ is
pecounted for under the equity method. EST Condensed Conselidated Stamements of Financial Positien
amd the Company’s equity method nvestment are summarized s follows:

As ol
12/3117 123116 12031115
Cash and cash equivalents 5 275 8 Da01 8§ 12,930
(iber azsets 18,470 15,201 20,937
Currenl assels 21,264 24 802 34 BET
Defemed income tax asses 4,778 5413 6,534
Ckher assels 2,195 2650 12,347
Propeny, plant and equipement, met 252 %6 264,468 2T, 352
Won-current aesats I 212531 2905, 283
Total assets 2E0e03 8 207,533 & A30, 100
Current liabiliies 5 1750 % 17,777 § 7.248
Mon-current hakalities 130 0 I8 070 i, 635
Total lizbilities 5 248 557 8§ 272847 & 313,883
] 1§
Total members” equity 5 33,136 § 24486 § 16,217
Share of members' aquity 5 16,568 % 12243 % B 108
Cracwdunll 12,1 12121 12,11
UEITEI amount of mvestment
in g 5 2RG8R0 R 2434 & 20,229
EAT'a Condenzed Consclidated Statements of Profit 15 as follows:
Year enided
12/3117 12/31116 1203115
Revenues 5 46500 8 44,283 § 29,227
Orperating. administrative and other
CRPENSES (22,14T) [20,773) (13.491)
Finance costs (15,9309 (16,731} (9, 425)
Cther gairs, et 13 22] —
Income te expensas (01,3400 (1,286) {4,642)
Profit for the year 5 16T & ll4 & 1,668
Share of profit of ESJ 5 3584 § 2557 § R
I

a)

FPraject fingncing for the EX progect. On June 12, 2014, EXT entered into & 52398 mullion pregect
finamce boan for the construction of the wind project wath five banks; hMizuho as coordinatimng bemd
arranger, the North American Developmem Bank (“NADE™) as technical and modeling bank,
Macional Financiera, 5. M. C. Inatitucion de Banca de Diesarrallo ("NAFINSA™), NORDVLE and
SMBC a5 lenders

b)

dy

IENOVA

Om June 30, 2015, ES] converted the construction loans inio | 8-vear teren boane. The credit facilties
mature o hine 30, 2033, with pavenents due an a semi-annual basis (each Tune 30 and December
30 until the final maturity date), starting on December 30, 2005, The credit (acilities bear imterest
ot LIBOR plus the applicable margin.

LIBOR
Years applicahle

margin
June 2003 - June 2019 2375%
June 20N9 - June 2023 2625%
June 2023 - Jume 2027 2.875%
June 2027 — Jume 2031 3.125%
June 2031 = June 2033 3373

As per the financing agrecment, the sbality 1o make withdrawals ended on the term conversion date
June 30, 2015, EST made total sccumulated withdrawals from the credit facilite in the amount of
5239.8 million. The debt outstanding s $216.9 million and the breakdown s as follows:

bt halance
MIZUHO 3 48085
SMBC 45,685
NORDIE 48 635
NAFINSA 35407
NADRE 35407

b 216369

Tnreresr pate swaps. To partially mitigate s exposure g0 interest mate changes associated with the
term loan, BSJ entered inte Moating-to-fixed interest mate swaps for S0 pereent of the ESJ project
_['lnmg'ing losm nm ol There are three m::umding mieresl mte swips with Miabho, SMBC and
NORDALEB, cach one wilh a trade daie of June 12, 2004 ardd an effective date of June 30, 2015, the
date of conversion 10 a témi [oan. The temis of the imlerest rte swiaps were constructad 1o match
the critical terms of the interest payments. The swaps are accouned for as cash flow hedges.

Financing of the project s VAT with Santander. On June 12, 2014, ES) enered into a line of credi
with Sarander and on February 23, 2015 there was an amendment 10 increase the line for up to
35000 malhon Mexacan Pesos (approxamately 5350 milhen stoneal LS. Dollar equivalent).
Interest on each withdrawal acerued interest at the TITE plus 145 BPS payable on a semi-annual
Irasis, The credit line under this contract was wsed 1o lnance the VAT on the ES) project, As of
Dacember 23, 2015, ESJ withdrawn $472.6 million Mexican Pesos of the credit line. On December
23, 2015 ESJ repard and canceled the 1otal eredit Bicility.

{rher aieclosrres. The member’s agreement provides certam resiricons and benefits (o the sale
of the membership mierest in ESJ. The agreement establishes that capital calls that are to be
comrbuied on a pro mia base by the members. ©3) and #s joind venture partner have provided
guarantees of payment of ansounts due by ES) and its subsidsanes under the wind turbine supply
agreemenl wilth Vestas WTG Mexico, 3. A de ©. ¥V The guaraniess are mmalenal as of
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20015

L
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rad,

RLTL

The jeint verture formied between TEnova and TransCanada, for the construction of the South Texas -
Tuspan marene pipeling, whereby TransCarmds b 60 percent inferest in the paninership and IEnova
owns the remaiming 30 percent interest of the project

As of December 31, 3017 and 2016, the Company s 40 percent mierest in IMG is accounted for under
the equity method IMG Condersed Consolidated Financml Statements and the Company s cquily

methoxd mvestment sre summned as follows:

.l‘_!'lﬂ'
12031017 1213116
Cash and cash equivalents 5 M4 0§ 1Z8.110
Value added tax receivable 195 350 12264
Other assats 434 AR
Total current nssels 254,068 141,057
Teokal non-current asacts 1,653,554 135454
Total assels 3 1207522 % 276,551
|
Cumrent habilities 3 177711 3 27816
Lo term debe 1,25 913
Deferred income tax habalites .20 2678
Total nom-cwrrent habslibies 1,257,182 26T
Total linbilities 1,433,953 20,504
Total members” equily 5 AT 668 % 245957
Share of members” equity I & 4 08383
Guirantees 3,018 —_—
Share of beers” Ly and I Lol
rmtmet WIME T e 5 104486 § of 383
IhG "3 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Profit = as followa:
Year ended
1253117 123116
Finance meome (oosts), net 5 TR0m2 3% (457]
Cither income (expense), met [ [1.646)
Income LRy expense (31,233) (3122
Prodit {boas) for the year 5 47541 % (5.23%)
Share of profit (loss) of IMG 5 19016 3§ 2084
5 |

n)  Profect finencing for the MG project, As of December 31, 2017, the project resources for the
design and construction of the marine pipeline kave been funded with capital contributions of its

members mnd loans

On Apeil 21, 2007, IMG entered inte two revolving eredit agreements with [Encva and
TramsCanada, parcnt entities, by 38042 million Mexican Pesos and 513,503 million Mexican
Pesos, respectively.

Un December 6, 2007, Linova and TransCanada renogotiated the credit line of such aredin facilaty
agreements [or an amount up 0 514168 milhon Mexican Peses and 521,252 milhon Mexacan
Pesos, reapectively. Loans accrue an anmual interest rate of TITE plas 230 BFS.

Loan balances for the year ended on December 31, 20017 with TEnova 15 59,615 millson B fexcican
Peses,

IEnova and TransCanada have cach provided guarantees o thind partics sssocmted with the
construction of TWMG's Sur de Texas-Tuxpan natural gis manne pipeline, TEnovi's share of polentinl
exposure of the guarantees wias cstimated 1o be $210,0 million and will lermmate upon completion
of all gusranteed cbligations. The guamintees have lerms rangmng 1o 2070

As af December 31, 2007, IEnova recognized in merense 1o the equity method investment for the
amount of 35.0 mallson, fair valoe of the puarantees granted.

164, DEN

Urtal Cctober 31, 2017 the Company ovwned 4 50 pércent mterast in DEN, a jomt venture with Pemex
TRL

In MNovember, 2017, the Company fully consolidated DEN.

DEN' Condensed Comsolidated Financial Statements of Financial Position and the Company's equiy
method investment, ane summanzed o follows:

As of
10731717 1231716

Cash amd cash equivalenis 5 17257 5 EE]%

Dhuee from unconsolidated alTiliaies 4,135 4012

Crher assa1s 7166 4278

Total current assets 2B 558 17,1

Dwlemed income tax assels 13361 17,354

[rvestments in jon venbures 195,981 155327

Property, plant and aquipment, net 1,795 1,685

Total non=current assets 28,157 174,350

Tolal assels 5 235695 § 19 455

Current liabilities 5 e % Gl

MNon-current babilities 194,001 0 185,627

Total liakalitkes 5 194078 8 184,273
I |

Total members’ equity 5 42617 3 5216
N ]

Share of members” equity and carmyving amount of
investmeant in DEM ] 309 % 2608

IENOVA
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1.5,

DEMs Condensed Consolidated Statements ol Pralit is as Ffollows:

Period emded Yenr ended
13117 127317146

Revenues 1 18532 % 5623
Operating, sdministrative and other expenses (T.185) (5,3100
Finance costs (7,304 {2, 125)
Ciher losses (202} (341)
Lncom ¢ st (expense) beneli L LE 364
Share of profit of jomn venturs, net of income ax 41,551 2,60
Prafi for the period / year $ 38200 3 3,914

R SN
Share of profit of DEM 5 19149 % L9557

| —

O Movember 15, 2007, [Enova completed the acquesition of Pemex's TRI 30 percent interest in DEN

Im Movember, 2017, DEN became a wholly owned, consolidated subsidiany of [Enova. Please refer o
Mote 11.3.

1A

T3, together with TEN a joint venture between DEM and Pemex TR and a corsomium compeised of
BlackREock ard First Beserve, own Los Ramones Morle papeline, whach began operations in Febmaary
2006

In Wovember, 2007, the Company increased its indirect participation in TAG from 25 percent to 50
percent. Plense refer 1o Mote 11.3

Asof December 31, 2007, the interest in TAG isacoounted for under the equity method. TAG s Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company's equity method investment are
summansed as (ol lows:

A of
1231417

Caeshy ] casly eqpuivalenis = #1,8I3

Cther msets 22293
Total cnmnent nssiets 10, 106

Puag from unconsolxdated affaliates T, 658

Fmance lease recevables 1431, 703

Ciher asaets 145, 464

Praperty, plant and équpenent, net 15,47

Tedal non-current assets 1,534 338

Total @iz = 1,638 454
]

Currend Liabilities b3 AR.023

Mon-cirment liabaheies 1, 1 TEA1E

Tatnl liahilities 5 1,246 630
—_—

Total membsers” equity 5 401,815
[

Share of members” equity and carying amownt of

investment im TAG & pol L VE

Equity methad geadwll £ £

Tavtal arnaunt of the irvesrment an TAG 5 200 97

TAG s Condensad Consolidated Smtement of Profit is as follows:

Tz
o 123117

Revemies -1 x4l
COperating, administrative and other expenses (6,876)
Finance costs (10,517

Oiber gains 217
Income WX sxpenss (9.378)

Profit for the perrod 3 5,857
|

+ Share of profit of TAG ] 2928

@ TG Project ffoancing

Un Degember 19, 2004, TAG, (subsichary of LNy, entered into a crecdil comkract with Santander
&s lender, adm inistrative agent and collateral agent, with the purpese of financing the engineering,
procurement, construction and commissioning of the gas pipelme,

Durang 2006 aned 2015, there were amendments 1o the enadit contrasct in crder (o inelude additienal
banks as lenders. The totwl amount of the credit i $1,274.5 milhon, divebsd i tmnches: 1) leng
tranche, up o S0 malleon, i) shon tranche up bo 5513.3 million and i) the letter of credit
tramche for debt service resenve up to 560 2 mallion

The creda facilitses mature in December 2026 and December 2034 for the short and long tanche
Ioan respectively, with payments due on a semi-annual basks. The credit Beilities bear interest at
LIBOR plus the spread.

_ Applicabile
Yeurs nuErgin
S
| “disbursement - (System }
Cammercial Operation Date) 250
-4 265
50 300
1014 325
1 5-until cradit maturity 350
As of December 31, 2017 the total outstanding loan 15 51,1554 million, with ibs respectuve

maturniies. TAG hedged a portion of the Leans tied to the interest rate risk through an inberest rate
swap, by changing the vanable rate [or o [wwed e

The loans mensoned above contan restnctive covenants, whuch requare TAG W maintan cortain
nancal mtscs and Tmits dividend payments, loars snd obtmmang acditsonil fnancimg. TAG miet
such covenants as of December 31, 2017,

IENOVA
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Long-term debi due dates are as follows

Year Aol
2017 ¥ M)
208 59
2019 30
2020 50
Thereafter 40
Tl 1 [RE

B} Detevesr pte swaps In December 2005, TAG contracted derivative instruments in onder to hedge
the risk of varable interest rates onginated from LIBOR. The Oxed contracted interest rate 1s 2.5
percent [or the debt maturing o8 Dxecember 2006 amad 2.9 percent Lor the debl matunng al Decem ber
2034,

¢} Exchange rade forwards TAG entered into forward contracts with five banka to exchange Pesos
For Dol lars of a porson of the propects revenwes (or 2016, maturnrg through 2016 and n the Dirs
quarter of 201 7. Additionally, in September 2006, TAG entered ino forward contracts toexchange
Mexican Pescs for U5, Dollars of a portion of the projects’ revenues for 20017, maturing through
2007 and in the first quarter of 20018

dl Dby for fingcing FAT. On December 19, 2014, TAG signesd s credit agreement for fmancing VAT
with Santander NAFINSA, Banco Naconal de Comercio Exterior, 5. N. C. Institucion de Banca
de Diesarrallo (" BANCOMEXT ")and Banco del Bapo, 5 A, Irstitucion de Banca Mulaple ("Ban
Bajio® ). The amount of the credst line was for 33,6809 million Mexican Pesoa. On September 20,
2007, the VAT line of credit waes paid in full lor 2 1olal amount including mierest of $206 4 million
Mexican Pesos, (USS11.3 million).

1. Business combinations and asset acquisition

1.1,

IFnova Pipelines, business eombination

O September 26, 2016, TEnava acquired the remamning 30 percent of TEnava Pipelines shares at a value
of %1, 1438 million, which was recorded using the acgquisition method as it obtained control over IEnova
Fipelines as of such date, The result of this acquisition has been meluded i the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements as of the acquisition date.

o Subsidiaries acquired

. ) Proporiion of 1.
Emity Prinsipal actlviiy glﬁfm hm wﬂl rﬁ.-:?n:u]m
IEncva Fipelines Gas transportation P igTe S 507 $1,143,834

b. Consinleration transferred

The costs nssociated with the acquisition have been excluded fram the considenation ransfemred and
have been recognized as an expense in the period within “Operating, admimistrative and other
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Prafit

1.2,

IENOVA

€. Assels aoguired and lebiliges recoprized af the aoquisition date ad poodoil] on ecqrisitions

Asal 32616

Fair valee of husinsss combination:

Cash consideration (fair vabue of total consideration) 5% 1,143,834

Total fair valse of business combination & 2,287 668
Cash and cash equivalents o,
Trade and ciher receivables o, 7359
Finance lease receivables Q45 104
Propenty, plant and equipment, net B0 18
Cither assets 033
Currert linbalities (1129800
Mon-current labhitwes (1) (484.572)
Total identifinble, net assets 1,275,232
Goodwill 5 1AG7.008

(1) Includes 33640 million related to bank lears.

None of the pocdwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
ey sources of estima bon uncertainy

Selected Viluation Methodolagy:

TEnewa Pipelings 15 n regulated business, that wall eam a return of its costs and a reasonable retum
on its invested capital, without other consideration; the value of the sssets of a regulated business is
the vahse of its invested capital, Under this premise, the FY of the fixed assets of regulated businesses
is equivalent to carrying value for (inancial reporting purposes, as carying value reflects the basis
For which invested capital is derived, and for which aregulated business isallowed o earna reasconahl e
retume

The Company concluded that the carrving value of the fixed assets is deemed to be representative of
FV lor TFRS purposes

. Ner cosh fTow from acquisition of subsdiaries

As ol
2616
Consideration pid in cish s 1,043 834
Less: balances of cosh and cash equivalents nogquined {6, 2507
Corsderation pandd 10 cash, net % 1,077 584
e

€. lmpact of acquisitions on the results of the period

The resubis of the yvear ended December 31, 2006, inchedes a gain of $673, 1 million for the excess
of the scquisition-date finr value of [Enova's previously held equity mterest in [Enova Pipelimes over
the carrying value of that interest, included & remeasurement of equity method investment on the
Consohiddated Siatem ents of Profil

Vensika, business combimation

On December 14, 2016, [Enova acquared the 1080 percent of the shares of Ventika at a value of $434.7
millicn, which was reconded using the acquisition method as it obtained control over Ventika as of such
date. The result of this scquisition has been included in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statenvents ns of the acquisttion date
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Enal Principal activi Daie of —"—"P"" riem of Conskleratbon
7 iyl | B ﬂﬁt!&ﬂﬂllllgﬂ Inansferred

- Wind Generation December 14, i .

Vertika Facility M6 s 434 688

b Comsideraion transferred
The cests associated with the acquusition have been exeluded from the conslerahion translerred and
have been recognized as an expense in the period within “Operating, administrative and other
expenses” in the Consolidated Statements of Profi.

e AAssels acquired and liobilifes recognized af the acquisition date and goodwill on acquisitions

As ol
131416
Fair walue of business combination:
Cash considerataon (Fur value of wobal considenation’) 5 M 724
Total farr value of business combination 5 0 724
Cash ard cagh squivalents 24
Trade and cther receivablbes, net 14,950
Reancted cash 8, 200
Okher asacts 50,2046
Property, plant and equipment, net 673 410
Intangible asels 154,144
Current babilities (145,912)
WNon-current Liabilities (521,825)
Total identifiable, net assets 5 194 205
Goodwill 3 115,429
|

Druring the fourth quarter of 2011 7, the Company received addftional information regarding Ventika's
deferred incom e Laxkes as of the scquisiiondate, prisarily related 1o net aperaling loss carny Torwands.
Az a result, the Company recarded mensurentent period adjustments that resulted in a net dacrense
o goodwill and an increase in deferred tax aszets of $13.7 million, respectively.

. Ner cosh fTew weed in eogrisition of subsigiaries

As ol
12046
Consdaration pad in cosh 5 434,688
Less: bobances of cash and cash equivalents acqguired [24)
Conmdaration paid in cash, na 5 434, 65

62

1.3

IENOVA
DEN, asset acquisifion
On November 15, 2017, IEnova completed the acquisition of Pemex TRIS 50 percent interest in DEN,
@ joird venture that holds a 30 percent interest in the Los Ramones Morte pipeline, through TAG, for a
purchase price of %164, 8 million (exelusive of $17.2 million of cash and cash equivalents acquired), plus
the assurnpison of 3958 milliona of intercompeamy debt. This acquizithon increases [Enova's ownership
interest in TAG from 25 percent 1o 50 percent. [Enova Pipelines previously accounted For its 50 percent
interest i DEN & an equity method imvestment. Tn Bovember, 2017, DEN bacame a wholly owmed,
consolidated subsidiary of [Enova, DEN will continue to acoount for its intérest in TAG as on equity
method nvesiment
Thas transactwon was accounted a5 an assel acquisiion because DEN does nol meet the defmiton of a
business, simce it dioes mot heve substantive mpuats or processes. DEW sm ost significant asset is 1is equity
method mvestment m TAL, the enlily thal owns the Los BEamones Morde pipehne. The excess
consderation over the Eair value of assets acquired and lishilities assumed was allocated on a relative
[wir value bases between the equity investment in TAG and an acquired mtangible ssset (Plosse refier to
Woge 15}
. Assets acquisifion
Proportios of veting
. [rle o 4 Cisskieraiion
Rttty Mk actishy quiion U Ierets e
. Holds ecquity Mowember 15, y Ll TE
R invessment n TAG 2017 0% $164.752
Assefs acquired and Nabilittes recognized al the aoquisition date
Asof
1111517
Fair value of asseia aequisition:
Cash paid 5 I6d, 752
Acquusition costs 143
Totwl fair value of assels acguisition 5 164, BO5
]
Cash and cash equivalents 17,257
Trade and cther receivables 12,284
Defarrad incame boe nssats 10,481
Inwestment in TAG 295,002
Propernty, plant and equipment, net 1,705
Crher nlangnble assels 44,566
Current habihties [ 543)
MWon-current liahilites (5,830
Total identifiable, net assets i | 86,203
Less: Carrying vahee of equity interest im DEN immediate by
PrReT Lk SCELISITION [21,308)
Total fair value of asscts acquisition ] 164,895
[

Valuntion of IVEN"s Asseis and Linbilities. DEN 15 substantinlly comprised of two assets. The (irst
agset 15 DEN's equity method investment in TAG. The second asset 15 an acguired intargibls asset, with
an amortization period of 23 vears, representing a favorable Operation & Mmntenance ("OEM)
agreement. Both assets were valueed using an meome appreach. For substantially all other assets and
linbalities, the Company determined that histerical carrying value approximates fair value due to their
short-lerm ratune,
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b Ner cash flow from aeguizsiiion of assets

As ol
11517
Consideration pasd in cash ] T64, 752
Plus: Acquesition ¢osds paad 143
Leas: balances of cash and cash equivalents scquired, net
of acquisstion costs ({17,257
Conswlemtion paxd m cash, net ] 147 638

Assels classilied as held Tor sale and discontinued operatiom

(a)

(b}

As mentioned in Mote 1.2.3., the Company®s mansgement approved o plan Lo market and =<l TDM, a
625 MWW natural gos-fired power plant located in Mesxicals, Baga Califernin, Mexico. Since March 31,
2014, the aszets and liabilatics were claszifed under current assez and labilities held forsale. The results
of TIAM are prasented within discontinued operations

Dietanls of the discontinued operations ane provided as follows:

YVear enaded
1231417 123116 123115

Revenues 5 19634 § 101,547 % 143,500
Cost of revernes {101,640 (85,446) {114,209)
t?;;w;@mmmmv: ini other (26,189 (17515 22350
Impairment {63, B0d) {136, 8200)
Depreciation and ametiztion - ey ] (133213)
Interest imcome - P 42
Finance costs (595) (254) (244)
Crher grares (bosses), net (e (1,.396) (151)
Incom« tax benefit (expense) * 5,567 20,808 (5, 165)

Loas for the year s (56.40d) $ (112.332) § {14.797)

*  The Company docs ol recognize a deferrod tax Labality relsted ioihe undistnibuied carmings, becauss
it currenily does mod expect these eamings 1o be taxable inthe near future, for that reason the defemed
tax lisbility recorded in 2006, amounted 10 35.3 million was derccognized. This effect is shown
the Corsolidated Statements of Profit in the line item of *(Loss) prof for the year from discontinued
operabions, et of meome tax”,

Dunmg 2017 the Company has nol recognnzed a delermed tax assel in the amount of 515.2 milhon
generaled [or the deduchible lemporary dhllerences between book value and 1ax basis as a resull of
the decision to sale the parinership imberest m TE,

Additonally, the Company has not recognized a delferrad tax assel in the amount of $325.9 million
generated for the deductible emporary differences between book value and tax basis of TDM.

The Company consuders that there are no suflicient taxable profits available 1o recognize all or part
ol the defarred o azel

Wear ended
12431117 12731716 12/31/15
L peer gheare:
From discontinwes operations 5 (0.0d) 3 (0.09) % {0

(<)

Asiels mmd haboies held for sale comesponcing 1o TR are as follows:

As al
12531717 12731716

Cash and cash equivalents % —_— % a34
Cither assols 64,203 22513

Total current asscts 64,263 33,247
Dieferred meonme tax assets 201 1M
Cither assols 1,515 1,125
Carbon allowance 212 el | o)
Propeny, plani and equipmend, ned (1) Ta a0 134,633

Total non-curre it fssss B3,927 158,080

Total assels 5 148,190 % 191,287
Current libilities 5 54336 § 2,074
Mom-cumrent labalities 8186 27477

Toial laahilities 5 G522 & 35,451

(13As a result of the allocation &= assets held for sale, the Company camed oul a review of the
regoverable amount of these assets. The Company estimated the fmr vahes less estimated costs 1o
sell of property, plant and equpment based on available market appraesals or using other valuation
Lechnigues,

As a result of the allocation i assets held for sale property, made duning this yvear, the Company
camied outa review of the recoverable amount of theae assets. The review led to the recognition of
an after-taoe impairment besa of 5638 and 595 8 million during, 2017 and 20046 reapectively, which
have been recognized in the Consolidated Statemients of Profit. The Company also estimated the
Fair vahue less costs of disposal of property, plant and equipment, which is based on the recent market
pricea of assets with similar age and obsolescence.

Yiear eovded
12531417 1251006
Cash flows from discontinued opemtions.
Met cash flows provided by (used in) operating
ACtIvIlies 5 lsd 5 (B6E)
Met cash Mows used in investing activitics (TN ] {2 108
Mel cush Nows usad in financing activities (53 (250)
et cash Dows 5 5 {3,322)

TOMA meets the crleria established in TFRS 3 Now-cwmens Avuets Ml for Sale and Discontimned
Choerations o mairtain the classification as assets and labilites held for sale and discontinued operation
ms ol December 31, 2017 and 2016

IENOVA
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13.

Canaidwill
Ax al
1203117 1203116 1273115
Cost 5 1638001 § 1638091 8§ 25,654
|
There are no accumulaled imparment lozies. The breakdown of goodwill s as [ollows:
As of
i m paany 1207 1243116 1243115
IErova Pipelines ] 1497008 % 497008 5
Ventika 115,429 115429
G 25,654 25654 25,654
Tatal 3 1638081 % AR § 15,654

Allocanon of goadatll fo cash-gensranng s
IErava Pipelfnes

Management expects the [Enova Pipelines acquisition to have strategic benefits, inchading oppomtunitics for
expansion inkx other nfrastructure projects and langer platform and presence mn Mexico Lo participals in enengy
sector. A= auch, [Encva Pipelines poodaill 12 tested at the Company’s Cash Generated Unit ("CG1T™ ), TEnova
Pipelines

The Company used DT analysis (o determine the fir value of the CGUL The DOF meludes cash flows throwgh
contracted permiod of the pipelines and the gas storage termiral exit mubtiple of 4.3x The discount rate utsed
wis the weaghled average cosl of capaal {"WACT® ) caleulated in 7.2 percent. Under this approach, the value
i oee Wi greater to the camying value. Based on that no impainment was determmed

etk

There are mo significant changes in Ventika's operations that would indscate potential impaiment since
pequsion, meluding the followng: ) 1ls financial resulls have been consstent with management akial
projectiona, b) there has not been a material change in macrosconomic indicators, and o) there have been no
sapmaficant changes in workforce, strategy, market trends or inmpacts due 1o recent acquisiions integrtons

In the case of Ventka, the Comparm: considerad approprante 10 wee cash Mows From the acquisition modal and
reviewad consistency with the actual results in 2017 The discount rate wsed was the WACT of 10.]
percent. Linder this approach, the value in use 15 greater 10 the camymg valee. Based on thal no mparment was
determined.

Durirg the fourth quarter of 2017, the Company received additional information regarding Venbika's deferred
meome taxes as of the acqunsition date, primanly related to net operating loss camyforwards. As a result, the
Com pary recorded a measurement period adjustment that resulted in a net decrease to goodwill of $13.7 million.
(Please refer 1o Mote 11,260

TCR

Goodwill has been allocaead for impairment testing purposes to [Enova Grsoductos Mexica's cash-genemtmg
urit, which iz included in the (a3 segment:

The recoverable amount of this cach-penerating unit is deteren ined based ona 10-vear DCF analysis of TEnova
Grsaductos Mexico's prajected resulis. The DOF for 2017, 2006 and 2015, was calculaned based on a long-1erm
unibevered cash flow forecast using a discount rate of 9 percent, which was the zame rate used at the acquisition
daze

14,
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There are no sipnificant chanpes in [Enova Gasoductos Mexico’s operations that would indicate potential
imparment since soquisition, ncleding the following: a) a3 [nencial results ave been consistent with
marsagement’s inital projectiona, by the changes on the macroeconomic indicators may have rot had adverse
change of Sovercign average rating from BEE 10 BEE+ for Mexico), ©) changes in the regulatony environment
have not had adverse efféct on the Compary's opertions and, d) there have beéen no significant changes in
warkforce, strategy, market trends or impacts due to recent acquisitions/integrations.

Although, the Company s manesgement believes the carrent discount mmbe may be lower as market rates have
declined since the acquestion, the discount mte used as of the acquisition date was deemsed 10 be o reasonable
rate for goodwill mipairment testing purposes.

Properiy, plant and coqulpment, net
As ol
12031417 13116 1:3115

Carrying ety of
Bunldmgs amal plants 5 47315 3 L1525 8§ 2,586,775
Foguipment 28,674 os017 R, 965
Unher pasets 7 112,279 SET 8 843
' 4,163,268 3266212 3,712,583
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (545 148) (433074) (357,563)
Lard B2380 83,404 Tehaad
Properies umder construction 28,947 G5, 543 36, 15046
] 3720456 4 3614085 5 2,595 840

67



IENOVA

sl

Balance as of Jameary 1, 2015

Additions
Disposal s

Effect of foraign cumensy translabon
Fevisions and addiions to decommussiornng hability
Balanee as of December 31, 2015

Assats held for sale
Audditions

Businzss combination 1Enova Pipelines (Refer to Note 11,10
Businzss combination Ventika (Refer to Note 11,20

DCisposals

Eftect of foraign cumency translabion
Fevisions and addshons to decommusicmng habahity
Balance as of December 21, 2016

Ackditions

Assets sequisition DEN (Refer 1o Nete 11.3)

Disposals

Effect of fereipn currency translation
Bevisions and addiions to decommusioning liabality

Cither

Balanc= as of Deceamber 31, 2017
Aocwmulated depreciation

Balance as of Jameary 1, 2015
Elirumated on disposals of asssts
Depraciation expenss

Effect of forsign cumrency translabion
Balanee as of December 31, 2015

Aszais held for sale

Elirmmated on disposals of assets
Depreciation expense
Eifzcl of [oraign cumency translalion

Clither

Balance as of December 31, 2006

Eliminated on disposals of assets
Depreciation expense
Effect of forapn cumency translalion

Cileer

Balance as of December 31, 2017

PFropertics
Buildings wmder
Land and planis Equipment construction Oriher osseds Total
3 74,988 .3 2287.706 § 64,572 % 415,211 % 32048 % 2 875,425
1,542 332691 Il awi [30,048) B, 1o 315,048
— (2,738 — — (1,317) {1,055)
(G} (25,275) (30d) (367) (1.552) (23.0:04)
[5.609) {50007
76,524 2.586,775 Bo 905 364,79 JH KA 3,153,403
(674) {436,077 (7.52%) (533) (2.93%) (447.744)
282 15,523 17,085 332,682 17,386 382,938
6,026 296,520 B.750 311,294
252 673,531 673, TE3
(1021} (164} {T3R) (L5213}
{6 (26,H52) {3443 {724) (1.636) 39,592
— 4 UTH — — — 4 97H
B2,404 3,113,347 96,017 695 721 50 670 4047159
13 REGQ17 192 {T05,173) 33,31B 215,267
203 1,592 1,M35
(307 (7.501) {50 (325) {2,146) (10,061)
2 (10,662 — 16,013 837 6,190
— 10.E14 — — — 10,514
24,400 [67,079) 22711 24,008 3440
§ E2.380 5 4017315 % Xao7d § 0T 8 117270 8 4.274.604
5 = b (468,778) § (8.545) % — & (20,363) % (497 684)
B0 {599) 183 454
(62,203) (1,635) {3.840) (67.682)
6,269 173 )9 7 351
{523 B47) (10,606) (23,115 (557,563)
178,795 1,622 1804107
271 111 270 652
(57,741} (2.241) {3.468) (63,4500
6,732 186 3806 7.804
- 934} s — — {934)
— (396, 719) (17,550 — (23 805) {433,074)
BS0 146 1,572 2,608
{102.805) (911) {6, 745) (1104610
= (1,314} (230 = (B66) (2,214
— (3,379} 3,570 — {2.207) {2.007)
5 5 (503,327 % (0070) % 5 [31.851) % (345,148)

IENOVA
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ECA sequired 19,452, 2090 square meters of knd of which 627,614 were wsed for the construction of the
LWG Terminal, The remaining land isused as bufTer and access sones inaccordance with the authonzaton
izsued by the Mexican Matural Reaources and Envircnmental Ministry (Secretaria de Medio Ambicnte
¥ Recursas Natumles, “SEMARNAT™ by its matuals in Spanish)

The additions o property, plant and equipment during 2017, 2016 and 2015, are mainly conprised of
corstruction i process, related w the following pipe line segrments: Guaymas- El Ono, Opinaga- El Encino,
San Tsidro-Samalayuca and El Empalme pipeline banch

As of December 31, 2017, the pipeline projects started commercial eperation as follows:

San Isidro - Samalayuca on March 31, 2017
Guaymas - Bl Oro on May 19, 2017
El Empalme pipeline branch on June 24, 2017

* & + &

Asof December 31, 2017, 2016.and 201 5, additions of property, plant and equipment that were not pasd,
amount 1o 3417 million, $49 8 million and 552 million, respectively

Barrowing cost, [nring the vears ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 the Company capitalized
barrowing cosls on qtnlll'vmg. assels 1n lthe amount ul‘Slﬂ mallon, 3148 millon and $15.1 mallion,
respectively. The weighted average rate used to defermine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for
cupmhmlm were 29 percent, 3.33 pencent andl 3,47 percent, [or the years ended December 31, 2N 7,
2016 and 2005, respectively.

Usefiel tves af property, plant ard eguiprnent

Depreciation & calculated using the straight-line method based on the remaming useful lives of the
related asscts, as follows:

Yeurs
Buildngs iy
Plant and equipment for LMNG storage, regasafication amd nitrogen injection facility ' 5-45
Plant and equipment for wind power generation facilities | 20340
Pipelines system for transpontation and distribution of gas ' 34.30
Plant and equipment for generation of clectricity * a7
Fiber optic network 5:20
Leasehold improvements * 3-10
Wachinery and other equipment * 310
Oriher azseis © 3.20

i Uzeful lives related 1o plart and equipment categony
z Useful lives related 1o other assets category

69
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Intangible assets
Asal
123117 1273106
Carryving wmornls af!

Renewable tranamission rights (a) i 1534144 § 154,144
M cantract (b 44 568
Amortization (25110 —

3 1900199 § 154,144

e
ful Henewable transmission rights
Axof December 14, 2016, regarding Ventika's scquisiion the Company recorded 3154 Omillvon related

io the renewshble iransm ission and consumption righis associsted with the projects approved under the
preesisting sl supply renewahle program.

Amortizstion is culculsted wsing the straight-line method based on the remaining useful life of the

related mtangible asset, derived over the temm of the self-supply power agreements of 20 years. As of
Drecember 31, 2017, the amortization anount 1o 383 million

ib) e Comiracs
In Movember 2007, the Company, tirough DEN" s assel soquisiion, acquised an intangible asset related
1o the Q&M contract with TAG, theamoariiztion i=cileulated on a straight-line Basis until the expiration
of the Agreement in February 2041, equivalent 10 23 years

Az of December 31, 2017, the amortization amount to $0.2 million.

I Trwde and ather payables

17.

A ol
1131417 123116 133115
Trade payables 3 12603 § 23731 3§ 43,830
Caher miscellaneous pavables is B35 %
5 1263k 8 566 % 43849
L] * |

The average credit period on purchases of goods and services is between 13 o 30 davs. No interest has been
charged en tmde pavables. The Company has policies in place to ensure that all pavables are paid within the
pre-agreed credit terms.

Employee benelits
170 Digined contrileuiion compeoreni

The Company provides a defined conlribution plan for all permanent full-time emplovees m Mexico,
Employees that leave the Company obtaim the capital accumulated with the contnbutions acconding 1o
the followning vesting schedule: a) Bame Contnbution: 100 percent immediately for the capatal
accumulated. b) Addisonal Contribution: for the capital accumulated the vesting rates are: 100 percent
in e of death or disability, and in case of voluntary termimation acoording with the Company palicy

7.2 Dhfined benefit companert

The Conpany also provides defined benefit plans for all permanent full-time employees of its subsidinries
in Mexico, Under the plans, the emplovess are entitled o rebirement benefis varvang between 55 pereent
and 100 percent of deeir final salary upon reaching the retirement age of 65 vears. Mo other post-retirement
benefits are provided to these emplovees.
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Lentawily preminm bengfite

The Company provices seniority promium benelits, which consist of a lump sum payment of 12 days of
wages per each year worked, caleulated using the emploves’s maost recent salary, not to excesd twice the
minimum wage ¢stablished by law,

I7.3.1. Casts and obligations for post-emplayment aad adher long-term engpilayee bangfies

The principal essumptions used for the purposes of the actuaral vahestions were as follows:

Valuation at
123117 125118 1231515
Dascount rates B15% AL B0
Expected raies of salary increase 4. T5% 4 75% 4. 75%
Long-term expactad milation 3, 75% 375 3, 74%
Exchange rate 3 1820 3 197§ 17.20

Amounts recognized within current camings and OC1 a3 well as benefiis paid with respect to the
Company s post-cmployment and other long-term employes benefits wene as follows:

Asoof

12730416 12731715

12731407
Curment service cost recognnzed
in administrative and other
CXPENEES
Infere=t on obligation recognized
in finamce coats 457 145 ] |

Actuarinl grin (Josses)
recognized in O8] T 1, M5 {1.793)

155 & 645§ 531

The amount mcluded in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Fosition anising from the
Company s obligation related to iis defined benefit plans, and changes in the present value of the
defined benelit ohligation in the current vear, wera as follows:

As ol
123117 1230716 123118

Crpening defined beneiin

obligation 3 5,586 % 4395 % 3,048
Current servics cost 105 585 531
Interest benefit 422 M v |
Actuarial gain (loss) 2z 435 (G55
Exchange differences on plans

mainkaned by Mexican peso )

functional eurreney enliles 1,102
Paymenl — 115 —
Benefits paid (58) (153) (4%
Ending defined benefit

obiligation 3 6537 5 35056 3 4,295

71
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Criher linancial lishilities
Asaol
1273117 1251716 123115
Accrued interest payable (o) 3 6050 % 4,855 % 5661
Churantee Tabality (b) 2080
Customer deposits 1 333 1032 TE3
3 1037 5§ SETT 5 6

(@) Balance represents nccrued interest payable on long-tenm debt. Please refer to Note 23,
ib) 1Enowa and its partner on the Sur of Texas-Tuxpan natural gas pipeline, Transcanada, have a jointly
guaranieed ohligation for constructions services during the comstruction of the pipelne. Flease refer (o

Moge 1003,
Oither labilities
Axal
12/3117 [ RLEY B [ 1231115

Wages and benefits payable i 12012 5 14505 5 12482

Other current liabilmies G619 13,866 4. T55

i 19651 S 28841 8 17237

¥ ¥ |

Carbon allowances

The E'.‘nmr\mg.' & regquired hg. Cahlormn J\:Bi:mh'!.‘ Eull 32 10 accunre CAs Tor every melnc ion ol carbon dhosode
equrvilert emiled nlo the aimoesphere l,i,.lrmH u:lo:i;l.'nnl!.' genernbion Uedder the Eall TIN 15 EI,.‘.'IJ#I:I 1o thas
extraterrional regulation, despae bemg located n Baja Califorman, hMeticd snce thar end osers ane losated in
Califormaa, 11 5.

The Company recands CAs at the lower of weighted average cost or market valee, ard includes them as current
o non-current o the Conaoldated Statementa of Finamcial Pesition based on the dabes tha they are required 1o
be surrendered. The Company measures the complianee of the cbligation. whach s based on cmissions, at the
camying vaboe of allowances beld phas the fairvahes of additional allowances necessany to satisfy the obligation
The Company derecognizes the asscls and Liabilitics from the Conseliskited Sttements of Financial Position as
the allowances are surrendered. Flease refer 1o MNole 12,

A% are shown in the Consohidaed Starements of Financaal Posmon as follows.

As ool
Amaris; 123115
Current 3 5,383
Momn-currenl 125745
i 18,360
| —
Liahilities
Cuirrent ] 5335
Fon-current 12611
i 175505
I —————
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I1.

Short-term deb
Asof December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, shor-term debt includes the following:

Jus ol
L3117 1231016 1231/15
Credit agreemeni (&) ] 137053 3§ Hio 0534 & 0,374
Certificados Bussatiles ("CERURES") ot
variahle rate (Refer to Mote 23.8.) 65,871 — —
Current pestion of [Enova Pipelines Bank
Loan er to Mobe 23.6.) 40,631 33,682 —
Current pection of Vientka Bank Loan (Reler - -
1o Note 23.4) 22,588 15,482
266,143 08 1498 21,374
Borrowing costs (3,333 (4,627) (2367)
3 262,060 4 35T % B, 207
fu) Credif agresarent. On August 21, 2015, the Compary entered into an agreement for a 340000 millios,

U5, Dollar-denominated, five-vear corporate revalving credit facility to finance working capatal and
for general corpomate purposes. The kenders are Banco Nacional de Mexoco, 5. AL Integrante de Grapao
Financiero Bamamesx, SMEBC, Santander, The Bank of Tokyve, and The Bank of Nova Sootia

Credat ety with SMBC, On August 25, 2014, the Company entered inlo an agreemend [or a 510000
mllem, LLE. dollar-denomimated, three-year corpornle revolving crechl [aculity 1o linance workiirg capital
and for general corporite T‘I:FE':!'J.:'I'I-SELD'I'HIEII'IHJ Bofitw Banking Corporation. Intereslaccrues
basad on the 3-month LIBOR plus 105 BPS, During Julye 2005, the Compamy withdrew 3340 million
On Awgust 24, 2005, the Company decikded 1o repay the total eradit Bcality and caneclled this eredit
Facality.

[nterest acarses based on the 3-month LTBOR plus S80EPS. As of Tecember 23, 2003, TEnova had$310.10
millicn of outsinnding borrowmgs supporied by the facility. On December 22, 3015, the Coepamy
renegotiated the eredit line of agreement for an amount up te $600.0 millian, 1.8, Dollas-denominated
On Decennber 23, 200 5, the Company decuded to repay 521900 millsen (principal) of such credn fseility.

i ithatemw of credit line. In June and July 2016, the Company withdrew 32000 milbon and 338000
million, respectively, of the credit line 1o be used for working capital and general corporate purposes.
In December 20146, the Company withdrew 53750 mallon to fimance a portion of Yenlika's soquasfion
and for general corporate purposes

O Ciciober 21, 2016, the Clompany paid 325000 million of the credid agreesnent.

O Movember 3, 2006, the Company renegotiated the credit ne of the credit agreement for an amount
up to 31,1700 millien, U5, Dollas-deneminated. On December 30, 2016, a portion af thas revolving
credat was repad in the amount of 320000 milhion

Omn Mevember 14, 2017, the Company withadrew S28000 mallion, 8 porbon of Lhas disposibion was wesd
1o fimance the acquasition of DEN. (Flease refer to Note 11.3)

Cm Drecember 14, 2017, with the procesds received from the Senior Wotes offening the Compary paid
# poction of this revolving credit by $730.0 million. (Fleass refer to Note 2300

Asof December 31, 2017, 2006 and 2015 the available unused credit portion 31,033 0 million, $724.0
mvillecm s S0 O il leom, respectinely:.

[Mspesitions of the credit lime to be used for working capatal and general corporale purposes,
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il Financing of project’s VAT - On April 8, 2004, Ventika emered into a line of credit with WAFINSA and
BANCOMEXT, as lenders. Cn December 17, 2005, there was an amerdment 10 indre ase the hine [or up
to 3569 4 million Mexican Pesos and 37133 million Mexican pescs, respectively. Interest was accnued
it the THE plus 230 BPS payable on a quarterly basis. The credit line under this contracts was used to
firance the VAT on the Ventika's projects. In 2016, the Company doecided to repay and accordinghy
canceled the otal crodit Bscilaty.

fer  Credit facility with Santarder. On June 19, 2014, the Compuny enbered anto un agreement For g 32000
millon, 178 Dollar-denommated, three-venr compomite revolving caredn fclily 1o (mance working
capital and for gencral corporste purposes. The lender Santander. Interest accrued base on the 3-month
LIBOR phlus 105 BPE Durmg July amd Auguest 2015, the Company withdrew 576.0 millon and $25.0
million respectvely. On August 26, 2015, the Company decided to repay the total credit facility. As a
resull, ranssction cost were recorded in the Consolidated Statemerts of Profit

Provisions
As ol
123117 1273106 12/3115%
Decommissioning habahities (a) 3 o545 41618 5 34,236
Caher provisions (h) 8,950 10,347 1,293
i G604 & 51,965 § 35,529

Current 3 394 5 230 3 1,293

Mo current 67210 51,035 34,236

Total provisiens i G604 5 51,965 § 35,529

Assel retiremont
abligations {Hhers Tistaal

Balance &= of January 1, 2015 3 38250 3 1,619 3 35 B

Additional provisions recognized 1,596 — 1,55

Payments and other decreases m provisions

el — (326) (326)

Unwinding of discount and e Tect of changes

in the discount rate (56100 (5,6100

Balance gs of December 31, 2015 3 34236 5 1.293 5 35,529

Addrional provisions recognized 1,705 9380 11,085

Trcrease of firancial cost 1,745 1,745

Pavments and other decreases m provisions

recopnized — (326) (326

Unwimding of dizcount and efTect of changes

m Lhe ciscount rate 3,952 3,932

Balance as of December 31, 2016 5 41618 5 10347 § 51,965

Additional provisions recognized 4239 — 4. 2539

Imerease of firancial cost 1,983 1,983

Payments and other decreases m provisions

recopnized — (1,397 (1,397)

Unwinding of discount and ¢ [Tect of

changes in the discount rate 160814 10814
Balance as of December 31, 2017 3 58654 3 3950 3 G760
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fo)  Decomnissioning labilifies

For kong-lived azscts, the Company recognized decomm izsioning liabilities for the present value of future
costa expectid 1o be incurred when assets are withdrawn from service, if the Company has a legal or
constructive obligateon and if the Com pany canmake areascnable estimate of that obligation. The discount
rakes used by the Company were 3,90 percent, 4.54 percent and 4.66 percent as of

Drecember 31, 2007, 2016 and 2015, respactively

fb)  Cither provisiens

The balance of elher provesions mehude a lnbslity by $0 4 millen due to an cnercus conlnact representing
the present value of future losses that the Company expects to incur undzr ane of their service contracts
Because the related asset 1s operating below full capacily, management of the Company utilized a present
value model 1o determime the provision utilizing a discount rate of 10 percent.

The Company reported damage and declared a Force mageure event for the Guaymas-E] Oro segment of
the Sonora pipeling in the Yaqui termtory that has imlemapted 1ts operations sinee August 23, 2017, As of
December 31, 2007, the Company recorded a provision by 30.8 million. The Sasabe-Puerio Libertad-
(rusymias segmaent remairs i full operation.

Az of December 31, 30 7, the balances ofthe Specific Services Contract (“CSE™) relsted to the suthorzed

prenvision stipulated under the O contract with Pemex TRI regarding the acquisition of materials,

spare parta and services for the mainterance of the pipelines transportation system amounts 37.7 million
Taong-ternn di bt

Az of December 31, 2007, 2016 and 2015, long-term debd imeludes:

Aol
L230Y 1203016 123115
Senior Notes (f) 1 R40000 % — 5 =
Samander -Ventikn (d, &) 451,248 472 T8I
BBVA Bancemer - 1BEnova
Pipelines (&) 277,175 32 —
CEBURES at frxed rate (a, b) 197,614 158,734 226 G55
CEBURES at varinble mte (a, b) —_ G291l 75,553
1,766,057 1041, 705 302

Diebt issuamce coats (33,907 1,541 (2,287

5 1732040 % LOO R & 209,005

¢ CEBURES On February 14, 2013, the Company entered into two public debe issumess of CERURES
or debt securities as follows:

1)  The first placement was for S306.2 mallon (33,900 millon of histoncal Mexican Pesos) bearng
interest at o mate of & 30 percent, with semi-annual payment of mleres), matunng m 2023

1) Thesecond plicement was for $ 1021 millwon (31,300 million of historical Mexocan Pesos) bearng
imterest at vanahbe rate based on the TTIE plus 30BPS, with monthly payments of interest, maturing
i X118, The avernge anmal mee as of December 31, 2007, 20016 and 201 5, was 7,25 percent, 4,64
percent ard 362 pereent, respectively.

b Cross-currency and interese rate swaps. On Februany 14, 2003, reganding the placements of CEBUTRES,
the Company exscuted cross-currency and intarest mte swap contracts for hedging its exposure to the
payvment of s labilities in Mexican Peses

thn
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i) For the debt maturing in 2023, the Company swapped ficed rate in Mexioan Pesos for a foced rate
in TS Dallars, excharging principal and interest payments, The weighted average interest rate, in
115 Dollars for this swap was 4,12 percent,

u) For the debt matunng i 2008, the Company swapped vanable rate in Mesacan Pesos For a foeed
rate in L5, Daolkars, exchangmg primcipal and interest paymers, The weighted average interest rate,
in T8, Dollars for this swap was 2.65 percent.

The swaps” tolal nobonal value 15 3408.3 million (35,200 mulbon histonzal Mexican Pesos) These
coniracts have been designated as cash Now hedges,

Bancomer = [Eaova Pipelines. Un December 5, 2013, 1Enova Pipelines signed a eredit contract with
Bancomer as agent and Dewtsche Bank bMexico, Frduciary Division, 85 Fiduciary, The amount of the loan
i% for 34754 million U7 5 Dollars, the procesds of which will be usad 1o develop the Entity's projects m
process. The four participating credit institutions ane Baneom er with a 50 percent contribution, The Bank
of Tokyo with 20 pereent, Mitaho with 15 pereent and NORDVLE with |5 percent,

The loan calls for quanerly payments beginning en March 18, 2014, and ending in 2006 for o total term
of 13 vears

The loan bears an mierest ai the LIBOR plus 2.0 percent per year until the Difth anmiversany, LIBOR plus
1 28 percent from the filth to the eight anniversary, LIBOR plus 250 percent fram the erghth 1o twelfth
anniversary and LIBOR plus 273 percent [rom the thisteenth anaversary unti] matigiy.

As of December 31, 2007, the long term debt maturity are as follows:

Year Aol
2018 5 40531
2019 LA B R
2020 42,213
Thereallber 195,843
5 17 B

In such coedit, [Enova Pipelines was e linedas debtor, TDF wgether with GdT were assigned as guarantors
ardd collaterals through the cession of the eollections nghts from therr portfoho of progects legrated by
[Encva Pipelines, TDOF and GdT as source of payment for the credit.

Covenants arising from the eredit require foe the following,:

Maintaim a minimum menmber' s equity during the term of the loan, m the amounts indicated:

Entity Amcunt
TEnava Pipelines % 450,000
GdT 130,000
TOF K0, 000

Mfaintam an mberest atiooof 2.5 w1 at least on a consolidated basis (EBRTTTUA 1o imterest) for the payment
of irterest.

Az of the date of the Consolidated Financinl Statem ents, the Com pary has complied with these chligntions.
On Jarary 22, 2014, the Company contracted a lnancial derivative instrument (swap) with Bancomér,

The Bank of Tokyo, bizuho and NOBIVLE. Swch swap 5 10 cover the interest e nsk on is debt total
ameunt. The financial instrument changes the LIBOR for o fixed rte of 263 percent.
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The Company has designated denvatnee financml mstruments mentioned above under the model of cash
Moy hedges, in terms of what i2 permitted by the acoounting standards. Given that, this intersst rate swap,
hedge abjective 15 10 set the flowing cash derived from mnterest payments on the syndicatad loan maturmg
in 026,

Prajecdt flnarciag for the Veinks profect. On April B, 2014, Yentika entered imio a project finance [oam
for the construction of the wnd prajects with five banks: Santander as adminasteative and collnteral agent,
the MADE, Banco Nacional de Obras v Servicies Publicos, 5, N, C. Institucion de Banea de Desarrolle
(CBANOBRAS™), BANCOMENT, and NAFINSA as lenders.

The credit facilitics manare according to the following table, with pavments due on a quarterly basis cach
March 15, Jurse 15, September 13 and December 15 until the funal maturity date, as follows:

Aaturily

Bank date

SANTAMDER e o B e

BANCHBEAS 32032

MNADE ANF2032

BANCOMEXT 352032

MNAFTMEA ANS2032

The breakdown of the debi 15 a2 follows:
As ool

Hean'k 1243017
AL ] | 38,320
SANTAMNDER LT (s
BEANCOERAS B89
BANCOMENT &8 160
AR LN S 05, 160
Irnerest payable 1,180
3 473,836

Tnterest Rate Swaps. In order to mitigate the impact of benchmark interest rate changes, Ventika entered
wnbo fowr inberest rale swaps with Santander and BAMNOBRAS, € allows Yenbiks 1o have almost 9.0
percent of the mentioned credit facilities above fixed. The swap contracts allow for the Company 1o pay
i Nxed mierest rate of 2,94 percent and 3.68 percent, respectively, and to recerve variabde mieres) mie
(threc-month LIBOR)

Senior Netex On December 14, 2017, the Company entered into an agreement for 38400 million
intermational Senior Motes as follows:

1)  The first placement was bor S300 million besnng nterest st a rate of 3.75 percent, wilth semi-
anmsl payment of mtérest, maturing i 2028

i) The second placement was for 35300 million bearing interest ot a rae of 4.8% percent, with
semi-annual payement of irmenest, maturing in 2048

As of December 31, 2007, the debt issuance costs ameunts 3326 million

The Company wsed the net proceeds from the offenng to repay cutstanding shorl-term indebedness, with
the remainder for generml comporte purposes.

24.2,

243,

Capital management

The Company expects ils cash Mows from operstions 10 fund & substantal portion of future capital
expendinires and dividends

The Company 15 subject to externally imposed capatal nequirements for its regulated subasdiaries in
the gas segment. According to applicable regulations the subsidianes need to include intheir bylaws
the requirement to have a mmmum ficed capital, withow withdrawal rights, equivalentie |ﬂ'|'.|¢ﬁ:¢l‘ﬂ
of their investnent

Alzo, the Company has a commitment with the MMesican regulator for capital contributions based
an invested capital for its projects, As of December 31, 2017, 2006 and 2005, the Company hadd
complied with the above reguarements.

Categories of firancial instruments

As ol
123147 123146 1231115

Financial assers

Cash and cash equivalents 5 37208 % 24918 % 40377

Short term investment 1,081 R 0068

Fesiricted cash 55820 51,353 —
FVTFL

Held for trading 146 B 120 Z1.554
Amortized cost

[cans and receivahles 613, TR 218214 193, 102

Financial leasing DE0 310 QAT 466 14,510
Financiol fabilities
FVIFL

Held for trading, 5 204,170 3 226161 8 133,054
Amortized cost 205,537 1297812 BI.R35

Financial risk monagement objectives

The activities carried out by the Company may expose i to financial risk, including market risk,
which encompasses foreign exchange, interest rate and commodity price nisks, credit sk and
hepudity risk. The Company steks to minmiaze the paténtial negative effects of thess rmsks on s
firmancial performance through an overall nsk management progrmam. The Company may use
derwvative and non-denvative fimancial instruments to edpe apainst some exposures to financial
risks em bedded inassets and liabilities on the Conselidated Staten ents of Financial Pesition or off-
balarce sheet riska (firm comem itmenis and highly probable forecasied transactions). Bath financial
risk management and the use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments are govemned
by Company policies.

The Company dentifics, assesses, monitors and centrally manages te linancial nsks of its operating
subsrharies throwggh wntlen pohcies thal establish hmis sssocmted with specihic nsks including
guidelines for permassible losses, guidelnes for determming when the use of certain denvative
firmncial instnum ents are appropraie and within pohicy guidelires, guidelines for when irairumenis
cnrvhe desigrated us hedges, and guidelines for when dervative nstruments do net qualify for hedpe
accounting but can qualily as held-for-trading, which 15 the case for dervative financial instruments.
Compliance with established policies and exposure Timits by the Company’s management is
reviewed by internal awndit on a routine basis.

IENOVA
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244,

245,

Market risk

Market risk 15 the nisk of eroaton of the Company’a cash flows, carmngs, asset values and squity
due Lo adverse changes in markel prices and mierest and foreagn currency rates,

The Company has polickes governmg iks markel sk management and trading activibies. The Parent’s
senior oflicers are members of commitees that establish policies, oversee energy risk munagement
achvibies, aml mombor the results of trdhrg and other acthivities 1o ensure comphiance wilh the
Company’s stated energy risk management and trading pobicies, These activities include, bt ane
ot lumated to, dawly montorng of market posibions that create credit. lgudity and marke nisk. The
respectnve oversight organizations and committees are independent fram the energy procurement
departments.

The Company enters into a vanety of derivative financial mstruments 1o manage its exposure (o
commedity price, intenast rate and foreign currency exchange rate risks, inchading:

*  Imterest rabe swaps W mitigate the nsk of nsing imterest robes or foreign cumensies unsler
whach certain liakalities are depommated (and s selated tax impacts), and
«  Commodity price contracts 10 hedge the volatilny m the prices and basis of naural ges.

There has been no madenal change 1o the Company's exposare 10 markel nsks or the manner
which these nsks are marmged and measured

Vislawe af Hisk *Valt"} analysys

The Vak measare estumates the potential loss in pre-tax profik, under normal markel condiions,
overa given holding period for a specified conlidence bevel. The VaR methodology is a statistical ly
defined, probabiliy-based approach that fakes into sccoust market volatilites as well a5 nsk
diversafication by recognang olfseting posibons and correlations between products and markets.
ERisks ¢an be measured consistently across all markets and products. and nsk messures can be
aggregated 1o amive at a single risk nusmber.

Aleng with other tools, the Com pany wses VaR o measure its exposure to market nisk primarily
associated with commodity denvative instruments that the Compary holds. The Company uses
histerical volatilivies and correlations betw een instruments and postions m the caloulations

The Company wses 8 one-day holding penod and 8 95 percent comlidence mierval mn s Vak
cialculations. The one-day 95 percent VR mumber reflects the 9% percent probability that the daily
lss will not exceed Lhe reported Vil

The variance-covarance approach was wsed to caleulate the Vall values,

Wak History (95%, one day) Aol
by risk type 1231/17 1231/16 12/31/15
Intercst rate swap 5 2581 5 4025 5 3, T
Taotal Vak exposuns 5 2452 § 38X 5 3,573
R

VaR is a statistical estimate of how much a pertfole may lose in the given time bomizoen for the grven
confidence interval, By wsing a VaR witha 95 percent confidence imerval, the potential lossesabove
that percentile are potl congidered; by using historical data posgible adverse edreme movements
m ight not be captured, since thess did not occur durimg the time period considered i the calculations;
and there is no guaranice that the aciual boeses will ot exceed the calculatad Vak.

While Valt captures the Company”s daily exposure to commodity and mlerest rate risk, sensitivity
annhy=as evalumtes the mpact of o repsonobly possible change m commodity prices and interest rates
over i your, Details of sensitivity analysis lor foreign curtency nisk are so oul in MNote 24,7,

246 Commodity price risk

ZiL 7

Bufarket rsk related to physical commodities e areated by volatility n the prices and basis of certan
comnmodities. The Company s vanious subsidiaries ane exposed, in varving deprees, to price nisk,
primusily to prices in the natural gas markets, The Company s podicy i 10 manage tas risk within
a8 framework that conssders the unigue market and operating and regulstory envirenments of each
subsadiany

The l':ul'lip;uﬂy i.’.-E,trI-:Iﬂ"}' L‘{.FH'&EIJ.LIJL‘I.H‘I‘II‘NIL‘H]“]J [rice rizk, ir'u.‘l.lr:\-l."i.l}' H"lr\ul.qsh e r.-HG..FH FII‘J-E'"I':H
and storage, and power generating assets. The Company may utilize conimadity transactions in the
covirse of optimizing these assets, These transactions are typically priced based on market meexes,
bt may alse includs fixed price purchases and sales of commaodities. Please refer to MNote 24.4,

Foreipn currency risk surmagentes !

The Company has investments in entities whese [unctional currency 1s o the UL 3. Dollar;
additionally, it also has balances m Mesacan Pesos held by ats U5, Diallar functional cumency
subssdiaries, exposing the Company to currency fluctustions.

The Company's primary objective in reducing fercign currency risk 15 10 preserve the sconomic
witlue of The v estments and Lo reduce earmomgs volatihty that woukd otherwise ocour due o exchange
rate Muctuaions

As mentioned above, the Company enters il transactions denomanated in foreign currencies;
consequently, exposures 1o exchange rate Muctwmiions anss

The carrving amounts of the Company s foregn currency -denominated lnaneial assetsand (nancal
liahilities, in relation to its subsidianes’ Rinctional currencies, at the end of the reparting period are
s Follows:

Financial assets
As ol
13y 12316 12031715
L1 5. Dallar functiorsal curmancy
subsidiarics 3 T40038 3§ 17462 § 159524
Bescican Peso functional eurrency
subsilanes 33,504 19,540 30110
Finamncial linhilities
Ax I!IlI
12/3117 1231716 12731115
LI 5. Dollar functions] curmency
susidmres 5 853067 % 70000 § SH5 062
Meccican Peso functional currency )
subsidmnes 26478 34012 31.713

For the Company’s 1S, Dollar functional currency subsidiaries ther Mexican Peso balances
inclhude: bank sccounts and short-term investments, VAT, income tax receivablesor payables, prepaid
expenses, puarantee depesils, intercom pany boanes. long-term debi, trade sccounts payable and other
tax withholdirgs.

FEH' l]'u: [T::-mp:r‘r:fs ?ﬁ-1l:ﬁl.‘nln l'H:q."i-IJ [III'HZLJIJI"EII CIJFI:I"II:}' l'ilJ‘IZ!'iIIlI.IIE., “'IEIT 1.-'; n!l“ul h.llm'i
inchude: bank accounts, intercompany leans, trade saccounts recenvablea or pavables and provissons
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Exchange rates in effect a8 of the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and their issuamncs
e are & follows:

Mexican Pesos

1131117 123106 12131115 LLERIN R

One LS, Dollar 5 19735 5 206640 § 1TSS 5 157902
L | I

ST Forvign currengy sensifiviy analysis

The Companys sccount balances disclosed in Nete 24.7. are exposed to the Mexican Peso
for 115 U3, Dollar functional currency subsidiaries and 1o the U.S. Duallar for its Mexican
Peso lunctional currency subsidingies,

The ol kewirg table details the Coenpany s prafitand OCT sensitivity 1oa 10 percent incheass
and decrease inthe US, Dollar aguinst the Mextican Peso, The sersativify rate usad to repaot
foreign currency nisk imtemally 1o key Company's management is 10 percent, which
repfeseris management's benchmark of the possible chamge in foreign eochamge ries. The
sensitvity analysis includes only outstanding foreign curmency denominated monetary
iberns ancd adjusts their translation at the peried end for @ 10 parcent change in foreign
currency mates The semsitivity analyms imclodes intercompany loars where the
denom iration of the lean & ina cunency other than the functional currency of the lerder
of the bogrower.

A megaiive nurn ber below indicates a decrease i profit or equity where the U5, Dollar
strengthens 10 percat agairst the Mexican Peso for LS. Dollar functional curmency
subsidianes. Fora 10 percent weakening of the 11,5 Diolkar against the hMexican Peso, there
would be o comparnble impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be
poaitive

For U5, Dollar functional currency eniities, the sensitivity analysis to changes in the
Mexican Peso o 1. 5. Dollar exchange rate i8 determined on & pre-ta basis due to the
complexaly of delermiming the lax mpacs (lax laws recogniee Wxable or deductible
exchange gaing and Josses based on the U5, Dollar monetary position, regardless of the
functsonal cumrency’).

For BAaxican Peso lunetaonal Cunmency subsidmres, a |i~::ﬁi.ii'1: number below indicates an
imcrease m profil or equity wherethe LS. Dollar strergthens 10 percent against the Mexican
Pean Fora 10 percent weakenng of the 15 Dollar against the hexican Peso, there would
ke o comparable mpact on the prolit or equity, amd the balances below would be negutve

LS Dkl br Tumetiomal CUrTEney AMexican Peso funetional

27 Ll [ 2015 w7 2006 s
Profit(bess) 1) 5 6811 § 38662 § 27081 §  (453)8 BaE 3 M
L | —_ — = Z580 [9.486) (3.652)

(1) Thas is manly attribuable to the aoposure 1o omstanding Mexican Peso receivables in
the 115 Diallar functional currency subsidiaries at the end of each reporting period.

The L. 5. Dollars functional currency subsidianiessensitiv ity toforeigncurrency decreased
mmnly &ae o higher mtercompany loans with unconsolidated affiliates.

The Mexican Peso functionsl curmency subsidianies sensitivity to foreign currency bas
decreased muinly due to lower trade and other trade receivables balances.

51
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frterest rate fsk management

In September 2005, the Company entered inte dervative transsctions to hedge future interest
payments assocated with forecasted borrewings of S450.0 m illion from third parties for BECA, which
were designated s cash [ow hedges. In 2007, the onginal hedged items became probable of Aot
occurring due 1o a change n the Company’s extemal borrewmg needs, Accondmgly, o cash flow
hedge gain of $30.0 millien was reclassified from OC] in members” equily (o current eamargs, and
changes in the fair value of these instruments were recognized in cumrent eamings prospectively
within cther ganns and osses lne ilem. As of Decem ber 31, 2014, thers was one Temaming mleresl-
rate swap agrecment with a notional amount of $151.2 million under which [Enova received a
varmble interest mte (three-month LTBOR) snd paid a fioced interest mte of 5 percent,

The original terms of the swap expine on December 13, 2027 On September 16, 2015, the Company,
threugh an early lermmation clause, made 5 prepayment m the smount of 29,2 mallon and & a
result, such denvative was cancelled. The one-year VaR informstion related 1o the inlerest rate swap
iz included in Mote 245

2481 Inferest rate swaps conlracts anfeved fado by the Company 5ol verires

As descnbed mm Note 10020 the jomt venture with InterGen enlered ivo a swap contract
that effectively hedpes the infereat rate risk due to vamable rate financings.

As descnbed in Mote 10.5. b the point venbare with Pemex TRI entered into swap contract
that effectively hedees the interest raie nsk due to vanahle rate financings.

The fair value of derivative instruments is based on the market values in place as of the date
of the Consolidated Finarcial Statements, which impacts investment in joint venbure with
i dhat 1o current earmings

The Company's management considers the sesulls of the sensitivity wnalvas [or these
denvatives 1o be mmatereal

Credet risk management

Credit nizk is the risk of loss that would e incurred i a result of monperformanse of the Company ‘s
counterparties contractual obligations. The Company monitors credit risk through a credit-approval
process and the assignmient and montoring of credit lmins. The Company establishes these credin
limits basod on risk and retum considerations under werms customary for the indusiry.

As with market risk, the Company has policies and procedures to manage credit rsk, which are
taclored for each business segment, adminsterad by each subsidiany's respective departments and
overseen by their management

In ECO, depending on the type of service requested by the customer, different eritens ane applied
as fodlows:

Bdmmor customers [resxdentiml cuslomers [or howsehold comsumphion]):

«  Copy of official adentification;

+  Proof of ressdence or power of attomey from kandlord, 1n case of rental residences;
+*  Personal references, (which are confirmed); and,

+  Regisration with tax agency for commercial customers with mino consumplion
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Major customers (customers for mdustrial and commerncial consumption):

Power of attormey;

Legal representative official identification;

Copy of articles of incorparation,

Proof of address; and,

Depencing on consumpiion volume, o guaranies 15 requingl, which coukd include leiter
of credit, cash deposit, or promissory notes among others.

The oversight ineludes a monthly review of 100 percent of the balances of major customers by the
credit and eollection department, to miake sure that payments are made on a tmely manner ard to
ersure that they are in compliance with the agreed terms of their contract

The Company believes that it has allecated adequate reserves for counterparty’s nonperfomance.

For all other entitves of the Gas and Power segments, when the Company's development projects
become operational, they rely signilicantly on the abihly of their supphers to perform on long-term
agreements and on the ability to enforee contract terms in the event of nonperformance.

Also, the factors that the Company considers in evaluating adevelopment project melude negotisting
customer and supplier agreements and, therefore, rely on these agreements for fubure performance,

24,9 L. Concenitraion of credit rist

GRO and TGM (both merged into GAF) condwct their businesses based upon ongoang
evaluations of their customens” fineme il conditions and certuin guamntees, except when such
client= qualify for credit based on their long-term debt credit ratings issued by S8 or other
aredit rating agency in the U7, 5. or Canada

GRO's mamagement belicves that the risk ansing from s concentration of credit is mitggated
sinee all customens pay on 8 monthly basis, olherwise semvice cam be suspended untl due
amounts are collected.

TGN provdes transportation services mainly to one sole customer. TGN's management
belicves that o concentration of credit sk is mnigated since its customer pays on o menthly
basis, otherwise servies can be suspended until dus amounts are collected

[Engwa Marketing sells natural gas and provides transportilion serv ces Lo some cuslomers.
[Enova Marketng"s marsgement belicves that although a potential concentration of credn
risk i present, this risk = mitigated smoe ane of its customers 15 a govemmental entity and
anther 158 related pany. Additionally, all customers pay ona monthly basis, otherwise service
can be suspended unti] due amounts are collected

ECA provides LNG storage and regasification services to TEnova hMarketimg and two other
third parties. BCA's management belweves thal although o concentration of crecht nsk may
exist, this nisk i mitigated based on the creditworthiness of fs customers and the related
panty nature of one of its contractual armngements.

GAP provides transportation services mainly to a one sole customer. GAP's management
believes that its craditrisk is mitigated smee the customers 15 a govemmental entity with hagh
credit rating and pays on a monthily basss.

B3

The following table shows the Compary’s revenue concentration by custom er:

Segment 123117 1231146 123115
Customer | (s b 317055 & 226406 § 197,559
Customer 2 Gran 168,937 40, 507 —
Customer 3 L 114,083 20,0640 -_—
Customer 4 (s 1005, 043 101 5o 51.683
Customer 5 Gian R7, 160 BE G5 20037
Customer & Chas 78,030 6l 416 —_—
Customer 7 (s 36,397 35,838 —
Customer § Power 35,389 3,504 —
Customer 9 * Power — — B3 567
Customer 10 s —_ —_ 49,138
Cthers ** 225,512 128,273 141,957

] 116652 & TITR 5 al3, 041

®  Plemze refer o Note 12
=+ Within athers, there are no customers with revenue concentration greater than 10
PEroEnL

Az mentioned above, all major customers pay on a monthly basis, otherwise service can be
suspserpded until due amounts are collected, and as o resul, the Company s managenent does
nol estimate the Company is exposed 1o significant credit nisks

The Company’s maximum credit rsk exposure s of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,
wi $315 6 million, $1902 million and 51722 millien, reapectively

2400, Liguidicy risk management

Ulimate resporsibility for lquidity risk management rests with the Parert’s directors and [Enova’s
key executives, who have established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
management of the Company’s funding and liquidity marmgement requirements As of
December 31, 2007 the projects were fundsd with resources obtained from the Global Offerirg
(Mote 1.2.6.), unconsolidated affiliates loans and bank financing. The Company ‘s current liabalities
exceed B curment mssets mainly due to lean from unconsolidated alfilstes and short-term deba.
As explaned in Note 21, the Company had 51,0330 million of unused lines of credits with
banks and $7.600 mullon Mexican Pesos avanlable approsmately wnder the cument awthonaed
CERIUTRES program at the Mexican Stock Exchange by the Comision Macional Bancaria y de
Widares ("CNRY)

2410 1. Ligwichioe e interest risk fables

The following tables detail the Company s remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of finamcial labilities based on contractual matusity,
which i the earlsest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables inchide
both interest and prncipal cash Dows. To the extent that imerest fows are Noating rate, the
uneliscoumbed amount 15 derwed From milerest rute a1 the end of the reporting peniod.
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December 31,
27
Yarahle interest

rate from
ks {S0ABC)

Variable interest
rate from
hanks {Senior
Motes 10

NEirs)

Varmnhla mderest
rite from
banks (Senior
Motes 30
years)

Wamable interest
rate of shori-
Lerm deht
Mote X3}

Fizxed interest
rate of long-
Lerm del
(Mot Z3.)

Vamahle interest
rale loan Erom
banks
[Ventikn)

Wamable interest
ride loan Erom
bamks {1 Enova
Fipelines)

December 31,
e
Variable inberest
rale from banks
(EMBC)

Varnuhle interast
rate of short-
Lerm el
(Tote Z3.)

Fixed interest
rate of long-
term debi
[Mote 23}

Vamable interest
rate loan from
hanks
Ventika)

Yannbhde inlenes
rate loan from
barks ([Enova
Pipelines)

Weighted
aveErage
cllective
imerest

3Ts

438

3. 300

&6

463

414

& 30

463

Less than
Lvear 1.3 vears

$ 137053 5§ —_

0, 503 33,750

15,356 TROTS

65,871

12623 37,868

48211 76,468

55,642 39054

3Svenrs 54 venrs

3 — % —

56,2500 316,875

1,105,598
131,625 8

200,335 472,467

341,657

Total

§ 137,053

Al3 A58

1,331,944

65871

261,869

807, 781

434573

5 339319 § 264,495

§ H2560 3

| ]
L
e
L]

51613

12,055 36, 165

38,67 15,855

53,576 44,682

3 951,185 5189533

::d—d—l-?h

24,111 1737, Tal

S0.3T0 45, 63

20,788 361,961

53,452 330

G0 125

250,101

gl g2

400,007

5 3040 5 2145316 5 1460 SI.135|3§ 520536135

Weighted
average
efMfeciive  Lass than
interesi 1 vear 1-3 years  J-Svears S+ vears Tadal

fecember 31,
s
Non-interest 5 19494 § g 4 5 19494
VEEH I erost
e leans from

ungomsahdatad
ilMilaes 1.75 122120 12120

Vannhle mterast
rate loan from

unconsolidated
affiliates 1.54 X020 — _ —_ ZX5.020

Wanable interest
raie short term
debit (Mote 21.) 128 92523 - - T2523

Yanable iferest

rate of long-

term debt

{Nole 23.) 4.52 3430 R T 6,87 B5.600 12 %07
Fixed interest

rate of long-

terem debit

(Nede 23.) .30 14,368 28,736 226,450 _— 268,584
Vanahle inlerest

rante loan from

S0T Swmsse 328 1,285 2570 33500 37454

2 TR ; 4 261 0
';:4'.’5_67 % BHiIHS .5 _ﬁﬁl‘.i'iﬂ ] 35I6ILI 5 %?IU'_‘U

Frepayments on intercompany loans can be made at the Company’s discretion

The following table details the Company’s Liquidsy analvsis for s denvative financal
inatruments. The table has been dravwn-up based on the unddizcounted contractual net cash
inflows and cutflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis. When the amount
payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determ ined by reference
Lo the projected interest rates or commodity prices forward curves at the ond ol the reporting

peried
LIT=T]
l.-li"-!;t ;n 1-2 years  3-Svears 5+ vears Total
Digegmber 31, 2017
Wetsetiled:

= Interest rute swaps, cross
CUrTEnSy Swap, exchiange
ritle S (3ROTE) (3031 § (125790 S$(141.518) 3 (196.105)

5 II'_‘S.S'TEI 5 II'E.IJEEI b 5.2.5?9\ 5“4]-5]ﬁ= !iil%.lﬂﬁl
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2L

lLesx thain
1 wear 1-2 years  3-Swears 5+ years Tl
December 31, 2016
Mot setled:
= Interest rle SWaps, Cross
CUITEnEy swap, exchange
rale 5 (ALB4R 5 (543610 % (13,089 8 (146824 50218122
§ (3848 £ (54361) § (130890 §(]46.824) § 218 ]2
lLesx than
1 vear 1-2 years  3-Swears 5+ years Total
December 31, 2015
Mot setled:
= Interest rale swaps,
exchange rabe 5 2082 5 (27062 3§ (1.661) B (106759 5 (133,300
Fair vitluwe of fimemcial instrpenents

240 L Fair value of facial instrumments carrivd @ amoriised coss

Except as detmled in the followimg table, management ¢onsiders thal the camying amouns
of financeal asets and financial labilies recogrized in the Conselidaied Financial
Statements approximate ther fair values

As ol
1231717 L2306 13310%

Carrving Carrying Fair Carrying

sl Fink-value Aot Walus s Walr valoe
Financial assely
Fimancial lease
recetviahles 5 DADII0 5 Q505010 § 957466 5 U050 B 14510 § 57,123
Dine from
ttcertsol cdared
affiliares 491,422 552,152 S, 264 Q0 S — —
Fimanciol fabilities
Finanetal labilities
held ar amartized
fRetd iy
- f dishy
firatec i stock
excharige) 1037614 908995 249744 232812 29925 289,055
- Loans front banis
fang-terms TIRA2T  R494%6 TAOED  BTRAID
- Lo from
tencovtsoliclaned
afitliares (Snoe-
Term) SO0 R0 09 R00 4R 5RO 245258 IR0 AN0 334,41
- Short- fermn alebs 266,143 266,090 4593 571 487252 BE.507 B0,
= Lowens from
rvowsoU el
affilres (Lomg-
firrm) T340 GELIGT 3,080 3,081y 38,460 37,704

2. 1L2 Falwation echrigues and assumplions appidicd for the purpoeses of measuring feie vaite

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

«  The fair value of finance lease receivables i datermined by ealculating the present
value of the minimum lease payments, includng the contract extension period, using
the discount mate that represents the Company’s miermnal mte of retum on capital
investmae nts.

+  The Company determined the fair value of its long-term debt using prices quoted on
recognized murkels

*  For financaal habilitees other than beng-term debt, the Company determined the far
value of its financeal habilities camed st amortized cost by determumng their present
value nx of each penad end. The risk free mterest mte used to discount 1o present
value 15 sdjusted 1o reflect the Company”s own credit risk.

*  The fair value of commodity and other derivative positions, which include interest
rabe swaps, are determined wsing markel participant assumplions o price these
denvatives Market participants” msumplions mcbude those about nsk, and the nsk
inherent 1n the npats to the valuation technague. These inputs can be readily
observabde, markel comoborated, or genemlly unokbservable.

Swgmaficant assumptions used by the Company indetermaning the fair value of the [ollowing
fmancial assets and linbilities are set out below:

Firance lease receivables. The fair value of finance lease receivables is estimated o be
£950 O million, 5995 1 millian and 357 1 million as of December 31, 2007, 2016 and 2005,
respectively, using the nisk-free interest rate adjusted to reflect the Company’s own credit
ruk

2113 Fare value sreasuremrents recognrzed in the Conzolidafed Stafentents of Financral Posiiien

The Compuny applics recurnng fair value measwrements to certun assets and Lisbalities,
"Farr value® 15 defined m Mote 2.2

A (o value messurement reflecls Lhe assumptsons markel pafcipants would use m pnang
an asset of lighkality based on the beat available information. Theas ssaumptions include the
sk inherent m 8 paricular valuation technegue (such as a pneng model) and the nsks
inherent in the mputs to the model. Also, management cormiders the Company’s credit
standing when measuring its labilnies at fair valoe

The Company establishes a fair value hiemrchy that priontizes the inputs used to mensure
farr walue. The hierarchy gives the highest prionty to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or lhabilities (Tevel 1) and the lowest prionty 1o unohservable
inputs {Level 3).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

= Level 1 far value measurements are those derved from quoted prices (unadyssted)
in sctive markets for identical assets or liabilines as of the reporting date. Active
markets are those m which transactons for the assct or lability oceur in sufficient
frequercy and volumme to provide pricing information of ah ofsoine Basia;

+  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inpuis other than queted
prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or habilay as of
reporting date, either directly or indirccily.
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= Level 3 fair value menswements wre those derived [rom valuation techniques that
e hade inputs For the ssset or habalily that are not based on chservable market data
and aire generally leas ohzervable from ohjectivie sounces.

The assets ard labilities of the Compary that were recorded at Gair value on 8 recurnng
basis are lsted an the following table and were classified as Level | and 2 in the fair valoe
hierarchy as shown below:

As ol
1231117 1Z/301716 1131715

Fimmncial assets af

F¥TPL
Short-term invesimenis

(Level 17* 5
Denvatve linancial assels

(Level 2) 8,65 B 1.926

Flita ctal Rabilinies ar
FITFPL

[Derivative Mnancial
liabilitses (Level 2) 204,170 226,161 133,056

56,901 3 343 5 20008

The Company does not have linancial assets or habilinies classified as Level 3 and there
were ne transfers between Lovel | and 2 duning the reporting periods presented.

* The shart term investments inchode restricted cash by 355 8 million and 3514 million as
af December 31, 200 7 and 20186, respectively.

2114, Commodities and siher derivative positions

25 Inomie taxcs

The Company enters inte denvative financeal instrament agreements 1o hedge the volatilny
of its income tax impect attributable to the Nuetiation of the Mexican Peso relative 1o the
115 Dollar Certain monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are denominated in
LG, Dollars (lunctiomal currency); however, they are remessured m Mexican Pesos
throughout the year for Mexscan 1ax purposcs. The remeasurement of these asscts and
linhilities gives rise to foreign currency pains and bosses for Mexican tax purposes and
impacts the Mexican income tax habality,

The Company recopnizedithe change infairvalue and the settlements in the “costofrevenue™
line 1tem within the Consalicated Stements of Praf

The Compary i subject to ISK. The rate of current moome 15 30 peroent

281 Imooe faves recagrized b the comsolidated atesten e of profin

Asaol
12430117 123016 1231/1%
Current income fax:
[ZR 5 (39.20) % (100036 § {73, 7045
[ETLIBAPAC {205} — (2265
{38 4390 { 100038 (73,9300
Ireferred fnemme fax:
[Cefemed income 1ax (T 2534) (47,122 {20,307
Tl taxes in the Consoliklned 7
Stements of Profil 5 (IE653) 5 (147,158} § (94, 237)
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Income wmx expense 15 reconciled with the profit belore b as follows
Wear ended
12317 123G [T d F B
Prefit before income tax and sha .
of peofts ofjoint veatums. 8 475,564 $ 971,639 § 206,904
Income tax experse caleulnted az
307 (142,665 (297,492 (G207
Mon-deductible ecpenses (2, TT0 (2 456 [1,568)
Effects of forcipn exchange rate (18.631) 18,750 27,340
Effects of inflation adjistment (32.233) (8, 5550 ({2,530
Etfect of wnused tax losses not
recognized as defered income
lax assel (23} Zl
Effect of the rem easurement of
edquuty method myestment — 201,521 -—
Mon-tasable incoma 244 217 ¥
Effect of foreign exchange rate and
nflation l:n? Lhe LH.;T bases of
property, plant and ogquipment,
net and unused tax losses 94,728 (B3,055) {55 18%)
Cither (8,282) (2830} {326
Income tax experse recognized in
the Consolidated Statements of
Profit 5 {10 663) 5 (147 158) & {94, 237)

The charge m the effective tax rates wias mainly atiributable tothe following:

*  The effect of foreign currency exchange gains o losses ks being calculated on Mexican
Pesies: halances lor [imancanl up::-rling purpeses, while the Mexican meome tax liw

recognizes foreign exchange gams of loases on 1. 5. Dollar balances.

are valued in Mexican Pesos for tax purposes, while maintained in 17 5. Diollars (functional
currency’) for Nirancial reporting purposes. In addition, the Mexican ineome Lok bw tikes
e aceaunl he elleds of inflaton on sueh WX bosis

*  The inflationary clfects relative to centain monetary assets and Lmbilitics.

Recognized directly m common
shock:

Issuance or ordinary shares undar
TPC and Fallow-on 5

Ircome e recognized direcily in common stock and OCT

1253117

17.851

5

Year ended
123116

10463 §

L3115

7358

Hecogmized darectly m OCl:
Tax related Lo actuarial gain (boss)
on defined benefit plans

Tax on valuation of financial
irstruments held Tor hedaimng

parposes

(211}

(&.35T)

(5300

(5.:459)

533

3,589

Total of income tax recognized
dhirectly i commen stock and
QCl 5

15,283

5

4474 %

11,515




IENOVA

254

Deferved income tax assers aed fabilines balamee

The following s the arnalyas of deferred income tax assets (liahilites) presented in the Consolidated
Sratements of Firancial Position:

As ol
L3117 1231706 125115
Deferred income fax assefs!

Benelit of tax-loss comy fomwards

fiof pecovering ineome Lakes il

111 PECY BORS YOars ' i 170,015 & 65310 5 1325973
Accrued expenses and provisions 43,381 25,540 17182
ElTect of busimess combimation ) )

1Enova Gasodustos Mexico 1453 1,550 1.643
Employes: benelils 3,541 4E35 4,245
Auaset from dividends ned distributed

{rom nel Income tax account

(CUFINT, by ils inatials in

Spamsh 1.277
Trventomes 2,768 3 B61 %]
Allowance For doubiiul accounts 3% 133 17
[Defermed moome o assels for

issuance or ordivary shares under

TPO and follow on 17,851 17851 T 388
Dieferred income o asset regarding

witluation of fimancial instrum ents 7

held for hedging purposes 10,360 1955 B.042
Crhers — (1,720 (631}
Total deferred mncome tax assels 252 D08 340,640 174,134
Deconsolidation effect (a) [155.574) (250561 [ (]
Defermed imcome s assel b 97334 5 Ba588 S 18965

Deferred income tax Habilities:

Property, plant and cquipment b1 (318,29T) & (404500 § [ 340,545
Fimance leases (285,000 (287,240) (4,333}
Ellect of assels (@ value and

amtnggible of Vientika (86,241 (4%,355) —_
Prepaid expenses (4G83) (11,263) (4,625
Oither {12957 (13,2599 (6,932)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (07 18E) [ 7401, 568) (356,453}
Decomsodudation effect (a) 155574 250 941 b [

Dreferred imoome i Labalaties E (S5L614) & (dB607) 5 (261 2]

(n)  The effects of tx deconsolidation in deferred meome ta are presented 1o reflect that the Company
n longer has the right 1o offset income taxes of 113 subsidiaries and, therelore, they are presented
separately in the Conselidated Staementz of Financial Position as of December 31, 2017, 3014
and 2015,

Dieferred income hx in e Cousolideted Saetemaits of Financial Positios

The fallowing isan anabysis of the deferred tx assets (labilities) inclheded mithe Consolidatad Setements
of Financial Peartion:

As ol
12317 TL316 125115
Assels 5 0738 5 B 5 TE.B6S
Liahbilities (551.614) (480,607) (261,294)
3 (454, 2800 & (309010 % (182,329
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Dheberred tax assets have been recognized bor ta-loss carmylorwards and the IMPAC pad whsch provide
for fubure tay benefits m the form of future daductible amourts and tax credits, respectively, and can be
realized subjeat to compliance with certain requirements. Expiration dates and restated amounts as of

Drecember 31, 2017, ane a2 follows:

Tax-Losx INVIPAL

Years Carrylorwards Recoverable
2018 3 521 3 11
2019 1,594 145
2030 1,531 145
2021 1,200 145
2022 511 145
2023 438 145
2024 21,613 145
2025 154,738 145
20 384,262 145
2027 3,533 145
Thereafier 134
3 SM.051 % 1,450

In determinung the deferred income tax as descnibed above, the eflects of tax-loss carrylorwards and

IMPAC pasd recoverable were included for $570.1 million and $1.5 million, respectively.

fRS Carrent fax receivable and payable

CCWrrens KO assers;
[SE recemvahle

Carrent tax Fabilires:
ISR payable

Stockholders’ equity

Common stock
Additional paid-m equity

As of
12/31117 1231116 12731115
3 21,909 § 6390 § 16,226
Asof
123117 1231116 12/31/15
§ 963,272 % 963,272 § 762,949
2,351,501 2,351,801 973,953
3 3315073 § 3315073 8 1,736,902
L5 ¥ |
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2l Fsswed member's equity is congpwised as follows:

For the wear ended December 31, 2015

(Ml xican Pesos)
: Tatal
Company ..‘-,unj !h.l; o Fixedshares  Variable shares Taotal shures in

slochblder’s ) LS
Semco 935,013,312 S0,000 9350083120  93%5.133120 $ 618752
Private investors 218, 11, SO0 — 2,181, 105008 2,181,105008 144, 197
154023, 812 SO000 11540188128 115400238128 % 762,940
| R R —SE—————G—SR=S m_mommw—"—ooawno5snnsmisnsiii ————we

Pursuant 1o a resolution of the general ordinary member's meeting on Febmuary 15, 2013, member's
equity increase wias approved at $1.00 Mexican Peso per share, which was subscribed and pasd by SEH
an uneonsohidated aifiliste, incrensing the value of 1s soqal part, also, Company s name change from
Sempra Mexico, 5. de R L. de C. V1o “Sociedad Ancruma de Capital Varable™ (5. A. de C. V", Public
limied Com pany) was approved. As a result of such resolution, the change of social pans tor shares was

performed; as of Febuary 15, 2013, the diztribution of such shares wes as follows:
Slares _
Shareholders mme Class | Class 11 Tastal
Sempra Energy Holdings XI, BV, 4,55H) 35,0821 2 035,913,302
Sempra Energy Holdings IX, BV 10 - 10

5,00 235,008,312
s S——

935,913,312

Sharcholder s equaty consists of nominative shares with no-par value. The theeretical value per share is
S10000 M exvican Pesoa. The Clasa T and IT represent the fixed and the variahle part of sharebolder s equity,
respectively. Variahle capital may be mereased without limitation

Om March 6, 2003, BV11 subscribed for o capital incrense in Semen (n subsdiary af Sempra Enengy),
agresing o pay for such capital increase through a contribution of 1Enova’s sharea in an amount 1o be
determined based on the price per share in the Global Offering, and subject to the shares beang duly
registered with the Mexican Mational Securities Registry (RN, by it inttials m Spaniah). On danch
21, 2013, the effectve date of the Global Offering and registration of [Enova’s shares with the RNV,
Semco acquired 100-percent of the Shares of 3EH pursuamt to the above described terms; therefore,
hegmning on this date, Semco was the new Parent Company of [Enova

OnMarch 21, 2003, the Company carried outa G lobal Offering of shares. Through such Globsl Cfferng,
the Compary issued 189661 305 shares at a placement price of 534 00 M exican Peaos per share;, such
offering included an over-allctnent oplion u to 28,449 196 shares, The amoeunt of thas (lobal Cffering
was 3520 P07 (36,448 4 million Mesacan Pesos).

In connection with the Global Offering, on March 27, 2013, the underwriters in Bexico and abroad
exercised the over=allotment option. The amowdt of over-allotment was 578, 100.0 (3%67.0 million
hlewican Pesos), related to 28 49 1046 shares at the placement price of 53400 Mexscan Peaos per share

On Seplember 14, 2015, the Ordinary and Bxtraordinary Shareholder's MMeeting approved the proposal
of an equity offering threugh a combimed global offering which consists of a public offermg in Mexico
o the pemeral public and & concurrent intermational offering as defined by Rule 144A and in Regulation
5, under the United States Secunities Act off 1933,
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In addinion an aquity incrense was approved for up o $3,500 million Mexican Peses m Ordinany and
Exiraordinary Sharcholder’s Mectings; of which 330 million ordinary shares were isued. As of
Dhecember 31, 20135, such shares have been peither subsaribed por paid, and therefone no mmpacts have
been rellected n the Consaleiated Finamaal Sialements

262 Gilobal Offering

Cn Cwtober 13, 2016, the Company carrved out a Global Offering. The Company essed 330,000,000
shares of commeon stock a1 38000 Mexican Pesos per share. Adter the G lobal Offening. the additzonal and
over-allotment option was exercised, the free Moat represented approximately 3357 percent of [Enova's
oulstandimg ownership mieres]

Total capital rased, net of offering costs, was approximately 51.6 ballwon U, 5 Dollars. As w result of
the Glokal Offerirg, the Company raised § 30400 million Mexican pezos, net of issuance costs for $459.3
million Mesican Pesos ($34 % million U 8. Daollars). Subsequent to the Company s Global Offering,
subaeribed and paid common stock of TEnova is represented by a tetal of 1,334 023 812 shares

For the year ended December 31, 2007 amad 2016
(Mlexicun Fesos)

o paany Mumber of Fived - : Tatal shares
stockhokder's shares shares Variahle shares Total i 15T
) [ 1019038312 SOUNK) 1600 0RS, ] 20 160133120 5§ 731825
Private invesiors S14.985,500 25931, 105,000 25,951, 105,000 211,447

15340023 812 SO000 41,980 188 130 41940 238120 5 SG5 272

e kared dividends

Drurargg 200 7, 2014 and 2005, pursuant to the reaolution of Extraordinary Stockholders” Meetings, payments of
dividends in cash were approved, 10 be pasd from refained CLFIN balances, Under Mexcan tax regulation,
dividends paid Erom CUFTN balarces ane not tiesed, dividends were declared and paid, for the follewing am ourita:

Mecting date Admounit
July 25, 2017 (*) % 200N
August 2, 2016 ] 1463 fuhh
Raly 28, 2015 i (WL
{*) Dhvidersds were paid on August 15, 2007
2% 1 Bividendds per share
_____Cents per share lor year ended
13117 12730 1315
1Endva S 013 5 0l 3 .15




I8,

IENOVA

Sepment informatien

281

Products and services from which reporaeble sepments derive thelr revenes

[Information reported for the purposes of resource allocation and assesement of segment performance
focuses on the types of goods of services delivered or provided. The Company s reportable sepments
are deacnibed and presented i Wode | 3.

The following tables show selected information by segment from the Consolidated Statemients of Profi
and Consolidated Swtements of Financial Poaition

282 Segment revenwes amd resuilis

The following iz an analysiz of the Company's reverive and resulls from contimuing operations by

repartable segm ént
E:E,m:rll FEVENLES
Year ended
12731717 1231716 1273115
Lias,
Kevenues from cuslomers 5 961,803 5 GULER 3 425618
Hevenues from unconsolidated
allilsales 103,43 1,998 100521
[mirsegment revenues 241,705 182542 33DES0
Fower
Revenues from cusiomers o0 721 2930
Carparate:
Allecation of professional services
with affiliates 1,830 2HAT 1,76
Intersegment professiomal services 20 90 X 484 15 527
1,438,201 920,920 203, 582
Interscpment adpestments and
eliminations (271,675 (212,026 (20,541
Total segmend revenues ] 1,166,526 5 717,804 3 13,041
Scgment profit
Year ended
12731417 TEE1 16 TE31AS
{Fas 5 4M 137 5 a19219 3 1853013
Fower * (40,970 (110,748 (10626
Corponile (74,993) (52,4500 (34 498)
Towl segment prafit 5 354,174 § 754000 % 140,180

Lo lucdes diseont nued operaions.

Segment profit mthe measuns reported for the purpeses of resource allocation and assessment of segment

perfamance

283, Assits and lrabilities by segovind

Assets by sepment

Gas

Povwer®

Corporale

Consolidated tolal assets

Liakahinees by segment:

{Gas

Power®

Comporals

Comsolidated tofal labilities

IENOVA

As ol
1273017 12/31716 12731715

5 6,385,681 5. 716,175 2916917
1,170,970 1,241,680 B2 63

&7 0% 166 084 MWD

5 2,163,850 7,126,948 3,507,082
5 1,030,601 E3 424 346, 106
652,502 el |, AT 06,493
1,964,159 1,151,734 Q14,619

5 1647272 1 T6,637 1,327,218

= lules pesets and nbohhes beld Gor sale

For the pumposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segmenis;

+ Al asseis are allocabed vo reporiahle segrmenis, Goodwill i allccated to reporiable 2egmenits,

s All habilities are allocated to reportable sapmeris.

84 Clher information by segment

Property, plant and copi pase ni Accumubiled depreciation
Asoof Asof
12431417 1243017146 12315 12730717 12131716 123115
(ks £ A500538 1 3354683 5 2087691 5 (S10744) § (4246340 5 (3T0,650)
Power 636, 195 677440 450,665 (24, BE5) { LBOT) (180,461
Carporate 18 2Rl s, 191 15,048 {9 51499 {7,783 (6,413)

2-1:??4-.‘11! E-iﬂ-i!t_ll-i 5 B 15T 40
_—

Depreciation and amortizaion

S (545 I4RY 5 (434210 5 i‘“? A
e ———

Addditions o properiy, plant and

copuipm e nt

Year ended Year enaded
123in7 123006 123105 12317 123106 13105
Chas 5 B0 F 0 o003 Noe § 203432 3 GPRLER 3 08,138
Power 31 5 2134 45 ¥ AT3 Gl A RO e
Corporate 1,785 1,547 1,516 3237 137G 1,072

5 __llognn £ G4dxd £ 52470 £ 2)7062 € lasR03T §o3)6646
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Interest ineome Finange (eost) income

Year ended Year emdded
1231417 1231716 ) B 12731117 1231716 125105
(s 5 213 ¥ o 3 M1 3 337 3 2x144 5 ot
Power 23 1,131 1,451 (24977 {1.286) 20
l.'""nrrmmg 21032 4 155 4 ARE (51, 205 (42,6047 {32934
5 S BE § 6,269 § 601 5§ [(T2WM5y 5§ [(20.53) 5 {985
s & | |

Share of profits of joint ventures Income Lax (expense]) benelil

Yeur ended Yeur endded
123117 123106 1E31115 123117 123110 123115
Chas 5 4104 % 284 % 41485 § (973400 § (1339532 & (99.9E)
Power 1583 2557 234 (94720 1,077 2,002
Corporate {LE51) [13,283) 3

E -'I-&IEJ'?' i -‘I'_‘IEILI 2 di'lfil‘.l > I"]l_!‘JI'&EL!tE Ifl-i‘.flliiil; I"'“_HI‘.'."I-TE

285 Revenwe by fype of product er services

The followirg s ananalyais of the Company's revenue from its major iype of product or service:

Yearemded
123117 133116 131718
{Note 12) {Note 12) (Note 12)
Transporinhion of gas 5 22273 5 1145 5 95,520
Sale of nataral gas 241,571 19 126 224145
Other operaling revenues 174,107 157,315 118,315
Matural gas distnibution 112217 39,722 30,411
Storage and regas Ncalion capacity 108,837 97168 93,652
Power generation R | 250
5 1,166,528 § TIT.894 8§ &13,041

Chdher operatiig revanues

{a) IEmnowa Markelimg received payments {rom SLMGIH and SLMGI related to the koses and

obligations incurned in the amount of $103.0 million, 31020 million and 31010 million for the
vears ended December 31, 2017, 2006, and 2015 , respectively, such balances are presented within
the revernues line item in the Conaolidated Statements of Profit

(bl TheCompany reported domage and declired a lorce mapeure event [or the Guaymas-El Orosegmend

of the Sonora pipeline in the Yaqui termitery thet has mtermupied its opecations since Ausgust 23,
2017, There isnomatenal econcmic impact due tothas event. The Sasabe- Puerto Libertad-G unymns
sepment remains i full operation.

2% Ipderest income

Yeur ended
12531117 1273116 1273115
(Note 12) {Nate 12) (Note 12)
Inlerest meome:
Eank investments 5 1LIST 3% 1LaT 5 Gl
Uncomseldidated allilsines 21,651 5198 a2
3 a1 . 1 620 % &, T

A,

3.

[he Tollowing i an analysis of interest moome by category of asset:

As ol
j L3I 1230116 1231115
[(Mote 11) iMote 11} {Mote 13)
Hekl-1o-matunily nvesimenls ] 1157 & 1071 % Gl
Loans and recenvables (including cash and
hank balances) 21,5651 5198 6,091
3 JLEE 3 6,260 5 6,701
Operaling, administralive and olher expenses
Year ended
13T 1650116 12311%
(Nole 12 (Mode 12} (MNote 12)
Employee benelils expenses 3 4917 3 S0.957 5 42,504
Purchased services i, RS 38 565 25,195
Cutside services and others 19,634 89,296 6,274
Purchased mmerals 15,397 5,936 7, a5
5 176,795 3 104754 5 21,557

Cngtside services and others include charges relatad 1o leases of band and buildings with lense terms between five

and ten vears. Operating Jease contracts greater than five vears inchusdes review periods of [ve years to rent.

The Company does not have an option to purchase the leased land at the end of the leasing penods,

Ciher (bosses) guins, nel
Wear emded
123117 12031116 123115
(Mote 12) (Wode 11) (Mate 12)
Wit foreipn exclange (losses) gains () 5 [A7643) % 6,205 5§ i, O
Nel loss ansng on derivative financial
irstruments (B} 6,135 (3,477 (5,663)
Orher gains (Josues) 2158 {6500 Qs
3 (41,590 3 2,168 3§ (11,426)
| | |

(1) TIn 2017, a foremng exchange loss by 5349 mallion on @ peso-denomimated mter-aMhate koan grintad to
(MG for the developenent of the South Teoos - Tuxpan maring pipe lime projeet for our propomionsats share

of the projeat’s financarg. (Please refer to Nate 103 4.)

() Theamoun represents a change in G value arsing from the cross curmency swaps, nberest rales swaps

and foreign eochange forwards and the related sertlements. (Please refer to Mote 24.)
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35, Commilments

Finance coxls .
351
Year ended
1231117 12531006 1231715 .
{Note 12) (Nate 12) {(Note 12)
Capitalizad interest () i 118l 5 1487 5 14,881
Decommizsioning linhilities accretion
cxpense (1,833) (1,431) (1.354)
Cither [nance cosls (5037} {3.864) {1.804)
Interest an loans from unconsalidaied .
affibates (8,000} (17,208) (3,213)
Interest of long-term koan {68 052) ERE| [18.36T) b
5 (72.905) § (20.836) 5 (0.859)
(a)  Flense refer 1o Mote 14, for the capitahzad mterest on qualified asssls
[
Depreciation and amoeriization
Year ended
123117 1231716 1231115 d
{Mote 12) {Mole 12) {Mote 12)
Depreciation of propenty, plart and squipment § 1461 S 63,260 5 51,680
Amotization of other assets 8,359 1,115 50 2,
Total depreciaton and amortiztion
cpense 3 19020 S 54384 5 52470 ;
L | 5
Basic and diluted carnings per share from contineed amd discontineed opsration
Year ended
14317 13731716 123118
From conbinuing operations:
Basic and dihuted camings per share $ 027 % 0w % Q.13
From contmuing and discontmussd
oparalians,
Basic and dihuted eamings per share 5 N % L - (1
AL Farnimgs weed in the caloslation of hisc and dileed earnings per share
The camings and weighted av erage number of shares used in the caloulation of basic and diluted camings 2
per share are as follows
Vear ended
LL3LT 1250116 1231115 h
Eamings from contimiing operations
wsed 10 the calculation of basse mnd
diluted eamings per share 3 410,578 § 867,322 § | 54,586
Earmings from contaruirg and
dhscomimued operalions used m Lhe
caleulation of Pegic and dilued
camings per share 5 354,174 § To4 0 4 140, 189 i

Weaghted average number of shares
for the puarpscs af base wnd diluted

carmnings per share 1534023812

1.235, 758,229 L154.,023.812

The Company does not have potentially dilued shares.
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Kafes commitmenis

CRCY hes entered into firm transpeation service sgreements [ FTSAS™) with ight customerns.
Under the F13As5, the Company 15 committed to provide firm natural gas transportalion service
up to certain daily quantities of natural gas, defined 2 Maxamum Dadly Quantities (“MDQ")
measured 1n dekatherms per day (“Iahid™) The FTSAs eslablish n tmmaporialson service mbes
which can be a conventicnal rate of 2 regulated rate. Such rates areapplied to customers” reserved
daily wansportation capacity, Conventional rates typcally renaiin frxed dunng the term of the
cantract. The regulated rates are adjosted annually for inflation and other factors per regulations
ind the CRE authonmton. The mrge of effective pervods and the agreed-upon MIDG) for each
agreement described above are from 5 te 25 vears and from 800 b0 1,307,000 Dihd, respectively.

TGN entered mto FTSAs with tbwa clhients. Through FTSAs the Company commits to sumrenider
transportation services up 1o g cerlain daily amount of natwral gas. The FISAs establish
conventional or regulated transportation mles

ECA has o contract b0 2211 50 percant of the LNG Terminal's capacity to o thimd party faor 20 vears
commencing in hday 2008, As of April 2002, the customer assigned a portion of its contracted
capacity t another independent third party:

EC A built 3 nitrogen faciliy to provide nitrogen injection servicss 1o sgresd storage capacity
parties. Agreement terms were em bedded mio the LMG Termanal’s FTS Az with same peniod term
ol 20 veqr,

GAPentered into o 25 vear capacity contract with CFE corresponding 1o segnient Sasabe Guaymas,
which started opemhons m December 2014 and has a capacity of 793,100 Dehid.

GAP entered into 3 25 year capacaty contract with CFE related 1o next segments:

Puerio
Suabe Libertad San Isidro Loy maas Hjianga
Puerin

Libertad Canymas  Samaloycs El Gra El Encinm
Capacity 79351 Dhv'd 1165002 Cehid 5253 Inhid 1,396 7 Dikid
Starved
Caperation MoL205s  oR01 2015 O30T 012017 O&e302017

Horora and

Zone Sonora Chihusahua Sinaloa Chibzahie

GAP entered b 8 21 year capacily contract with CFE comesponding o segment. El Kamal
Empalme which stamed operations in Jurse 201 T and has a capacity of 232 8 Dih'd. Thas agresmcnt
wins executed on May 5, 2016,

GAP has entered mio Interruptible Transportation and Compremiion of natuml gis Service
Agreements ("IT5As") with Shell Trading Mexco, 3. de R L. de €. V. Under the ITSAs, the
Company is committed o provide interruptible natural gas iransponation serviee upte | 000 Dt
d defined as MIK). The ITHAs establish a transportation service mde which has 1o be approved

by CRE. This agresment wis evscuted on hay 13, 200 7 and wall continue m full force unial May
15 2022,

G AP has entered o [TSAs with Union Energotica del Moroeste, 5. Ade C. W Under the [TSAz,
the Compamy 15 commitbed to provide imermapiible natural gas transporiation service up to 3,600
Dthid defined as M. The customer wall pay the regulated fee applicable in accordance with
the latest publication by the Cffican] Gazzete o the Federation and nccording to the modifications
approved by the CRE. This agreement will be valid as of the date on which the customer nodafies
to GAF that is ready to start the ratual gas tests and will be in force until such tests ure concluded
This agreement was executed on Jammrny 4, 2007

IENOVA
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IEnava Pipelines haz entered into [ TS5As with two customers. Under the TS A, the Company is
committed to provide nterruptible natural gas transpartation and com peession service up o certain
duily quantities of ratural gas, defined as MDO) measured in Gigacalores per day ("Geal'd™). The
ITEAx cxablish a trarsponation and compression service rate published n the Oicial Gazelie
of the Federation in accordance with the applicable regulations. The range of effective periods
amd the agreed-upen M) for each agreament descnbed above are from onc 1o three years and
from 3,322 10 10000 Geal'd respectively. The agreements were executed on March 22, 2007 and
Apal 1%, 2017, andwill continue in full fersevmil harch 22, 201 % and April 30, 2020, respectively.

l;linuiru Pipelines kas entered into [TSAs with MGC Mexico, 5. A de C, V. Under the [TS5As, the
Comipany is cammitled to provide intermuplible natural gas tmanspartation service up 1o 630 Geal!
d defimed as MIXN} The ITSAz extablizh a transportation service rate published i the Official
Gazette of the Federation in accordance with the applicable regulations. The agreements were
executed on April 1, 2017 and will continue in full force urtil March 31, 2018

Energia Sierra Juarez Holding, 5. A de C. W ("ESJH") entered into an Electricity Sales and
Purchase Agreement ("SPA") with CFE for 13 years and has o contracted energy of 114,1159
MMWh by vear and shall take cffect from Commercial Operation Dage {"COD") which is on June
15, 2019, the contract was executed on Jarmaary 20, 2017,

ESH signeda Clean Energy Certificates ("CEC™) SPA with CFE for 20 years. Dusing this period
ESJH scquired the obligation 1o sell to CFE 117,064 CEC per year This commitment will ke

effect from COT which is on June 15, 2019, the comtract was excewed on Jarary 20, 2007

ESI Rencwvable I, 3. de R. L. de C. V. ("ESJRI") entered irio an Electncity SPA with CFE for 13
vears and has contracted energy of 278,357.76 MWh per vear and shall take effect from COLD
which ison June 15, 200149, the contract was executed on Jamsary 20, 2017

ESIRI entered into an Power SPA with CFE for 15 years and has a comracted power of 10 MW
per vear and shall mke effect from COD which 15 on June 15, 2019, the contract was executed on
a5 of Jameary 20, 2017,

ESJRI signed a CEC with CFE for 20 years, during this period ESTRI noquired the obligation to
22l o CFE 385,606 CRC per vear, this commitment will 1ake effect from COD which 2 on June
15, 2019, the contract was executed on January 20, 2017,

I335) Renovable 11, 5. de K. L. de C ("BESJRILT) entered inte an electnety, power and CEC with
Deacero, this condract will enter into foree on March 24, 201 7 and will have a duration of 20 years
counted fram the COD which is October 1, 2018

EETRI must delrver for each contract vear a1 least the amount of CEC corresponding to the
guaranieed Enengy that will be one CEC per MWh and 15 ebligated 1o transfer the net power of
the poswer plant which is 110 MW

EsJRenovable I, 5. de B L. deC. WV (CESJRIN) signed the Verscruz term inal sery 1ces agreement
with Valero dated as of July 29, 2017, With effect from and inchuding the COD, the Company
will provide 1o the customer the terminal services for the reception, storage and delivery of refined
products. The OOD is expected o take place in December 2018 and mclude 775,000 barrels of
shell storage capacity. The matial term of this agreement shall commence on the COD and shall
run for a periad of 10 years

LEnova Gas, 5, de K. L. de C W (71G7) signed the Puebla terminal services agreement with Valero
dated as of July 29, 201 7. With e[Tect from and m:ludlng the O, the Company wall provide bo
the customer the terminal services for the reception, s ard delrvery of refined products. The
€00 shall mean, among others, has tnkage availability of 480000 barrels nf‘xhcll capacity. The
parites expect the COD to occur twenty two months after the effective date. The initial tenm of
this agreement shall commence on the COD and shall run for a penod of ten years.

Gesodutos Servicios Corporatvos, 5, & B L. de C. W ("GSC" ysigned the Mexico Cny terminal
services agreement with Valero dated &s of July 29, 2017. With effect from and including the
00, the Company will provide 1o the customer the terminal services for the reception, stormge
and delivery of refned products. The COD shall mean, among others, has tankage avalabality of
30,000 barrels of shell sapacity.
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The parties expect the COD to cocur twenly two months afier the effective date. The initial term
of this agreement shall sommence on the OO and shall run for a period of 10 years

O July 1, 2008, IEnova Markcting enfered into a contract with CFE, for supply mitural gas
the delivery points from an LNG Storage Flant, the contract endson December 31, 2022, equivalent
Lo 14,5 vears.

[Encva Marketing has entered into a base contract for sale and purchase of natural gas (the “Base
Contract™), throgh thes contract |[Enava Markeling celebrmled a Supply Agreement with seveml
clients to supply natural gas. The terms and conditions of the Supply Agreement age vanable foe
ench customer As of December 31, 2017, IEnova Marketing support seven ongoing supply
agreemeris with an average maturity lezs of 3 years.

52 Purchase commuliments

a

ESJH and Ejido de Sierra Juarez entered into-a land bease agreement under which ESTH aoquired
rights to use band for generating and iransmitting clectricity wing wind turbines, ESTH s obligated
1o make quarterly payments of $74.0 durmg the lirst 10 vears or unbil the slan of commercial

operations. In additien, $224.005 due at the beginning of excavation for turbine foundations for
the first black with a capacity not greater than 100 MW, and 571.0 15 due a1 the beginning off
xxcavation for narbine foundations {oreach additional block of 100 MW, If commercial peneralion
of wind power is successfully developed, ESTH will also pay a leamng fee oqual to the greater of
3750 or 3.5 percent of gross revenuss [rom the sale of clectnicity for the remainder of the term.

Dhmmg 200 7, 200 Geard 201 5, payments undler the agreements were 3005 nnllon, 3003 mnallion and
0.3 million, respectively. This aprecnent ended in 2017.

In 20 7. ESIH and ESJRII emered into several land Jeases for the development and construction
of two photovaltine solar power systems in Baja Califormia and Sonorm, Mexico, respectively
The agreements are a 20-vear term. Danmg 2017, payments under the agreements were 3306.0,
Future contractual cash paymernts ane o Follows:

War Aamount
208 5 323
209 L
2020 ki
Therealler 4,400
5 5837

The Company lerses the building space of fa administrative offices i the cities of Tijueans,
Hermasillo, Monterrey, Guadalyra, Mexscal, Chibuahus, , and Meaco City Dunng
2017, 2016 and 2003, the rent expense amounted o 33.7 million $4.2 millicn and $2.3 million,
respectively

The keases expire in 2016 through 2021 and establish the following luure contraciu] payments.,

Year Ammouni
g -] 3073
e 1,507
2020 517
Thereafter o7
5 6,444
=
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Durang 2003, TDM entered into o Leng Term Services Agreement ("LTSA”) with a third party,
which covers certain periodic maintenance, including replucement purts for power generation
turbines. The term of the agreement is based on turbine wsage, that can not exceed 24 years.

Paymentz under the agreement conaist of & fixed fee of $24.0 per month, plos a vanable escalation
percenitage and a variable fee based upon unit ran-hours and stans.

The fixed monthly fiee pavments ane expensed as incumred. The vanable payments are classified
as prepayments on the statements of firencial position and ane capitalized as property, plant and
equipment if they relate tothe replacement of major components, orexperaed whensoch payments
occur. While some services ane provided ratably throughout the year, the primary coat drver is
planned outages at the facility. Variable payments are subject to fluctuations based on the timing
and scope of the services being provided.

Duning 2007, 2016 and 20015, pavments, under the LTSA, were 3004 million, 505 million and
503 mallion, respectively, vanable payments under such LTSA were 54.3 million, 56.1 million
and 33 8 million, respectively.

Future contractual cash payments under the LT3A are as follows:

Year Samoumt
2018 5 w7
o ] 1Y) 397
2020 597
Thereafter 307
5 I, 588
.|

BCAentered iron service agreement with Turbinas Solar, 5. A de C. V(™ Turbinas Solar”pwhich
provides extersded service and mainienance for five gas turbimes. As of April, 2014 Turbanas Solar
maaigned this agreernent 1o Servicios de Turbirma Solar, 5. AL de C. W The agreement establizhes
two maim iypes of services: a monthly fee covers operational support and extendesd product
warranty foe 3124 4 million and a variable cost based on wrbire wsage, expensed as incumed, for
major turhine mantenance, that will be capitalized and amortized over a live-year period based
on s estimated wseful life. The term of the agreement ia Sl-momths starting from the date of first
beneficial use. During 200 3, the Company renegotiated the agreement-terms uriil 2018,

Drarirgg 200 7, 2006 and 200 5, payments under the apreement were 536 million. $3.6 million and
51.8 million, respectively. Future contractual cash payenents are as follows:

Year Aot
e ] 5 1,651
]

EC A entered inio varions technical service and maintenance agreements with third parties. Tharing
200 T, 2006 ane 201 5, pavments under such agreements were 33,2 million, 5116 million, and $9.0
million, respectively. Fulure contraciual cash payments of such commitments are as [ollows

Year Aot
HNR 5 5823
2019 1.744
2030 1,250
Thereatter 15,000
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On Jammey 1, 20013 (with eMective date on Junuary 1, 20120 SGEN and TDM entered o an
schedule coondimation, energ) management and related services agreement, with lerm of 5 years
{with possibility to extersd the term one mare year), for which TDM will contimue to deliver all
of is power output drect by to the CALSC and SGEN provides marketing, scheduling, and dispatch
services for TDM, among others. On Dwecember 1, 2016 this contract was assigned 1o Sempra Gas
& Power Manageméent LLC,

Duging 2017, 2006 and 301 3, pavm ents wider the agreement were 35,1 million, 35.5 million and
34.7 mullion, respectvely. Fulure contractial cash payments ane as follows.

Yeur Aumoant
2008 5 2,342

Inrermational public ferder LPL-001/12 and LPI-00222002 convened by the CFE o enter info
conlracts for the provision of gas ransmission s mvices,

In October 2002, GAP was awarded by the CFE with fwo contracts 1o build and operate an
approsamalely 835 km (500 miles) notural gos pipeline network connecting the norhwestern
Mexacan states of Sonofa and Sinakea (“Nedhwest gas pipeline”, also known as the “Sonoca
Prpeline”™) o the L5 miersiale pipelme, The Morthwesl gas pipelne will compnsed of two
sepments; the first one is for an approxamate length of 505 km, 36-inch diameter pipeline with
TT0 MKCFPD ol wrarsportation capacity; and the second one, s (or an approximate lergth of
330 km, 30-inch pipeline with 510 MDCFPD of transportation capacity. The estimated price per
MMOFPD s approximately $25000, The Company estimates the total cost of the Nenthwest gas
pipeline will be 31.0 billion. The capacity of the Morthwest gas pipeline iz fully contracted by
CFE under two 25-vear firmn conracts denominated in U5, Dallars,

In arder 1 énsure compliance, during the construction slage and up to the schaduled date of
commercial operation of the Northwest gas pipeline, GAP ssued 2 mmevocable standby credit
letters, for 39000 million ard 365 0omillion with CFE as berseficiary, with term of one year, which
can be extended automatically for anmeal perveds until Movember 30, 2039 and unti] October 31,
2041, respectively.

Om Jaruary 1, 20013, the Company entered into an Information Technology Services Agreement
with Sempra Infrastrscture (formerly U3 Gas £ Power) (a related party in 175, Pursuam to
this agreement, Sempra Infrastructure will provide certain software and information technology
services, including software, suppart and security services. The Company pays an approximate
annual rate of 348 million. This agreemem has an initial term of five vears.

Cn Febpuary 28, 2013, the Company enferad o a Manmagement, Technieal and Advisory Services
Agreement with Sempra Intemational (a relsted party i ULS.), pursuant to which Sempra
Imerrational {directly or through affiliates) will provide with certain support services. The
Company paid $6.5 millien, 383 million and 358 million during 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively

EC O entered into purchase agreement ofnatural gns contract with British Petrodeum from February
1, 2015 o Jarmuary 31, 2017 for 14,000 MmBm daily. In 2016, the contract changed from British
Petrobeumn to 1Enova Marketing (consolidated alliliate),

On August 27, 2005, [Enova Marketing entered into o contract with 3GEN, for providing natural
gas with m aximum contrect quamtity ol 8, 100 5 mEwand & minm um comesponding 1o 50 percent
of the maximum quantity, the monthly price will be the quetient resulting [rom the moathly index
ahivided by 1 minus the charge for [uell trarsponation and 30035 %m Buu from September 1, 2003
unitil Aupust 31, 2001 %
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O Ausgust 20, 200 5 [Enova Marketing enfered into a contract with [gasamex Bapo 5, de | L.,
de C. V, for providing natural gas with maximum contract quantity of 8,100 MmBtu and a
minimum comesponding o 530 percent of the maimum quantity, the moenthly price will be the
gquotient resulting from the monthly index divided by 1 minus the change for fuel, ransporation
and 50,07 imBiu from September 1, 2005 until August 31, 2018

O July 1, 200 % [Enova Marketing entered inioa contract with SLNGIH, 1o transfer 63 pereent
of prodits and leeses under the deed of mdemmity unbl August 30, 2029

e Febeuary 15, 2001, TEnova Pipelines emered with CFE a contracl to ineremse the maximigm
daily capocily of natural gos transportation o Chihuahes, by addmg a ratwral gas compression
systam. The contract lerm is 20 years, commencing on November 12, 2000 (date of commeoncement
of commencial operation of the station), with the right of renewal for additsonal [ve vears. The
maximum daily capacity covered by this contract is G0 MMCFFD.

O October 22, 2014, TEnowa Fipelines entered into @ natural ghe transportation aenvices contract,
under the TF-1 fim wansport service scheme with CFE for o frm base reserved capacity of 100
MMCFFD with a regulated rate. After December 31, 2014, the amendments extend the maturity
with autematic renewals of one-vear period.

Omn October 22, 2004, TEnown Pipelines entered o an agreement 1o provide natural pes
transportation service under the T1-1 mterruptible transport service scheme 1o CFE for an
interruptiblie capacity of T2 MMCFPD with a regulated re. After December 31, 20135, the
amendments extend the matarity with autonatic renewalbs of one-vear peniod.

U Oxtober 31, 2004, [Enova Pipelines entersd mio a nalum| gas tramsporialion senvices conlracl,
under the T1-2 amerruplible transpont service scheme with CFE for an interruptible capacity of
S0vmallion cubse feed per day with a regulated rate. Afler December 31, 2014, the amendments
exctend the maturity with sutomatic renewals of one-year period

O September 28, 2016, TErnova Papelines entered into a Nith natural gas ransportation senvices
amending agreement, under the TF=1 firm ransport service scheme with PGPE signed on
Irecember 11, 2000, fior a Firm base reservied capsacity af 40 MMMCFFD with a regulated rte. After
Mrecember 31, 2017, the amendments extend the mamrty with auomatic renewals of one-vear
pericd. This agreement is currently in effect with Pemex TRL

Cin September 28, 2016, [Enova Prpelines entered into & fifth natural gas transporiation services
amending agreement, under the T1-1 imerruptble ransport service scheme with PGPE signed on
Drscember 11, 2004 for an intemaptible capacity of 80 ADACFPD with a regulated rate. After
Drecember 31, 2017, the amendments extend the maturity with automatic renewals of one-vear
peniodl This agresment is currently in elfect with Pemex TRL

O Seplember 28, 2016, [Enova Pipelines entered the intoa fifth natural gas ransportation senvices
amendmg agreement, under the T1-2 interruptible tramapert service schems with PGPE signed on
Drecember 11, 2009 for a interruptible capacity of 80 MMCFPD with a regulated rate. After
Irecember 31, 2017, the amendments extend the matunity with aumomatic renewals of one-year
periods. The sgreement is currently in effect with Pemex TRI

Om December 18, 2004, TEnova Pipebines entered o f sscond ratural gas irnsponation sen'ices
amending aproement, under the TI-1 interruptible transport service scheme with Energia
Chihuahun signed on December 21, 2012 for sn interruptible capacity of 80 WMCFPD. Alver
Drecember 31, 2015, the amendments extend the manarity with sutomatic renewals of one-year
period,

GT executed o natuad gas compression and transport service contrect with PGPE, Such contract
was signed on December 19, 2001, and stipulates a capasity of 1,000, millomn cubie et of natural
gas. The contract provides For a convertional rate as established in the natural gas regulations of
the CRE. The contract duration 15 20 years, computed as of Movember 12, 2003 (the starting date
of commercial operstions). On January 1. 2016, this agresm ent was tranaferned to CENACE.

O Mgy 2, 20002, Ghd T enbered into an agreement with Pemex TEIL through whech it recenves Oth
services for natural gas transportation systen . This agreement expines 20 vears from the computed
05 the starting date of commercal operation. On Janwary 1, 2016, thas agreement was trans{erred
o CENACE.

This agrecment was terminated in March 31, 2017, payments under the agreement were 51.8
million.

OnDecember 5, 2012, GdT entered into an agreement with Pemex TRI trough which it receives
compression services based on miermupible by PGPRE to GdT, on mvestment of 34 & million will
be used for the rehabilitation of compression station 19 and PGPB reinstate costa in 75 percent
and only paid 25 percent 1o Pemex TR On Janunry 1, 2016 this agreement was tmnsfemed 1o
CEMALGAS,

COnDecembber 15, 20035, TDF entered into a LG transport serv e contract with Pemex TRL ander
farm base capacity reserved of 4,470 MMCFPD equivalent to 30,000 Bbld Thas agreement expares
20 yenrs after frem OO

O December | 5, 2005, TOF entered intoan agreementwith Pamex TRI, through which it receives
D&M services For liquid gas transport system . This agreement expines 20 vears after OO0 The
agreement is currently in effect with Pemex Logistica

DCuring 2017, payments durirg the agreement were 53.2 million. Future contractual cash payeents
are as follows:

Year Ammoant
prat] | 5 5155
2019 5,155
X2 3155
Thereafter 25,774
5 di, 230

On February 1T, 2002, [Encva Pipelines signed a scrvice contsact 1o LPG storage with Pemex
TRI This contrect provides base slorsge capacily reserved of 4 470 MOCFPD to 30,000 BhR.
The contruct term is 15 vears with o convenliorsl rate, which represents the reguluted by the CEE
minus 1.2 peroent. This contmct was given in all mghts and obligations, 1ogether with all
attachments to TdM, by signing an am endment agreement dated on June 18, 2012, bebween IEnova
Pipelines, TdN and Pemex TRI

On February 21, 2012, TdN entered mio an agreement with PGPR, through which it provides
operation and mairfenance serviees for the LG transportation services. This agrecment expares
20 years alter OO, This agreement is currently in cifeet with Pemex Logistica.

During 200 7, payments during the agreement were 3.1 million. Fulure eomractual eash pavments
are ns follews:

Yenr Aumount
Hig 5 3051
gt | ) A,051
20 3051
Thercaller 24,070

5 43,223
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On December 13, 2012, G5 entered into an ethane gos wansportation services contract with
Pemex TRL The contract durstion is 21 years with a conventional rate. The contract is under the
firm tmansport service scheme for a firm base reserved capacy of: Segment [ Cangrejeri-
Complejo Etileno XX1 33,000 BPL, Segment | Complejo Eileno XXI-Cangrejera 259500 BP,
Sepment [ MNueve Pemex ki 3 66000 BPD, Segement 11 Cactus=km 2 28,000 BPL, Seament [
km 3—Complepoe Ebleno 2020 95 500 BPLY and Segment [ Co. Pemex—Mueyo Pemex 105600
EBPLD,

OnApnl 16, 2004, Gd5 entered 1nte an agreement with Pemex TR, thrstigh which it provides
operation and mamienance services for the ethane gas transporiation services. This agreement
expires in 205 vears afler the first segment commercial operational date, This agreement is
cumrently i effect with Pemex Logistica

Dwring 201 7, parym ents duning the sgreement were 346.2 million. Fulure contraciual cazh payme ns

are o= [ollows:

Yiar Amounl
2R 5 L 1)
2009 6,201
2030 6,201
Therealer &5 257
5 103,860
—————

O July 19, 2003, Gd™ entered into an agreement to provide natural pas transportation services
to Pemex TR The agreement has a temm of 23 years from SO0 the system with a regulated rate,
This contract is under schems firm irarsport capacity reserved of 2,100 bchd. This contract was
transferred to CENACE on January 1, 2016,

On December 15, 2004, DEN celebmted an agreement with TAG to provide O8M services, This
agrecment expires in 25 vears from the pipeline commercial operations.

Om Jarsary 1, 2016, DEN celebrated an agreement with TAG to provide commercial services for

it periodd eqqual Matural Gas Trarsport Permit GO TRAZO04 in favor of TAG, starting from the
firm contract date

Duning the [irst quarter of 201 7, GdN enterad inte a contra<t with [hatnbamdora Megak, 10 acquire
it gas medor-generator for an estimated amount of £3.0 million.

The contract mamres m 2018,

Om March 30, 2017, Gasoductes Servicios Comporatives v de Admimstracion, 5. de B L. de C. W
(GECAT) entered into an agreement with GE Oill & Gas Products and Services, 5 de R L de
. WOMGE™) for the maintersnce of GdT's turbines. Thig agreement will expare upon the firsi
accur considering the following:

i} The dale upon which all covered units have reached therr performance end date, or
b) Eight years rom the contract effective date.

The esttmated cost of thas coniract amounts to %152 million.
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In 2017, payments during the sgreement were 3006 million. Future contractual cash payments are

as follows:
Year Amoni
2018 3 3,925
2019 3,061
2020 5038
Thereafier 53402
3 17416
_—

Im 2017, ESTH and ESTRIT entered intozeveral land beases for the development and constraction
of two photovolta solar power systems in Baga Califormia and Sonora, Mexaco, respectnely.
The agreemends are a J0-year term. Durirg 2007, payvments ander the agreem ents were 53060

Future coniraciual cash payments are as followa:

Wear Amouml
2018 b3 jLA ]
2019 306
2020 L1
Thereafter 4902
5 s

GECA and GAT entered into varous Q&M agreements dunng 2017, Payments during the
agreement were 51.4 million.

Future contractual cash payments are as follows:

Year Ammant

2018 5 2. 746

i) ] 718
3,464

GEC, ESTR 11T ard 15 entered into varous techmical sarvice and engineenng, procurement and
construction agreements with Gul finterstate Engineering Comparny, During 200 7 paymients under
such agreements were $0.2 million. Fulure contractual cash paymenis of such commitments are
s Fallows:

Year Amoant
2018 3 2 T
—_—

ESIR [T entered into an agreement with the Verseruz AFT as concessionary, far the right to buld,
e, leverage and benelit from the operation of the manine terminal in Versenuz, Mexeo, with an
obligation for the Company' to pay a ficed fe from 2019 until matunty date in 2037
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Future contractual cash payments of such commitments are as follows:

Year Amouni
9 5 3420
2020 3.851
2021 3808
Thereafler 113878
5 | 24,847

In the fourth quarter of 2017, ESIH, ESIR I and ESTR II ermered into warious engimeering,
procurement and construction sgreements with thard partses for the PIMA Solar Project

In 2017, payments during the agreement were $3.1 million. Future contractual cash payments are
as folbows:

Year Aamound

201% 5 123,334

GdS entered into various technical service and mantenance apreements wilh third parses for the
ethane constructron. Cheing 2017, payments under such agreements were $2.6 nillon Fubure
pontractual cash pavments of such commitments are as follows.

Year Amaoani

2018 3 214

2019 3l
5 245

During 20014, Ventika entered mto a 10 o 20-year contract with their customer's shareholders to
sell 100 pereent of the renowable energy preduced [rom the wind encrgy progect. Such agreement
commenced in April 2006 once Ventikn started commercial opertions,

Ventika has sequired the nghts 16 s 20-vear lanad lease agreement to use lamd for genermtmg and
trarsmitting clectricity using wind turbines. The agreement can be exdended by another 20-year
lermn.

During 2017, payments durirg the agreement were $0.5 million, Fulure comractual cash payments
are as follows:

Year Aot
2018 3 476
201% 495
200 100
Thereafter 10 180
3 11,668
|

LS
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On June 3, 2003, Yentika entered ino Svear O%M sgreement with Acciona Energm Servicios
Mexico, 5. de B L. de C. ¥ [“Acoiona™) which commenced afler the commssionng of the last
wind tarbine units, and covers operation, service and maintenance activities. The agresment can
be extended by another 20-year term.

Draring 2007, payments dunng the agreement were $T.6 million. Future contractual cash payments
are as follows:

Year A oant
2018 5 GGSs
209 5,695
2020 G555
Thereafier 2813
5 22

Cin Apeill 8, 2014, Ventika entered mile 8 3-vear assel management services agreements with
Cemex, 5. A B de C Y Payments under the agreement conmist of an annual fixed fee plus a
vanable sdmmnistralion comm sseen.

Durmg 2017, payments during the agreement were $5.0 million. Future expected pavments for
Ventika are as follows:

Year Amaont
N7 5 5. 240
2008 5308
2009 5370
Thereatter 3,484
3 19411
L]

Cin hay 1, 2008, [Enova MMarkeling entered into a contract with MGL Supply, LTD (CMGLETL o
purchase the gas natural transpontation Gpacily in the Norh Baja System. The acquired capacity
s 210 Cahid. The contract term 15 (or 14 years (ends on August 31, 2022).

Cin Febmuary 1, 2013, [Enova Marketing entered o 8 Scheduling Agreement with SGEPM. the
agresment ends on December 31, 2022 The obgectnve of the sgreement i engage the service of
SGEN 1o supply natural gas of the delivery points of SGXFM.

O November 24, 2016, [Eneva Marketing entered into a purchase natural gas capacaty agreement
with 5G&PM, 1o guaranies the ongoing Supply Agreements signed with several customers. The
acquired capacaty i varinble and the average matarity s less of 5 years,

On January 1, 2003 and Septemiber 1, 2014, IEnova Marketing entered into two nabural gas
puarchase agresment with SLMNGL The agreemients ends on Asgust 20, 2028 and December 31,
2023, reapectively {equivalent 1o 16.6 vears and 8.3 vears respectively). The acquired capacities
are 188,000 MABrw Year and 400 MMBwsThy, respectively
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Fal,

6.2,

Muriers redafed with rax anthorifies

Additbonal income taxes pavable could anse in transactions with nonresident unconsolidated affiliates
if the Mexcan Tax Authorty (Servicio de Administracion Trbutaria, “3AT™ by ns infials in Spanish),
during & review, believes that prices and amounts used by the Company are not similar 1o those used
with or between independent partics in comparable transactions,

Judicial, administraiive or arbitral proceedings

The Compary may become invalved in Iitigation and administrative proceedings relating toclaims arising
out of its eperations and propertiss. These may include claims fiked by suppliers and customers. federal,
stateor bocalgovernmental auihorities, including tax suthorites, ne sghbonimg residents and ervirosm ental
and social sctivists, &= well as labor disputes. Ciher than as desoribed below, there are no material
goverrmental, begal of arbitration procesdirgs against the Company which may have o matenal adverse
effect on s business, financial position or results of opemations:

Marters an FOCA

i

Meticwes for nnviow (recierts e revistot) agairer M of the ECA Tiominal, filed by Castre, Faldes
yPalafos InMay 2003, Hiram Caztro{ iz and Roberto Faldez Casntafleday "Castroand Faldez ™),
Jomily, and Monica Fabiola Palafox ("Palafox™), acting mdividually filed motions for revew
before the Ministry of the Environment and Matural Resources (Secretaria o Medio dmblente v
Recursoz Naturales, SEMARNATY 1o challenge the issuance of the MIA o the ECA Termiral
granted in April 2003, based on allegations samilar to IVG s allegations. SEMARNAT dismissed
the motions and the plamiiffs Nled before the Federal Court of Tax ard Adminisirative Justice
{Tribunal Federal de Justicia Fiscal y Admimistrativa, TFIFA) in Mexico eity, motiors for
annument sgamst the respective rulings. In January 20006 and May 2013, the TEIFA 1ssued the
judgments declaring null and void the rulings through which SEMARNAT dismissed the motions
tor anmalment ordening SEMARMNAT to 15sue new ralings in the terms st forth in such judgments.
In the case of Castro and Valdez, SEMARMNAT admitted the motion and in Jameary 2002 it issued
a resolution rebifing the vahdty of the MIA. In March 2012, Valdez filed before the TFIFA a
motion for enulment agaimat the ruling issved by SEMARNAT and ECA filed before the
Collegaate Cireuit Court For the Federnl Dustrict, & motson sgainst the raling whereby the TFJEA
ordered the admirtarce of the motion filed by Faldez Inthe case of Palafoe, SERARMAT has
ok psued 115 resohation on the MILA vet. The management of the Company deems that the clmms
of Castro, Valdez and Palafos ane unfoumsded

Fmally, agamst the resclution of demsal Robero Valdes Dked an armulment proceeding thal
wis resolved denying the anmalment to the complainant by means of & judgment published in
January 2017,

Modion for annulment ageingd ECA 5 port concesston, filed by Iimmuebles Vista Galf {1VGEL In
January 3005, TVG filed before the hlinstry of Commumnications and Transport (Secretaria e
Comuticaciones ¥ Transporfes, "SCT) a motion for annulment regardang BCA'S podt concession,
whach authomazes FCA Lo wse the rational port falines (or s martime operations. [V argued
that the 3CT should have applicd cenainenv ironmental requirements regarding the authoriztion
ol the porl concession 10 BCA and that the sctvilies performed by BECAs Termimal are nol
attributable to the SCT, as well a5 that BCA did not perform any environmental risk asscasment
areld that the SEMARNAT amencled the MLA withowl nolilving sisch crcumstance 1o the 3CT. In
March 2005, the 3CT dizmissed such motion and TVG filed before the TFIFA in Mexica City a
motion for annulment againsd the respectinve ruling. [n March 2000, the TFIFA issoed @ judgment
declaring mall and void the naling whereby the 5CT dismissed the mation for review and ordering
the lorter to admit such metion. In sy 2001, the SCT issued a new agreement dismissing the
motion omee agan. In August 2001, IVG [iled 8 second motion for annulm ent belore the TIIEA,
confinming its previeus arguments and arguing, beades, that the SCT is not empowened Lo issue
the ruling.
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BCA challenged the ruling whereby the TF IFA admitted the second motion for annulment based
om the [acl that [ V0s claims were resolved dunmg the prevous motien. InJune 2012, the TEIEA
agresd with such argument and diamizsed the second motion for annulment filed by VG TVG
filed & constinstional clum fampars) before the Federnl Counts, agmnst the last rubing of the
TFIFA. The answer to such claim was made by the Company on August 27, 2012 The SCT and
ECA'S Termingd answered such claim, During 2013, IVG filed 3 consututional cliim before the
Federal Courts, againat the dism issal of the motion before the TEIEA, protection which was granted
reversing the dismissal of the motion for snnubment. The motion for anmulment is pending and
therem both the SCT and the ECA Terminal have akready answered the claim

As 1o the motion for revocation frecierse dé nevacacion) against the port concession granted 1o
ECA before the Ministry of Commpunications and Transports ("SCT™), regarding the pon
concession for purposes of its mantime operations, the Company reports the following:

On Februry 19, 2015, a Colleginle Coun ruled Bavorably 1o ECAs interests, denying the
constitutional clam filed by Vista Golf against the mling of the Federal Court of Tax and
Admmazirative Justice, alzo ssued in favor of EC Az inleresis.

Therefore, an Apnl 24, 2015, the Federnl Court of Tast and Administratie Justice conchaded the
rialliny trsal Fully amd the judgment issued in favor of ECA i in cormequence definitivie

Morion for review againg MIA of ECA § Terminal, filed by Inmmebles Baga Pacifico, 34, de O F
(IEF ) In 2006, IBP started an action [ “popular clain™ before the Feder] Attorney General
Offwce of Envwonmental Protection (Procwradhirma Federal o Profvecion al Ambiente,
"PROFERL ") arpuimg that the condiiors and relief measures set forth in the suthonzation of
ervinanmendal impact would be meufficsent and that the operabion of ECASs Terminal wouldcause
A damage to the environment, secking, among others, the onder to amend or anmul the referred
Authoriztion in the Subject of Envirenmenta Inpact. The procesdings ended in 2006 iy fuvor
of ECA. IBF filed & motion for review against such maling, resolving it groundsd and ordering the
issumnce of a new resolution assessing the evidence of IBP and reselving on the compliance of
Lhe environmental legeslation,

[n compliange 10 the rubings in the maton (or review, PROE EPA performed mspections on BECAs
Terminal and it determined that its operations comply with the determinants and relief measures
imipesed i the: authorization mthe subpect of environmental mypact and they donol cause damage
to the environment. Such resohation was challenged by TBP theough the proceeding for anmulment
(itieic ole nrfickeel) beloge the Federal Cout of Tax and Adminisrative Justice (“TFIFA™), whach
in Awgust 2013 declared the mullity of the challenged resclution considering thai the awthority did
rod ground duly it termitorial competence and il oodered PROFEDPA 1o Bsue a new resolution
considenng the evidence dehverad by [BP setting lomh wha they would be msullicent 1o prove
the breach of the applicable begishition, Against TFIFAs ruling, beth IPB and ECA filed
constiutional tnals, respednyely. which were resolved in Februany' 2005 determmng 1o dism gs
the conatitutional claim brought by IPE and grant protection to EC A under the consideration that
[P Incks of stamei’legal mierest o challenge threugh procesding (or anmulment the resoluton
of the popular claim, ordering the TIFFA the issuance of a new resohition in congraence.

I such circusmstances, and given the reschation in the constinationsal trial, in Juby 200 5 the TFIEA
issued a new resolution dismissing [EP's proceeding, In November 2005, the TFJFA determined
that its judgment of July 2015 was definitive, being fully concluded in fivor of ECA

Coniihuticnal Claim filedby Ramon Eugenic Sanchez Ritchie (“Sanche: Rischie ") In June 20110,
Semches Ritchie Glod a constiutional claim in the Collegiate District Court of the Stale of
BafaCalifornia, Mexico, challenging the validity of all the permits and authorizations related
to the construction and eperation of BOA's Terminal The molion of Sarahes Rikchine named
as defendants 1 7 governmental agencics, including SEMARNAT, CRE and the Municipality
of Enzemada, among others. Although the first permits of ECA's Terminal were msucd more
than six years before its filing. Sanchez Ritchie claims that the operation of ECA's Terminal
would impair its rights as alleged owner of the property adjacent 1o ECA's Terminal (which
is disputed by ECA) and that ECA's permins were granted in breach of its rights
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Sanchez Ritchie claims the payvment of damages and the order to the defendant authorities
to revoke the permits for ECA's Terminal. On June 17, 2000, the Dristrict Court issued an
interim judgment ardering the different authorities to suspend ECA's permits, but such
provizional order was reveked by the Circuit Court an June 24, 2000 before the govertmental
authorities answered. Each one of the governmental authorities named in the constitutional
clam demied the changes and affirmed the vahidity of ther respective permuls and
authorizations. The allegations hearing of Sanchez Ritchic has been adjourned due to the
filing of mamy remedies and other procedural acts. [n hiay 2012, the case was submitted to
the Colleg iate District Courtof Tijuana and an issuance date of the interim judgment regarding
the admissibility of the constitutional ¢laim has not been 521 The Company deems that the
claims of Sanche: Ritchie are unfounded.

The constitutional hearing in the smae was held on December 8, 2014

Cm February 16, 2015, the Third Dhstnet Court in the subjest of constiutiena] tnal and federal
trials m the State of Baja California issued a resolution whereby it dismisasd the constitutional
trnal. Ramon Eugenso Sanchez Hiichee Dled s direct constitutional clam and it i pending of
resalution in the First Collegiate Count. Ty September 2016, the Collegiate Court resalved the
matter definitvely, confirming the deciston of the Diainct Judge in favor of ECA

Mumicipal claim filed by Sichez Ritchie. In February 2001, Sanchez Ritchie filesd a complamt
befiore the Directorate of Trban Conirol {Dirsccion de Control Urbano, DOCLT) of the hMunicipality
of Ersenada, in Bag Califorma, Mexico, arguang the mvalidity of the zoning and constrsction
permiis granted to ECA's Terminal m 2003 and 2004, respectively. Alihough the Municipaliy
had ratefiad the validity of the permits in its arswer to the constituional claim of Sanchez Ritchie
deseribed abave, sl"u.'l'l.]ir.' after I'tl:\ﬂi'ln'lrE_ the ﬂlﬂl‘ﬂ|!|.'|.i.l"|'i.. the DCL) mawed an order of bemparary
closing and mmedmte cessation of operations. The actions of the suthonties of the state and
Federal povemment prevented the inenruption of the operations of the terminal, while ECA filed
an answer to the administrative complaint before the DL as well 25 3 constitutional clam before
the Collegiate District Court in Ensenada. Tn March 2011, the District Court granted the suspencion
af the closing order until the resalution of ECA's constititional ¢luam, which was confirmed by
the ﬂ-l.ﬂh:ﬁijll-l: Coreunl Counts in Mexicali. Az informed on .r";lril 2, 3004, on such dale the
hunicipahity of Ensenads declared isell meompetent to deal with, trinsact, contimue with the
traneaction and at the time, reaokve the proceedings stanted in 2000 by Ramon Eugenio Sanchez
Bitchue, Theran, the suthorty resolved o resoind the acts in the sdmnistrative proceedngs,
including the clming order, ordening 1o close the file as a fully and doly comcluded issue. The
referred memomndum was evermually challenged before an Adminstrative Court by Sanchez
Ritchic, which was resolved favombly to the inlerests of BCA. The resolution mentioned above
wits Teil challenged because the 1smue was fully concheded and the judgment in faver of BCAs,
in consequence, definitive.

Saloman Arva Frest and Abrafar Haore Rafond fled before the Tinitary Agraran Dastrict Couwrt

af Ensénadan cluim against the Ministry of Agranan Reform (Secrttana de la Reforma Agraria),
ECAand other 20 defendants. The puspose of such claim & 10 procure a declaration of aullity of
the property rights granted by the National Agranan Regstry regardimg some plots of Tand where
ECA's Terminal is located, as well as the remrn of another plot which allegedly is bocated in the
same place, based on the argument that the property Utles ismed in fEver of the BCAs fomer
cwrwers were issuwed improperly and without corsidering the existing property nghts of such
immovable property. In September 2011 was held o definitive hearing on the subject, where the
plainti Vs effered evidence to extend their claim. The judge did retadmil the evidence, and before
imumg the judgment, the plnmntilts filed o constitutional chinm agamst the reflusal of the Judge 1o
the admittance of the evidence. The action of the judge is suspended by the constifutioneal claim,
and, the constitutiors] treal cannot continue until the Court serves notice of the civil elsim bo the
ather defendants, which has not happened. The Company' deema that the elaim 12 ungrounsded.

After several adjourned heanngs, on June %, 2015 the parbies were duly notificd off these
procesdings. Om that same date, the heanng was held, during which the disputed 15sues were s
and the evidence of all the parties was offered. Given the amount of evidentiary material, the
Ciouart reserved the nght of study and assessment thereol 1o subsequently set a new date of hearng,
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Tt wns held om September 201 5 where there was no resolition, bater it was programmed the relisl
of an expert test in the field for the November 3, 2006, This test was released and to the date was
submiticd 1o the Agranan Court.

On Nevember 3, 2017, a diligence for inspection and study m the feld was carmied out by vacious
experts offered by the litigants. To date all experts have surmendered their respective opinixns.
The Agrarian Court has ordered the issuance of an expent opmion of a third party in dispute and
15 requesting the Superior Agrarian Court, the appaintm ent of an expert for this punpoas

Criminal Investigation In May 2000, Samcher Ritchie filed before the Attorney General Odfice
of Erserada a criminal complamt arguing that “Sempra’s affilmtes”, several emplovees of ECA's
Terminal and several former employees of such Office committed the crime of procedural fraud
ns to o criminal complaint filed by ECA, which owns ECA's Terminal against Sanchez Ritchie
in 2006 as part of the conflict related to the possession of an immovable property adjacent to
ECA's Termiral which is property of the Company, In Seplember 2006, ECA accused Sanchez
Ritchie of the crime of dispossession for having ireapassed ECA's immowvable property. As part
of such proceedings, the public prosecuter Bsued o provisional erder to remove Sanchez Ritchie
from the immovable property. In the eriminal complaints filed i 2009, Sanchez Ritchse argued
that ECA and the ather defendants provided false infarmation 1o obtain such arder. The public
prosecutor responsible of the case defermined that there was not enough evidence 1o prosscute
the defendants and closed the investigation, and in March 2011, the criminal court of Tajustna
ratified the withdrawal of the action. In September 2001, Sanchez Richie filed a constinatorsal
cluim against the respective ruling before the Callegiate Distnict Court of Ensenada. The bearing
toanalyze the substantive aspeets of the constiutional claim was held in March 2012 and in July
2012 the judge gmnted the protection reganding the omission in the study, by the cnminal judge,
of cenain evidence and arpuments submitted by Sanchez Ritchie. The district udge ordered the
eriminal juddge o msue o new resolution considering such issues. BCAs Termiml appealed the
reacdution in the Federal Cireunt Coort, which as of December 31, 2015 bad not =aoed a naling
on the matter, On October 19, 2016, the Destract Judge dismissed the amparo st filed by Sanchez
Ritchie. This resohstion cavsed a state of affairs and the judgment was filed a5 a closed case.

Motion for review against the auwhonzanon of environmental impact for BCA's Terminal, filed
by Inmuchbles Vista Goll In May 2003, Inmucbles Vista Golf, 5.4 de CV filed before
SEMARNAT a motion for review againat the resolution issued by such authority im Aprl 2003,
whereby it gramtedtothe Conpany the suthorazation of environmental impact for ECA's Terminal
Inmuchles Vista Golf argues that SEMARMNAT did not give the necessary notices and did not
ahide by the applicable procesdings to grant such authorimtion; that the astivities of ECA's
Terminal are of industrial nanare and, therefore, they do ot meet the provisions in the Regional
Development Program of the Coastal Cornidor  Tijuama-Rosanto-Ersenadda  (known &
COCOTRENY, and that the conditions and relief measures set forth in the authorization wene
isufficient, In August 2003, SEMARMAL dismissed such motien and in December 2003
Inmuchles Vista Golf filed before the TFIFA. inMexico City, a proceeding for annulment against
the respective ruling, In Apnil 2005, the TFIFA msued aruling declarng the nullity of the respective
nuling, therefore SEMARNAT contimued the motion for review and in July 2006 resolved it
conlirming the validiy and legality of the authorizstion of eavisonmental impact, In October
20086, Inmuehles Vigta Golf fGiled before the TFIFA, in Mexico City, a procesding for anmualeent
agmnst SEMARNAT s respective resolution. In December 2010, TFJA confirmed the valudity
and legality of the resolution through which SEMARNAT confirmed the validity and legality of
the authorization of environmental impact. Against TFIFA's resolution, Inmuebles Vista Golf
filed a direct constitational trial before the Collegiate Circwit Court in the Federal District. The
constitutional trial was resclved through resolution of Apal 2012, whereby was granted the
protection for the TFTFA toassess all the evidence provided by the parties, specifically the expert
evidence intrial [n August 2012, the TFIFA issued a new ruling ratifving ence again the validity
of the authorztion of envirormental impast and the sulficiency of the conditions and relief
mansures to prevent the damages 1o the emvironment st forth therem. Inmuebles Vista Golf filad
anew constiutional claim against the judgment of Aupust 2002 of the TFIFA, on the other hand,
ECA filed an adjacent corstitutional ¢laim,
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In By 200 3, the Frst Chanber of the Supreme Courtol Justice of the Nation decaded 1o miervene
in the constitutional claim filed by Inmuebles Vista Golf. Ina public bearing beld on Febrsany 7,
2014, the First Chamber of the Supreme Cour of Justice of the Mation resolved 1o “dismiss the
corstiutional trinl and leave the adiacent constitutiorsal claim without subject”, therefore the afTair
i5 fully concladed in fiver of BECA

I On Seplember 5, 2016, in the Fist Collegate Count of the XV Circuit, usanimously and
defimitvely overulad the resolution previously 1ssued by the Third Dastrict Court and Federal
Proceedings of Baja California, in connection with the constinntional appeal Med by Sanchez
Ritchie in which he challenged the effectiveness of all permits and authorizations related to the
corstnucton and operation of the natural hqueiied gas storage and regasi lication terminal property
of its subsidiary ECA, lecated at Ensenada, Baja Califomia. OnOctober 19, 2016 Sanchez Ritchic
overruled resolution on the constituisonal appeal was ratified by the comesponding authorities,
elosing this cise

i InNovember 2011, Terma Peninsular, A.C. (“TP”), an enwironmental argamzation, filed before
the TEIFA of Mexico City a motion for review against the resclution whereby SEMARNAT
granted to ESJ the suthorizabion of environmental im et for the construction ar operation af
ESJ wind farm. TP argues thet if did pot recesve notice of such resolution; and that the MIA was
ol assessed pursuant Lo the :Ll‘:]'ﬂic:b]n legislation, sinee otherwise, SEMARMAT would kave
deried such authonztion. However, TP does not specily the laws or regulatiors that were not
duly applicd. Besides of the foregoing, TP argues that the different stages of the project should
require independent suthonzations, and that the grantimg of 8 conditional authomzaton for the
development of futune states which have not been fully defined is insufficient to pratect the
envirgnment. The TFIFA demed the suspensmon onder requested by TR bt admittesd the clam.
ESJ and SERARNAT filed their respective answers to the claim in Jure 2002, arguing that the
motien fed by T is untimely and that the MLA was duly grasted. The julge has admined the
expertz hrought by the parties and ES0%s and SEMARMNAT ‘s experts have submitted their expert
opiniens. The reguest filed by TI for the Dnal suspension was denied by the TEFIFA, resolving
that the evaluation from SEMARNAT was camied cut urkder the applicable legistation.

Terra Penmsular fought that resolution threugh the comespondmg appeal. which dad not prosper,
the refisal having been confirmed. Due to the importance of the matter, i was refemred to the

Superior Cowrt of the TEIFA, which inca public session, unanimously by the voles of s judges,
decided o dismizs the tral because it was promoded extemporanecushy. Terra Peniraular may
challenge such decision. To date i pending to notify Terva Peninsular the auling of the Supenor
Court, this 18 because il is not located in the address medicated for such purposes, so it will be
notified by udicial bulletin,

The apemtions of BCA's Terminal, TDACs plar ad ES1s wind farm have not been affected as a result
of the proceedings deseribed above and they continue operating normally during the process thereof.
Howeves, if any of such proceedings was resolved unfavorably for the Company, the operations of BCA"
Terminal andfor TDM's generating plant might be affected adversely and significantly, which in turn
rrvighl hawe & gigni ficamt adverse effect on the activities, perspectives, the financial pogition, the operation
results and the cash Nows of the Company

Except for the affars stated above, neither the Company nor s assets are subject to amy other legal
action different from those arsen in the normal course of business.
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Applicadion of new and revised Dnfermtionad Financial Beporiing Standurds

Application of new and revised Infernatonal Financing Reporting Standareds TFRST or “LAS") thas
are puridatorily effective for the current pear

Inthe current vear, the Company hassppheda number of amencdments to [FESs wssued by the Internaional
Accounting Sandards Board (“LASE™) that are mandatecily effective for an accountimg period that begins
on or afber January 1, 2017,

Amendncents to LAS 7 iNsclosure Tnifiative

The arendnents requine entities o peovide disslosure of changes ntheir linkilities arising frem fnancing
metivitbes, inchuding both changes arising from cash flowsand non-cash changes (auch as foneign esxochange
pams oF losses)

Amendnents to LAS 12 Recognrition of Deferced Tax Assers for Unrealised Losses

The Compary has applied these amendments for the: first time in the current year, The amendmerts clanfy
how the company should evaluate whether there will be sufficient future taxable profits against which i
cam wtilize & deductible temporary differencs.

Anrnal Ingprovenents te FFRSs 2004-2008 Cyele

The Compary has applied the amendments to IFRS 12 included in the Anmzal Improvements to IFRSs
2014-2016 Cyele for the first time in the current year

IFRS 12 stabes that a company nof need peovide summarnized lrancel informaton for nlerests in
subsidiaries, asacciabes or joint venhares that are classified (or included in & disposal proup that is
classificd) as held for sale. The amendments clanify that this is the enly concession [rom the disclosure
reguirements of [FRS 12 for such interests.

New and revised [ FRSY im dsace Sud ol pet gffective

The Company has net apphed the [ollowing new and revised [FES that have been imued bt have not
enbered fonce:

TFRS 9, Fimanctal netrumenis (1)

LFES 13, Revenne from Comtracts with Cusiomers (1)

IFRIC 22, fnderprelation of Foreign Curmmcy Transachions aad Aovance Consialeration (1)

Amendments to LAS 40, favestment Froperty (1)

Amendments o IFRS 10 Conselidafed Fioancial Stalemendts and 1AS 28 lavestonend in

Aszoctates andJotet Ferninres (3)

+  Deferral Effectve Date of Amendments to IFRS 10 Consefidnled Financial Starcments and LA
28 Dmvesimtertis tit Aszoctares and ot Pentures (2)

o TFRS 16, Leans (3)

* TFRS 17, Insuramce Cortraces ()

o TFRIC 23, Dimoerrainty cver fncome Tax Treatmenity (3)

(17 Effective for annual periads beginning on or after Jarnuary 1, 2018

(2) Effective date 15 deferred mdefinitely, carly adoption of the September 2014 amendments contimss
ter e permitted.

(3) Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer January 1, 2019

(4] Effective for armul periods begimaing on or after Jaruary 1, 2021
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TEBRS % Fimgnoinl (nafruwaren s

IFEE S, “Financial instiruments” 1sswed m July 2014, s the replacement of LAS 359 “Finsncial Instraments:
Recogiiton and Measwremen™. This standard includes requirements for recognition and measurement,
imparaent, derecognitien and general hedge accounting. This version supersades all previous versions
afud ia mardatonily effective for periods beginming on of after January 1, 200 8, with early adoption beimg
permitted IFRS 9 (2004) dees mot replace the requirements for portfolie i value hedge acccunting for
unkerest rate risk since thes face of the project was separated (rom the IFRS 9 project.

IFES 9(2014) is a complete standard that inchsdes the requirements prey iously issued and the additional
amendments to miroduce a pew expected logs impairment model and limited changes to the ¢ lassification
and measurement requiremients for financal assets. More specifically, the new impairment model 15 based
on expected credit loases mither than incurred losses, and will apply to debt insirumenis measured
amertized cost or Faur Value Throwgh the Statement of Ciher Comprehensive Income (CFYTOCT™), bease
receivables, contract maets and cemain written loan commitments and Anancial guiramtes contracts.
Regarding the new mensurement category of FYTOCT, it will apply for debt instruments held within a
busine s model whose objective i3 achieved both by collecting comractual cash [ows and szlling financial

With regards to the new [IFRS 9 *Financial Instrumenis®, the three phises m the standand were evaluated.

: sprent: the new stancdard introduces o new moslel for the clissilication of
11|| l:,mnrl'nmtlﬂlmls 1rn,||.|:.i11gll'u:m.¢ that gomtnin imphicit denivatives, With this model, the fimamcial
aszels are classafied in their entrety, instead of being subject 1o complex biluscalion requisements,
Conceming the classification of fmancial labilites, the IFRS 9 keeps all of the cumem [AS 39
requirements, the enly change contemplated regarding the financial liabkilities is linked to recognizing the
changes in the owm credit risk thal 15 reguired Lo be presented as part of OC]

The outcome of the evaluation of the following critena will daermine the way in which the financial
asget must be classified and, thus, the basis of s measurement subsequent to the classification:

) Determinateon of the Busmess Modal

The Busness Model relers 1o how the Company manages the [inanoal assel sclivilies o generale cash
flowa thit flow directly 1o the Company either throwgh the mere collection of contracneal cash flows, the
sale of the financaal asset or through both activities.

The datermunation of the Business Model 15 handled at a level that reflects how o finamcial asset or group
of financial assets ane managed 1o meet s partioular objective and et theough an esessment of individual
instruments, and it does not depend on the intentions of Management on the financial asset, but on 15
actual use,

Acompany may have more than one Business Model io manage ther financial assels depending on the
charactenatics of the finencial asset and, above all, the wee that the Management makes on that fnamcial
asset 1o achleve is business goal

Iy thas regard, the Company is in the process of documenting s Business Model regarding the financial
as=els that the Company has, and it does not expect 1o change its current chassification and, therefore, the
measurement of the comesponding financial instruments.

bl Chamsctenstics of the contractunl cnsh flows

[FRS 9 requIres that conmtractunl csh fows nepresant only paymenls ol the prlnr.i[ml and milerest, whose
characteristics are consistent with thoae of a basic loan sgrecment in which the conssderation of the ime
valwe of money and those rakated to credit risk are the most important clemonts of the evaluation, hawever,
il the contractual terms of the firancal asset nchde expasures to nak and volatihites inothe contractual
cash Nows that aro not related wo a basic loan sgreement, cash ows hnked 1o such a lnancial asset do
A represent the principad and merest
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Lev erage may be a feature of contractual cush (lows in some [inancinl wssets which increases the variability
of cash ows, resulimg in dilferemt charactenisiics 1o those of milerest

The Company believes that the contracteal cash (lows azsceiated with its financial instraments represent
mainly the recovery of the pancipal only, in some cases, and in others, only the principal and mierest, as
per the new standird, therefore, the Company has pot identified possible effects associated with this
Criberion.

==lorpairmend; This phase describes o "three-stage”™ model ("overall model™y for imparment based on
credit quality changes from the inial recognition

aj Phase 1 meludes the fmamcial imstruments that have not had a sigmficant credit ek mcnease from
the inmial recogrution or (gt the company s discretion) that have a low credit nsk 31 the reporting date.
For these assets, expected credit losses ("ECL®) are take into account at 12 montha, and mierest income
15 caleulated on the gross book value of the asset amount {1e., without deduction for impairment), The
12.month ECL are those resuliing from the defult events that are posgible within 12 months from the
date of the repart. Tt is net the expectad sosh deficit during the 1 Z-mamh period, but the total credin loss
of an assel, weighted by the probabality that the loss oecurs in the next 12 months,

b} Stage 2 includes fmancial instruments that have had a significant increase in the credit risk from the
initial recognition {unless they have a low credit nisk at the reporting date and this is the option taken by
the company), but do not have objective evidence of impaimment. For these assets, expected credit losses
are recegnized for life, but the inerest income s caloulated on the gross book value of the ascl amount.
The ECT. for hie are those T::u,lll:iﬂﬂ {rom all the [r;miH: evenls nrrm-:wnpllm dl,ling the mimximaum
contractual period n which the Comparny is exposed to the eredit nisk. The ECL are the wezghted average
credit losses, with the respective risks of 8 weighted defaull.

¢} Phase 3 mcludes the irandial assets thal have obpective evidence ol impairment i the reporang date.
For these asacts, the expected credit losses are recognized for life, and the interest income 15 calculated
on the net book value amount (1.c. the net impairment esamalc),

Al the date of issuance of these linancial statements, the Company s in the phase | and sccording wothe
msessment camed ol on 11s ype of imnsactions with the clienl, 1l was conslusled that mots appreach Lo
risk mssessment of clients there would be no sigralicant impact with the new requirements of the new
standdard, and smee the behavior of fs chients has shown ne nisk mdicators, the Compame beheves that
the expected loas approach that the new standard sets will net result in & change in its sstimates of
impairme. Even when this standard comes mioeffect on January 1, 2018 with retrospective applicatson,
the Coenpany would apply this stardard from Jameary 1, 2018 because il tumed cut o be impractical to
carry out the assessment on a retrospective basis from the last reporting period.

FAccounting for Hedpes: The IFRS © provides an accounting pelicy option which establishes that the
entilics may eontinue 1o apply the hedge sccounting requirements in 1AS 39, waning for the end of the
macro project risk coverage, or they may apply the IFRS 9, This choace of accounting policy will be
applied to the entire hedge aceounting portfolio and cannot be performied on a hedge by hedge. In this
regand, the Company has chosen to continue using 1AS 30

This choice of accounting policy = applisd only 1o the application of hedge accounting ard has no impact
on the implementaion of the other two phases of TFRS 9, namely, "Clasafication and heasurement™ and
“Irnpairment®.

The new standard also intreduces declosure requirements and changes in the presentation I = expected
to mpact the nature and extent of the disclosures about financial instruments, particularly i the year of
the adoption of the new standard.

LFRS 15 Revenue frow Cosifeaets with Cusfomers

IFES 15, “Bevenue from Contracts with Customers™, was ssued in May 2014 and applies to annual
reporiing periods beginring on or afler 1 January 2018, carlier application i1z pormiited. Revense is
recogmized as eontrol is passed, either over tme or at 4 paimt n time
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The stamclard outlmes a saimgle comprehensive madel Tor entitees o wse 10 secountimg e revenue ansmg
from contracts with customers and supersedes moat cumment revemue recognition guidance, including
inklustry specific gudance. In applying the revenus model to contracts within its scope, 8 company will;
1) Tdenitify the contract(=) with a customer, 23 Identify the perfommance obligations in the contract; 3)
Determine the transaction prce; 4) Allocate the ransaction price to the performance obligations i the
contract; 5 Recognize revense when {or a3} the compary satisfiez a performance obligation Alse a
company' needs to dischose sufficient information 15 enable wsers of financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, ming and uncertainty of revenue and cash fows ansing from contracts wih
CLSIEMErs

Clarilications to [FRS 15, Hevenue from Contraces witk stomers

Theze clarificaisons addresa (1) sdentifying performance obligations, (2) principal-versus-ageni
considerations, and (3) licensing. The amendments also provade some twansmtion reliel for modified
comracte and compbeted comtracts. Specific provisions of the amendments include the folbewirg:
Identifying performance obligations - Clanification that the objective of the assasment of a promise 10
transler poods or services 10 4 customer is 10 determine whether the nature of the promise, within the
cartext of the contract, 15 10 tramsfer each af thase goods or services medividually or, mstead, to tmnsfer
a combined em of Mems to which the promised goods or services are inputs. Principal-versus-agent
corsiderations - Extersion of the appleation gusdance. Licensing - Clarification of whether an entity's
promese to grant a lieense of its [P should be recopnized as revermse at a poant in time or over me based
on whether the licensor's ongoing activities signi hicimtly alfect the [P Transition reliel - Two additional
{opticnal) practical expedients. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
orafter Jamuary 1, 2008, which isthe samie offective date s that of IFRS 15, Earlierapplication is perm itted,

The Company has evaluated the recognition and measurement of revenoe acoerding to the five-step maodl
m the 1FEES 15 and has not glentilvad any sygmahicand hinancel impact, so thatl there will be no sygnificamd
adjustments after its adoption. The Company chose o adopt the new standard as of Jarary 1, 2012 by
applving the modilied retrespective method of adoption. The Company has not adopted in advance any
interpretation of amendment that hes boen isaaed but not yet ¢ fective.

Eevenue [rom contracls with chents are classi[ed along the (ollowing lnes:

Eevenue fronn tam (T transportalion services

Fevenue from capacity services in pipelines
Eevenus from storage services of natural and LF gas
Revenue from distribution services of natural pas
Revenue fron sdmirustrative sevices

Revenue from generation of wind energy

Eevenue from sale of electric power

These revernses ane obtainegd independemly in confrcts with each of s clients, with passible renewals
aceording to the contractual terms. Currently, the Company recogmzes the income {or services and for
the gemeraiion of wind enengy and ebeciric power when such services are rendered or when they are
delivered and sccepied by the client. aceording o the programs established in the contractzs. According
to [FRS 15, the allocation of these revenues will be made on the basia of independent sales prices as 28
ot in the contracts and on the basis of what was incurred, therefore, the allesation of the carsaderation
and, consequently, the timing of revenue recognition would mot be affected by the adoption of IFRS 15

Cin the other hand, the Company coneleded that energy servicss and delivery are met over Lime, given
that the client receives the benefits provided by IEnova through the period in which the contract remams
in force. Consequently, according to IFES 15, the Company would continue recognizing movemae from
SErviee contracts over Lime rather than ol a poind in Lime.

Presentation amd disclssare

The new presentation and disclosure requirements of [FR3 15 are more desaaled than in the cusremt
gudance, therelore, the Company concluded that this 15 o relevant change, because it sigmificantly

1%

increnses the volume of disclesures reguired in the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements,

Many of the disclosure requirements in [FRS 13 are new and TEnova has evahsated that the impact of
some of these requiremients will be significant. [n particular, IEnova hopes that the notes to the Condensed
Irerimy Consolidated Firancial Statements will be extended due o the disclosure of significant judgmeni:
when determining the price of transactions, how the tanssction price is asssgned to performance
obligatiorne and the assumptions used in the estimation of independent aales prices of each perforemance
oblgatian. During 2017, [Eneva development tests m their systems 10 adapt them to the new 1FRS 15
requirements, & well as ther mternal control and acecunting polices.

IFRIC 22 Inderpretation of Foreipn Currency Transactions and Aovance Considenasion

This new Interpretation ¢larfies the accounting for transactions that melude the recept or payment of
advance conasderntion in a foreign cumency. The inlempeetation is being msued to reduce diversity in
practsce related to the exchange e used when an enlity reports transactions thak are denom nated 0 a
foreign currency in accordance with TAS 21 in circumstances in which consideration is received ar pand
before the related asset, expense, or income is recognized

Effective for anmunl reporting periods beginning after Jamaary 1, 2003 with earlier application permitted
The Cempany is evaluating the new standard and no sigrificant financial impact has been identifiad
Amendments o LAS 30 Transfers of nvestaene Property

These amendments o the guidance in TAS 40 on transfiers of property to or from investment property.

Specifically, the amendments revize paragraph 57 of [AS 40 to state that “a company shall tramsfer a
propenty bo, or from, investment propeny when, and only when, there is a change inuse. ™ The amendments
further clarify that a “change in use occurs when the propenty mects, o ceases o moct, the definmon of
mvestment property” and that a “change m management’s imtentions for the use of a property does not
provide evidence of a charge in wse.” The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or alter
Jarvusry 1, 200%; early adoptsom 15 permitied

The Company 15 evaluating the new standird ard no sigraficant fimancial mpact hiss been identifiad

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consoltdated financinl storemen i amd LS 28 Investment in Assoctales and
Soine Feurrare

Amendments to LAS 28 require that gains and losses resulting, from transactions between a company and
is associale or jeind venlure relate only o asels that do nol constitute o business. As well, a new
reguirement has been miraduced that gains or lesses from downstrenm tnmsnctions volving nssels that
corsinute o business belwoon o company and its associale of joint venture must be recognized i full in
the mwestor's (inancial sLalements.

Aukhtionally, 8 company needs 10 consider whether assels that are s0ld or coninbuted m separate
trarsactions constitute & business and ghould be accounted fior 22 8 single rarsaction.

O the othier hand, for consolidated firancial statements, an exception from the genersl requirement of
Full gain or bess recognition has boen introduced mio [FRS 10 for the loss control of a subsidiary thal does
ol combiaim A business 1n 3 transaction wilh an associate or @ poanl venlure that 15 accounted Lor using the
equity method,

TASH Thfers Effective Date of September 2004 Amendments TFRS 10 Conselidated financial
statements aid [AS I8 lnvestovend in Associsfes and Join Venture

The amenctments thal inde (mtely defer the effective date ol 15 Seplember 2014 amendments 1o 1FRS 10
(on consolidated firancial statements) and 1AS 28 (on investments inassociates and joint vertures), which
address bow a company delermines any gain of loss related to transactions with an sssociate of joint
venture.

IENOVA
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The 1458 plans to redeliberate the eflective date of the September 201 4 amendments after it hos completed
115 research project on the equity method. Barly adoption of the Seplember 2014 amendments condimuss
10 b perrmitied

The Company is cvaluating the new standard and no sigmficant Ninancial impact has been identified.

IFHS 16 Lewses

[FRS 16 “Leases™ was ssued in January 2016 and supersades [AS 17 “Leases™ and related intarpretations,
The new standard brings most keases on-balance sheet for lessees under & single maodel, elimiratng the
distinction belweenoperatng and [inance keases. Lessor accounting, kowever, remains langely unchanged
and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retined. IFR3 16 s effective for periods
beginning on or aller | Janaary 2009, with earlier adoption permitied if ITFRS 15 Revenue rom Contracts
with Custonsers’ has also been applieed,

Under IFRS 160 lessee recognizes a righl-ol-use aset and 2 bease lisbiliy. The right-of-use asset is treated
similarly to other non-financial assets and depreciated accordingly and the liability secnees interest. This
will typically produce a front-loaded expense profile (whereas operating leases under 1AS 17 would
typecally bave had strasght-line ¢ xpenses) as an assumed limcar depreciation of the nght-of-use asset and
Lhe decreasang imlerest on the habahiy wall kead 10 an overall decrense of expense over the reporting period,

The lesse linkality es matinlly measured a1 the present value of the lexse pavmients pavable over the lease
torm, discounted ot the rate mmplicit in the kase i that can be readily determaned, IT that rate cannal be
readily determaned. the lessee shall use their incremental borrow ing rale.

However, a lesace may elect to scoount for lease paynienta as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term for leases with o lewse werm of 12 months or ks and conteining e purchise options (this
clectron s made by class of underlying asset) and leases where the underlying assed has a low value when
new, such as personal computers or small items of office furmiture (this election can be made on a lense-
Toy-lease hasis)

[FRS 16 establizhes differem iramasitional provissons, including retrespective application o the modified
retrospactive application where the comparmive period 15 nol restated.

Regarding the transiton methodology to be used, the Company will be using the modifed retrospective
method

Annnal Tnpravements fo [ FRSs 2004 - 2816 Cyele

The Annual Tmprovements melude amendments 1o IFRS 1 and 1A% 28 which are met yel mamdstonly
effective for the Company. [TFRS 1 deleted short-term exemptions ¢ovenng transiion provisions of IFRS
7, IAS 19 and IFES 10 which are no kenger relevant. Also the amendments clanify that the disclosure
requirements of [FRS 12 apply 1o interests in enlitkes that are classified as held for sale, except for the
summanzed financial informabion.

The amendments o LAS 28 clarily thal the option for a venture capital organization and other similar
crtities o measure investments inassociutes and point vemures @l FYTPL is available separately for cach
fssociabe of joint venture, ard that election should be made at mitial recognition of the assocwmie or jomt
Venlure

[nrespect ol the option [or anentity thal 1= nod amimvestment antity (IE} 1o retam the i value mensuremant
applied by its assockates and joint ventures that are TE2 when applying the equity method, the amendments
make @ similar clanfication that tas choice 15 avmlable for each 1E assocute or TE jomt venlure, The
amendments apply retrospectively with earlier application permitted,

Both the amendments to [FRS 1 and TAS 28 are effective for annual periods beginning on or atler 1
Farneary 2018
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The Company does not anticipate that the application of the amerdments in the future will kave any
mipact on the Company consolklated fmamcial statements as the Company 15 neither . first-lime adopler
of IFES por a venlure capital ofganiztion

TFRE 1T Insurance Corfracts

IFES 17 was issued in May 20017 a5 replacement of IFRS 4 Insarice Comracts. [ requires a curren
mieasumernent model whefe estimates are re-measured each repommg peniod. Contrmcts are mersumed using
the building hlocks of: 1) discountad probabality-weighted cash flows, 2) an explicit risk adjustnment, and
1) a contractual service mangin (“CSMT) representing the uncarned profit of the contract which is
recognized as revemse over the coverage period.

The standard allows s choice between recognizing changes m discount rates either in the income stalemem
or directly in other comprehensive meome, The choice is likely to reflect how insurers account for their
firancial assets under IFES 9.

An optional, simplified premium allocation approach 18 permitted for the liabilioy for the: remminmng
coverage for short duration contracts, which are often written by non-life insurers

There 15 a moshfication of the genersl measurement model called the “vanable fez approach’ for cenam
cantracts written by life irsuners where policyhalders share im the retuma from underlying itlems. When
applyirg, the variable fee approach the Campanys share of the faar value changes of the underlying items
i included in the contraciual seevice masgin, The resulls of insurers wsing this modal are therefore likely
to be less volatile than under the general model.

The new rubes will affiect the financial statements and key performance indicators of all entities that issue
Iarnee contmcls of nvestment contracts with discretioniery participation [eafures,

IFRS 17 s applied for annual reporting periads heginning on or after January 1, 2021, Earlier application
i permitted For entities that apply TFRS @and IFRS 15 on or before the date of initial application of TFRS
17

The Company 15 1n the process of evaluating the potential effects of implem enting this new standard n
its financial information.

FFRIC 23 acertainty sver frcome Tax Treaimenis

This new [nterpretation clanfies how 1o apply the recognition and measurement requirements in [AS 12
“Income taxes” when there is uncenainty over mcome Lax reatments. Uncertain tax ireatments are a tax
trestment for which there 15 uncertaindy over whether the relevant taxation suthonty will acoept the tax
treatment under ta law: Tn such a circumatance, a company hall recognize and measure ita curment or
deferred tax assel or liability by applying the requirements in LAS 12 based on taxable profil (tax loss),
b bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rtes delermimed applving this Interpeetation.

A company =hall apply [FRIC 23 for annual reporting periods beginning on or after lmusary 1, 2009
Earlier application is permitted and the fact must be disclesed. On instial application, the Interpretation
must be applicd retrospectively under the requirements of TAS § or retrespestively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying the Interpretation &= an adjustment to the opening balance of retained camings.

The Company's is in procesa of assessmient of potential effects that could generate the implementation of
Lhesa changes 1l any applicable,
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Evemnts after veporting date
Withdrawals of credif line.

O Junuary 4, 2018, Febroary &, 2018 and February 27, 2018 regarding the credil line mentioned m Mote 2] a
the Company withdrew 650 milhon, 51350 milhon and 5250 mallen, respectively. to be used [or working
capital ard pereral comporate purposes

Execution of Séandby Letter aof Creait Facilisy and Reincbursentent A greemens

Cin Fanugary 32, 2012, im order 1o make more efficient ard siandandize the process lor the isswance of letiers
of eredit requested by governmental entities o third parties with whon # contracts, [Enova executed, together
with 8 bank syndecate formed by Banco hacional de Meoco, 8. AL SMBC, Bancomer, Scotinbank Inverlas,
5 A, Miaihe, BNPPanbas and Santander, entered intoa letter of aredit Eacility and remmbursement agreement,
up e an ameunt eguivalent to 51.0 blhon UL 5 Dollars whach will be in effect for Dive years (the® LOCE" )

i.  The foregoing, among other thirgs, will allow [Enova to expedite the sdministrative processes for
ihe ismmnce or renewal of standby letters of credit and o have a unigue process for the issuance of
all its standby betrers of credit

i The LOCF and the standby keners of credit imued under the same do nat constibute [Enova's debt
The issuance costs of the aforementioned LOCF amounts $1.5 milhon U7 S Dollars
Vieraeruz marine terminal and in-land terminal projects

O January 8, 2018 ESTR 11 paid the remaining 50 percent of o countor-payvment fee equivalent to the amoun
in Befeccican Pesoa for the right to build, use, leverage and benefit from the operation of the marine termiinal
in Yeracruz, the coumter-payment amounts Lo 530000 million Mexican Pesos, (Please refer to Nole 1.2.10e)

CEBURES

Cin February ¥, 2013, the Company made the repavment of the public debt issuance, CEBURES of the second
placement for an amount of 51,3060 mallon of histencal Mexican Pesos. (Please refer lo Mote 23.8.10.)

For this debt matuning i 2018, the Company swapped [iwed rate in Pesos Tor a foeed mete in ULE. Dollars,
exchanging principal and interest payments that were realized on this date, the Company received 51, 30000
millon of Mesican Pesos and paid $102.2 millon U, 5. Dollars. Thas paynient ended the hedged contracted
ard the CERTTRES linbility (Please refer to Mote 238, and 235}

Long-term electric supply contract

On F:I'u'uu‘rl.' B 2% he f'.um"mn}' exccwed o I.*r-:.'mr‘ :ll:d.fil:ll_!r' nwhr wconlriel with varous subsidianes
of El Puerio de Liverpood, 5 A B de C W (“Liverpoo]™). The electrciy will ke generated by a new solr
power plant that will be located i the mumcipality of Bengamin Hill in the State of Sonorm, Mexioo. The plant
will have the capaaity tosupply Liverpool and other large energy consumers. The Company will be responsible
of the development, construction and operation of the project that will have a capacity of 125 MW with an
imvestment of sppraximately S130.0 million. The beginning of commercial opertions 15 expected to ogcur in
the second half of 2009

Capital contribution to TN

Cin February X8, 2018, the Company made a capital contribution of $24.8 million io ThiG
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Approval of Financial Statements
The accomparying Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issusmce on March 1, 2018, by
Manuela Molina Peralta, Chief Financial Officer, and subject to the approval of the Management Board and the
ordimary shareholders of the Company, who may be modified in accondance with the provisions of the General
Law of Comniércal
Registered offices
* Pazeo de la Reforma Moo 342 Poao 24

Tore Mew York Life

Col. Juarez, CF D00

Mexico I F
. Campos Ehseos Mo, 345 Piso 4

Torre Omnéga

Col. Chapultepee Polanco C B 11530

Mexico, I} E

* Carretera Escenica Tijuana — Ensenada km. 81.2
Caol. El Sauzal, ©. B 22760
Enscrada, B.C.

- Carretera Mexicali Tijuana km. 14.5
Cal Sonom, C P 21210
Mexieall, B.C

. Avemda Teenologicn Mo, 4505
Cal Grangss, C. 1. 31160
Chihuahus, Chib

* Eoulevard Francisco Ewsebio Kire Moo 500
Piso 1, Col. Counry Club
Hermosillo, Sonora

3 Carretera Federal Cucta 150, km 461 820,
Zan Roman Corralillos, CF 45464
Guadalapara, Jalisco

- Swvemda Constituceon Pomiente Mo, 444
Caol. Monterrey Centra C. P G000
Blomiemey, Muevo Leon

TEILIEL,
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Infraestructura Energetica Nova, 5. A, B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries

Pro forma Combined Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2016
(In thowsands of U5 Dollars)
As ol Devemnlser 3. 3816
Isdfrerinsciera Ducten Enfraririiara
I'in:rﬁr'ﬂtl. : !Enﬂm‘ mtl Fre Fiema l'hg:'}.ﬂh
Mova, Nowie, - Nova
ARV Lde .V, AMdjwdments Mol g o B oger ¥,
and Smbddiaries i Moke dC3N [ote 3f and Subskljarie
[Mode 31LK o Fams
Assets
Churment axEels
Cazh and cash equvalents 5 A% 5 HEIT 5 L EENET
Shom-lenmn investmems B B
Trinle imad other recavalles, net | () B8 N, 86
e from ungonsodidated aililisies 12576 5101 (6844 @& 11,233
Finanos lease reosivables T.135% 7.14%
Income taxes recevable &, 35 G, 1
Matural gas inventenes G083 = = 4,083
“Pro Torma additional information™ DCerivative financial insrements 6513 6,213
Yahie added ta reccivable 27 0 2760
Cthér fssei R 167 0204
Hosincied cazh 31,353 = — 51,3463
Asseia held for aale 131 287 191,257
Total curmend asseds ERECEL 14,027 (5844 45212
Wisi=Clmen! sl
D Trom unoomaslidated
Affiliaies 104,352 3080 @i018) a 14,414
Derivative fnasinl instrusnents 1,127 1,127
Finance lease recsivables 950,311 a3
Deferrad incomsa Lo assels 75 GCr 17,364 1227 b 04, 5]
Erveeton i i joing venfures 125,355 155 328 1N13e ac EL Y
Uther rascis 15455 ER L]
Froperty, plmt and equipment, et 34614085 1.68% (2530 ] 3613244
Intangy e assols 154,144 —_ 32505 ¢ 186,652
Givandall 1651, 780 1,651, T80
Toral nen-curmeni asseia EOEI S 177461 55918 6,915,357
otal msets £ Tl % 191 488 % 15074 £ TAATA
—
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As of Devember 31, 3616

Sea mooompeEying nedes o the Pro forma Combined Financial

Statemn enis

Inlraesirmnurs
D ctan ¥ Imfy s-sliimciura
I ot v gt
- i, = " ]
L lﬂ;l‘tﬂ L L de iV Mjmli Phapli=y %o L eV
i Bl tart (ke A2 [aie 5) ared Subrsbd arkes
{Meske 4413 Fro Forma
Liahilitics and Stockholders” Equity
Cuarrent liabdlibes:
Short=term debit 5 49557 % - % MBS ab & TR2 A%
Tracks andd other papvaldes 500G S5 254071
Due o unconsohidaad alihales 2650, B4 5,755 (100967 a 255702
I ncoane kax liabalities 13,32 133x
Denvative Eemcal isanenails 14,310 10,310
Crthvir fimamcaal liabalities 5.BTT SRIT
Provisions G0 pa ]
Cithver Racoes payable 21571 140 2012
Cbwer babaliees IB BS] — —_ P 1] |
Liskalities related to assats had for sale 15,45] A5 451
Tiortal current linhilities ST1.674 oA i (] 247 953 1, 236027
Non-mirment habulitics
L.ong-tanm debi 1,030 804 1,030 804
Due to umconsoliclalad allihiaies 3, [0 17RET2 (L e | ]
[bered insme tax halnhises AX0 GOT AR G007
Provisions §1,09% 51035
Denvative financial issnsmenis 215,851 21585
Ermploved bemedit LT L ARS
Tatal pon-carment liabdin es 1,804 9653 172872 [182.052) 1,801 883
Tl lighiiliies 2.0 M03T 18,272 00 S027910
|
Seockholdors’ Equaty
Comumon stock 063272 i3] (331) =m 0EX2T2
Additienal paidsin capitml 2351 801 — —_— 2351 300
Accumulated other comprehenaive {loss) income (1 26,658) (37T 1549 @ {1Z8.206)
Retaned sammngs 1,161 356 To82 (17,1450 & 1, 152734
Tonal equiry 4,3%0311 5,216 (13927 1,339,600
Tiatil Halililies and squity & TIXIIE 8 1) 488 5§ 49 074 &  TAETSI0
— —
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Infraestructura Energetica Nova, 8. A, B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries

Pro forma Combined Statements of Profit
For the twelve-month period emided December 31, 20046

T thouzands of 17,5, Dhallars)

Revenies

Cost of evemes

COpemuing, administrative and cther expenses
Diepreciation ind amarization

Insemest INGOME (EXpLrEe]

izt oe ooses

Cher gains lesses), ne

Ronveasuromend of oquity method iovestmmen

Profin before income tax and aluare of profite of joim
wonbares

Inoome i [expense ) bemealit
Share of profit (leax) of jeant ventures, net of inoome 1

Frofit for the year from continuang opermiions

Lioas for the year from discentinued operations, ned of
EnEem

Prodie for the year

IENOVA
Year emled December 1. 2006
Infraedruciurs Inlra=druciura
Dhactos v y
Emergelic : ke Enerpeticn
Darra, wmﬁ Fro Faoging Paiva,
BADICY. | Gty Adjmimenls  Medrs 5 Dde OV,
anid v iﬂ i Deade 51 and
Sulnil ey e B Salngianie
Ml il 3B Pra Farma
] TITER 35 19554 % ISAREE ac B T, Bl
(317,783 (26300 ¢ [0 A 15
(004,754) (8, 500) (45.364) m0o [138,618)
164, A8 {74) {40,932, [0S, By
) o8 (T.753) Be {1,380
20,8364) (8,247 {33909 a b, (63, 05%2)
2168 ({2332) {12108 mc (10,072
ar3.071 — — G73,071
71639 634 110526 1084, 391
(M 4T.158) 50T A1 78 aa [ IR3, 280)
AXB41 13,179 (42379 a & 13,641
5 T & 2412 5 SGA49 & 215,183
(112.332) (112,352}
% TGN X a2 5 26,449 5 RO2.8%1

See pocemipanying notes to the Pro fonma Combaned Finameaal Stabements
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Infraestructura Energetica Nova, 8. A B. de C. V. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Pro forma Combined Financial Statements

As af December 31, 2016
(Lo thoresanads of LS. Dollars, excepl where ollierwise stated)

1.

Activitles

Infraestnuctura Energetica Mova, 5. A0 B, de C % amel subsachames (colkectively, the “Compamy ™) 15 kocatad ancd
meorporaled n Mexico, [ts parent and ultimate holding company 5 Sempra Energy (the “Parent™), domiciled
arvd mecrperaled in the Siate of Cahiommes inthe Lned States of Amenca (L 5.7) The mbdress of the Company's
regisierad oflices is Paseo de ka Reforma Wo. 342 Pso 24, Tomre MNew York Life, Colonta Tusrez, Cisdad de
Mexico.

The Company operates in the energy sector and is orgenized in two separately managed reportable segments,
(ras and Power Amounts labeled as Corporate consist of parend company scuvities al LEnova,

The Gas scpment develops, owns and operates, of holds mderests . natural gas, LPG and ethane pipelines,
storge fMcilities for hguified ratural gae (“LNG™), LG, transportation, detmbution and sale of natural gas in
the states of Bag Californin, Sonor, Sinnlea, Coahutla, Chabuake, Dheango, Tamaulipss, Chiapes, San Los
Potos, Tabaseo, Veracrus, MNuovo Leon and Talseo, Mexico. It ako owns and operates an LMNG w@erminal in Baja
Crliforma, Mexico, lfor importing, storing and regasifying LWG

The Power segment develops Lhree solir progects |ocated m Baga Cahlorma, Aguascahentes saned Sonom, Mesacn,
owns and operates a natural gas fired power plant that inclhodes two gas trbines and one steam turbine, owms a
wind farm bocaited in Nueve Leon, Mexico and holds interests in o renewable energy project i a joint venture
in Baja Califomia, Mexico, both renewahle energy projects use the wind resources to serve cosnmers in blexico
and inthe U, 5., respectively.

The Company 15 also developing a project for the construction of & marine terminal and two n-land terminals
fior the reception, storage and delivery of refined products, located in Veracruz, Ciudad de Mexico and Puebla,
Bdexico, respectively

In Fobmeary 2016, the Company s management approved a plan to market and sell Termoclectnica de Mexical,
S de B L deC W and subsidmries (TN, as of March 31, 2006, and shesd, the nasets and habalities were
clussified under current assets and liabilitics as held for sabe and the comresponding decontinued eperation e flects
m the Pro forma Combimed Statements of Proli

O Septem ber 26, 2006, the Company completed the acquasition of [Enova Pipelmes, 5. de K. L, da C VS Enova
Fipelinea™) {formerly Gasoductos de Chihuahua, 5 de B L. de CV ) ("TEnova Pipelines acquistion™) through
[Enova Gasoductos Holding, 5 de K L. de C. ¥, (“IGH™) asubsadiary of [Enowva; therefore, the Company now
holds 100 percert of IEnova Pipelines's shares. The finnl price of the trarcaction was $1,0770.6 millen, net of
cash acquired, [Enova Pipelines has been ncluded in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since
the acguesition date.

On December 14, 2016 through Controladora Sierra Juarez, 5 de K L. de C. V. ("CS17) @ subsidiary of the
Company completed the acquisition of Fisterra Enengy Netherlands [17, B. ¥, Fisterra Energy Metherlands, 1V
B. V., Fisterra Energy Mexieo I, 5. de B L. de C. V., Fisterra Energy Mexico IV, 5. de B L. de C. WV, Ventika,
SAPLdeC WV, and Ventka I, 3. AP 1 de C V. (colbectively “Ventika™) (~Ventika acquasition”). The [inal
price of the transaction was 54247 million, phus the assumption of owustanding debt of 3485.3 million. Ventika
has been included in the Company s consolidated Ninancial stements since the acgusation date,
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Deseription of the assel acguisition, the “Tramsaciion™

On Movember 15, 20 7, IEnova completed the scquasition o Pemex Transfommacion Industnal "Pemex TRI™)
af the 50 percent interest in Ductos v Energeticos del Morte S da B L de © V (“DEN™), a joint venture that
hiolds a 30 percent interest im the Los Bamones MNorte papeline, theough TAG Morte Holdings 5 de B L. de C
W (“TAG™), for a purchase price of 3164.8 mullon (exclusive of 317.2 million of cash ad csh equivalents
acquired), plas the assumption of 3958 millions of intercompany debt. This acquisition increases TEnova's
owncrship interest in TAG [rom 25 percent 1o 30 percent. IEnova Pipelines previously sccounted for its 50
percent imkerest i LEN a5 am eguly method inv estment. As of Movember 1, 2017, DEN became s wholly cwmexd,
corsoldaied subsidiney of [Encve. DEN will continue to aocount for iks inlerest in TAG s on equity method
mvestment

This transaction was sccounted a5 an sssel acquisition because DEM does not meet the defimtion of 3 business,
since itdoesnot have substantive mputs of processes. DEN smos sigmlicant asset isitsequity method inv estrent
m TALG, the entity thit owns the Los Ramones Norte pipeling. The excess considerntion over the fair value of
assets poquired and liabilities assumed was allocated on a relative Fair value basis between the equity investment
m TAG and an acquired intangible asset related 1o an Operation and Maintenance (O&M™) contract with TAG

Description of the Transection Financing

The Company financed the Transsction through the dispesition of @ credit line Mihe eredit line™), up 1o the
amount of the Transaction related. Thebt and interest expense ane included in the Pro forma Combined Financial
Statements

Basis for preseniafion of the Pro forma Combined Financial Statemenis

The accounting pelcies applied in the preparation of the Pro foma Combmed Fmancial Statements comply
with Intermational Firancial Eeporting Standards (“IFES™) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ("1ASE")L

The Pro forma Combaned Statements af Financiml Position and the Pro forma Combined Statements of Profit
have been prepored based on the ssumiptions that the Company”s memagement believes ane appropriats in the
CAITENt CIFCLMAANGes

The Pro forma Combined Financial Statements include the Pro formma Combined Statemenis of Financial Pesation
s of December 31, 2016 and the Pro foema Combined Statements of Profit for the vear ended December 31,
2016

The Pro forma Com bined Financeal Statements present the fnancal inform ation of the Company a5 1f the DEN
Acquistion and 1tk financing oocurred (1) with respect to the Pro forma Combined Statements of Financaal
Position as of December 31, 2016 amd {1} with respect io the Pro forma Combined Statements of Profit for the
vear ended on December 31, 2014

As the [Enova r"u:cln‘l::i :|L'A'.Iu1::ﬁil:u‘| arsd Ventika ill.‘..l.llli!il'.ill.‘ll Wers tun‘ll'nlnl.cd o Scjin"nlttl:r j-ﬁ.. 206 and
December 14, 2016, respectively, lor compamive purposes, the Pro forma Combined Statements af Prolit for
the year ended December 31, 2008, present the linancial information of the Company as if the IEnova Pipelines
acguisition amel Ventika acquesition ocourred as of January 1, 2006,

Accordmgly, the Pro [orma Combined Frnancal Salements were compiled usimg the follewing mformation:

(1}  The annual ssdited Corsalidated Statement of Financial Pesition and the sudited Consclidated Statement
of Prafit of the Company as of and for the vear ended on December 31, 2006, prepared in accondance with
IFRS

{2y The anmeal unaudined Consolidated Smement of Financial Position and the audned Carsolidated Sutement
of Profit of DEN a= of and for the vear ended on December 31, 2016, prepared in accordance with IFRS.
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Consolidated Statements of Profi of 1Enova Pipelines for the perved ended on September 26, 2016 (before
the scquisition date), prepaned in accondance with the Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the

Urated States as reconciled 1o IFRS Asof Decomber 31,
(4 The historical unaudined Condensed Tnterim Combined Statenents of Profivof Ventika for the period ended )
on December 14, 2006 (before the acquisition date), prepared inaccordance with LAS 34, Inberim Financial Cuarrent asscts $ 1183
Repart Mon-current assets, maanly propeny, plinl md squipment, net ind
G other sssels 24,360
s Pro Torna adjusiments Current and long-term lishili ties (. A0
Pro forma adjustments as of December 31, 2005, included in the sccompanying Pro forma Combined Statements Toal identifiatle mt assets 25152

of Frnancal Poamtion and forthe year ended December 31 2016, inchaded in the Pro foema Cambined Statements

of Profit as descrnibed below, represent the DEN's asset acquisition and its financing had taken place on Janusry Remeasuemant ia jolnt venhurs investneate in scconiance with poo

1, 208 Forna sdjustmenls 17729
This infoemation isnot intended to present the Company s resulis of operations or i fnancial position a2 though Immsir_ﬂ_‘e ' - 50
the DIEN asset acquisitson had occurred an the aforementioned dates, nor is it intended 1o praject the Company’s Aequisition costs pad (143}
operating results and frarcial pesition for amy future periods o as of any [utare dates. Payment of loans acqured through DEN scqmsition (B9 934)
Incederto present the effects of the DEM assct acquisition in the Pro forma Financial Stakem ents the management Total consideraton tranaferred 5 164,752

applied certain pro forma adiustments 1o the historscal figures of the relaad companies
The pro forma adjustments include the amounts. of identifiable sssets acquired and liabilitics assumed and
Adirstments to the Pro forma Combin ed Stofemenits of Financial Position as of December 31, 2006 and consolidation adjustments of DEN.
ddfusforents to the Pro forme Combined Sextemenss of Prafit for the pear ended Decentber 31 2006
) . The effect on stockhalders” equity, including the elimination of DEN, = summarized as follows:
g The pro forma adjustments represent the conselidation of DEN, ehmmaton of previows equity methad of
Jont venture in the Company from DN, related party balances and trarssctions, including pavemeant of debt

] ; THE Azl Decemibeer 31,
from stockhabders ol DHEM, Stackholder’s equity 2016
b The withdrawal of the credil line including the spphication ol the funds to the payment of the ramsaction. Cagital stock e 1131}
¢ Consolidation of IEnova Pipelines, elimination of previous equity method from [Enova Pipe lines as a joint Accurnulated ather comprehensive ncome 1349
venture, elimiration of balances and transactions with affiliates and remeasurement of equity method Retained eamings (17,145}
investment.
b {15,927}
|
d. TAG is not part of the assignment agreement. Therefore, the pro forma adiustments exclude the assets and
liahilities related 1o TALG. After the Transaction = consummated, the Company will hold a 50 percent jeim
ventune investment in TAG
¢ Pursaant 1o the Assignment Agreement, ta and accounting treatment of the transaction eust be consistent, R

therefore, it was consadiered o5 an acquisition of equity interest for the purposes of incomee tax law.
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ASEA

Bbl

BMV
CEMEFI
CENACE
CFE
CICESE

COsO

EBITDA
ECA

ECOGAS

ERM
ESJ

FCPA
GAP
GPTW

GRO
GW
GWh
HP
IENOVA
INECOL
IPC
1SO

National Agency for Industrial and Environment Protection in

the Hydrocarbons Sector

Barrels

Mexican Stock Exchange

Mexican Center for Philanthropy
National Center for Controlling Energy
Federal Electricity Commission

Ensenada Center for Scientific Investigation and University
Studies

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission

Earnings Before Taxes, Depreciation, and Amortization

Energia Costa Azul S. de R.L. de C.V., LNG storage and
regasification terminal

ECOGAS México, S. de R.L. de C.V,, IEnova's natural gas
distribution business

Enterprise Risk Management

Energia Sierra Juarez: the 155 MW wind farm located at La
Rumorosa, in the Mexican state of Baja California

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

Aguaprieta Pipeline

Great Place to Work (program that ranks the best companies

to work for)

Rosarito Pipeline

Giga-watts

Giga-watts hour

Horse Power

Infraestructura Energética Nova S.A.B. de C.V.
Jalapa Institute of Ecology

IPC Index of the Mexican Stock Exchange

International Organization for Standardization

MW
M WAC
NOM
OECD
OHSAS
PEMEX

PEMEX TRI

PROFECO
PROFEPA
SASISOPA

SCADA
SCR
SEMARNAT

SEMPRA
ENERGY

STPS
TDM

TGN

TRIR
UABC
usb$

VAT
VENTIKA

Income Tax

Joint Venture

Kilometer

Kilowatts

Killowatts-hour

Liquefied Natural Gas

Liquefied Petroleum Gas

Lost Time Accident Rate

Millions of cubic feet daily

Millions of barrels

Marine Mammals Monitoring Program

Megawatts

Megawatt, alternate current

Official Mexican Standard

Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development
Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Series
Petréleos Mexicanos

Pemex Transformacién Industrial (TRI), formerly known as
Pemex Gas y Petroquimica Bésica, is the state production
company, a subsidiary of Pemex

Federal Consumer Protection Agency
Federal Environmental Protection Agency

Process and Occupational Safety, and Environmental
Management System

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition

Selective Catalytic Reduction

Mexican Ministry of the Environment and Natural Resources

The indirect controlling shareholder of IEnova; a company
incorporated in accordance with the laws of the state of
California, in the US

Mexican Ministry of Labor and Social Welfare

Termoeléctrica de Mexicali, S. de R.L. de C.V., IEnova's
power plant

Transportadora de Gas Natural de Baja California, S. de R.L.,
one of IEnova's natural gas pipelines

Total Recordable Incident Rate

Au University of Baja California
US dollars

Value Added Tax

252 MW wind farm located in the state of Nuevo Ledn
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CHEMICAL FORMULAS

CH,

Methane

co

Carbon monoxide

co

2

Carbon dioxide

CO,e

Carbon dioxide equivalent (@ measurement used to compare
several greenhouse gas emissions based on their global
warming potential)

N,O

2

Nitrogen oxide

NOXx

Nitrogen oxides (applies to various compounds formed by
oxygen and nitrogen)

SOx

Sulfur oxides (applies to various compounds formed by
oxygen and sulfur)

GLOSSARY

CARBON DIOXIDE
EQUIVALENT

A measurement used to compare several greenhouse gas
emissions based on their global warming potential

BENTHONIC
FAUNA

A group of organisms that live on sea beds

INVOLUNTARY
TURNOVER
RATE

(Number of hires in a year - number of involuntary cuts in a
year) / Total number of employees

TOTAL
TURNOVER
RATE

(Number of hires in a year - number of voluntary and
involuntary cuts in a year) / Total number of employees

VOLUNTARY
TURNOVER
RATE

(Number of hires in a year - number of voluntary cuts in a
year) / Total number of employees

THE CLIMATE
REGISTRY

NGO in the US that measures and verifies international
carbon standards

OPERATING
UNIT

Refers to IEnova's companies operating in the gas and
electricity business segments
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[102-12,102-45, 102-46, 102-49, 102-50,
102-52, 102-54, 102-55, 102-56]

This is the fifth Sustainability Report published by
IEnova. In it we describe in detail our company's
performance for 2017, including our accomplishments,
areas for improvement, and challenges we faced
concerning economic, social, and environmental issues
relatedto our business strategy and to the commitment
that we, as a company, have made to sustainability. For
the third time, the Report includes the company's
financial highlights.

This Sustainability Report + Financial Report summarizes
the information pertaining to our Gas and Electricity
business segments, including companies that offer
natural gas, LPG, and ethane pipelines and storage
services, as well as liquefied natural gas storage;
companies that distribute natural gas; and our
combined-cycle plant and wind farms.

Indrafting this report we followed the GRI Sustainability
Reporting Standards, with the “Core” option.

The information included in this report covers the period
between January 1t and December 31t 2017. It employs
the information contained in our databases and the
analyses carried out by each of the companies that make
up IEnova, enabling the reader to trace and compare data.

The issues identified in the |Enova materiality
assessment, done for the first time in 2014, are reviewed
annually to confirm they are still relevant to our
stakeholders. Modifications are reflected in our materiality
matrix. Following the new GRI Standards, we report on
the information pertaining to the indicators related to
our material aspects and boundaries, as well as on
those that we consider to be most relevant to our
stakeholders. We obtained the GRI Materiality Disclosures
Service mark for the fourth consecutive year. Our

methodology is described in the chapter entitled “We
are a Sustainable Company.” In addition, throughout
the Report we describe the formulas used to calculate
the indicators and we specify the operating units for
which we are reporting the information. We have also
clearly identified any changes in our metrics with
respect to information reported in prior years.

Within the Gas Segment, unless otherwise specified,
the consolidated performance data for IEnova includes,
for the first time, information on the assets belonging
to Gasoductos de Chihuahua, a company from which,
in September 2016, we purchased the 50% stake we
didn't previously own from Pemex Transformacién
Industrial (TRI). In the Electricity Segment, the Report
consolidates data on Energia Sierra Judrez—a cross-
border wind farm that we built and now operate as
part of our joint venture with InterGen, in which we
have a 50% stake—as well as data on our Ventika wind
farm, which we acquired in December 2016.

For the fourth consecutive year, Deloitte, as an
independent third-party, verified 30 material indicators
included in this Sustainability Report.

As a signatory of the UN Global Compact since 2015,
this Report constitutes IEnova's third Communication
on Progress (COP). We also include herein the progress
we have made in terms of the Compact's ten principles
and our contribution to the UN Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs).

We thank you for your interest in IEnova. We are certain
the Report contains enough detailed information about
IEnova's social responsibility performance. This 2017
Sustainability Report + Financial Report is available to
view and download on our website: www.ienova.com.mx

Design: ngyli/‘ www.xdesign.com.mx

Paseo de la Reforma No.342
Piso 24. Col. Judrez,
Delegacién Cuauhtémoc

CP. 06600

Ciudad de México

Tel. (55)-9138-0100

IENOVA

EMPRESA
ESR J SOCIALMENTE
RESPONSABLE

This Report is a translation from
the original version in Spanish.
In case of discrepancy, the
Spanish version prevails.
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